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Before 
THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

In the Matter of the application of 
OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
for authority to issue and sell secured or unsecured 
promissory notes, debentures or other debt 
securities, to borrow from, or enter into other 
financing arrangements with, the Ohio Air Quality 
Development Authority, Indiana Finance Authority 
or other authority, to enter into one or more secured 
or unsecured term loan or revolvmg credit 
arrangements and to enter into interest rate 
management agreements 

Case No. 08-1286-EL-AIS 

REPORT 

Pursuant to your Honorable Commission's Finding and Order in this proceeding, entered in 

the Journal on January 14, 2009, authorizing your Applicant, Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

("OVEC"), among other tilings, to borrow from, or enter into other financing arrangements with, 

the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority in the aggregate principal amount of up to 

$900,000,000, the following information is herewith respectfully submitted: 

1. On August 12, 2009, OVEC caused the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

(the "Authority") to issue its of State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric 

Corporation Project), Series 2009A, in the aggregate principal amoimt of $25,000,000. A copy 

of the Official Statement dated August 5,2009 is attached hereto as Exhibit A to this Report. 

2. On August 12,2009, OVEC caused the Ohio Authority to issue its of State of Ohio 

Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009B, in the 

aggregate principal amount of $25,000,000. A copy of the Official Statement dated August 5, 

2009 is attached hereto as Exhibit B to this Report. 
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3. On August 21, 2009, OVEC caused the Authority to issue its of State of Ohio Air 

Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009C, in the 

aggregate principal amoimt of $25,000,000. A copy of the Official Statement dated August 18, 

2009 is attached hereto as Exhibit C to this Report. 

4. On August 21, 2009, OVEC caused the Authority to issue its of State of Ohio Air 

Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009D, in the 

aggregate principal amount of $25,000,000. A copy of the Official Statement dated August 18, 

2009 is attached hereto as Exhibit D to this Report. 

5. On October 6, 2009, OVEC caused the Authority to issue its of State of Ohio Air 

Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009E, in the 

aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000. A copy of the Official Statement dated October 6, 

2009 is attached hereto as Exhibit E to this Report. 

The transactions described herein were consummated in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of and for the purposes set forth in said Order. 

Respectfully submitted this 21^ day of October, 2009. 

OmO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

^ M 4 / ^ ^ A ^ l ^ By 
Vice President 

Dated: October 21,2009 
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NEW ISSUE—BOOK-ENTRY ONLY 
In the opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, under existing law (i) assuming continuing compliance with certain 

covenants and the accuracy of certain representations, interest on ihe Bonds is excluded from ^oss income for federal income tax purposes, except 
interest on any Bond for any period during which it is held by a "substantia] user" or a "related person," as those terms are used in Section 147(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (ii) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for 
purposes of the federal altemative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations and (iii) interest on, and any profit made on the sale, 
exchange or other disposition of, the Bonds are exempt from the Ohio perswial income tax, the Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income base of 
the Ohio corporate franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic development district income taxes in Ohio. See TAX 
EXEMPTION. 

$25,000,000 
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

State of Ohio 
Air Quality Revenue Bonds 

(Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), 
Series 2009A 

Interest to accrue from date of issuance Due: February 1,2026 

The Series 2009A Bonds (the "Bonds") are special obligations of the State of Ohio and issued by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 
(the "Issuer"). The Bonds will not constitute a debt, or a pledge of the faith and credit, of the Issuer, the State of Ohio or any political subdivision 
thereof, and the holders or owners of the Bonds will have no right to have taxes levied by the General Assembly of Ohio or any political subdivision of 
Ohio for the payment of the principal of, interest on or purchase price of the Bonds. The Bonds are payable solely from, and secured by a pledge of, the 
loan repayments under a note issued under the terms of a Loan Agreement (the "Lx>an Agreement") between the Issuer and 

OfflO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
(the "Company") and to the extent provided herein from funds drawn under an irrevocable transferable direct pay letter of credit (the "Letter of 
Credit") issued by 

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA 
acting through its New York Agency. 

The Letter of Credit will permit the Trustee, The Huntington National Bank, to draw up to (a) an amount sufficient to pay (i) the principal of the 
Bonds when due at maturity or upon redemption or acceleration and (ii) die portion of the purchase price of the Bonds tendered to the Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to the principal amount of such Bonds, plus (b) an amount equal lo 35 days' interest on the Bonds at a maximum rate of 
12% per annum to pay (i) interest on the Bonds when due and (ii) the portion of the purchase price of the Bonds tendered to die Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to die accrued interest on such Bonds. The Letter of Credit will expire on August 12, 2010 or on the eariiest occurrence of 
one or more of the events described herein, unless extended by The Bank of Nova Scotia acting through its New York Agency (the "Letter of Credit 
Bank") (see THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT—The Letter of Credit herein). Unless the Letter of Credit is 
replaced or extended as described herein, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase prior to its expiration. 

The Bonds will initially bear interest at a Weekly Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent as described under THE BONDS—Form and 
Denomination of Bonds; Payments on the Bonds—Interest herein, payable on the first Business Day of each month commencing September 1, 2009 
and the date on which the Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase. Upon satisfaction of the conditions specified in the Indenture, the 
Company may from time to time change the interest rate determination method for the Bonds to a Daily Rate, a Weekly Rate, a Commercial Pscper 
Rate, a Long-Term Interest Rale or an Auction Mode Rate. 

The Bonds are subject to mandatory tender and redemption as described under THE BONDS—Mandatory Tender for i^irchase and THE 
BONDS—Redemption of Bonds herein. When a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate is in effect for the Bonds, holders of the Bonds will have the option to 
tender their Bonds few purchase as described under THE BONDS—Optional Tender. 

While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate they will be issued as fully registered bonds in denominations of $! 00,(K)0 and any 
larger denominations constituting an integral multiple of $5,000. The Bonds will be issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust (the "Indenture"), between 
the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as trustee (the "Trustee"). The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds and will be registered 
initially in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC acts 
as a securities depository for the Bunds. Except under the limited circumstances described herein. Beneficial Owners of book-entry interests in the 
Bonds will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests. Payments of principal or purchase price of, and premium, if any, and intensst 
on the Bonds will be made through DTC and disbursements of such payments to Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of DTC and its 
Participants. See THE BONDS—Book-Entry Only System herein. KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incoiporated (the 
"Underwriters") will act as underwriters for the Bonds. KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. will act as remarketing agent (the "Remarketing Agent") for the 
Bonds. 

PRICE: 100% 
This cover page contains limited inftwmation for quick reference only and is not a summary of this Official Statement. Investors should read the 

entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision. 

The Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriters, subject to the iqaproval of their validity by 
Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Cleveland, Ohio, Bond Counsel, as described herein, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be 
passed on for the Underwriters by their counsel. Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, for the Letter of Credit Bank by its U.S. counsel. King & 
Spalding LLP, and by its internal Canadian counsel, and for the Company by its internal counsel and Fultwight & Jaworski L.L.P., New York, New 
York. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Issuer by its counsel, Forbes, Fields & Associates Co., L.P.A. Delivery of the Bonds in book-
entry-only form is expected on or about August 12, 2009, through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York, against payment therefor. 

KeyBanc Capital Markets 
Dated; August 5,2009 

Morgan Stanley 
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No person has been authorized to give any infonnation or to make any repj^sentations other than those 
contained in this Official Statement in connection with the offer made hereby and, if given or made, such 
information or representadons must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer, the Company, the 
Letter of Credit Bank or the Underwriters. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale hereunder 
shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer, the 
Letter of Credit Bank or the Company since the date hereof. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer or 
solicitation in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or in which the person making 
such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom il is unlawful lo make such offer or 
solicitation. The Issuer neither has nor assumes any responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness of the 
information in this Official Statement, all of which has been furnished by others, other than information under THE 
ISSUER. 

This Official Statement contains statements which, to the extent they are not recitations of historical fact, 
constitute "forward-looking statements." In this respect, the words "estimate," "project," "anticipate," "expect," 
"intent," "believe," and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. A number of 
important factors affecting Ohio Valley Electric Corporation's business and fmancial results and those of its 
contractual counterparties could cause actual results to differ from those stated in the forward-looking statements. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The 
Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a part of, their 
respective responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of 
this transaction, but the Underwriters Cio not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING MAY ENGAGE IN TRANSACTIONS 
THAT STABILIZE, MAINTAIN OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE BONDS, INCLUDING BY 
ENTERING STABILIZING BIDS. FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THESE ACTIVITIES, SEE VNDERWRITING 
HEREIN. 



$25,900,000 
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

State of Ohio 
Air Quality Revenue Bonds 

(Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), 
Series 2009A 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

This Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, is provided to fumish certain 
infonnation in connection with the issuance by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, a 
body politic and corporate of the State of Ohio ("Issuer'*) of State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue 
Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009A, in the aggregate principal 
amount of $25,000,000 (the "Bonds"). The Issuer neither has nor assumes any responsibility as 
to the accuracy or completeness of the informarioo in this Official Statement, all of which has 
been furnished by others, other than the information pertaining to the Issuer under THE ISSUER. 

The Bonds will be issued under and pursuant to a resolution of the Issuer adopted on 
October 14,2008 ("Resolution") and an Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2009 
("Indenture"), between the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as trustee (in such 
capacity, the "Trustee"). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the 
meanings given to them in the Indenture. 

Pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1,2009 ("Loan Agreement"), between 
the Issuer and the Company, the Issuer will loan to the Company the proceeds of the Bonds to 
assist the Company in fmancing a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing and installing 
certain solid waste disposal facilities comprising "air quality facilities", as defined in Chapter 
3706, Ohio Revised Code, as amended (the "Act"), for Units 1-5 of the Kyger Creek Generating 
Station owned by the Company located in the County of Gallia, Ohio (the "Project"). The term 
"Plant" as used herein means the Kyger Creek Generating Station. 

In order to evidence the loan from the Issuer (the "Loan") and to provide for its 
repayment, the Company will issue a nonnegotiable promissory note (the "Note") pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement. Payments required under the Note will be sufficient, together with any other 
funds on deposit in the Bond Fund (hereinafter described) under the Indenture, to pay the 
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and to make or provide for payments 
to the Trustee, equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest, if any, 
upon tender thereof ("Purchase Price"). The Bonds will not otherwise be secured by a mortgage 
on, or security interest in, any of the Project or any other property of the Company. 

The Bonds will initially bear interest at a Weekly Rate until converted to another 
permitted interest rate mode as described herein. While accruing interest at the Daily Rate or 
Weekly Rate, the Bonds are subject to optional tender and mandatory tender for purchase, as 
described herein. Bonds converted to a different interest rate mode will be subject to mandatory 
tender upon conversion. When a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate is in effect for the Bonds, holders of 
the Bonds will have the option to tender their Bonds for piu-chase as described herein. Each 
Interest Rate for an Interest Rate Period for the Bonds will be determined by the Remarketing 
Agent as set forth in the Indenture. 



While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate they will be issued in 
denominations of $100,000 and any larger denominations constituting an integral multiple of 
$5,000, The Bonds will be held by The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), or its nominee, as 
securities depository with respect to the Bonds. See THE BONDS - Book-Entry Only System. 

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Company will cause to be delivered to the 
Trustee an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit (the "Letter of Credit) issued by The Bank of Nova 
Scoria, acting through its New York Agency ("Letter of Credit Bank"), in the initial aggregate stated 
amount of $25,287,671.23. Under the Letter of Credit, the Trustee will be permitted to draw up to 
(a) an amount sufficient to pay (i) the principal of the Bonds when due at maturity, redemption or 
acceleration and (ii) the portion of die Purchase Price of the Bonds tendered to the Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to the principal amount of such Bonds, plus (b) an amount equal to 35 
days' interest on the Bonds at a maximum rate of 12% per annum to pay (i) interest on the Bonds 
when due and (ii) the portion of the Purchase Price of tiie Bonds tendered to the Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to the accrued interest on such Bonds. The expiration date of the Letter of 
Credit is August 12,2010 unless earlier terminated or extended as described under THE LETTER 
OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENTAGREEMENT—The Letter of Credit. The Letter of Credit 
may be replaced by an Alternate Letter of Credit (as defined herein) prior to its expiration date as 
described under THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT— 
Replacement of Letter of Credit herein. If the Letter of Credit expires, is replaced by an Altemate 
Letter of Credit or is surrendered, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase, as 
described under THE BONDS — Mandatory Tender for Purchase herein. The Letter of Credit will 
be issued pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of the date of issuance of the Bonds 
(the "Reimbursement Agreemenf), among the Letter of Credit Bank, the lenders named therem, the 
Company and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as administrative agent (the "Administrative Agent"). 

The Bonds are speciai obligations of the Issuer, and are to be paid solely from, and 
wili be secured by a pledge of, payments to be made to the Issuer under the terms of the 
Loan Agreement and the Note and funds drawn under the Letter of Credit. The Bonds will 
not be secured by a mortgage or security interest in the Project or any other property of the 
Company. See THE BONDS-Security for the Bonds. 

Brief descriptions of the Issuer, the Project, the Company, the Letter of Credit Bank and 
certain provisions of the Bonds, the Loan Agreement, the Note, the Indenture, the Letter of 
Credit and the Reimbursement Agreement are included in this Official Statement. The 
descriptions and summaries contained herein do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. 
Certain information with respect to the Company is set forth in Appendix A hereto. Certain 
information with respect to the Letter of Credit Bank is set forth in Appendix B hereto. 
Appendix C to this Official Statement sets forth the form of opinion Bond Counsel proposes to 
deliver relating to die Bonds. The descriptions herein of provisions of the Loan Agreement, the 
Indenture, the Letter of Credit and the Reimbursement Agreement are qualified in their entirety 
by reference to such documents, and the description herein of provisions of the Bonds is 
qualified in its entirety by reference to the form thereof and the information with respect thereto 
included in the aforesaid documents. All such descriptions are further qualified in their entirety 
by reference to laws and principles of equity relating to or affecting generally the enforcement of 
creditor's rights. Copies of such documents may be obtained from the office of the Company 
and are available for inspection at the office of the Trustee. Words and terms not defined herein 
shall have the meanings set forth in the respective documents. 



The Bonds may not be suitable for all investors. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds 
should read this entire Official Statement for details of the Bonds, the financial condition of the 
Company and certain other factors that could adversely affect the utility industry, including 
specifically the infonnation under the caption RISK FACTORS in Appendix A 

THE ISSUER 

The Issuer was organized pursuant to the Act. Under the Act, the Issuer is a body 
corporate and politic, with fiill power and authority to issue the Bonds and to enter into and 
perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture. The Issuer has no taxing 
power. 

THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE OF OHIO AND 
SHALL NOT REPRESENT OR CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH 
AND CREDIT OR TAXING POWER OF THE ISSUER, THE STATE OF OHIO OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF OHIO, AND THE HOLDERS AND OWNERS THEREOF 
SHALL HAVE NO RIGHT TO HAVE TAXES LEVIED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
OF OHIO OR THE TAXING AUTHORITY OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF OHIO 
FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, INTEREST ON OR PURCHASE PRICE OF 
THE BONDS, BUT THE BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES 
AND FUNDS PLEDGED FOR THEIR PAYMENT AS AUTHORIZED BY THE ACT. 

THE PROJECT 

The Project consists of various systems which are designed for the disposal of solid 
wastes resulting from the operation of Units 1-5 at the Plant. The solid waste disposal facilities, 
which comprise "air quality facilities" as defined in Section 3706.01 of the Act, are comprised of 
the portion ofeach flue gas desulfiirization system ("FGD System") to be constmcted with 
respect to Units 1-5 at the Plant, rated at 217 megawatts each, that relates to the disposal of solid 
waste generated as part of the FGD System. 

The Issuer also expects to issue $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of 
Ohio Air Quahty Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009B (the 
"Series 2009B Bonds"), $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality 
Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009C (tiie "Series 2009C 
Bonds") and $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue 
Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009D (the "Series 2009D Bonds") 
either at the same time as the Bonds or shortly thereafter for the purpose of financing a portion of 
die cost of the Project. The Series 2009B Bonds, Series 2009C Bonds and Series 2009D Bonds 
will be payable from payments to be made by the Company pursuant to separate loan agreements 
with the Issuer and also will be secured by separate letters of credit. 

In addition, the Company anticipates requesting the Issuer to issue an additional 
$100,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio 
Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009E (the "Series 2009E Bonds") for die purpose 
of financing a portion of the cost of the Project. The Series 2009E Bonds will be payable from 
payments made by the Company pursuant to a separate loan agreement with the Issuer. 



USE OF PROCEEDS 

The proceeds received by the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds will be deposited in the 
Constmction Fund created under the Indenture to be used to reimburse the Company for costs of 
the Project and certain costs incident to the sale and issuance of the Bonds. 

THE BONDS 

This Official Statement does not provide any information regarding the Bonds after 
the date, if any, on which the Bonds convert to bear interest, as permitted by the Indenture, 
at interest rates other than a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate. The Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender in the event of any conversion to a different rate, including any 
conversion between a Weekly Rate and a Daily Rate. See ~ Mandatory Tender for Purchase 
below. The Bonds may be tendered for purchase at the option of the owners while bearing 
interest at a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate. See THE BONDS ~ Optional Tender below. 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer and will be payable solely from the 
revenues and receipts arising out of or in connection with the Loan Agreement, the Note and, as 
long as the Letter of Credit is in effect, funds drawn under the Letter of Credit. 

General 

The Bonds will be dated as of the date of the initial authentication and delivery thereof 
and will mature on Febmary 1,2026. The Bonds initially will bear interest at a Weekly Rate 
commencing on the date of the issuance of the Bonds, subject to conversion to other interest rate 
modes as described herein. 

Beneficial interests in the Bonds will initially be issued pursuant to a Book-Entry Only 
System ("Book-Entry Only System") maintained by DTC, as described below under the caption 
Book-Entry Only System. Under the Indenture, the Tmstee and the Issuer may appoint a 
successor securities depository to DTC. (DTC, together with any such successor securities 
depository, is hereinafter referred to as the "Securities Depository"). The following information 
is subject in its entirety to the provisions described below under the caption Book-Entry Only 
System while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry Only System. 

Upon surrender of the Bonds, principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds are payable 
at maturity or upon redemption at the principal office of the Tmstee, or at the option of the 
owner at the principal office of any paying agent designated as provided in the Indenture. As 
long as the Bonds are held by DTC, interest will be paid to DTC on each payment date. If the 
book-entry system is discontinued, interest on the Bonds will be payable by check or draft 
mailed by the Tmstee to the registered owners. 

Form and Denomination of Bonds; Payments on the Bonds 

General 

While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate they will be issued only 
as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in denominations of $100,000 and any larger 



denomination constituting an integral multiple of $5,000 (an "Authorized Denomination"). The 
Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee of DTC. 
DTC acts as securities depository for the Bonds and individual purchases of Bonds may be made 
in book-entry form only. So long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, purchasers of Bonds 
will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. So long as Cede 
& Co. is the registered owner of such Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the 
Bondholders or registered owners or holder shall mean Cede & Co., and shall not mean the 
Beneficial Owners (as defined below) of the Bonds. 

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and interest on 
the Bonds are payable to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, which will, in turn, remit such 
amounts to the DTC Participants (as defined below) for subsequent disbursement to the 
Beneficial Owners. See - Book-Entry Only System below. 

The Huntington National Bank has been appointed as Tmstee and Paying Agent under 
the Indenture. The designated corporate tmst office of the Tmstee and Paying Agent is located, 
initially, in Columbus, Ohio. 

Except in connection with the purchase of Bonds tendered for purchase, the Tmstee will 
not be required to make any transfer or exchange of any Bond during the ten days prior to the 
mailing of a notice of Bonds selected for redemption or, with respect to a Bond, after such Bond 
or any portion thereof has been selected for redemption. Registration of transfers and exchanges 
shall be made without charge to the Bondholders, except that any required taxes or other 
govemmental charges shall be paid by the Bondholder requesting registration of transfer or 
exchange. 

Interest 

Interest on the Bonds will be payable as described below. Interest on the Bonds will 
initially be payable at a Weekly Rate on the first Business Day ofeach month, commencing 
September I, 2009. The interest rate determination method for the Bonds may be changed by the 
Company as described under Change in Interest Rate Determination Method below. See 
Summary below for a table summarizing certain provisions of the Bonds while bearing interest at 
a Weekly Rate or Daily Rate. 

"'Business Day'' means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, (ii) a day on which 
commercial banks in New York, New York or the city in which the payment office of the Letter 
of Credit Bank is located (currentiy. New York, New York) are required or authorized by law to 
close, (iii) a day which the Tmstee shall advise the Letter of Credit Bank in writing from time to 
time is a day on which the designated corporate tmst office of the Tmstee is required or 
authorized by law to close, (iv) a day which the Tmstee shall advise the Letter of Credit Bank in 
writing from time to time is a day on which the principal office of the Remarketing Agent that is 
administering the Bonds is required or authorized by law to close, or (v) a day on which the New 
York Stock Exchange is closed. 

Interest will accme on the unpaid portion of the principal of the Bonds fi'om the last date 
to which interest was paid, or ifno interest has been paid, from the date of the original issuance 
of the Bonds until the entire principal amount of the Bonds is paid. When interest is payable at a 



Daily Rate or Weekly Rate, interest will be computed on the basis of the actual number of days 
elapsed over a year of 365 days (366 days in leap years). 

Daily Rate. When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Daily Rate, the Remarketing 
Agent will set a Daily Rate on or before 10:00 A.M., New York City time, on each Business Day 
for that Business Day. Each Daily Rate will be the minimum rate necessary (as determined by 
the Remarketing Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparable to the 
Bonds known by the Remarketing Agent to have been priced or traded under then-prevailing 
market conditions) for the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the day the Daily Rate is set 
at their principal amount (without regard to accmed interest). The Daily Rate for any non-
Business Day will be the rate for the last day for which a rate was set. 

Weekly Rate. When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Weekly Rate, the Remarketing 
Agent will set a Weekly Rate on or before 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the last Business 
Day before the commencement of a period during which the Bonds are to bear interest at a 
Weekly Rate and on each Wednesday thereafter so long as interest on the Bonds is to be payable 
at a Weekly Rate or, if any Wednesday is not a Business Day, on the next preceding Business 
Day. Each Weekly Rate will be the minimum rate necessary (as determined by the Remarketing 
Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparable to the Bonds known by 
the Remarketing Agent to have been priced or traded under then-prevailing market conditions) 
for the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the date the Weekly Rate is set at their principal 
amount (without regard to accmed interest). The first Weekly Rate after the delivery of the 
Letter of Credit by die Letter of Credit Bank will apply to the period beginning on the date of 
issuance of the Bonds and ending on the next Wednesday. Thereafter, each Weekly Rate shall 
apply to (i) the period beginning on the Thursday after the Weekly Rate is set and ending on the 
following Wednesday or, if earlier, ending on the day before the effective date of a new method 
of determining the interest rate on the Bonds or (ii) the period beginning on the effective date of 
the change to a Weekly Rate and ending on the next Wednesday. 

Fallback Interest Period and Rate. If the appropriate Daily Rate or Weekly Rate is not or 
cannot be determined for any reason, the method of determining interest on the Bonds will be 
payable at the Alternate Rate. 

"Altemate Rate" means, as of any date, the rate per annum equal to the Securities 
Indusny and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index of Municipal Market Data 
most recently available as of the date of determination or, if such index is no longer available, or 
if the rate is no longer published, a comparable index as described in the Indenture. 

Calculation and Notice of Interest. The Remarketing Agent will provide the Tmstee and 
the Company with notice in writing or by other written electronic means or by telephone 
promptly confirmed by facsimile transmission by 1:00 P.M., New York City time, (i) on the last 
Business Day of a month in which interest on the Bonds was payable at a Daily Rate, of the 
Daily Rate for each day in such month, (ii) on each day on which a Weekly Rate becomes 
effective, of die Weekly Rate and (iii) on any Business Day preceding any redemption or 
purchase date, any interest rate requested by the Tmstee in order to enable it to calculate die 
accmed interest, if any, due on such redemption or purchase date. Using the rates supplied by 
such notice, the Tmstee will calculate the interest payable on the Bonds. The Remarketing 
Agent will inform the Tmstee and the Company orally at the oral request of either of them of any 



interest rate so set. The Tmstee will confirm the effective interest rate in writing to any 
Bondholder who requests it. 

The setting of the rates by the Remarketing Agent and the calculation of interest payable 
on the Bonds by the Tmstee as provided in the Indenture will be conclusive and binding on the 
Issuer, the Company, the Tmstee and the owners of the Bonds. 

Change in Interest Rate Determination Method. The Company may change the method 
of determining the interest rate on all but not part of the Bonds, from time to time by notifying 
the Issuer, the Tmstee, the Letter of Credit Bank and the Remarketing Agent. The Company's 
notice will specify (i) the effective date of the proposed change in interest rate determination 
method and (ii) a statement as to whether the Letter of Credit shall be terminated in connection 
with such change. The interest rate on the Bonds will be determined on the basis of the new 
hiterest rate determination method on the effective date specified in the Company's notice, 
provided that: (i) the Company's notice complies with the provisions of the Indenture and the 
change to the proposed interest rate determination method complies with certain limitations set 
forth in the Indenture; and (ii) except when the change is to a Daily Rate from a Weekly Rate or 
to a Weekly Rate from a Daily Rate, a Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel required imder the 
Indenture has been delivered with the notice and also confirmed on that effective date (see 
CanceUation of Change in Interest Rate Determination Method if Opinion of Tax Counsel is Not 
Confirmed below). It is currently anticipated that, should any of the Bonds be converted to bear 
interest at any rate other than a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate, a new reoffering memorandum or 
reoffering circular will be distributed describing the Bonds while they bear interest at any such 
interest rate. 

Notice of Change in Interest Rate Determination Method. The Tmstee, upon receiving 
notice fi-om the Company pursuant to the Indenture, is required to give at least 15 days written 
notice by first-class mail to the Bondholders before the effective date of a change in the interest 
rate detennination method. Each notice will be effective when sent and will state: (i) that the 
interest rate determination method will change; (ii) the proposed effective date of the new 
interest rate determination method; and (iii) that the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender 
on the effective date of the change and the information required to be included in a notice of 
tender pursuant to the Indenture. See Mandatory Tender for Purchase-Notice of Tender below. 

Cancellation of Change in Interest Rate Determination Method if Opinion of Tax Counsel 
is Not Confirmed. No change will be made in tiie interest rate determination method at the 
direction of the Company as described under Change in Interest Rate Determination Method 
above if the Company shall fail to deliver any required Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel and 
confirmation thereof described under Change in Interest Rate Determination Method above. If 
notice of a change in the interest rate determination method has been mailed and, subsequently, a 
Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel is not confirmed, then the Tmstee shall so notify the 
bondholders and the Bonds shall still be subject to a mandatory tender on the proposed date of 
change in the interest rate determination method and the Remarketing Agent shall remarket the 
Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Indenture. 



Special Considerations Relating to the Bonds 

The Remarketing Agent is Paid bv the Company 

The Remarketing Agent's responsibilities include determming the interest rate from time 
to time and remarketing Bonds that are optionally or mandatorily tendered by the owners thereof 
(subject, in each case, to the terms of the Remarketing Agreement (as defined herein)), all as 
further described in this Official Statement. The Remarketing Agent is appointed by the 
Company and is paid by the Company for its services. As a result, the interests of the 
Remarketing Agent may differ from those of existing holders and potential purchasers of Bonds. 

The Remarketing Agent Routinely Purchases Bonds for its Own Accoimt 

The Remarketing Agent acts as remarketing agent for a variety of variable rate demand 
obligations and, in its sole discretion, routinely purchases such obligations for its own account in 
order to achieve a successful remarketing of the obligations (i.e., because there are otherwise not 
enough buyers to purchase the obligations) or for other reasons. The Remarketing Agent is 
permitted^ but not obligated, to purchase tendered Bonds for its own account and, if it does so, it 
may cease doing so at any time without notice. The Remarketing Agent may also make a market 
in the Bonds by routinely purchasing and selling Bonds other than in connection with an optional 
or mandatory tender and remarketing. Such purchases and sales may be at or below par. 
However, the Remarketing Agent is not required to make a market in the Bonds. The 
Remarketing Agent may also sell any Bonds it has purchased to one or more affiliated 
investment vehicles for collective ownership or enter into derivative anangements with affiliates 
or others in order to reduce its exposure to the Bonds. The purchase of Bonds by the 
Remarketing Agent may create the appearance that there is greater third party demand for the 
Bonds in the market than is actually the case. The practices described above also may result in 
fewer Bonds being tendered in a remarketing. 

Bonds may be Offered at Different Prices on Anv Date 

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Remarketing Agent is required to determine the applicable 
rate of interest that, in its judgment, is the minimum rate necessary (as determined by the 
Remarketing Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparable to the 
Bonds known by the Remarketing Agent to have been priced or traded under tiien-prevailing 
market conditions) for the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the day die rate is set at their 
principal amount (without regard to accmed interest). The interest rate will reflect, among other 
factors, the level of market demand for the Bonds (including whetiier the Remarketing Agent is 
willing to purchase Bonds for its own account). There may or may not be Bonds tendered and 
remarketed on a day that the rate on the Bonds are set, the Remarketing Agent may or may not 
be able to remarket any Bonds tendered for purchase on such date at par and the Remarketing 
Agent may sell Bonds at varying prices to different investors on such date or any other date. The 
Remarketing Agent is not obligated to advise purchasers in a remarketing if it does not have third 
party buyers for all of the Bonds at the remarketing price. In the event the Remarketing Agent 
owns any Bonds for its own account, it may, in its sole discretion in a secondary market 
transaction outside the tender process, offer such Bonds on any date, including the day that the 
rate on the Bonds are set, at a discount to par to some investors. 



The Ability to Sell the Bonds other than through Tender Process Mav be Limited 

The Remarketing Agent may buy and sell Bonds other than through the tender process. 
However, it is not obligated to do so and may cease doing so at any time without notice and may 
require holders that wish to tender their Bonds to do so through the Tmstee with appropriate 
notice. Thus, investors who purchase the Bonds, whether in a remarketing or otherwise, should 
not assume that they will be able to sell their Bonds other than by tendering the Bonds in 
accordance with the tender process. 

Under Certain Circumstances, the Remarketing Agent Mav Be Removed. Resign or Cease 
Remarketing the Bonds, Without a Successor Being Named 

Under certain circumstances, the Remarketing Agent may be removed or have the ability 
to resign or cease its remarketing efforts, without a successor having been named, subject to the 
terms of the Remarketing Agreement. 

Optional Tender 

While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate, the holder of any Bond 
may elect to have its Bond (or any portion of its Bond equal to the lowest Authorized 
Denomination or whole multiples thereof) purchased by the Tmstee at the Purchase Price. 

Daily Rate Tender. When interest on a Bond is payable at a Daily Rate and a book-entry 
system is in effect, a Beneficial Owner of such Bond (through its Direct Participant (as defined 
in Book-Entry Only System below) in the Seciuities Depository) may tender its interest in a Bond 
(or portion of Bond) by delivering an irrevocable written notice by telecopy, facsimile 
transmission or e-mail transmission to the Tmstee and an inevocable notice to the Remarketing 
Agent by telephone, telegraph or facsimile transmission, in each case prior to 11:00 A.M., New 
York City time, on a Business Day, stating the principal amount of the Bond (or portion of 
Bond) being tendered, payment instmctions for the Purchase Price and the Business Day (which 
may be the date the notice is delivered) the Bond (or portion of Bond) is to be purchased. The 
Beneficial Owner will effect delivery of such Bond by causing such Direct Participant to transfer 
its interest in the Bond equal to such Beneficial Owner's interest on the records of the Securities 
Depository to the participant account of the Tmstee or its agent with the Securities Depository. 
Any notice received by the Tmstee after 11:00 A.M., New York City time, will be deemed to 
have been given on the next Business Day. 

When interest on a Bond is payable at a Daily Rate and a book-entry system is not in 
effect, a holder of a Bond may tender the Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering (i) the notices 
described above (which must include the certificate number of the Bond) and (ii) the Bond, to 
the Tmstee by 1:00 P.M., New York City time, on the date of purchase. 

Weekly Rate Tender. When interest on a Bond is payable at a Weekly Rate and a book-
entry system is in effect, a Beneficial Owner of such Bond (through its Direct Participant in the 
Securities Depository) may tender its interest in a Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering an 
irrevocable written notice by telecopy, facsimile transmission or e-mail transmission to the 
Tmstee and an irrevocable notice to the Remarketing Agent by telephone, telegraph or facsimile 
transmission, in each case prior to 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on a Business Day stating the 



principal amount of the Bond (or portion of Bond) being tendered, payment instmctions for the 
Purchase Price and the date, which must be a Business Day at least seven days after the notice is 
delivered, on which the Bond (or portion of Bond) is to be purchased. The Beneficial Owner 
shall effect deUvery of such Bond by causing such Direct Participant to transfer its interest in the 
Bond equal to such Beneficial Owner's interest on the records of the Securities Depository to the 
participant account of the Tmstee or its agent with the Securities Depository. 

When interest on a Bond is payable at a Weekly Rate and a book-entry system is not in 
effect, a holder of a Bond may tender the Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering (i) the notices 
as described above (which must include the certificate number of the Bond) and (ii) the Bond, to 
the Tmstee by 1:00 P.M., New York City time, on the date of purchase. 

Payment of Purchase Price. Payment of the Purchase Price of Bonds to be purchased 
upon optional tender as described above will be made by the Tmstee in immediately available 
fbnds by 3:00 P.M., New York City time, on the date of purchase. No purchase of Bonds by the 
Tmstee will be deemed to be a payment or redemption of the Bonds or of any portion thereof and 
such purchase will not operate to extinguish or discharge the indebtedness evidenced by such 
Bonds. So long as the Letter of Credit is in effect, all payments of Purchase Price for the Bonds 
shall be made in accordance with the Indenture. See Summary below. 

Provisions Applicable to All Tenders. Bonds for which the owners have given notice of 
tender for purchase but which are not delivered on the tender date shall be deemed tendered. 
Bonds tendered for purchase on a date after a call for redemption but before the redemption date 
will be purchased pursuant to the tender. 

Notice in respect offenders and Bonds tendered must be delivered as follows: 

Tmstee 
The Huntington National Bank 
The Huntington National Bank 
7 Easton Oval - EA4E63 
Columbus, OH 43219 
Attn: James Schultz 
Telephone: 614-331-8698 
Fax:614-331-5862 

Remarketing Agent 
KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. 
127 Public Square 
Mail Code: OH-01-27-0416 
Cleveland, Ohio 44114-1306 
Attention: Tax-Exempt Remarketing Desk 
Telephone: 216-689-0382 
Fax: 216-689-0965 

Irrevocability 

Each notice of tender constitutes an irrevocable tender for purchase of the Bond (or 
portion thereof) to which the notice relates on the purchase date at a price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount of such Bond (or portion thereof) plus any interest thereon accmed and unpaid 
as of the purchase date. The determination of the Tmstee as to whether a notice offender has 
been properiy sent will be conclusive and binding upon the Bondholders. 

The Tmstee may refuse to accept delivery of any Bond for which a proper instmment of 
transfer has not been provided. If any owner of a Bond who gave notice of optional tender or 
which is subject to mandatory tender fails to deliver its Bond to the Tmstee at the place and on 
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the applicable date and time specified, or fails to dehver its Bond properly endorsed, and moneys 
for the payment of such Bond are on deposit with the Tmstee, its Bond shall constitute an 
undelivered Bond and interest shall cease to accme on its Bonds as of the tender date and such 
owner shall have no right under the Indenture other than the right to receive payment of the 
Purchase Price thereof 

Remarketing and Purchase 

Except to the extent the Company directs the Remarketing Agent not to remarket Bonds 
and except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the Remarketing Agent for the Bonds will 
offer for sale add use reasonable efforts to sell all Bonds tendered for purchase (as described 
below) at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accmed interest, if any, to 
the purchase date. The Tmstee will pay the Purchase Price of the Bonds tendered for purchase 
first from the proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds to persons other than the Company, the 
affiliates of the Company and the Issuer and, if such proceeds are insufficient, second from the 
proceeds of a draw upon the Letter of Credit and, third, from money provided by the Company 
or otiierwise available. See THE BONDS - Special Considerations above and THE 
REMARKETING A GREEMENT below. 

Redemption of Bonds 

The Bonds are subject to redemption as described below: 

Optional Redemption. When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Daily Rate or Weekly 
Rate, the Bonds may be redeemed in whole or in part at the option of the Company, on any 
Business Day. 

Extraordinary Optional Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption by the Issuer 
in whole or in part on any date if the Company, upon the occurrence of any of the following 
events, exercises its option to direct that redemption from moneys available therefor at a 
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accmed and unpaid interest to 
the redemption date: 

(a) The Project or the Plant shall have been damaged or destroyed to such an extent 
that the Company deems it not practical or desirable to rebuild, repair or restore 
the Project or the Plant, as the case may be. 

(b) Titie to, or the temporary use of, all or a significant part of the Project or the Plant 
shall have been taken under the exercise of the power of eminent domain so as to 
render the Project unsatisfactory to the Company for its intended purpose. 

(c) As a result of any changes in the Constitution of the State of Ohio, the 
Constitution of the United States of America or any state or federal laws or as a 
result of legislative or administrative action (whether state or federal) or by final 
decree, judgment or order of any court or administrative body (whether state or 
federal) entered after any contest thereof by the Issuer or the Company in good 
faith, the Loan Agreement shall have become void or unenforceable or impossible 
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of performance in accordance with the intent and purpose of the parties as 
described therein. 

(d) Unreasonable burdens or excessive liabilities shall have been imposed upon the 
Issuer or the Company with respect to the Project or the Plant or the operation 
thereof, including, without limitation, the imposition of federal, state or other ad 
valorem, property, income or other taxes not being imposed on the date of the 
Loan Agreement. 

(e) Changes in the economic availability of raw materials, operating supplies, energy 
sources or supplies or facilities (including, but not limited to, facilities in 
connection with the disposal of industrial wastes) necessary for the operation of 
the Project or the Plant occur or technological or other changes occur which in the 
Company's reasonable judgment render the Project or the Plant uneconomic or 
obsolete. 

(f) Any court or administrative body shal! enter a judgment, order or decree, or shall 
take administrative action, requiring the Company to cease all or any substantial 
part of its operations served by the Project or the Plant to such extent that the 
Company is or will be prevented from carrying on its normal operations at the 
Project or the Plant for a period of six consecutive months. 

(g) The termination by the Company of operations at the Plant. 

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption 
at any time in whole, or in part if such partial redemption will preserve the exemption from 
federal income taxation of interest on the remaining outstanding Bonds, at a redemption price 
equal to the principal amount thereof together with unpaid interest accmed to the date fixed for 
redemption, and without premium, if (a) a final decree or judgment of any federal court, in which 
the Company participates to the extent it deems sufficient, or (b) a final action by the Internal 
Revenue Service, in proceedings in which the Company participates to the extent it deems 
sufficient, determines that the interest paid or payable on Bonds to a person, other than, as 
provided in Section 147(a) of the Code, a "substantial user" of the Project or a "related person", 
is or was includable in the gross income of the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes 
under the Code, as a result of the failure by the Company to observe or perform any covenant, 
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under the Loan Agreement or the 
inaccuracy of any representation by the Company under the Loan Agreement or receipt by the 
Company of an Opinion of Tax Counsel to such effect obtained by the Company and rendered at 
the request of the Company; provided, however, that no decree or judgment by any court or 
action by the Internal Revenue Service shall be considered final unless the registered owner or 
Beneficial Owner involved in such proceeding or action (i) gives the Company and the Tmstee 
prompt written notice of the commencement thereof and (ii) if the Company agrees to pay all 
expenses in connection therewith and to indemnify such registered owner or Beneficial Owner 
against all Habilities in connection therewith, offers the Company the opportunity to control the 
defense thereof Any such redemption shall be made on a date determined by the Tmstee not 
more than 180 days after the date of such final decree, judgment or action. The Tmstee shall 
give the Issuer and tiie Company not less than 45 days written notice of such date. 

12 



Notice of Redemption. Whenever Bonds are to be redeemed, the Tmstee shall give 
notice of redemption by mailing such notice to the registered owner ofeach Bond to be 
redeemed, at least 30 days prior to the redemption date, as provided in the Indenture. 

With respect to an optional redemption of Bonds as described under Optional Redemption 
or Extraordinary Optional Redemption above, unless moneys sufBcient to pay the principal of and 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Tmstee 
prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such notice may state that said redemption shall be 
conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Tmstee on or prior to the date fixed for 
redemption. If such moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the Issuer 
shall not redeem such Bonds, the redemption price shall not be due and payable and the Tmstee 
shall give notice, in the same manner in which the notice of redemption was given, tiiat such 
moneys were not so received and that such Bonds will not be redeemed. 

During the period that DTC or the DTC nominee is the registered holder of the 
Bonds, the Trustee will not be responsible for mailing notices of redemption, or other 
notices described herein, to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See Book-Entry Only 
System below. 

Mandatory Tender for Purchase 

The Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase under certain circumstances. By 
acceptance ofeach Bond, the holder agrees to sell and surrender its Bond, properly endorsed, 
under the conditions described below. All purchases will be made in fimds immediately 
available on the purchase date and will be at the Purchase Price. Bonds tendered for purchase on 
a date after a call for redemption but before the redemption date will be purchased pursuant to 
the tender. No purchase of Bonds shall be deemed to be a payment or redemption of the Bonds 
or of any portion thereof and such purchase will not operate to extinguish or discharge the 
indebtedness evidenced by such Bonds. 

For so Jong as the Bonds are held in book-entry form, the requirement for physical 
delivery of the Bonds in connection with any piu-chase pursuant to the provisions described 
below are deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transferred by DTC on 
the records of DTC. See — Book-Entry Only System ĥ Xow. 

Mandatory Tender Upon a Change in the Method of Determining the Interest Rate on the 
Bonds. On the effective date of the change in the method of determining the interest rate on the 
Bonds, the Bonds will be purchased on the effective date of such change at the Purchase Price. 

At least 15 days before each mandatory tender occasioned by such change, the Tmstee 
will mail a notice offender by first-class mail to each Bondholder at the holder's registered 
address. Each notice of tender will identify the Bonds to be purchased and will state, among 
other things, (i) the purchase date; (ii) the Purchase Price; (iii) that the Bonds to be tendered must 
be surrendered to collect the Purchase Price; (iv) the address at which the Bonds must be 
surrendered; and (v) that interest on the Bonds to be tendered ceases to accme to such holder on 
the purchase date and such holder will be entitled to the Purchase Price on the purchase date. 
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Mandatory Tender Upon Substitution of Alternate Letter of Credit. The Bonds shall be 
subject to mandatory tender at the Purchase Price on the date five Business Days prior to the date 
on which an Altemate Letter of Credit is to be substituted for the Letter of Credit (the 
"Substitution Tender Date"). Bonds purchased pursuant to this provision shall be delivered by 
the holders at or before 12:00 noon. New York City time, on such Substitution Tender Date, and, 
subject to the Indenture, payment of the Purchase Price of such Bonds shall be made by wire 
transfer in immediately available funds by the Tmstee on such Substitution Tender Date. The 
Tmstee shall give notice of such mandatory tender by mail to the holders of the Bonds no less 
than twenty (20) days prior to the Substitution Tender Date, The notice shall state (i) that the 
Bonds are subject to mandatory tender; (ii) the Substitution Tender Date; (iii) the Purchase Price; 
(iv) that Bonds must be surrendered to collect the Purchase Price; (v) the address at which the 
Bonds must be sunendered; and (vi) that interest on Bonds subject to mandatory tender will 
cease to accme to such holder from and after the Substitution Tender Date and such holder will 
be entitled only to the Purchase Price on the Substitution Tender Date. The faitoe to mail such 
notice with respect to any Bond shall not affect the validity of the mandatory tender of any other 
Bond with respect to which notice was so mailed. Any notice mailed wili be conclusively 
presumed to have been given, whether or not actually received by any holder. 

"Alternate Letter of Credit" means, with respect to the Bonds, a letter of credit or other 
security or liquidity device issued in accordance with the requirements of the Indenture which 
will have a term of not less than one year and will have substantially the same material terms as 
the Letter of Credit; provided that such letter of credit or other security or liquidity device may 
(and shall if the Bonds shall provide for redemption premium while it is in effect) provide for 
coverage of premium payable upon redemption of the Bonds. 

Mandatory Tender Due to an Event of Default Under Reimbursement Agreement, 
Whenever the Letter of Credit is in effect, the Bonds wili be subject to mandatory tender if the 
Tmstee receives a written notice from the Administrative Agent that an event of defauh, as 
defined in the Reimbursement Agreement, has occurred and is continuing, and the 
Administrative Agent directs the Tmstee to effect such mandatory tender. See THE LETTER OF 
CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT—The Reimbursement Agreement herein. Such 
Bonds subject to mandatory tender will be purchased at the Purchase Price on the default tender 
date specified by the Letter of Credit Bank in such written notice (the "Defauh Tender Date"). 
Such Default Tender Date shall be a Business Day not more than nine (9) nor less than five (5) 
days after the day such notice is received. The Tmstee shall immediately notify the paying agent 
of receipt of such notice and of the Default Tender Date. Bonds purchased pursuant to this 
provision will be delivered by the holders (with all necessary endorsements) to the designated 
corporate tmst office of the Tmstee, at or before 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the Default 
Tender Date, and, subject to the Indenture, payment of the Purchase Price shall be made by wire 
transfer in immediately available funds by the Tmstee on the Default Tender Date; provided, 
however, that payment of the Purchase Price shall be made pursuant to this provision only if the 
Bond is so delivered to the Tmstee. 

The Tmstee will give notice to the Issuer, the Remarketing Agent, the Company and the 
Administrative Agent (the "Notice Parties") and al! holders prior to the close of business on the 
Business Day after receipt of the notice described in the preceding paragraph stating (i) that the 
Bonds are subject to mandatory tender; (ii) the Default Tender Date; (iii) the Purchase Price; (iv) 
that Bonds must be surrendered to collect the Purchase Price; (v) the address at which the Bonds 
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must be surrendered; (vi) that interest on such Bonds will cease to accme to such holder from 
and after the Default Tender Date and such holder will be entitled only to the Purchase Price on 
the Default Tender Date; and (vii) if the Bonds are then rated by Moody's Investor Service, Inc. 
("Moody's"), Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("Standard & 
Poor's") or Fitch, Inc. ("Fitch"), that such rating or ratings will terminate on the Default Tender 
Date. The failure to mail such notice with respect to any Bond will not affect the validity of the 
mandatory tender of any other Bond with respect to which notice was so mailed. Any notice 
mailed will be conclusively presumed to have been given, whether or not actually received by a 
holder. 

Mandatory Tender Upon Expiration or Termination of Letter of Credit. If (i) the Letter 
of Credit is scheduled to expire on the Expiration Date (as defined below) and by the Renewal 
Date (as defined below) no extension of such Letter of Credit or Altemate Letter of Credit has 
been delivered to the Tmstee or (ii) on or before the Renewal Date, the Company has delivered 
notice stating that the Letter of Credit will be tenninated with respect to all the Bonds on the 
Expiration Date, then the Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender on the date five Business 
Days prior to the Expiration Date (the "Expiration Tender Date") at the Purchase Price. Bonds 
purchased pursuant to this provision will be delivered by the holders at or before 12:00 noon, 
New York City time, on the Expiration Tender Date, and subject to the Indenture, payment of the 
Purchase Price shall be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds by the Tmstee on 
such Expfration Tender Date; provided, however, that payment of the Purchase Price will be 
made pursuant to this provision only if the Bond is so delivered to tiie Tmstee. 

The Tmstee will give notice to all holders and the Notice Parties no less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the Expiration Tender Date. The notice will state (i) that the Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender; (ii) the Expiration Tender Date; (iii) the Purchase Price; (iv) that Bonds must 
be surrendered to collect the Purchase Price; (v) the address at which the Bonds must be 
surrendered; (vi) that the Letter of Credit will terminate on the date specified in such notice; (vii) 
that interest on such Bonds will cease to accme to such holder from and after the Expiration 
Tender Date and such holder will be entitled only to the Purchase Price on the Expiration Tender 
Date; and (viii) if the Bonds are tiien rated by Moody's, Standard & Poor's or Fitch, that such 
rating or ratings will terminate on the Expiration Tender Date. The failure to mail such notice 
with respect to any Bond shall not affect the validity of the mandatory tender of any other Bond 
with respect to which notice was so mailed. Any notice mailed will be conclusively presumed to 
have been given, whether or not actually received by a holder. 

"Expiration Date" means the stated expiration date of the Letter of Credit, or such stated 
expiration date as it may be extended from time to time as provided in the Letter of Credit, or 
any earlier date on which the Letter of Credit shall expire or be terminated or cancelled. 

"Renewal Date" means the thirty-fifth (35th) day prior to the Expiration Date. 

Notice of Tender. Failure to give any required notice offender as to any particular Bonds 
or any defect therein will not affect the validity of the tender of any Bonds in respect of which no 
such failure or defect occurs. Any notice mailed as described above shall be effective when sent 
and will be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the 
addressee. 
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Effect of Notice of Tender. When notice is required and given, and when Bonds are to be 
tendered without notice. Bonds tendered become due and payable on the purchase date; in such 
case when funds are deposited with the Tmstee sufficient for purchase, interest on the Bonds to 
be purchased ceases to accme as of the date of purchase. 

Summary 

Certain provisions of the Bonds and the Indenture (other than when the Bonds bear 
interest at a rate other than a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate) are summarized in the following table 
(all times are New York City time): 

OPTIONAL TENDER; 
NOTICE 

INTEREST PERIODS 
FOR EACH 
INTEREST RATE 

INTEREST RATE 
DETERMINED 

INTEREST ACCRUAL 
PERIOD 

INTEREST PAYMENT 
DATE 

RECORD DATE 

OPTIONAL 
REDEMPTION BY 
COMPANY 

MANDATORY 
TENDER 

DAILY RATE 
On any Business Day; notice no 
later than 11:00 A.M. same 
Business Day 

Each day 

Each Business Day by 10:00 A.M, 

Interest Payment Date to Interest 
Payment Date 

First Business Day of the next 
montii and on the date on which 
the Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase 

Last Business Day before Interest 
Payment Date 

On any Business Day 

(i) On effective date of change in 
interest rate determination 
method, (ii) substitution of 
Alternate Letter of Credit, (iii) 
event of defauh under 
Reimbursement Agreement, and 
(iv) expiration or termination of 
Letter of Credit 

WEEKLY RATE 
On any Business Day; notice no 
later than 5:00 P.M., seven days 
in advance 

Thursday through Wednesday 
(with limited exceptions) 

Each Wednesday (or next 
preceding Business Day) by 5:00 
P.M. 

Interest Payment Date to Interest 
Payment Date 

First Business Day of the next 
month and on the date on which 
the Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase 

Last Business Day before Interest 
Payment Date 

On any Business Day 

(i) On effective date of change in 
interest rate determination 
method, (ii) substitution of 
Altemate Letter of Credit, (iii) 
event of default under 
Reimbursement Agreement, and 
(iv) expiration or termination of 
Letter of Credit 
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Book-Entry Only System 

DTC will act as Securities Depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-
registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., DTC's partnership nominee, or such 
other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One or more fully-
registered bond certificates will be issued for the Bonds, representing in the aggregate the total 
principal amount of the Bonds, and will be deposited with the Tmstee on behalf of DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose tmst company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of 
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" 
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a "clearing agency" 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the "1934 Acf). DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S, equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money market 
instmments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with 
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other 
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry 
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for 
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, tmst companies, clearing corporations, and certain other 
organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Tmst & Clearing 
Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing 
agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system 
is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, 
tmst companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (the "Indirect Participants"). DTC has 
Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc., highest rating: AAA. The 
DTC mles applicable to Direct and Indirect Participants are on file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and 
www.dtc.org. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest 
ofeach actual purchaser ofeach Bond (the "Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded on the 
Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation 
from DTC of their purchases. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written 
confirmations providing details of the transactions, as well as periodic statements of their 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial Owner entered 
into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by 
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 
Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants witii DTC 
are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and 
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tiieir registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any 
changes in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 
Bonds. DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such 
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect 
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 
customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by 
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission 
to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, 
defaults and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to 
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the altemative, Beneficial Owners may wish 
to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be 
provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds are being 
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest ofeach Direct 
Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Although voting with respect to the Bonds is limited, in those cases where a vote is 
required, neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI 
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as 
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting 
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date 
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from 
the Company or the Tmstee on the relevant payment date in accordance with their respective 
holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Direct or Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be govemed by standing instmctions and customary practices, as is the case with 
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and 
will be the responsibility of such Direct or Indirect Participant and not of DTC, the Company, the 
Tmstee or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 
time to time. Payment to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Tmstee, disbursement of such 
payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursements of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased or tendered, 
through its Direct or Indirect Participant, to the Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of 
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such Bonds by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Direct or Indirect Participant's 
interest in the Bonds, on DTC's records, to the Remarketing Agent. The requirement for physical 
delivery of the Bonds in cormection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be 
deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transferred by Direct Participants 
on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Bonds to the Remarketing 
Agent's DTC account. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as Securities Depository with respect to the 
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or the Tmstee. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor Securities Depository is not obtained, certificated 
Bonds are required to be printed and delivered to the holders of record. Additionally, tiie 
Company may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a 
successor Securities Depository) with respect to the Bonds. In that event, certificates for the 
Bonds will be printed and delivered. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been 
obtained from sources that the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters, the Remarketing Agent 
and the Tmstee beheve to be rehable, but none of the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters, the 
Remarketing Agent or the Tmstee takes any responsibility for the accuracy of such statements. 
None of the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters, the Remarketing Agent or the Tmstee has 
any responsibility for the performance by DTC or its Direct or Indirect Participants of their 
respective obligations as described herein or under the mles and procedures governing their 
respective operations. 

In the event that the book-entry system is discontinued, a bondholder may transfer or 
exchange the Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. The Tmstee will require a bondholder, 
among other things, to fumish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any 
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Indenture. In addition, in case of such 
discontinuance, an additional or co-paying agent may be designated. 

None of the Issuer, the Underwriters, the Company, the Letter of Credit Bank, the 
Trustee or any agent for payment on or registration of transfer or exchange of any Bond 
will have any responsibility or obligation to Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or 
the persons for whom they act as nominees with respect to the accuracy of the records of 
DTC, its nominee or any Direct Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the 
Bonds, or payments to, or the providing of notice for, Direct Participants, Indirect 
Participants, or beneficial owners or other action taken by DTC, or its nominee, Cede & 
Co., as the sole owners of the Bonds. 

Security for the Bonds 

The Bonds will be special obligations of the Issuer, the principal of and premium, if any, 
and interest on which will be payable solely from (i) the payments to be made by the Company 
imder the Loan Agreement and the Note, which are pledged to the Tmstee, and (ii) so long as the 
Letter of Credit is in effect, the fimds drawn under the Letter of Credit. The pledge does not 
extend to funds to which the Tmstee is entitled in its own right such as fees, reimbursement, 
indemnity or otherwise. The Bonds will not be secured by a mortgage or security interest in the 
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Project or any other property of the Company. The Loan Agreement provides that Loan 
Payments will be paid to the Tmstee by the Company for the account of the Issuer. 

THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Letter of Credit and the 
Reimbursement Agreement. Any future reimbursement agreement pursuant to which an 
Altemate Letter of Credit is issued may have terms substantially different from those described 
below. This summary is not a complete recital of the terms thereof and reference should be 
made to such documents. 

The Letter of Credit 

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Company will cause to be delivered to 
the Tmstee the Letter of Credit issued by the Letter of Credit Bank, in the initial aggregate stated 
amount of $25,287,671.23. Under the Letter of Credit, the Tmstee will be permitted to draw up 
to (a) an amount sufficient to pay (i) the principal of the Bonds when due at maturity, redemption 
or acceleration and (ii) the portion of the Purchase Price of the Bonds tendered to the Tmstee and 
not remarketed corresponding to the principal amount of such Bonds, plus (b) an amount equal to 
35 days' interest on the Bonds at a maximum rate of 12% per annum calculated on the basis of a 
365-day year to pay (i) interest on the Bonds when due and (ii) the portion of the Purchase Price 
of the Bonds tendered to the Tmstee and not remarketed corresponding to the accmed interest on 
such Bonds. The Letter of Credit will expire on August 12, 2010 or on the earliest occurrence of 
one or more events described below. The Letter of Credit may be extended from year to year by 
the Letter of Credit Bank in its discretion, unless terminated earlier pursuant to its terms. 

The Letter of Credit is subject to termination at the Letter of Credit Bank's close of 
business on the earliest to occur of (i) August 12,2010 (unless extended from time to time), or if 
such date is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day (as defined in the Letter of 
Credit), (ii) ten days following the Trustee's receipt of written notice from the Letter of Credit 
Bank of the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default (as defined in the 
Reimbursement Agreement) and directing a mandatory purchase or acceleration of the Bonds, 
(iii) the date on which the Letter of Credit Bank receives notice from the Tmstee stating that the 
conditions to termination of the Letter of Credit set forth in the Indenture have been satisfied, 
(iv) the date that is 15 days following the date of conversion of all the Bonds outstanding to a 
rate other than a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate and (v) the date on which the Letter of Credit Bank 
honors a drawing under the Letter of Credit accompanied by a certificate of the Tmstee that 
states that such drawing is the final drawing under the Letter of Credit (such earliest date being 
the "LC Cancellation Date"), 

The stated amount of the Letter of Credit is subject to adjustment for payments made by 
the Letter of Credit Bank to the Tmstee pursuant to drawings under the Letter of Credit. A 
drawing honored under the Letter of Credit to pay regularly scheduled interest or principal of and 
interest on the Bonds upon scheduled or accelerated maturity will reduce immediately the 
respective principal and interest components of the Letter of Credit by an amount equal to the 
respective component of the amount honored; provided, however, that, unless a LC Cancellation 
Date has occurred, the interest component of the Letter Credit corresponding to such drawing 
will be automatically reinstated. 
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A drawing honored under the Letter of Credit to pay principal of and interest upon the 
redemption of the Bonds in whole or in part will reduce immediately (i) the principal component 
of the Letter of Credit in an amount equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed 
by such drawing and (ii) the interest component of the Letter of Credit by an amount equal to 35 
days' interest on such principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed computed at a maximum 
rate of 12% per annum calculated on the basis of a 365-day year. 

A drawing honored under the Letter of Credit to pay the Purchase Price corresponding to 
principal of and interest on the Bonds will reduce immediately the respective principal and 
interest components of the Letter of Credit by an amount equal to the respective component of 
the amount so drawn. Unless a LC CanceUation Date has occurred, the principal and interest 
components, respectively, of the Letter of Credit will be reinstated when and to the extent the 
Letter of Credit Bank is reimbursed for such drawing and for interest, if any, owing thereon 
pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement. 

Replacement of Letter of Credit 

The Company may surrender the Letter of Credit or replace the Letter of Credit with an 
Altemate Letter of Credit or other facility meeting the requirements of the Indenture. The Bonds 
will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the date five Business Days prior to the date 
of such surrender or replacement. 

The Reimbursement Agreement 

The Letter of Credit will be issued pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement. The 
Reimbursement Agreement contains, among other matters, representations, warranties and 
covenants on the part of the Company, the breach of which or material inaccuracy of which 
could entitle the Administrative Agent to notify the Tmstee of an "event of default" (as defined 
in the Reimbursement Agreement) under the Reimbursement Agreement and directing the 
Tmstee either to accelerate the Bonds or to effect a mandatory tender of the Bonds. The 
following events constitute "events of defauh" under the Reimbursement Agreement: 

(a) The Company shall default in (i) the repayment when due and payable of any 
principal of any reimbursement obligation under the Reimbursement Agreement; or (ii) the 
payment of the interest, fees or any other obligation payable by the Company under the 
Reimbursement Agreement when the same becomes due and payable and such default shall 
continue unremedied for five or more business days; or 

(b) Any representation or warranty made or deemed made by the Company in respect 
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company in the Reimbursement Agreement, any related 
document, the Bonds, tiie Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Remarketing Agreement, the 
custodian agreement relating to Bonds purchased with the proceeds of the Letter of Credit to be 
held for the account of the Administrative Agent (the "Custodian Agreemenf), or any 
certificate, document or financial or other written statement furnished at any time in compliance 
with the Reimbursement Agreement shall prove to have been false or incorrect in any material 
respect when made or deemed made; or 



(c) Failure by the Company (in respect of the Company or any subsidiary of the 
Company) to perform, keep or observe any other term, provision, condition or covenant 
contained in the Reimbursement Agreement (other than those provisions, terms or conditions 
referenced in subparagraph (a) and (b) above and subparagraph (d) below) or any other related 
document that is required to be kept or observed by the Company (in respect of the Company or 
any subsidiary of the Company) and such failure shal! continue without remedy for a period of 
30 business days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Company by the 
Administrative Agent; or 

(d) Failure by the Company (in respect of the Company or any subsidiary of the 
Company) to perform, keep, or observe any other term, provision, condition or covenant 
contained in the Reimbursement Agreement with respect to the Company's existence or with 
respect to any negative covenant under the Reimbursement Agreement that is required to be 
performed, kept, or observed by the Company (in respect of the Company or any subsidiary of 
tiie Company); or 

(e) Default by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company in respect of the 
payment when due of any principai or interest on debt (other than under the Reimbursement 
Agreement) of the Company or its subsidiaries having an aggregate outstanding principal amount 
of at least $10,000,000, or any other event or condition shall occur witii respect such debt, which 
default or other event or condition results in the acceleration of the maturity of such amount of 
debt or enables the holder of such debt to accelerate the maturity thereof, or 

(f) The termination of the Inter-Company Power Agreement or the IKEC Power 
Agreement (as defined in the Reimbursement Agreement) (other than, in the case of the IKEC 
Power Agreement, in connection with the merger or consolidation by Indiana-Kentucky Power 
Electric Company ("IKEC") with, or disposal by IKEC of all or substantially all of its assets to, 
the Company as otherwise permitted under the Reimbursement Agreement); or 

(g) Certain change in control events or discontinuation by the Company of its 
business; or 

(h) Invalidity or assertion of invalidity of the Reimbursement Agreement, any other 
related document, the Bonds, the Indenmre, the Loan Agreement, the Remarketing Agreement, 
the Custodian Agreement; or 

(i) Certain events related to employee benefit matters shall have occurred and the 
liability of the Company and certain of its affiliates related to such employee benefit related 
event exceeds $10,000,000; or 

(j) Any money judgment in excess of $10,000,000, to the extent not paid or insured 
by an insurance carrier is entered against the Company or any of its subsidiaries or their 
respective assets and is not released, discharged, vacated, fiilly bonded or stayed within 30 days; 
or 

(k) At any time prior to ten days after the Administrative Agent receives satisfactory 
evidence that FirstEnergy Generation Corp.'s has obtained investment grade ratings from 
Moody's and S&P, (i) the guaranty by FirstEnergy Corp. of certain obligations of FirstEnergy 
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Generation Corp. shall cease to be in full force and effect or (ii) FirstEnergy Corp. shall deny or 
disaffirm its obligations under such guaranty; or 

(1) Certain bankmptcy and insolvency event shall occur with respect to the Company 
or IKEC or any entity to which either the Company or IKEC have been merged or consolidated 
with or into as permitted by the Reimbursement Agreement or any entity to which all or any 
substantial part of the assets of either of Company or IKEC have been disposed of as permitted 
by the Reimbursement Agreement; or 

(m) An "Event of Default" under and as defined in the Indenture shall have occurred 
and be continuing. 

THE LOAN AGREEMENT 

In addition to the description of certain provisions of the Loan Agreement contained 
elsewhere herein, the following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Loan Agreement 
and the Note and does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All references herein to the 
Loan Agreement and the Note are qualified in their entirety hy reference to the Loan Agreement 
and the Note (the form of which is attached to the Loan Agreement) for the detailed provisions 
thereof 

Use of Bond Proceeds; Construction of the Project 

The Issuer will issue the Bonds and loan proceeds of the sale thereof to the Company, 
which proceeds will be applied as described under USE OF PROCEEDS herein. The Company 
agrees to cause the Project to be acquired, constmcted, installed and improved substantially in 
accordance with the plans and specifications as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

In the Indenture, the Issuer directs the Tmstee to make payments from the Constmction 
Fund to pay the cost of the Project and issuance expenses, and to reimburse the Company for any 
cost of the Project and issuance expenses paid or incurred by the Company. 

Term of Loan Agreement 

The term of the Loan Agreement will continue until such time as all of the outstanding 
Bonds are fully paid (or provision has been made for such payment) pursuant to the Indenture 
and all other money payable by the Company under the Loan Agreement shall have been paid. 

Payments 

The Company will make payments on the Loan Agreement which will be sufficient to 
pay, when due, the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds. To evidence 
the obligations of the Company to make the Loan Payments and repay the Loan, the Company 
will, concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, execute and deliver the Note, which the Issuer 
will assign to the Tmstee, under the Indenture, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds. The Company will receive as a credit against its 
obligations to make payments under the Loan Agreement with respect to the Bonds all payments 
made by the Letter of Credit Bank under the Letter of Credit. 
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The Agreement contains no restrictions on the abihty of the Company to incur debt or, 
except as described under - Corporate Existence., to transfer its assets. 

Obligations Unconditional 

The obligations of the Company to make Loan Payments and other payments required to 
be made pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Note are absolute and unconditional, and the 
Company will make such payments without abatement, diminution or deduction regardless of 
any cause or circumstances whatsoever including, without limitation, any defense, set-off, 
recoupment or counterclaim which the Company may have or assert against the Issuer, the 
Tmstee, the Remarketing Agent, the Letter of Credit Bank or any other Person. 

Maintenance and Modification 

During the term of the Loan Agreement, the Company will use its best efforts to keep and 
maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, the Project, including all appurtenances thereto and 
any personal property therein or thereon, in satisfactory operating order, repair, condition and 
appearance, subject to reasonable wear and tear, so that the Project will continue to constitute a 
facility that can be financed by the Issuer under the Act. Subject to certain conditions, the 
Company has the right, from time to time, to remodel the Project or make additions, 
modifications and improvements thereto, the cost of which must be paid by tiie Company. The 
Company also has the right, subject to certain conditions, to substitute or remove any portion of 
the Project. 

Corporate Existence 

During the term of the Loan Agreement the Company will maintain its legal existence 
and will not sell its properties as an entirety or substantially as an entirety or consolidate with or 
merge into another entity or permit one or more other entities to consolidate with or merge into 
it, unless the successor corporation or transferee resulting from any such consolidation, merger, 
sale or transfer shall assume all obligations of the Company arising under or contemplated by the 
Agreement, the Note and the Indenture. No further consolidation, merger or sale or other 
transfer shall be made except in compliance with these provisions. 

Environmental Compliance 

In the Loan Agreement, the Company will represent that the Project will be constmcted 
in compliance with all permits, variances and orders issued or granted by the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect to the Project, including any permits to install for 
the Project, and any such permits, variances and orders have not been withdrawn or otherwise 
suspended. The Company will represent that it is in material compliance with all terms and 
provisions of all permits, variances and orders heretofore issued or granted by the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect to the Plant and its other facilities within the State 
of Ohio, including any permits-to-install and permits-to-operate issued with respect thereto. 
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Tax Exemption 

The Company will covenant and represent in the Loan Agreement that it has taken and 
caused or required to be taken and will take and cause or require to be taken all actions that may 
be required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from the gross income 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, and that it has not taken or permitted to be 
taken on its behalf, and it will not take or permit to be taken on its behalf, any action which, if 
taken, would adversely affect that exclusion under the provisions of the Code. 

Assignment of the Loan Agreement 

The Loan Agreement may be assigned in whole or in part by the Company only with the 
consent of the Issuer, subject to the following conditions: (a) no assignment will relieve the 
Company from primary habihty for any of its obligations under the Loan Agreement or the Note; 
(b) any assignment by the Company must retain for the Company such rights and interests to 
permit it to perform its remaining obligations under the Loan Agreement, and any assignee from 
the Company shall assume the obligations of the Company hereunder to the extent of the interest 
assigned; (c) the Company will, within 30 days after the execution thereof, fumish or cause to be 
ftimished to the Issuer, the Letter of Credit Bank and the Tmstee a tme and complete copy of 
each assignment together with any instrument of assumption; and (d) any assignment from the 
Company will not materially impair fulfillment of the purposes of the Project to be accomplished 
by operation of the Project as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

The Loan Agreement provides that the occurrence of one or more of the following events 
will constitute an "Event of Default:" 

(a) The failure to pay any Loan Payment, or pay any payment required to be made to pay 
the Purchase Price, when due; 

(b) The occunence of an event of default described in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) under 
THE INDENTURE—Events of Defaults and Remedies; 

(c) Failure by the Company to observe and perform any other agreement, term or 
condition under the Loan Agreement, other than such failure which will resuh in an 
event of default described in (a) or (b) above, which continues for a period of 90 days 
after notice to the Company by the Issuer or the Tmstee or such longer period as the 
Issuer and the Tmstee may agree to in writing; provided that the failure shall not 
constitute an Event of Defauh if the Company institutes curative action within the 
applicable period and diligently pursues that action to completion; 

(d) Any representation or warranty under the Loan Agreement shall not have been tme in 
all material respects when made; and 

(e) Certain events relating to bankmptcy, insolvency or reorganization of the Company. 
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A failure by the Company described in subparagraph (c) above is not a default under that 
subparagraph if it occurs by reason of certain causes, circumstances and events offeree majeure 
specified in the Loan Agreement that are not reasonably within the contml of the Company. 

Whenever any Event of Default under the Loan Agreement has happened and is 
subsisting, the Issuer or the Tmstee may take either or both of the following remedial steps: 

(a) Inspect, examine and make copies of the books, records, accounts and financial 
data of the Company, only, however, insofar as they pertain to the Project; and 

(b) Pursue all remedies to recover all amounts then due and thereafter to become due 
under the Loan Agreement and the Note, or to enforce the performance and 
observance of any other obligation or agreement of the Company under those 
instmments. 

(c) So long as the Letter of Credit is in full force and effect and the Letter of Credit 
Bank has not wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit or 
wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit, the exercise of remedies under the 
Loan Agreement with respect to Events of Defauh (other than with respect to 
defaults resulting from failures of the Company relating to certain rights of the 
Issuer not assigned under the Indenture), and any waivers of Events of Defauh 
shall be at the direction or with the written consent of the Letter of Credit Bank. 

(d) Any amounts collected pursuant to action taken upon the happenmg of an Event 
of Defauh will be paid into the Bond Fund and applied in accordance with the 
provisions of the Indenture or, if the outstanding Bonds have been paid and 
discharged in accordance with the provisions of the Indenmre, will be paid as 
provided in the Indenture for transfers of remaining amounts in the Bond Fund. 

Certain Covenants Regarding Arbitrage and Tax Exemption 

The Issuer and the Company have agreed not to take any action or omit to take any 
action, which would result in a loss of the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on 
the Bonds by virtue of the Bonds being considered "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of 
Section 148 of the Code. 

The Issuer and the Company have agreed that they will not take any action, cause any 
action to be taken, omit to take any action or cause any omission to occur which would cause the 
interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross income of the recipients thereof for purposes 
of federal income taxation. 

Amendments to the Loan Agreement 

The Indenture provides that the Loan Agreement may be amended without the consent of 
or notice to the owners of the Bonds only as may be required or permitted (i) by the provisions of 
the Loan Agreement or the Indenture or for the purposes for which the Indenture may be 
amended or supplemented without the consent of the owners, (ii) for the purpose of curing any 
ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Loan Agreement or (iii) in connection with any 
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other change therein which, in the judgment of the Tmstee, is not to the prejudice of the Trustee 
or the owners of the Bonds. Any other amendments to the Loan Agreement may be made only 
with the written approval or consent of (i) the owners of not less than a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding and (ii) the Letter of Credit Bank, so long as the 
Letter of Credit is in effect and the Letter of Credit Bank has not wrongfully dishonored a 
drawing thereunder or wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit. An opinion of Bond Counsel 
to the effect that such action is permitted under the Act and the Indenture and will not adversely 
affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes 
(a "Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel") is required for any amendment to the Loan Agreement. 

THE INDENTURE 

Additional information summarizing certain provisions of the Indenture is contained 
under the heading THE BONDS. So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the 
Bonds, all references to owners or holders shall mean DTC. See THE BONDS - Book-Entry 
Only System herein. 

Pledge and Security 

Pursuant to the Indenture, the payments to be made by the Company under the Loan 
Agreement and the Note will be assigned by the Issuer to the Tmstee to secure the payment, 
when due, of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds. The Issuer will 
also absolutely and irrevocably assign to the Tmstee all right, title and interest in and to the 
Letter of Credit Account in the Bond Fund and all moneys therein, and will mortgage, pledge 
and grant a security interest to the Tmstee al! right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to (i) the 
Revenues (other than the Letter of Credit Account in the Bond Fund, and the moneys therein, 
assigned above), including without limitation, all Loan Payments and all other amounts 
receivable by the Issuer under the Loan Agreement in respect of repayment of the loan and (ii) 
the Note and the Loan Agreement (except certain rights to the payment of its costs and 
expenses, to indemnification and to enforce certain covenants of the Company); provided, that 
the Tmstee, in case of an acceleration of the Bonds, will have a prior claim on the Bond Fund, 
other than money in the Letter of Credit Account, for the payment of its compensation and 
expenses. 

Construction Fund 

The Indenture creates and establishes with the Tmstee a separate fund designated the 
"State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project) Series 
2009A Constmction Fund" (the "Constmction Fund"). The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 
will be deposited in the Constmction Fund. Such proceeds and any other moneys deposited in 
the Constmction Fund shall be applied to the payment of the cost of financing the acquisition, 
constmction, installation and equipping of the Project, including issuance expenses. See THE 
LOAN AGREEMENT-Use of Bond Proceeds; Construction of the Project above. 

When die Project shall have been completed and the Tmstee shall have received a 
certificate of a Company Representative, any moneys remaining in the Constmction Fund in 
excess of the amount to be reserved for payment of unpaid items of the cost of the Project, shall 
be used by the Tmstee at the direction of the Company (i) if the Bonds are then subject to 
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redemption or will be subject to redemption within 90 days of the date the Project was placed in 
service, to redeem outstanding Bonds at the earliest possible redemption date within such 90-day 
period in accordance with Treasury Regulation Section l.l42-2(c), (ii) if such Bonds are not 
subject to redemption within such 90-day period, to estabhsh a defeasance escrow in accordance 
with Treasury Regulation Section 1 .l42-2(c) or (iii) for any other purposes which, in the opinion 
of nationally recognized counsel experienced on the subject of municipal bonds and acceptable 
to the Tmstee, is permissible under then applicable Ohio law and will not under the Code cause 
the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes; 
provided that amounts approved by the Company shall be retained by the Tmstee in the 
Constmction Fund for payment of any cost of the Project not then due and payable or which is in 
dispute, and any balance remaining of such retained funds after full payment of the cost of the 
Project shall be held and applied, or used as directed by the Company, in the manner specified in 
this paragraph. 

Purchase Fund 

The Tmstee will apply money contained in the accounts described below maintained 
within the Purchase Fund as follows: 

Remarketing Proceeds Account. Upon receipt of the proceeds of a remarketing of Bonds 
on a purchase date, the Tmstee will directly deposit such proceeds, and will deposit only such 
proceeds, in the Remarketing Proceeds Account for application to the Purchase Price of the 
Bonds; provided that, at any time when the Letter of Credit is in effect, proceeds of any 
remarketing of Bonds to the Issuer, the Company or any affiliate of either of them and proceeds 
of the remarketing of any other Company-Held Bonds and any Bank-Owned Bonds which have 
been remarketed will be held and maintained in a subaccount for the benefit of the Letter of 
Credit Bank, separated and segregated from all other money in the Remarketing Proceeds 
Account. Upon instmction from the Letter of Credit Bank, any amount held by the Tmstee in 
the subaccount described in the preceding sentence will be paid to the Letter of Credit Bank. 
Neither the Issuer nor the Company will have any interest in the Remarketing Proceeds Account. 

Letter of Credit Purchase Account. Upon receipt of the immediately available funds 
provided to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, the Tmstee will directly deposit such money, 
and will deposit only such money, in the Letter of Credit Purchase Account for application to the 
Purchase Price of the Bonds. Any amounts deposited in the Letter of Credit Purchase Account 
and determined by the Tmstee to be not needed with respect to any purchase date for the 
payment of the Purchase Price for any Bonds will be promptly returned following such 
determination to the Letter of Credit Bank with written notice to the Company. Neither the 
Issuer nor the Company will have any interest in the Letter of Credit Purchase Account. 

Company Purchase Account. Upon receipt of immediately available funds provided to 
the Tmstee by the Company pursuant to the Indenture, the Trustee shah directly deposit such 
money, and shall deposit only such money, in the Company Purchase Account for application to 
the Purchase Price of the Bonds. Any amounts deposited in the Company Purchase Account and 
determined by the Tmstee to be not needed with respect to any purchase date for the payment of 
the Purchase Price for any Bonds shall be promptly returned following such determination to the 
Company. 
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Bond Fund 

Payments made by the Company under the Loan Agreement and the Note with respect to 
the Bonds and certain other amounts specified in the Indenture will be deposited in the Bond 
Fund. The Tmstee will apply money contained in the accounts described below maintained 
within the Bond Fund as follows: 

(a) Interest Account. The Tmstee, on each Interest Payment Date, will withdraw and 
apply from moneys on deposit in the Interest Account an amount sufficient to pay interest on the 
outstanding Bonds on such Interest Payment Date; provided, however, when the Letter of 
Credit or an Altemate Letter of Credit is in eiTect, the Tmstee, on each Interest Payment Date, 
shall withdraw and apply moneys in the Interest Account, if any, to reimburse the Letter of 
Credit Bank for draws on the Letter of Credit or the Altemate Letter of Credit pursuant to tiie 
Indenture. 

(b) Principal Account. The Tmstee, on each Principal Payment Date, will withdraw 
and apply from moneys on deposit in the Principal Account, an amount equal to the principal 
becoming due on the Bonds on such Principal Payment Date (other than a redemption date). 
Money in such Principal Account will be used and withdrawn by the Tmstee on each Principal 
Payment Date solely for the payment of the principal of outstanding Bonds; provided, however, 
when the Letter of Credit or an Altemate Letter of Credit is in effect, the Tmstee will apply such 
amounts, if any, to reimburse the Letter of Credit Bank for draws on the Letter of Credit or the 
Alternate Letter of Credit pursuant to the Indenture. 

(c) Redemption Account. The Tmstee, on or before each redemption date, will 
withdraw and apply from moneys on deposit in the Redemption Account amounts required to 
pay the principal of and premium, if any, and accmed interest on Bonds to be redeemed prior to 
their stated maturity. Money in such Redemption Account will be used and withdrawn by the 
Tmstee on each redemption date solely for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, 
and accmed interest on outstanding Bonds upon the redemption thereof prior to their stated 
maturity; provided, however, when the Letter of Credit or an Altemate Letter of Credit is in 
effect, the Tmstee shall apply such amounts, if any, to reimburse the Letter of Credit Bank for 
draws on the Letter of Credit or the Altemate Letter of Credit pursuant to the Indenture. 

(d) Letter of Credit Account. The Tmstee will directiy deposit, or cause to be directly 
deposited, the proceeds of draws on the Letter of Credit or an Alternate Letter of Credit to pay 
interest on and principal of the Bonds in such Letter of Credit Account, and shall deposit only 
those proceeds therein. Money in such Letter of Credit Account will be used and withdrawn by 
the Tmstee on each Interest Payment Date and each Principal Payment Date first, before any 
other source of funds, to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; provided, however, that 
in no event shall moneys in such Letter of Credit Account be used to pay interest and premium 
on or principal of Bonds that are Bank-Owned Bonds or Company-Held Bonds if the Letter of 
Credit or Altemate Letter of Credit does not permit drawings thereunder with respect to Bank-
Owned Bonds or Company-Held Bonds. Amounts in the Letter of Credit Account shall be held 
uninvested. Neither the Issuer nor the Company shall have any interest in the Letter of Credit 
Account. 
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(e) Payments by Company. If during any period that a Letter of Credit is in effect 
there is not sufficient money in the Letter of Credit Account to make the pajmients on an Interest 
Payment Date or Principal Payment Date, the Tmstee will make such payments from money 
provided by the Company and deposited into the other accounts of the Bond Fund. 

Investment of Moneys Held by the Trustee 

Moneys deposited in the Constmction Fund and in the accounts maintained within the 
Bond Fund (except the Letter of Credh Account) will be invested at the direction of the 
Company in Permitted Investments (as defined in the Indenture). Moneys held in the Purchase 
Fund will be held uninvested. 

In the Loan Agreement the Company and the Issuer have covenanted not to cause or 
direct any moneys on deposit in any fund to be used in a manner which would cause the Bonds 
to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

The following events are Events of Default under the Indenture: 

(a) Default in the due and punctual payment of interest on any Bond; 

(b) Defauh in the due and punctual payment of the principal of, or premium, if any, 
on any Bond, whether at the stated maturity thereof, or upon unconditional 
proceedings for redemption thereof; 

(c) Defauit in the due and punctual payment of the Purchase Price of any Bond 
required to be purchased in accordance with its terms; 

(d) Default in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants, 
agreements or conditions on the part of the Issuer in the Indenture or in the Bonds, 
continuing 30 days after dehvery of notice thereof; 

(e) The occurrence and continuance of an event of defauh under the Loan Agreement 
as described under THE LOAN AGREEMENT - Events of Default and Remedies; 
or 

(f) Receipt by the Tmstee of a written notice from the Letter of Credit Bank stating 
that an event of default has occurred under the Reimbursement Agreement and 
directing the Tmstee to declare the principal of the outstanding Bonds 
immediately due and payable. 

Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default under (a), (b) or (c) above 
the Tmstee may, and upon the written request of the owners of at least 25% in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall, declare the principal of and accmed 
interest on the outstanding Bonds to be due and payable immediately. If an Event of Default 
under paragraph (d) or (e) above occurs and is continuing, the Tmstee may, and upon the request 
of the owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, shall, 
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declare the principal of and accmed interest on the outstanding Bonds to be due and payable 
immediately, provided, however, when the Letter of Credit is in effect and so long as the Letter 
of Credit Bank has not wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit (or otiierwise 
repudiated the Letter of Credit), the Tmstee will make such a declaration only with the written 
consent of the Letter of Credit Bank. If an Event of Defauh under paragraph (f) above occurs 
and is continuing, the Tmstee shall declare the principal of and accmed interest on the 
outstanding Bonds to be due and payable immediately. 

Upon any such declaration, the principal of and accmed interest on the outstanding Bonds 
shall be due and payable immediately. Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, 
interest on the outstanding Bonds will cease to accme immediately upon a declaration of 
acceleration for an Event of Defauh under (f) above. When the Letter of Credit is in effect, the 
Tmstee shall, immediately upon a declaration of acceleration, draw upon the Letter of Credit to 
pay the principal of and interest on the outstanding Bonds; provided, that in no event shall a 
drawing be made witii respect to Bank-Owned Bonds or Company-Held Bonds, if the Letter of 
Credit by its terms does not permit such a drawing. In the event the Letter of Credit Bank fails to 
honor a draw on the Letter of Credit (or otherwise repudiates the Letter of Credit) in accordance 
with the immediately preceding sentence, the Tmstee shall immediately notify the Company of 
such failure and shall request that the Company transfer sufficient amounts to pay the principal 
of and interest on the Bonds. 

The Tmstee may rescind an acceleration of the Bonds and its consequences if (1) all 
payment defaults with respect to the Bonds have been cured and all reasonable fees and charges 
of the Trustee, including reasonable attorneys' fees, have been paid, and (2) the Bondholders 
have not been notified of the acceleration, and (3) while the Letter of Credit is in effect, the 
Letter of Credit Bank has notified the Tmstee in writing (i) that the amount available to be drawn 
under the Letter of Credit has been reinstated so as to be available in any amount equal to the 
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding less the principal amount of any Bank-Owned Bonds, 
plus the applicable Letter of Credit Interest Amount and any required premium coverage and (ii) 
that the Letter of Credit Bank has rescinded in writing any event of defauh under the 
Reimbursement Agreement. Except as provided in this section, the Tmstee wil! not declare the 
Bonds to be due and payable. 

If an Event of Defauh occurs and is continuing, the Tmstee may pursue any available 
remedy by proceeding at law or in equity to collect the principal of and premium, if any, or 
interest on the Bonds or to enforce the performance of any provision of the Bonds or the 
Indenture. So long as the Letter of Credit is in effect and the Letter of Credit Bank has not 
wrongfully dishonored a drawing thereunder or wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit, the 
Tmstee will pursue any remedy only at the direction of or with the consent of the Letter of Credit 
Bank. 

A majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds by notice to the 
Tmstee may waive an existing Event of Default and its consequences; provided, however, that, 
when the Letter of Credit is in effect and so long as the Letter of Credit Bank has not wrongfully 
dishonored a drawing under such Letter of Credit or otherwise repudiated the Letter of Credit, no 
such waiver shall be effective with respect to the Bonds unless and until the Letter of Credit 
Bank has notified the Tmstee in writing (i) that the amount available to be drawn under the 
Letter of Credit has been reinstated so as to be available in an amount equal to the principal 

31 



amount of the Bonds outstanding less the principal amount of any Bank-Owned Bonds, plus the 
apphcable Letter of Credit Interest Amount and any required premium coverage, (ii) that the 
Letter of Credit Bank has rescinded in writing the notice of defauh, and (iii) the Letter of Credit 
Bank has waived in writing any event of default under the Reimbursement Agreement. When an 
Event of Defauh is waived, it is cured and stops continuing, but no such waiver will extend to 
any subsequent or otiier Event of Default or impair any right consequent to it. 

When there is a Letter of Credit in effect and so long as the Letter of Credh Bank has not 
wrongfully dishonored a drawing under such Letter of Credit or otherwise repudiated the Letter 
of Credh, the Letter of Credit Bank may direct the time, method and place of conducting any 
proceeding for any remedy available to the Tmstee or of exercising any tmst or power conferred 
on it with respect to the Bonds. When there is no Letter of Credit in effect or when tiie Letter of 
Credit Bank has wrongfiilly dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit or otherwise 
repudiated the Letter of Credit, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds 
outstanding may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Tmstee or of exercising any tmst or power conferred on it. 

An owner of a Bond may not pursue any remedy with respect to the Indenture or the 
Bonds unless (a) the owner gives the Tmstee notice stating that an Event of Default is 
continuing, (b) the owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding 
Bonds make a written request to the Tmstee to pursue the remedy, (c) such owner or owners 
offer to the Trustee indemnity satisfactory to the Tmstee against any loss, liability or expense, 
(d) the Tmstee does not comply with the request within 60 days after receipt of the request and 
the offer of indemnity, and (e) with respect to the Bonds, the Letter of Credit is either not in 
effect or the Letter of Credit Bank has wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of 
Credit or wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit. 

Except as described below, funds drawn under the Letter of Credit will be used only for 
the payment of principal of and interest on, premium, if any (to the extent that the Letter of 
Credit covers premium) and the Purchase Price of, the Bonds, as provided in the Letter of Credit. 
If the Trustee collects any money pursuant to the Indenture or if any moneys shall be on deposit 
in the Bond Fund at the time of acceleration of the Bonds or shall be deposited into tbe Bond 
Fund as a result of such an acceleration, it will pay out such monies in the following order: first 
to the Tmstee for amounts to which it is entitled under such Indenture (provided, that if such 
money constitutes proceeds of a draw under the Letter of Credit, the Trustee shall only use such 
proceeds to pay the owners of the Bonds); second to owners for amounts due and unpaid on the 
Bonds for principal, premium and interest, ratably, without preference or priority of any kind, 
according to the amounts due and payable on the Bonds for principal, premium and interest, 
respectively, third to the Letter of Credit Bank to the extent h certifies that the Company is 
mdebted to it on account of draws Letter of Credit or otherwise under the Reimbursement 
Agreement; and fourth to the Company (provided, that if such money constitutes proceeds of a 
draw under the Letter of Credit, the Tmstee shall pay the Letter of Credh Bank rather than the 
Company). Any lien of the Tmstee provided for in the Indenture will in no event apply to any 
funds drawn under the Letter of Credit or to other funds held for the benefit of the Bondholders. 
The Tmstee may fix a payment date for any payment to the Bondholders. 
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Supplemental Indentures 

The Issuer and the Tmstee may, without the consent of, or notice to, any of the 
Bondholders, enter into such indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture as shall not 
be inconsistent with the terms and provisions thereof: 

(a) to cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in the Indenture, or otherwise amend 
the Indenture, in such manner as shall not in the opinion of the Tmstee impair the 
security under the Indenture; 

(b) to grant to or confer upon the Tmstee for the benefit of the Bondholders any 
additional rights, remedies, powers or authorities that may lawfully be granted to 
or conferred upon the Bondholders or the Tmstee; 

(c) to evidence any succession to the Issuer and the assumption by its successor of the 
covenants, agreements and obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture, the Loan 
Agreement and the Bonds, to add additional covenants of the Issuer or to 
surrender any right or power therein conferred upon the Issuer; 

(d) to subject to the pledge of the Indenture additional revenues, properties, or 
collateral, which may be accomplished by, among other things, entering into 
instmments with the Company and/or other persons providing for fiirther security, 
covenants, limitations or restrictions for the benefit of the Bonds; 

(e) to modify, amend or supplement the Indenture to permit qualification under the 
Tmst Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar statute at the time in 
effect; 

(f) to amend any provision pertaining to matters under federal income tax laws, 
including Section 148(0 of the Code; 

(g) to authorize different Authorized Denominations of the Bonds and to make 
conelative amendments and modifications to the Indenture regarding 
exchangeability of Bonds of different Authorized Denominations, redemptions of 
portions of Bonds of particular Authorized Denominations and similar 
amendments and modifications of a technical nature; 

(h) to increase or decrease the number of days specified for the giving of notices of 
tender and to make conesponding changes to the period for notice of redemption 
of the Bonds; provided, that no decreases in any such number of days will become 
effective except while the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate 
and until 30 days after the Tmstee has given notice to the owners of the Bonds; 

(i) to provide for an uncertificated system of registering the Bonds or to provide for 
the change to or from a Book-Entry System for the Bonds; 

(j) to evidence the succession of a new tmstee or the appointment by the Tmstee or 
the Issuer of a co-tmstee; 
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(k) to make any change related to the Bonds that does not materially adversely affect 
tiie rights of any Bondholder; 

(1) prior to, or concurrently with, the conversion of the Bonds to an Auction Rate 
Period, to make any change appropriate or necessary with respect to the 
procedures, defmitions or provisions in the Indenture or in Exhibit B attached to 
the Indenture related to the Auction Mode Rate in order to provide for or facilitate 
the marketability of Bonds in the Auction Mode Rate; and 

(m) to make any other changes to the Indenture that take effect as to any or all 
remarketed Bonds following a mandatory tender. 

The Indenture also provides that the owners of not less than a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, to consent to 
and approve the execution by the Issuer and the Tmstee of such other indenture or supplemental 
indentures as shall be deemed necessary and desirable by the Issuer and the Tmstee for the 
purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the 
terms or provisions contained in the Indenture or in any supplemental indenture; provided, 
however, that nothing shall permh (a) without the consent of the holder of tiie affected Bond, an 
extension of the maturity date of the principal of or the interest on any Bond; (b) without the 
consent of the holder of the affected Bond, a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond, the 
rate of interest thereon or any redemption premium; or (c) without the consent of the holders of 
all Bonds outstanding, a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for 
consent to such supplemental indenture or for actions related to amendments to the Loan 
Agreemmt. A Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel is required for any supplement to the 
Indenture. 

When the Letter of Credh is in effect and so long as the Letter of Credit Bank has not 
wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit or wrongfully repudiated the Letter 
of Credit, no waiver of or amendment or supplement to the Indenture other than certain of those 
enumerated in the Indenture shall be made without the prior written consent of the Letter of 
Credit Bank to such amendment or supplement. 

Discharge of the Indenture 

If the whole amount of principal, redemption price and interest due and payable on the 
Bonds has been paid, or provision has been made for the payment of the same in accordance with 
the Indenture, and if, at the time of such payment, the Issuer shall have kept, performed and 
observed all the covenants and promises in such Bonds and in the Indenture required or 
contemplated to be kept, perfonned and observed by the Issuer or on its part on or prior to that 
time, then the Indenture shall be considered to have been discharged in respect of such Bonds 
and such Bonds shall cease to be entitied to the lien of the Indenture and such Hen and aU 
covenants, agreements and other obligations of the Issuer thereunder shall cease, tenninate, 
become void and be completely discharged as to such Bonds. 
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No Personal Liability of Issuer's Officials 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of the Issuer contained in the Indenture 
will be or be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any present or 
future member, officer, agent or employee of the Issuer in other than his or her official capacity. 
No member of the Issuer or official executing the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement or 
any amendment or supplement to the Indenture or the Loan Agreement will be liable personally 
on the Bonds or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance or 
execution thereof. 

Removal of Trustee 

The Tmstee may be removed by the owners of not less than a majority in principal 
amount of Bonds at the time outstanding or by the Issuer and the Company so long as no Event 
of Default has occurred and is continuing. The Tmstee shall continue to serve as such until a 
successor Tmstee shall be appointed under the Indenture and has accepted such appointment. 

THE REMARKETING AGREEMENT 

KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. has been appointed as the Remarketing Agent for the Bonds. 
If and to tiie extent the Company directs the Remarketing Agents to remarket the Bonds 
delivered for purchase pursuant to the Indenture, the Remarketing Agent, pursuant to and subject 
to the provisions of a remarketing agreement with the Company (the "Remarketing Agreemenf), 
will offer for sale and use reasonable efforts to sell such Bonds at a price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount thereof plus accmed interest, if any, to the purchase date. The Remarketing 
Agent may resign by giving notice to the Issuer, the Company and the Tmstee (such resignation 
will be effective upon the earlier of the day a successor remarketing agent appointed pursuant to 
the Indenture has accepted that appointment or 30 days after such notice has been sent) and may 
suspend remarketing upon the occurrence of certain events. The Company may remove the 
Remarketing Agent at any time upon 30 days' notice. In either case, the Company has agreed to 
use its best efforts to appoint a successor remarketing agent. See THE BONDS — Special 
Considerations. 

THE TRUSTEE 

The Company and certain of its affiliates maintain banking relationships with affiliates of 
The Huntington National Bank, and borrow from such affiliates from time to time. The 
Huntington National Bank, and its affiliates, serve as tmstee under other indentures with, or for 
the benefit of, affihates of the Company. 
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UNDERWRITING 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in a Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered 
into between the Issuer and the Underwriters, the Underwriters have agreed to purchase the 
Bonds at a purchase price of 100% of the principal amount thereof Under the terms and 
conditions of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters are committed to take and pay for 
all of the Bonds if any are taken. The Company has agreed to pay the Underwriters $87,500 
as compensation and to reimburse the Underwriters for their reasonable expenses. 

The Issuer has been advised by the Underwriters that the Bonds may be offered and sold 
to certain dealers (including dealers depositing Bonds into investment tmsts) and others at prices 
lower than the public offering price set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement. After 
the Bonds are released for sale to the public, the public offering price and other selling terms 
may from time to time be varied by the Underwriters. 

In connection with this offering and in compliance with applicable law and industry 
practice, the Underwriters may overallot or effect transactions which stabilize, maintain or 
otherwise affect the market price of the Bonds at levels above those which might otherwise 
prevail in the open market, including by entering stabilizing bids. A stabilizing bid means the 
placing of a bid, or the effecting of any purchase, for the purpose of pegging, fixing or 
maintaining the price of a security. In general, purchases of a security for the purpose of 
stabilization could cause the price of the security to be higher than it might be in the absence of 
such purchases. 

Neither the Issuer, the Company nor the Underwriters make any representation or 
prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above 
may have on the price of the Bonds. In addition, neither the Issuer, the Company nor the 
Underwriters make any representation that the Underwriters will engage in such transactions or 
that such transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice. 

Pursuant to an Inducement Letter, the Company has agreed to indemnify the 
Underwriters and the Issuer against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the federal 
securities laws, or contribute to payments that the Underwriters or the Issuer may be required to 
make in respect thereof 

The Underwriters and/or certain of their affiliates may engage in transactions with, and 
from time to time have performed services for, the Company and/or certain of its affiliates in tbe 
ordinary course of business. 

Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, an underwriter 
of the Bonds, has entered into a retail brokerage joint venture with Citigroup Inc. As part of the 
joint venture, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will distribute municipal securities to retail 
investors through the financial advisor network of a new broker-dealer, Morgan Stanley Smith 
Barney LLC. This distribution arrangement became effective on June 1, 2009. As part of this 
arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will compensate Morgan Stanley Smith 
Barney LLC for its selling efforts with respect to the Bonds. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Bonds are exempt from the continuing disclosure requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of 
Rule 15c2-l2 (the "Rule") adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Act of 1934 while tiiey bear interest at a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate. The Company 
will covenant in the Loan Agreement that in the event the Bonds are converted to an interest rate 
that would make the Bonds subject to the requirements of the Rule, the Company will comply 
with the requirements of the Rule and execute a continuing disclosure undertaking for the benefit 
of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, and to provide continuing information as required by the 
Rule. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, under existing law: 
(i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 
Section 103(a) of the Code, except for interest on any Bond for any period during which it is 
held by a "substantial user" or a "related person" as those terms are used in Section 147(a) of the 
Code; (ii) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for 
purposes of the federal altemative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; and 
(iii) interest on, and any profit made on the sale, exchange or other disposition of, the Bonds are 
exempt from the Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income 
base of the Ohio corporate franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic 
development district income taxes in Ohio. Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any 
other tax consequences regarding the Bonds. 

The opinion on tax matters will be based on and will assume the accuracy of certain 
representations and certifications, and continuing compliance with certain covenants, of the 
Issuer and the Company contained in the transcript of proceedings and that are intended to 
evidence and assure the foregoing, including that the Bonds are and will remain obligations the 
interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel 
will not independently verify the accuracy of the Issuer's and the Company's certifications and 
representations or the continuing compliance with the Issuer's and the Company's covenants. 

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal autiiority and covers certain 
matters not directiy addressed by such authority. It represents Bond Counsel's legal judgment as 
to exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes but is 
not a guaranty of that conclusion. The opinion is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service 
("IRS") or any court. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion about (i) the effect of future changes 
in the Code and the applicable regulations under the Code or (ii) the interpretation and the 
enforcement of the Code or those regulations by the IRS. 

The Code prescribes a number of qualifications and conditions for the interest on state 
and local government obligations to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, some of which require future or continued compliance after issuance of the 
obligations. Noncompliance with these requirements by the Issuer or the Company with respect 
to the Bonds (or with similar requirements with respect to certain other bonds issued by the 
Issuer substantially at the same time as the issuance of the Bonds) may cause loss of such status 
and result in the interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax 
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purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Company and the Issuer have 
each covenanted to take the actions required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and to 
remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and not to take any actions 
that would adversely affect that exclusion. After the date of issuance of the Bonds, Bond 
Counsel will not undertake to determine (or to so inform any person) whether any actions taken 
or not taken, or any events occurring or not occurring, or any other matters coming to Bond 
Counsel's attention, may adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes of interest on the Bonds or the market value of the Bonds. 

Although a portion of the interest on certain tax-exempt obligations earned by certain 
corporations may be included in the calculation of adjusted current earnings for purposes of the 
federal corporate alternative minimum tax, interest on certain tax-exempt obligations issued in 
2009 and 2010, including the Bonds, is excluded from that calculation. Interest on the Bonds 
may be subject to a branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in 
the United States and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations. 

Under tiie Code, the exclusion of interest from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes may have certain adverse federal income tax consequences on items of income, 
deduction or credit for certain taxpayers, including financial institutions, certain insurance 
companies, recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits, those that are deemed 
to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations, and individuals 
otherwise eligible for the earned income tax credit. The applicability and extent of these and 
other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status or other tax items of the owner 
of the Bonds. Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding those consequences. 

Payments of interest on tax-exempt obligations, including the Bonds, are generally 
subject to IRS Form 1099-INT information reporting requirements. If a Bondowner is subject to 
backup withholding under those requirements, then payments of interest will also be subject to 
backup whhholding. Those requirements do not affect the excludability of such interest from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

Legislation affecting tax-exempt obligations is regularly considered by the United States 
Congress and may also be considered by the Ohio legislature. Court proceedings may also be 
filed the outcome of which could modify the tax treatment of obligations such as the Bonds, 
There can be no assurance that legislation enacted or proposed, or actions by a court, after the 
date of issuance of the Bonds will not have an adverse effect on the tax status of interest or other 
income on the Bonds or the market value of the Bonds. 

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding 
pending or proposed federal and Ohio tax legislation and court proceedings, and prospective 
purchasers of the Bonds at other than their original issuance at the price indicated on the cover of 
this Official Statement should also consuh their own tax advisers regarding other tax 
considerations such as the consequences of market discount, as to all of which Bond Counsel 
expresses no opinion. 

Bond Counsel's engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the 
Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Issuer, the 
Company or the beneficial owners regarding the tax status of interest on the Bonds in the event 
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of an audit examination by the IRS. The IRS has a program to audit tax-exempt obligations to 
determine whether the interest thereon is includible in gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. If the IRS does audit the Bonds, under current IRS procedures, the IRS wil! treat the 
Issuer as the taxpayer and the beneficial owners of the Bonds will have only limited rights, if 
any, to obtain and participate injudicial review of such audh. Any action of the IRS, including 
but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or resuh of such audit, or an 
audit of other obligations presenting similar tax issues, may affect the maricet value for the 
Bonds. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters relating to the authorization and validity of the Bonds will be 
subject to the approving opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Cleveland, Ohio, Bond 
Counsel, which will be furnished at the expense of the Company upon dehvery of tiie Bonds, in 
substantially the form set forth as Appendix C (the "Bond Opinion"). The Bond Opinion will be 
limited to matters relating to authorization and validity of the Bonds and to the tax-exempt status 
of interest thereon as described in the section TAX EXEMPTION. Bond Counsel has not been 
engaged to investigate the financial resources of the Company or the Letter of Credh Bank or the 
ability of either the Company or the Letter of Credh Bank to provide for payment of the Bonds, 
and the Bond Opinion will make no statement as to such matters or as to the accuracy or 
completeness of this Official Statement or any other information tiiat may have been relied on by 
anyone in making the decision to purchase Bonds. 

Certain legal matters will be passed upon by Jeffrey D. Cross or Thomas G. Berkemeyer 
and Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P., counsel for the Company. Jeffrey D. Cross and Thomas G. 
Berkemeyer are Deputy General Counsel and Associate General Counsel, respectively, of 
American Electric Power Service Corporation, an affiliate of the Company. Certain legal 
matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, 
counsel for the Underwriters. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Issuer by its 
counsel, Forbes, Fields & Associates Co., L.P.A. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for 
the Letter of Credh Bank by its U.S. counsel. King & Spalding LLP, and by its internal 
Canadian counsel. Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P. acts as counsel to certain affihates of the 
Company for some matters. 

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the dehvery of the Bonds 
express the professional judgment of the attomeys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues 
explicitly addressed therein. In rendering a legal opinion, the attomey does not become an 
insurer or guarantor of the expression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, 
or of the future performance of the parties to the transaction, nor does the rendering of an opinion 
guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The attached Appendices (including documents contained therein) are an integral part of 
the Official Statement and must be read together with all of the balance of this Official 
Statement. 
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The Issuer does not assume any responsibility for the matters contained in this Official 
Statement other than information under THE ISSUER. All findings and determinations by the 
Issuer relating to the issuance and sale of the Bonds are, and have been, made by the Issuer for 
its own internal uses and purposes in performing its duties under Ohio law. 
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APPENDIX A 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

As more fully detailed below, Ohio Valley Electric Corporation ("OVEC"), together with its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation ("IKEC" and together with OVEC, the "Company") is engaged in the business 
of generating, transmitting and selling electricity from its facilities located in Ohio, Indiana and Kentucky. The 
Company's principal office is located at 3932 U.S. Route 23, Piketon, Ohio 45661 and the telephone number is (740) 
289-7200. 

This summary may not contain all of the information that may be important to purchasers of the Bonds and should be 
read together with the more detailed mformation appearing elsewhere in this Official Statement. CapitaUzed terms 
used in this Appendix and not otherwise defmed shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the body of this Official 
Statement. 

Coinpany Overview 

The Company owns and operates two coal-fired electric power generating plants with a combined nameplate capacity of 
approximately 2,390 megawatts ("MW"). OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant (the "Kyger Creek Plant" or "Kyger"), located in 
Gallia County, Ohio, has a total nameplate capacity of 1,086 MW. IKEC's Clifly Creek Plant (the "Clifty Creek Plant" 
or "Clifly") has a total nameplate capacity of 1,304 MW and is located in Jefferson County, Indiana. Both of these 
facilities commenced operations in 1955. A 776 circuit-mile network of 345 kilovoU ("kV") transmission lines owned 
by the Company connect these two generation stations. These lines also interconnect with the major power transmission 
networks of several of the utilities serving the area. OVEC has senior unsecured debt ratings of Baa3 (negative outlook) 
by Moody's and BBB- by S&P. Additional information regarding the Company can be found at www.ovec.com, but the 
information at such website is not incorporated into this Official Statement by reference. 

The inter-Company Power Agreement 

OVEC sells power to thirteen purchasers under the Inter-Company Power Agreement ("ICPA"), which stipulates the 
terms by which ail of the electric capacity and energy of the Kyger Creek Plant and the Clifly Creek Plant is sold. The 
thirteen power purchasers under the ICPA (collectively, the "Sponsoring Companies") are currently investor-owned 
utilities and one affiliate of a generation and transmission rural electric cooperative each of which own or are affiliated 
with entities that own equity in OVEC. OVEC is owned by eleven enUties (collectively, the "Shareholders"), consisting 
often investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and one affiliate of the generation and transmission rural 
electric cooperative. 

In 2004, an Amended and Restated ICPA was unanimously approved by the Sponsoring Companies and OVEC, 
extending the term of the then-current ICPA, effective March 13, 2006, for an additional 20 years until March 13, 2026. 
Under the ICPA, the Sponsoring Companies have the right to receive 100% of OVEC's available capacity and energy. 
Each Sponsoring Company can reserve a percentage, called the power participation ratio ("PPR"), of available power 
and energy, and each Sponsoring Company that reserves available power is entitled to a commensurate amount of 
available energy. The PPR ofeach Sponsoring Company is based on the ownership interest of such Sponsoring 
Company and its affiliates in OVEC. The payments required to be made by the Sponsoring Companies under Ihe ICPA 
include monthly demand and energy charges and transmission charges. The demand and transmission charges are 
designed to cover all of OVEC's non-fuel related costs of owning, operating and maintaining OVEC's generation and 
transmission facilities - including debt repayment - and to provide a retum on equity to its Shareholders. The 
Sponsoring Companies' obligations under the ICPA are several, but not joint and several. This means dial each 
Sponsoring Company is only liable for its obligations, and not the obligations of the other Sponsoring Companies under 
the ICPA. 

The energy charge permits OVEC to recover all of its fuel-related costs, with each Sponsoring Company paying its 
share of those costs based on the amount of energy taken by that Sponsoring Company. The Sponsoring Companies are 
obligated under the ICPA to pay the demand and transmission charges even if OVEC fails to deliver power and 
regardless of the amount of the available capacity of OVEC's generation facilities. In addition, the Sponsoring 
Companies must reimburse OVEC for all costs of replacements and additional facilities (defined in the ICPA). 

The ICPA allows OVEC to incur debt for capital improvements to maintain compliance with applicable laws. In the 
event that OVEC finances the cost of any additional facility or replacement, the Sponsoring Companies are required to 
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pay, as part of the demand charge for available power, 100% of all interest costs and debt amortization relating to such 
financing. The cost is allocated among the Sponsoring Companies based on their respective PPRs (representing their 
and their affiliates' approximate ownership of the Company). Consequently, the Sponsoring Companies are obligated to 
reimburse OVEC for 100% of its financing costs for any environmental spending. 

The current Shareholders and their respective percentages of equity in OVEC are: 

Shareholder Equity Percentage 

Allegheny Energy, Inc. 

American Electric Power Company, Inc.* 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC ' 

Columbus Southem Power Company**^ 

The Dayton Power and Light Company ' 

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.**** 

Kentucky Utilities Company ^ 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company ^ 

Ohio Edison Company ̂  

Southem Indiana Gas and Electric Company ' 

The Toledo Edison Company ^ 

Total 

3.50% 

39.17% 

18.00% 

4.30% 

4.90% 

9.00% 

2.50% 

5.63% 
7.50% 

1.50% 

4.00% 

IQO.00% 

These entities comprise the Sponsoring Companies and currently share the OVEC power participation benefits and 
requirements in the following percentages: 

Sponsoring Company Power Participation Ratios 

Allegheny Energy Supply Company ^ 

Appalachian Power Company ^ 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC ' 

Columbus Southem Power Company ̂  

The Dayton Power and Light Company ^ 

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.'' 

FirstEnergy Generation Corp. ^ 

Indiana Michigan Power Company ^ 

Kentucky Utilities Company ^ 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company ^ 

Monongahela Power Company ** 

Ohio Power Company ^ 

Southem Indiana Gas and Electric Company ̂  

Total 

Some of the Common Stock issued in the name of: 
* American Gas & Electric Company 
** Columbus and Southem Ohio Elecdic Company 

*** The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

Subsidiary or affiliate of: 
' Buckeye Power, Inc. 
^ American Electric Power Company, Inc. 
^ DPL Inc. 
'̂  Duke Energy Corporation 
^ E.ON U.S. LLC 
^ FirstEnergy Corp. 
^ Vectren Corporation 
^ Allegheny Energy, Inc. 

3.01% 

15.69% 

18.00% 

4.44% 

4.90% 

9.00% 

n.50% 

7.85% 

2.50% 

5.63% 
0.49% 

15.49% 

1.50% 
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OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement 

The principal contractual arrangements between OVEC and liCEC are contained in the OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement. OVEC is obligated under the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement to purchase aU power, and the energy 
associated therewith, generated at IKEC's Chfty Creek Plant. OVEC's payments for such power are determined 
such that, when added to revenues received by iKEC from any other source, they are sufficient to enable IKEC to 
pay all of its operating and other expenses, including all income and other taxes, and any interest and regular 
amortization requirements applicable to any indebtedness for borrowed funds incurred by IKEC. IKEC currently has 
no long-term indebtedness. IKEC is obligated to transmit to OVEC any and all power, and the energy associated 
therewith, generated at the Clifty Creek Plant. IKEC is further obligated to transmit and deliver to OVEC all power, 
and the energy associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by the Sponsoring Companies and to deliver to the 
Sponsoring Companies designated by OVEC, all power, and the energy associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by 
OVEC. The term of the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement is coterminous with the term of the ICPA. 

Available Information 

OVEC is not subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
"1934 Act") and does not file reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"SEC"). Other than Buckeye Power Generating, LLC, all of the Shareholders of OVEC (or their parent corporation) 
are subject to the information requirements of the 1934 Act, and in accordance therewith file reports, proxy 
statements and other information with the SEC. Such reports, proxy statements and other information can be 
inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at its principal offices at 100 F Street, 
N.E., Washington, D.C. or at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. Additional information regarding Buckeye Power 
Generating, LLC, an affiliate of Buckeye Power, Inc., can be found at www. http://www.buckeyepower.com. 

None of the above-mentioned additional information regarding the Shareholders and their operating subsidiaries is 
part of this Official Statement, nor is any such information incorporated into this Official Statement, and neither the 
Company nor the Underwriters take any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof 

Financial Statements 

Annex 1 to this Appendix A contains the Company's Annual Report for 2008 which includes the consolidated 
fmancial statements of the Company as of December 31,2008 and 2007, and for each of the two years in the period 
ended December 31,2008, audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors. Annex 2 to this Appendix A 
contains the unaudited consolidating financial statements of die Company as of March 31,2009. Annex 3 to this 
Appendix A contains the unaudited consolidating financial statements of the Company as of June 30, 2009. 

Risk Factors 

Investing in the Bonds involves risk. Please see the risk factors described below. Before making an investment 
decision, prospective Bondholders should carefully consider these risks as well as other information contained in 
this Official Statement and the Appendices. The risks and uncertainties described are those presently known to the 
Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that the Company curtently 
deems immaterial may also impair the Company's business operations, financial results and the value of the Bonds. 

Risks Associated with OVEC 

OVEC relies exclusively on the payments made to it by the Sponsoring Companies pursuant to the ICPA for 
revenue to pay OVEC's operating expenses, and OVEC may be unable to pay those expenses (including 
payments of principal, interest, and premium, if any, on, the Bonds) if any of the Sponsoring Companies fails 
to fulfill its payment obligations to OVEC. 

The Sponsoring Companies are obligated under the ICPA to pay demand, transmission and energy charges that, 
collectively, are contractually designed to cover all of OVEC's fixed charges of owning, operating and maintaining 
OVEC's generation and transmission facilities, provide a retum on equity to OVEC's shareholders, and compensate 
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OVEC for costs of all fuel used to supply power under the ICPA. This obligation is several and not joint and several. 
As a consequence, because OVEC's only material source of revenue is under the ICPA, a failure by a Sponsoring 
Company to flilfill a payment obligation to OVEC for any reason could cause OVEC to be unable to pay its 
operating expenses (including payments with respect to principal, interest, and premium, if any, on, the Bonds). 
Moreover, the ability of the Sponsoring Companies to generate cash flow and make their obligated payments under 
the ICPA depends on their financial performance, which will be affected by a range of economic, competitive, 
legislative, regulatory and business factors, many of which are outside of the control of the Company and the 
Sponsoring Companies. 

The Sponsoring Companies' utility operations involve many risks, including the breakdown or failure of power 
generation equipment, pipelines, transmission lines, distribution lines or other equipment or processes, fuel 
interruption, and performance below expected levels of output or efficiency. Sales and revenues of a utility may also 
be adversely affected by general economic and business conditions and weather conditions in its service territory. 

In addition, the Sponsoring Companies are subject to a number of environmental and other laws and regulations 
affecting many aspects of their present and future operations, including the disposal of various forms of waste, the 
construction or permitting of new facilities and air and water quality. Those laws and regulations generally require 
the Sponsoring Companies to obtain and comply with a wide variety of licenses, permits and other approvals. 
Existing regulations may be revised or new regulations may be adopted or become applicable to the Sponsoring 
Companies that could have an adverse impact on their respective operations, including potential regulatory 
developments related to emissions of greenhouse gases, sulfur dioxide and nitrous oxides. The implementation of 
regulatory changes imposing more comprehensive or stringent requirements on the Sponsoring Companies, to the 
extent such changes would result in increased compliance costs or additional operating restrictions, could have a 
material adverse effect on the results of operations of the Sponsoring Companies. See Environmental Matters herein. 

This Official Statement does not contain historical financial infonnation regarding any of the Sponsoring 
Companies. In making an investment decision regarding the Bonds, there is no assurance, based upon the 
information contained herein, that any of the Sponsoring Companies will be capable of meeting its fmancial or other 
responsibilities under the ICPA. 

The operation of the Company's electric generation plants and transmission facilities involves risks that could 
adversely affect the Company's cost of operations. 

The Company is subject to various risks associated with operating its electric generation plants and transmission 
facilities, any of which could adversely affect its cost of operations. These risks include: 

failure of equipment or processes, operator or maintenance errors or other events resulting in power 
Outages or reduced output; 

availability of fuel and fuel transportation; 

disruptions in the transmission or distribution of power; 

changes in applicable laws and regulations, including environmental laws and regulations; and 

catastrophic events such as fires, hurricanes, explosions, floods, terrorist attacks or other similar 
occurrences to its facilities or to facilities upon which the Company depends. 

Unplanned outages of generating units and transmission facilities due to mechanical failures or other problems occur 
from time to time and are an inherent risk of the Company's business. Unplanned outages typically increase the 
Company's operation and maintenance expenses. All of the units of the Company's generation plants, and a 
significant portion of the Company's transmission facihties, were originally constructed many years ago. Older 
generation and transmission equipment, even if maintained in accordance with good engineering practices, may 
require significant capital expenditures to keep it operating at high efficiency and to meet regulatory and 
environmental requirements. This equipment is also likely to require periodic upgrading and improvement. 

A-4 



The cost of repairing damage to the Company's generation plants and transmission facilities due to storms, natural 
disasters, wars, terrorist acts and other catastrophic events may adversely affect the Company's costs of operations 
or cash flows. These actions could also result in adverse changes in the insurance markets and disruptions of power 
and fuel markets. In addition, the Company's generation plants and transmission facilities are directly or indirectly 
connected to electric transmission infrastructure which the Company does not own and over which it does not 
exercise control of operations or maintenance. The Company's operations could be directly or indirectly harmed by 
failures associated with either its own or third parties' generation and transmission facilities, including explosions, 
fires, inclement weather, natural disasters, mechanical failure, unscheduled downtime, equipment interruptions, 
remediation, chemical spills, discharges or releases of toxic or hazardous substances or gases and other 
environmental risks. Severe damage to or destruction of property and equipment and environmental damage may 
resuh in suspension of operations and the imposition of civil or criminal penalties. Moreover, the occurrence or risk 
of occurrence of future terrorist attacks, related acts of war or failures in generation and transmission infrastructure 
could also adversely affect the U.S. economy or otherwise impact the Company's results of operations and financial 
condition in unpredictable ways. 

Should one or more of the events described above occur, the Company's cost of operations may significandy 
increase. The Company has insurance covering certain of its plants, including property damage insurance, 
commercial general liability insurance, and boiler and machinery coverage, each in amounts that the Company 
considers appropriate. However, the Company's insurance policies are subject to certain limits and deductibles as 
well as policy exclusions, the Company cannot assure purchasers of the Bonds that insurance coverage will be 
available in the future at current costs or on commercially reasonable terms or that the insurance proceeds received 
for any loss or damage, including any loss or damage to the Company's generation plants and transmission facilities 
or losses caused by outages, will be sufficient to restore the loss or damage without negative impact on the 
Company's costs of operations. 

The interests of the Sponsoring Companies may conflict with the interests of the bondholders or OVEC. 

All of OVEC's capital stock is owned either by the Sponsoring Companies or by subsidiaries or other affiliates of 
the Sponsoring Companies. Therefore, the Sponsoring Companies direct OVEC's activities and have the ability to 
control the Company's management, policies, and financing decisions. In addition, the Sponsoring Companies may 
have interests that conflict with those of the bondholders or the Company's interests and, except as required by law 
or contractual obligations, the Sponsoring Companies have no duties to other parties with respect to the conduct of 
the Company's business. 

Risks Associated with the Bonds 

An investment in the Bonds involves certain risks, including the risk of nonpayment of interest, principal or 
premium, if any, due to the owners. The principal risk that may affect payment of the Bonds is the inability or 
refusal of the Letter of Credit Bank to perform its duties under the Letter of Credit. In such an event, the Trustee 
would exercise its available remedies against the Letter of Credit Bank. The risk of nonpayment also depends upon 
the financial condition of the Company and is affected by a number of factors that should be considered by 
prospective purchasers, along with the other information presented in this Official Statement and the Appendices 
hereto, in judging the suitability of an inveslment in the Bonds. 

Risks Associated with the Letter of Credit and the Reimbursement Agreement 

Concurrently with, and as a condition to the offering of the Bonds in the Weekly Rate, the Company will cause to be 
delivered to the Trustee the Letter of Credit issued by the Letter of Credit Bank for the timely payment of principal 
of and interest (calculated for 35 days at the maximum rate of 12% per annum) on, and purchase price of, the Bonds. 
OVEC will be required to reimburse the Letter of Credit Bank for all amounts drawn by the Trustee under the Letter 
of Credit pursuant to the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement. The Letter of Credit will expire on August 12, 
2010, subject to extension or earlier termination. The Letter of Credit may be extended or replaced by a letter of 
credit issued by a national banking association, a bank, a trust company or other financial institution satisfying the 
requirements of the Indenture. Certain information with respect to the Letter of Credit Bank is included in Appendix 
B to this Official Statement. 
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If the Letter of Credit expires or is terminated, and even if an Altemate Letter of Credh is obtained by OVEC, the 
Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase at the principal amount, without premium, plus accrued 
interest to the purchase date. See THE BONDS—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Mandatory Tender Upon 
Substitution of Alternate Letter of Credit in this Official Statement. There can be no assurance that OVEC will be 
able to obtain an extension of the Letter of Credit or any future Altemate Letter of Credit. The Letter of Credit Bank 
is under no obligation to extend the Letter of Credit beyond the scheduled expiration thereof See THE LETTER OF 

CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT in this Official Statement. From and after the receipt of an Altemate Letter 
of Credit in substitution for the Letter of Credit, if ever, the Bonds will be secured by the Altemate Letter of Credit. 

The ratings on the Bonds are dependent on the joint ratings of the Letter of Credit Bank and OVEC. The Letter of 
Credit Bank's current ratings are predicated upon among other things, a level of reserves required by banking 
institutions. The level of reserves maintained by the Letter of Credit Bank could change over time and tiiis could 
result in a downgrading of the rating on the Bonds. The Letter of Credit Bank is not contractually bound to maintain 
its present level of reserves in the future nor is it contractually bound to maintain its current credit rating. No 
provision has been made for replacement of or substitution for the Letter of Credit in the event of any deterioration 
in the financial condition of the Letter of Credit Bank. The ratings assigned to OVEC's senior unsecured debt by tiie 
rating agencies reflect such agencies' assessment of the likelihood that the holders of the Bonds will receive the 
payments of principal, purchase price and interest on each applicable payment date if the Letter of Credit were not in 
effect. The ratings are not a recommendation to purchase, hold or sell tiie Bonds, and such ratings do not comment 
as to the marketability of tiie Bonds, any market price, or suitability for a particular investor. There is no assurance 
that any rating will remain for any given period of time or that any rating will not be lowered or witiidrawn entirely 
by a rating agency if, in such rating agency's judgment, circumstances so warrant. None of the Issuer, OVEC, the 
Underwriters or the Remarketing Agent has undertaken any responsibility to bring to the attention of die owners of 
the Bonds any proposed change in or withdrawal of such ratings or to oppose any such revision or witiidrawal. 

The obligations of the Letter of Credit Bank under the Letter of Credit are general, unsecured obligations of die 
Letter of Credit Bank and will not rank higher in priority of payment or in any odier respect with other unsecured 
obligations of die Letter of Credit Bank. In the event of a bankruptcy or insolvency or if for any other reason the 
Letter of Credit flank fails or is unable to fulfill its obligations under the Letter of Credit, each owner of the Bonds 
would have to depend entirely on tiie ability of OVEC to pay the principal of, interest on and purchase price of 
Bonds tendered for purchase unless an Altemate Letter of Credit is obtained by OVEC. 

The Letter of Credit Bank is subject to regulation and supervision by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, the State of New York Banking Department and other regulatory bodies. New regulations could impose 
restrictions upon the Letter of Credit Bank that would restrict its ability to respond to competitive pressures. In the 
recent past increased regulatory efforts have imposed new capital requirements upon the Letter of Credit Bank. 
Various other legislative or regulatory changes could dramatically impact the banking industry as a whole and the 
Letter of Credit Bank specifically. The banking industry is highly competitive in many of the markets in which the 
Letter of Credit Bank operates. Such competition directiy impacts the financial performance of the Letter of Credit 
Bank. Any significant increase in such competition could adversely impact the Letter of Credit Bank. 

Limited Obligations 

The Bonds are special obligations of tiie Issuer, and are to be paid solely from, and will be secured by a pledge of, 
payments to be made by OVEC to the Issuer under the terms of the Loan Agreement and the Note. TTie Loan 
Agreement and tiie Note are unsecured obhgations of OVEC. The Bonds will not be secured by a mortgage or 
security interest in the Project or any other property of the Company. The Bonds do not now and will never 
constitute a charge against the general credit of the Issuer, the State of Ohio, or any political subdivision thereof 

Risk of Taxability 

The failure of die Issuer or OVEC to comply with their covenants to meet certain requirements of the Code (see TAX 
EXEMPTION in this Official Statement) could cause the interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross mcome 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. Under the 
circumstances described in tiiis Official Statement under the caption THE BONDS—Redemption of Bonds -
Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption of Bonds, the Bonds may be redeemed on any date in whole (or in part in 
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certain circumstances) without premium following the occurrence of certain events as described therein. The 
Indenture does not provide for the payment of any additional interest or penalty in the event that the interest on the 
Bonds becomes includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

Matters Relating to Enforcement 

Enforcement of the remedies under the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Reimbursement Agreement may be 
limited or restricted by federal and state laws relating to bankruptcy, fraudulent conveyances, and rights of creditors, 
by application of general principles of equity affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights and liens securing such 
rights, by zoning, subdivision or other municipal codes and ordinances and by the exercise of judicial authority by 
state or federal courts, and may be subject to discretion in the event of litigation or statutory remedy procedures, and 
may be substantially delayed in the event of litigation or statutory remedy procedures. The various legal opinions to 
be delivered concurrently with the issuance and delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the 
various legal instruments by limitations imposed by local, state and federal laws, rulings and decisions affecting 
remedies, and by general principles of equity and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other 
similar laws affecting the rights of creditors. 

Suitability of Investment 

An investment in the Bonds involves a certain degree of risk. The interest rate home by the Bonds is intended to 
compensate the investor for assuming this element of risk. Prospective investors should carefully examine this 
Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, and their abihty to bear the economic risk of such an 
investment, and then determine whether or not the Bonds are an appropriate investment for them. 

Early Redemption or Mandatory Tender 

Pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, the Bonds are subject to redemption and mandatory tender for purchase prior 
to maturity (see THE BONDS^Redemption of Bonds and —Mandatory Tender for Purchase in this Official 
Statement). Under those circumstances, a Bondholder may not have the opportunity to hold those Bonds for a time 
period consistent with such Bondholder's original investment intentions. 

Secondary Markets and Prices 

No assurance can be given Uiat any secondary market will develop following the completion of the offering of the 
Bonds. Except with respect to the mandatory or optional tender of the Bonds (see THE BONDS—Optional Tender and 
—Mandatory Tender for Purchase), OVEC will not be obligated to repurchase any of the Bonds, and no assurance 
can be given that a secondary market for the Bonds will develop following the completion of the offering of the 
Bonds. Other than with respect to a tender of the Bonds, the Bonds are not readily liquid, and no person should 
invest in tiie Bonds witii funds such person may need to convert readily into cash. Bondholders should be prepared 
to hold their Bonds to the stated maturity date. 
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Financial Summary 

Capitalization 

The table below outHnes OVEC's capitalization at year-end 2007 and at funding of tiie Bonds, the Series 
2009B flonds, tiie Series 2009C Bonds and tiie Series 2009D Bonds assuming a June 30, 2009 issue date: 

(in thousands) 
Debt 
Senior Notes 
2009A-D Bonds 
Line of Credit Borrowings - Long 
Term 

Total Debt 
Equity 
Common Stock $100 par value— 
Autiiorized, 300,000 shares; 
Outstanding, 100,000 shares 
Retained Earnings 

Total Equity 

Total Capitalization 

12/31/2007 

$722,961 

$722,961 

$10,000 

2,916 
$12,916 

$735,877 

98% 

2% 

100% 

12/31/2008 

$1,045,318 

50,000 

$1,095,318 

$10,000 

2,507 
S12,507 

$1,107,825 

99% 

\% 

100% 

Pro Forma 6/30/2009 

$1,127,857 
100,000 

$1,227,857 

$10,000 

5,086 
$15,086 

$1,242,943 

99% 

1% 

100% 

Summary of Financials 

The table below summarizes certain historical fmancial information of OVEC through 2008. 

(in thousands unless otherwise noted) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 
Net Generation (MWh) 15,810 

Operating Revenues $406,283 

Operating Expenses $380,972 

Average Price $/MWh to Sponsors S24 

16,638 16,468 15,110 15,260 

$468,546 $523,927 $531,362 $621,813 

$442,420 $494,893 $494,808 $566,798 

$28 $31 $35 $41 

Power Sales Agreements 

OVEC, on formation, entered into two principal power sales agreements: 

the DOE Power Agreement between OVEC and the United States of America, currently acting by and 
Ihrough the Atomic Energy Commission's successor, the Secretary of Energy, the statutory head of the 
U.S. Department of Energy; and 

- the ICPA. 

The term of the ICPA (as amended and restated, effective March 13, 2006) continues until the first to occur of the 
following: (i) the sale or otiier disposition of OVEC's and IKEC's electric generation facilities, (ii) the permanent 
cessation of the operation of those generation facilities, or (iii) March 13, 2026. 

OVEC also entered into a power sales agreement with OVEC's wholly owned subsidiary, IKEC, which OVEC 
refers to as the "OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement." 

A-8 



The DOE Power Agreement 

Under the DOE Power Agreement, OVEC was obligated to sell to the DOE essentially all of its electric generating 
capacity for use at the DOE's Pike County, Ohio uranium enrichment facilities in retum for an agreement by the 
DOE to pay the costs of the ownership, operation and maintenance of OVEC's generation and transmission 
fecilities, as well as to provide a retum on equity to OVEC's shareholders. 

In September 2000, the DOE notified OVEC of its election to terminate the DOE Power Agreement in connection 
with the cessation of uranium enriching operations at its Pike County plant, which became effective on April 30, 
2003. 

Upon the termination of tiie DOE Power Agreement, OVEC entered into an arranged power agreement with the 
DOE under which OVEC purchases power from third parties for delivery to tiie DOE. The DOE reimburses OVEC 
for the costs of all power purchases under this agreement and pays OVEC an administrative charge. The cmrent 
arranged power agreement may be terminated by either party on 30 days' prior notice. 

The ICPA 

OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies signed tiie original ICPA on July 10,1953, to support tiie DOE Power 
Agreement and provide for excess energy sales to the Sponsoring Companies of power not utilized by the DOE or 
its predecessors. Since the termination of the DOE Power Agreement on April 30, 2003, the Sponsoring Companies 
have, under the terms of the ICPA, the right to OVEC's entire generating capacity and the right to purchase all of the 
energy it generates. OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies entered into an amended and restated ICPA, effective 
March 13,2006, extending Uie ICPA's term for an additional 20 years. 

Each Sponsoring Company can reserve a percentage, called a power participation ratio ("PPR") of available power 
and energy, and a Sponsoring Company that reserves power is entitled to a commensurate amount of available 
energy. The PPR ofeach Sponsoring Company is based on the ownership interest of such Sponsoring Company and 
its affiliates in OVEC. 

The payments required to be made by the Sponsoring Companies include monthly demand and energy charges and 
transmission charges. The demand and transmission charges are designed to cover all of OVEC's non-fiiel related 
costs of owning, operating and maintaining its generation and transmission facilities -~ including debt service costs -
and to provide a retum on equity to its Shareholders. The energy charges paid by the Sponsoring Companies 
reimburse OVEC for all of its fuel-related costs, with each Sponsoring Company paying its share of those costs 
based on the amoimt of energy taken by such Sponsoring Conipany. The Sponsoring Companies are obligated under 
the ICPA to pay the demand and transmission charges even if OVEC fails to deliver power and regardless of the 
amount of the available capacity of OVEC's generation facilities. In addition, the Sponsoring Companies must 
reimburse OVEC for all costs of replacements and additional facilities. 

The share of the total demand and transmission charges payable for any month by each Sponsoring Company is 
based on the Sponsoring Company's entitlement to power for such month. The share of the total energy charge 
payable for any month by each Sponsoring Company is based on the amount of energy taken by the Sponsoring 
Company for such month. 

Under the ICPA, OVEC is entitled to bill the Sponsoring Companies on a semi-monthly basis for payment of its 
estimated demand and energy costs in the applicable semi-monthly period. OVEC generally bills the Sponsoring 
Companies on a monthly basis to adjust for hs actual demand and energy costs for the entire month. Under the terms 
of the ICPA, payments are required to be made promptly and are generally paid within 15 days. Throughout 
OVEC's 56-year history, no Sponsoring Company has ever defaulted on a payment. 

Each of the Sponsoring Companies either owns, or is a subsidiary or affiliate of a company that own, OVEC's 
capital slock. The Sponsoring Companies are not liable for OVEC's indebtedness, including OVEC's obligations 
under the Loan Agreement. 
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OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement 

The principal contractual arrangements between OVEC and IKEC are contained in the OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement. OVEC is obligated under tiie OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement to purchase all power, and tiie energy 
associated therewitii, generated at IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant. OVEC's payments for such power are deteimined 
such that, when added to revenues received by IKEC fi'om any other source, they are sufficient to enable IKEC to 
pay all of its operating and otiier expenses, including all income and otiier taxes, and any interest and regular 
amortization requirements applicable to any indebtedness for borrowed funds incurred by IKEC. IKEC currently has 
no long-term indebtedness. IKEC is obligated to transmit to OVEC any and all power, and tiie energy associated 
therewitii, generated at the Clifty Creek Plant. IKEC is further obligated to transmit and deliver to OVEC all power, 
and the energy associated tiierewith, supplied to IKEC by tiie Sponsoring Companies and to deliver to the 
Sponsoring Companies designated by OVEC, all power, and the energy associated therewitii, supplied to IKEC by 
OVEC. The tenn of tiie OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement is coterminous with the term of tiie ICPA. 

OVEC/IKEC Plant Description 

OVEC and IKEC, own and operate two coal-fired electric power generating plants. OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant and 
IKEC's Clifty Creek Plaiit. 

Operating Statistics 

Kyger Creek Clifty Creek Combined 
Nameplate Capacity (MW) 
Number of generating units 
Commissioning year 
Net heat rate (BTU/kWh) - 2008 
Availability factor (%) - 2004-2008 avg. 
Fuel cost ($/MWh) - 2008 
Total production costs ($/MWh) - 2008 

1,086 
5 

1955 
10,171 

88.89% 
$21.69 
$28.03 

1,304 
6 

1955 
10,289 
85.4% 
$21.77 
$29.66 

2,390 
11 

1955 
10,236 
86.9% 
$21.25 
$28.93 

Each of Clifty's six units and Kyger's five units has a capacity of 217.26 MW. The Clifty units and Kyger Unit I are 
equipped with General Electric steam turbines and hydrogen-cooled generators, while Kyger Units 2 tiirough 5 are 
equipped with Westinghouse steam turbines and hydrogen-cooled generators. Each unit is also equipped with a 
once-through turbine condenser utilizing water fi-om the Ohio River. The generators produce electricity at 15.5 kV 
which is tiien stepped up to 345 kV by three main transformers (one for each of three phases). 

The steam powering each of tiie eleven units is generated by Babcock & Wilcox ("B&W") open-pass reheat boilers 
(one for each unit). The primary fuel for these fiiDnt-wall fired, wet bottom, subcritical dmm units is pulverized coal. 
Each unit has seven B&W type EL-70 pulverizers and 14 fishtail shaped burner nozzles (2 per pulverizer). The 
boilers are also equipped with oil lighters which are used primarily for start-ups and flame stabilization at low loads. 
The primaiy furnaces are operated at balance draft or slightly negative fumace pressure. Each unit is equipped witii 
two forced-draft fans and one induced-draft fan. During the period of 1995 tiirough 1999, overfire air modifications 
were completed on all eleven units, at a cost of $8.2MM ($4.2MM Kyger and $4MM Clifty), to meet Federal Clean 
Air Act nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions requirements. Another modification to Kyger's boilers was tiie addition of 
iron ore injection directly into the primary fumace to aid fumace slag tapping. The iron ore injection system which 
includes storage silos, blowers, piping and nozzles was completed in 2000 at a cost of $2.6MM. 

New flue gas stacks were buiU and electrostatic precipitators ("ESP") installed during tiie period of 1977-1980, 
Clifty has two 983-foot stacks each serving three units, and Kyger has a single 1000-foot stack. Cold-side ESPs 
were installed on all Kyger units and Clifty Units 1 tiirough 5. Chfty Unit 6 has a hot-side ESP manufactured by 
Westem Precipitation Division of Joy Manufacturing Company. Kyger's ESPs were manufactured by Flakt, Inc. 
Clifty's cold-side ESPs were manufactured by Lodge-Cottrell Division of Dresser Industries, Inc. The ESP's and 
stacks cost was approximately $184MM ($79MM Kyger and $105MM Clifty). 
In recent years, the use of lower sulfur coals at botii plants has necessitated the installation of SO3 flue gas 
conditioning systems to improve fly ash collection by decreasing the resistivity of the ash. The systems. 
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manufactured by WALHCO, were installed on Clifty Units 
total cost of $9.5MM ($4.0MM Kyger and $5,5MM Clifty). 

through 5 in 1998 and on all Kyger units in 2001 at a 

Once collected, the fly ash at Clifty is conveyed dry lo silos where the ash is loaded to trucks either to be sold as a 
concrete ingredient or hauled to the plant's landfiU. The Clifty dry fly ash conversion project was completed in 1993 
at a cost of approximately $17.8MM. 

The fly ash at Kyger is sluiced to the plant's fly ash pond for disposal. In 2001, Kyger closed the north fly ash pond 
with a clay cap and dredging material from the South fly ash and bottom ash pond. The project cost was 
approximately S4.3MM. 

Other ash storage facihties include one bottom ash pond at Kyger and one bottom ash pond at Clifty. Both plants 
also sell bottom ash for use as blasting grit, roofing granules, and snow and ice control. 

Coal is delivered by barge to both plants. Each plant has two barge unloading tower cranes from which the coal may 
be directed to the unit coal bunkers for consumption or to storage. Revisions made during Clifty's coal switch 
project (completed in 1994 at a cost of $79.5MM) accommodate the storage and blending of bituminous and low-
sulfur subbituminous coal supplies. Clifty presently bums a blend of 75% subbituminous coal from the Powder 
River Basin ("PRB") in Wyoming and 25% eastern bituminous coal. In 2006, Kyger Creek completed modifications 
to the boilers and coal handling systems to allow the plant to store and bum a coal blend of up to 80% PRB coal. 
The Kyger Creek PRB project cost was approximately $53MM. Presently, Kyger bums a blend of roughly 70% 
PRB coal and 30% eastem bituminous coal. Prior to these modifications, the PRB portion of Kyger's fuel blend was 
limited to approximately 35%. 

In 2002 and 2003, selective catalytic reduction ("SCR") systems were retrofitted to ten of the eleven Kyger and 
Clifty units at an approximate cost of $355MM ($191MM Kyger and $I64MM Chfty). SCR systems convert NOx 
in the flue gas exiting the boilers into elemental nitrogen and water by mixing ammonia into the flue gas stream and 
passing the mixture tiirough layers of catalyst. The required amounts of ammonia are supplied by each plant's 
Ammonia On Demand ("AOD") system which use a feedstock of pelletized urea. This equipment has been operated 
during the five-month ozone season (May through September) each year beginning May 31,2004 and is expected to 
be operated year-round beginning January 1, 2009 to comply with state and federal NOx emission reduction 
requirements. 

OVEC/IKEC Transmission System 

The OVEC/IKEC transmission system was constructed in the eariy 1950's. The system is operated at 345 kV with 
intercoimections to other utihties at 345 kV and 138 kV. It is comprised of 776 circuit miles of 345 kV lines and 
four substations. 

The transmission lines include 1,561 steel lattice towers, approximately foiu" towers per mile with an average span of 
1,310 feet. The phase conductors are 1,414 KCM aluminum, steel core, paper expanded and the neutral conductor is 
159KCM Aluminum Conductor Steel Reinforced. OVEC has approximately 7,036 acres of right-of-way in Ohio, 
Indiana and Kentucky. 

Of the four substations, one each is located adjacent to the Clifty Creek Plant and the Kyger Creek Plant. These 
substations allow for the connection of the generating units to the transmission system along with interconnections 
to other utilities, and are arranged in a breaker and a half scheme. The other large substation. Pierce, is located near 
Cincinnati, Ohio and is also a breaker and a half layout. The Dearbom substation located near Lawrenceburg, 
Indiana is a bus extension from the Tanners Creek Plant owned by American Electric Power Company, Inc. ("AEP") 
and has a single breaker per line. In addition to the four aforementioned substations, OVEC also ties at 345 kV to a 
Duke Energy owned station near Florence, Kentucky. There are 345/138 kV transformers located at the Clifty, 
Pierce and Sargents substations to allow for 138 kV interconnections. Other interconnections at 345 kV exist at 
Clifty, Pierce, Dearbom, and Kyger along with indirect ties through the DOE substation. 

Although OVEC is currently not a member of any regional transmission organization, OVEC has contracted with 
the PJM Interconnection LLC ("PJM") to provide reliability coordination services. As OVEC's reliability 
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coordinator, PJM has operational authority to perform activities as governed by the North American Reliability 
Corporation ("NERC") Interconnection Reliability Operations and Coordination Standards dealing with the 
reliability of the interconnected electrical system. The OVEC/IKEC transmission system is interconnected with 
members of PJM, and the Midwest Independent System Operator, Inc. ("MISO") and the transmission system of the 
electric utility subsidiaries of E.ON U.S. LLC, as well as transmission facilities owned by the DOE (OVEC's sole 
retail customer). 

Coal Supply 

The Company procures coal at an aimual rate of approximately 8.0MM tons for use at tiie Clifty Creek and Kyger 
Creek plants. The Company has coal supply agreements with certain nonaffitiated companies that expire at various 
dates from the year 2009 tiirough 2017. Pricing for coal under these contracts is subject to contract provisions and 
adjustments. The Company currendy has approximately 100% of its coal requirements under long-term (12 months 
or more) agreements. Through 2009, it is expected tiiat both plants will continue to bum a high percentage (up to 
75%) of low-sulfur subbituminous coal. 

OVEC/IKEC Coal Supply 

Average remaining term 
of supply agreements 
% hedged in 2009 
%) hedged in 2010 
% hedged in 2011 

Subbituminous 

0.7 years 
100% 
12% 
26% 

Bituminous 

1.7 years 
100% 
94% 
99% 

Combined 

1.3 years 
100% 
49% 
61% 

Transportation contracts Rail - Union Pacific - Expires 12/31/2009 
Barge (OVEC) - Ingram Barge - Expires 9/30/2009 (New Contract to 12/31/2013) 
Barge (IKEC) - MEMCO - Expires 12/31/2013 
Rail cars - 993 leased - Leases expire 12/31/2010 to 12/31 /2025 

Environmental Compliance Project 

Flue gas desulfiirization ("FGD") systems are being constructed for both Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek with initial 
operation projected for 2010 and 2012, respectively. The FGD systems are designed to remove 98% of the sulfur 
dioxide ("SO2") from gases exhausted from the plants' boilers. Kyger Creek's FGD system is designed for coal with 
SO2 content of up to 7.5 Ibs/MMBtu. The coal SO2 specification for Clifty Creek's FGD design is 5.0 Ibs/MMBtu. 
The FGD designs and the capability to blend subbhuminous and bituminous coals at both plants provide significant 
fuel flexibility and improve the Company's fuel procurement position. 

FGD Project Equipment 

Chiyoda CT-121 jet bubbling reactor absorbers (2 per plant) 

New flue gas discharge stack with two flue liners (1 per plant) 

Flue booster fans (2 per absorber) 

Reagent (limestone) handling systems and preparation systems 

By-product (gypsum) dewatering systems 

FGD wastewater treatment 

By-product handling systems and disposal landfill 

AuxiUary electrical system 

Various auxiliary systems including oxidation air, service water, reclaim water, flue gas quenching, and 
controls. 
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Properties 

In addition to two generation facilities and transmission facilities, OVEC also owns 21,896 square feet of office 
space in Piketon, Ohio, which it uses as its corporate headquarters. It also owns garage space and land, which it uses 
for the operation of a transmission maintenance crew. In addition, OVEC has constmcted a command center, data 
center, training area, and office space in a single 8,500 square feet structure located at the Piketon, Ohio office. 

Employees 

As of July 1, 2009, OVEC and IKEC employed 818 full-time employees. As of tiiat date, the Kyger Creek 
Plant employed 351 employees, of which 251 are represented by the Utility Workers Union of America (AFL-CIO). 
The Clifty Creek Plant employs 373 employees, all non-union. In addition, as of this date, OVEC has 94 system 
employees reporting to the corporate headquarters located in Piketon, Ohio. Management believes that its relations 
with employees and their representatives are excellent. 

Legal Matters 

OVEC is involved in a number of legal and administrative proceedings incident to the normal course of OVEC's 
business. In the opinion of OVEC's management, based on the advice of counsel, any liability to OVEC relative to 
these ordinary course proceedings wil! not have a material adverse effect on OVEC's operations and financial 
condition. 

Regulation 

OVEC is also affected by various federal and state laws and regulations pertaining to utihties, including tiie laws and 
regulations described below. 

Federal Energy Regulatorv Commission 

Under the Federal Power Act ("FPA"), the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") has exclusive 
jurisdiction over the rates, terms and conditions of wholesale sales and the transmission of electricity in interstate 
commerce by public utihties. The FPA requires all public utilities to file rate schedules with tiie FERC prior to 
commencement of wholesale sales or transmission of electricity. In addition, a public utility is subject to financial 
and organizational regulation by FERC under the FPA, including approval requirements relating to dispositions of 
jurisdictional facilities, as well as a number of accounting, recordkeeping and reporting requirements. Each of 
OVEC and IKEC is a public utility and therefore subject to regulation by FERC under the FPA. The ICPA and the 
OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement have all been filed with, and accepted by, FERC under the FPA as rate schedules 
(including all modifications to tiie ICPA that have been entered into by OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies) and 
therefore the demand, energy and other charges payable under those agreements constitute FERC-authorized rates. 

As part of the repeal of Pubhc Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, Congress has granted additional authority to 
the FERC over electric utilities and their affiliates. This authority relates primarily to increased access to books and 
records and affiliate cost allocation. 

State Utility Regulation 

Both OVEC and IKEC are subject to state ulility regulation. OVEC, whose operations are principally in Ohio, is 
subject to regulation by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, while IKEC, whose operations are principally in 
Indiana, is subject to regulation by the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission. OVEC also owns electric power 
transmission facilities in Kentucky and therefore is subject to regulation by the Kentucky Public Service 
Commission. This state regulation covers financial and organizational matters (including the abandonment of 
facilities), as weU as, in tiie case of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, OVEC's provision of electric service to 
the DOE under retail power sales agreements. Because of FERC's exclusive jurisdiction over wholesale sales of 
electricity in interstate commerce, however, none of these state utility commissions have jurisdiction over OVEC's 
sales of electricity to tiie Sponsoring Companies, including the rates payable under tiie ICPA. 
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Environmental Matters 

OVEC and IKEC are subject to a number of federal, state and local requirements relating to the protection of tiie 
environment, and the safety and health of OVEC and IKEC's personnel and the public. These requirements relate to 
a broad range of OVEC and IKEC's activities, including: the discharge of pollutants into the air and water; the 
identification, generation, storage, handling, transportation, disposal, record keeping, labeling, reporting of and 
emergency response in connection with hazardous and toxic materials and wastes associated with OVEC and 
IKEC's operations; and safety and health standards, practices and procedures that apply to tiie workplace and to 
operation of OVEC and IKEC's facilities. In order to comply with tiiese requirements, OVEC and IKEC may need 
to spend substantial sums of money and devote other resources from time to time to: constmct or acquire new 
equipment; acquire permits and/or marketable allowances or other emission credits for facility operations; modify or 
replace existing and proposed equipment; and clean up or decommission waste disposal areas, fuel storage and 
management facilities and other locations and facilities. If OVEC and IKEC do not comply with environmental 
requirements that apply to OVEC and IKEC's operations, regulatory agencies could seek to impose on it civil, 
administrative and/or criminal penalties as well as seek to curtail OVEC and IKEC's operations. Under some 
statutes and common law principles, private parties could also seek to impose civil fines or liabilities for property 
damage, personal injury and possibly other costs. 

Air Emissions 

OVEC and IKEC's facilities are subject to the Federal Clean Air Act and many state and local laws and regulations 
relating to air pollution. These laws and regulations currentiy cover, among other pollutants, NOx, ground-level 
ozone, carbon monoxide, SO2 and particulate matter. 

Title IV of tiie 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments required die Company to reduce SO2 emissions in two phases: Phase 1 
in 1995 and Phase 11 in 2000. The Company selected a fuel switching strategy to comply with the einission reduction 
requirements. The Company also purchased additional SO2 allowances. The cost of these purchased allowances was 
inventoried and included on an average cost basis in the cost of fuel consumed when used. The cost of unused 
allowances at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $2.2MM and $11.8MM, respectively. 

Selective Catalytic Reduction Program 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments also required the Company to comply with a NOx emission rate 
limit of 0.84 Ib/mmBtu in 2000. NO^ is formed in exhaust gases from the generators as a byproduct of coal 
combustion. The Company installed overfire air systems on all eleven units at the plants to comply with this limit. 
The total capital cost of tbe eleven overfire air systems was approximately $8.2MM. 

During 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NO^ State Implementation Plan Call regulations that 
required further significant NOx emission reductions for coal buming power plants, to a maximum rate of 0.15 
pounds/MMBtu during the ozone control period (May through September). To accomplish this new level of 
emission reductions, the Company installed SCR systems on ten of its eleven units. The total capital cost of these 
SCR systems was approximately $355MM ($19IMM at Kyger Creek and $164MM at Clifty Creek). Due to a 
different physical configuration of one of the generating units at Chfty Creek, OVEC did not retrofit an SCR system 
on the eleventh generating unit. However, by retrofitting the other ten generating units witii SCR systems, OVEC's 
combined emission rate was reduced below the required level. 
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The table below describes projects that OVEC and IKEC have completed to comply with environmental regulations: 

Completed Projects 

Project Purpose Date 
Cost 

($MM) 

Clifty Creek Coal Yard 
Modifications 

Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (all units) - boiler overfire 
air modifications 
Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (10 of 11 units) - installed 
SO3 flue gas conditioning systems 

Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (10 of 11 units) - installed 
selective catalytic reduction 
equipment 
Kyger Creek Coal Yard 
modifications 

To allow use of low-sulfur coal blend to 
meet Clean Air Act requirements for 
SO2 emissions 
To meet Clean Air Act requu-ement for 
NOx emissions 

To improve particulate collection of 
lower sulfur coal fly ash in electrostatic 
precipitators 

To comply with ozone season NOx 
requirements 

To allow use of low-sulfur coal blend to 
meet Clean Air Act requirements for 
SO2 emissions 

1994 

1995 -1999 

1998 (Clifty 
Creek Plant), 
2001 (Kyger 
Creek Plant) 
2002-2003 

2006-2007 

79.5 

8.2 

9.5 

355.0 

53.0 

Flue Gas Desulfurization Project 

On March 10, 2005, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the "EPA") signed the Clean Air Interstate 
Rule ("CAIR") that will require significant further reductions of SO2 and NOx emissions from coal-buming power 
plants. On March 15,2005, the EPA also signed the Clean Air Mercury Rule ("CAMR") that v̂ dll require significant 
mercury emission reductions for coal-buraing power plants. These emission reductions will be required in two 
phases: 2009 and 2015 for NO^; 2010 and 2015 for SO2; and 2010 and 2018 for mercuiy. Ohio and Indiana also 
subsequently finalized their respective versions of CAIR and CAMR. In response, the Company determined that it 
would be necessary to install FGD systems at both plants to comply witii tiiese new rules and have since been 
conducting the necessary engineering, permitting, and constmction to install these new FGD systems. The cost of 
the new FGD systems and the associated landfills is estimated not to exceed $1.3 billion. 

In Febmary 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated the federal CAMR and 
remanded tiie rule to the EPA with a determination that the mle be rewritten imder the maximum achievable control 
technologies ("MACT") provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act. A group of electric utilities and the EPA 
requested a rehearing of the decision, which was denied by the court. Following those denials, botii the group of 
electric utilities and the EPA requested tiiat tiie U.S. Supreme Court hear the case. However, m Febmary 2009, tiie 
EPA withdrew its request and the group of utilities' request was denied. These actions left the original court decision 
in place, which vacated the federal CAMR and remanded the mle to the EPA with a determination that the rule be 
rewritten under the MACT provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act. 

In July 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision that vacated the federal CAIR and remanded the 
mle to the EPA. In September 2008, tiie EPA, a group of electric utilities and other parties filed petitions for 
rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted the EPA's petition and remanded tiie mle 
to the EPA without vacatur, allowing tiie federal CAIR to remain in effect while a new mle is developed and 
promulgated. 

The Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek improvements include: 

FGD with a landfill at Kyger Creek Plant for SO2 reductions and mercury control (currently projected 
at not to exceed amounts of S515MM for tiie FGD and $52MM for Phase I of the landfill). 
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- FGD witii a landfill at Clifty Creek Plant for SO2 reductions and mercury control (currently projected 
at not to exceed amounts of $619MM for tiie FGD and $42MM for Phase I of ttie landfill). 

The components of the FGD system include two Chiyoda CT-121 jet bubbling reactor absorbers, a new stack at each 
plant, new FGD equipment buildings, booster fans and motors, tanks, electrical and mechanical equipment, river 
cells, limestone handting, gypsum handling and transportation, landfills, pond closure and wastewater treatment. 

In December 2008, tiie Company's Boards of Directors authorized a delay in consti-uction of the FGD at the Clifty 
Creek Plant of at least 18 montiis due to economic uncertainty in the capital markets. 

In March 2009, the Board of Directors of OVEC authorized a delay in tiie anticipated tie-in of tiie first three 
generating units to tiie Kyger Creek Plant's FGD system pending an investigation mto the stmctural integrity of the 
two newly constmcted jet bubbling reactors, which are major components of the FGD system. Additional SO2 
allowances have been and will be purchased to operate the Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek generating units in 
compliance witii the current environmental emission mles during the delays. 

The Kyger Creek and CHfty Creek FGD systems are projected to be operational in 2010 and 2012, respectively. 

CERCLA 

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("CERCLA"), also known as the 
"Superfund" law, requires payments for cleanup of certain sites, including abandoned waste disposal sites, even 
though such waste disposal activities were undertaken in comphance with regulations applicable at the time of 
disposal. Under the Superfund legislation, one party may, under certain circumstances, be required to bear more than 
its proportional share of cleanup costs at a site where it has responsibility pursuant to the legislation if payments 
cannot be obtained from other responsible parties. Other legislation, includmg tiie Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, which largely addresses facilities tiiat are currently being operated, can also require environmental 
remediation. States also have regulatory programs tiiat can mandate cleanups, CERCLA authorizes the EPA and, in 
some cases, third parties to take actions in response to threats to the public healtii or the environment and to seek lo 
recover from tiie responsible classes of persons the costs they incur. The scope of financial liability under these laws 
involves inherent uncertainties. 

Environmental laws and regulations have changed substantially and rapidly in past years, and OVEC anticipates that 
tiiere will be continuing changes. The clear trend in environmental regulation is to place more restrictions and 
limitations on activities that may impact the environment, such as emissions of pollutants, generation and disposal of 
wastes and use and handling of chemical substances. Increasingly strict environmental restrictions and limitations 
have resulted in increased operating costs for the Company and other businesses tiiroughout the United States, and it 
is likely that the costs of compliance with environmental laws and regulations will continue to increase. OVEC will 
attempt to anticipate future regulatory requirements thai might be imposed and to plan accordingly in order to 
remain in compliance with changing environmental laws and regulations and to minimize the costs of such 
compliance. 

Regulation of Greenhouse Gases 

On June 26, 2009, the United States House of Representatives passed H.R. 2454, tiie "American Clean Energy and 
Security Act of 2009," which contams several energy provisions, one of which would create an economy-wide "cap 
and trade program" for greenhouse gases ("GHG") that would begin in 2012. The bill is currently before the U.S. 
Senate. The Company is unable to predict whether federal legislation tiiat regulates GHGs will become law or what 
its final form or effect would be. At this time, there does not appear to be a consensus as to what the level of future 
regulation of GHGs will be, or tiie costs associated with that regulation. However, any such costs would likely 
impact all coal fired generation and the energy market in general. 
On April 24,2009, EPA proposed to find tiiat GHGs from new motor vehicles and motor vehicle engines endanger 
public health and welfare under Section 202 of the Clean Air Act. The proposed endangerment finding is lunited to 
mobile sources and the Company is unable to predict whetiier tiie EPA will unpose regulations of GHGs on coal 
fired generation facilities, and if so, what their form or effect would be. 
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Insurance 

OVEC maintains customary levels of insurance for a company of its size in its industiy and beheves that its 
insurance arrangements are adequate and satisfactory. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with the financial information and 
consoiidaled financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Official Statement. The following 
information contains forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ from the results anticipated in these 
forward-looking statements as a result of factors including, but not limited to, those under "Risk Factors" and 
elsewhere in this Official Statement. 

Generation Availability 

In 2008, the combined availability of tiie five generating units at Kyger Creek and the six units at Clifly Creek was 
85.2%, compared to 85% in 2007. Availability is determined by totaling all hoiu^ each of the eleven units were 
available for operation as a ratio to total hours in the same time period. 

Heat Rate 

The combined heat rate of the Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek generating units was 10,236 Btu/kWh for 2008 as 
compared to 10,180 Btu/kWh for 2007. 

Energy Sales 

OVEC's on-peak use factor — the percentage of power scheduled by the Sponsoring Companies versus the power 
available — averaged 99.87% in 2008 compared witii 99.70% m 2007. The off-peak use factor averaged 91.92% in 
2008 and 93.31% in 2007. The average use factor for the combined on-peak and off-peak periods were 96.39% in 
2008, compared witii 96.92% in 2007. 

In 2008, OVEC delivered 15.0MM MWh to the Sponsoring Companies, compared to 14.9MM MWh m 2007. 
Generation sales were impacted in 2008 by lower generation availability and lower off-peak sales to the Sponsoring 
Companies. 

Power Costs 

In 2008, the Sponsoring Companies' average cost of power from OVEC was $40.29/MWh, compared to 
$35,36/MWh in 2007. The increase was primarily due to additional debt service and fuel costs in 2008. 

Units of Power Sales Information 

The average cost per MWh unit of sale was $40.29 in 2008 as compared to $35.36 in 2007. The increased debt 
service costs related to the S300MM Senior Notes issued m 2007 and tiie $350MM Senior Notes issued in 2008 
account for the majority of the increase in cost per unit sold. The Company did not add or remove major facilities 
from its transmission system during the past two years. The Company maintains its eleven generating units, which 
average 217.26 MW, in a manner to be most efficientiy available during the peak period of need associated with its 
Sponsoring Company customers. 

Operating Revenue Compared for 2008 and 2007 

Total revenue for 2008 was $622MM, compared to $53IMM in 2007. The primary increase in revenue is due to the 
billing of increased debt service charges and fuel cost. In 2008,7.9MM tons of coal was burned, compared to 
7.6MM in 2007. The average cost of coal bumed for 2008 was $40/ton compared to $34/ton in 2007. The debt 
service payments increased due to the refinancing of the S305MM Senior Notes due in 2006 with the $445MM 
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amortizing Senior Notes due in 2026, the 2007 issuance of $300MM of Senior Notes due in 2026 and the 2008 
issuance of $350MM Senior Notes also due in 2026. 

Operating Expense and Otber Items Compared for 2008 and 2007 

Total operating expenses for 2008 were $567MM, compared to $495MM in 2007. In 2008, OVEC sold 15MM 
MWh of power to its Sponsoring Companies, compared to 14.9MM MWh in 2007. The tons of coal bumed to 
generate this power were 7.9MM in 2008, compared to 7.6MM m 2007. In addition, the cost per ton of coal 
consumed and fiiel related charges during these two periods was $43.11/ton in 2008 and $39.32/ton in 2007. 

OVEC purchases power from other utihties to resell to the DOE Portsmouth facility. During 2008, tiie DOE 
purchased 270,369 MWhs for $18.5MM, compared to 256,613 MWhs purchased in 2007 at a cost of $I4.6MM. 
Since OVEC purchases this power for the DOE, tiie cost is recorded on OVEC's financials as an additional 
operating expense. 

Balance Sheet Comparisons for 2008 versus 2007 

At December 31,2007 and 2008, the Plant-In-Service assets were $ 1.2bn. after depreciation, net property assets 
were $330MM at year end 2008, compared to S346MM at year end 2007. Current assets decreased from $234MM 
to $17 IMM at year end 2008, primarily as a resuU of decreased cash reserved for construction and decreased ftiel 
inventories and emission allowances. 

The total capitaHzation was $l.07bn at year end 2008, compared to $713MM at year end 2007, This increase can 
primarily be attributed to the $350MM Senior Notes issued in 2008. 

Cash Flow Analysis for 2008 

Cash fi^m net income for botii 2007 and 2008 was $5.IMM. This source of funds is a relatively steady number from 
year to year due to tiie cost-plus nature of the power agreement OVEC has with the Sponsoring Companies. 
Depreciation and amortization provided a source of funds of S57MM. The depreciation is closely related to the 
assets closed to Plant-ln-Service during the year. The fuel (coal) inventory decreased during 2008, resulting in a 
$I2MM source of fimds. On December 31, 2008, OVEC had 1.5MM tons of coal in inventory as compared to 
1.8MM tons on December 31,2007. Additionally, the price per ton decreased from $36. lO/ton to $34.37/ton during 
the same period. Since 2005, OVEC had been purchasing SO2 allowances in an effort to build inventory. During 
2008, OVEC continued using tiie allowances purchased in previous years, resulting in a $9.5MM source of fimds. 
Electric plant additions increased during 2008, which resulted in a $436MM use of funds. These funds were used to 
fimd the constmction of the FGD projects. 

Liquidity and Capltsd Resources 

OVEC had a $100MM, 364-day bank revolving credit facility agreement as of December 31, 2004. In 2005, this 
facility was replaced with a $200MM, 5-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility that expires August 4,2010. 
The fecility contains an accordion feature permittmg a SlOOMM increase to the facility under certam conditions, and 
is used primarily for general corporate purposes including capital expenditures. At December 31, 2008, OVEC had 
$50MM in outstanding debt under this facility. Interest expense related to line of credit borrowmgs was $256,000 in 
2008, while commitment fees totaled $343,729. The lending banks for the facility are KeyBank National 
Association, LaSalle Bank National Association, WestLB AG - New York Branch, The Huntington National Bank, 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation - New York Branch, National City Bank of Indiana, and The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 

In 2006, OVEC issued $445MM in Senior Notes ("2006 Notes") in a private placement. The 2006 Notes bear an 
annual fixed interest rate of 5.80% payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 ofeach year beginning 
August 15,2006 until maturity on Febmary 15,2026. Proceeds from this issuance were used to repay $305MM of 
senior secured notes issued in 2001, repay a $60MM term loan, and fund $80MM in capital expenditures. 
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to 2007, OVEC issued $300MM in Senior Notes ("2007 Notes") in a private placement in tiiree tranches. The 
$200MM Tranche A notes were issued in June 2007, the $50MM Tranche B notes were issued in September 2007, 
and the $50MM Tranche C notes were issued in December 2007. The 2007 Notes bear an annual fixed interest rate 
of 5,90% payable semi-aimually on June 15 and December 15 ofeach year, until maturity on Febmary 15,2026. 
Proceeds from this issuance were used to fund capital expenditures. 

In 2008, OVEC issued $50MM in Senior Notes ("2008-A Notes") in a private placement. The 2008-A Notes were 
issued in March 2008 and bear an annual fixed interest rate of 5.92% payable semi-annually on June 15 and 
December 15 ofeach year, until maturity or Febmary 15, 2026. Proceeds from this issuance were used to fund 
capital expenditures. Also in 2008, OVEC issued $300MM in Senior Notes ("2008-B & 2008-C Notes") in a private 
placement. The Notes were issued in two tranches of $150MM each in Jime and August of 2008. The 2008-B & 
2008-C Notes bear an annual fixed interest rate of 6.71% payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 ofeach 
year until maturity on February 15, 2026. 

In 2009, OVEC issued SlOOMM in Senior Notes ('*2009-A Notes") in a private placement. The 2009-A Notes bear a 
floating rate. Interest payments are due in one month, three month, or six month periods as selected by OVEC. 
Principal payment is due on Febmary 15,2014. Proceeds fix)m this issuance were used to fund capital expenditures. 

Debt maturities on OVEC's long-term senior notes are as follows: 

December 31. 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

2014-2026 
Total 

Senior Notes 
$ 35,453,528 

37,642,055 
39,966,243 
42,404,535 
45,055,902 

944.796,046 
$1,145,318,309 

Total capitalization at December 31, 2008 was $L072bn, compared to $713.1MM at December 31, 2007. The 
capitalization was composed of the aforementioned Senior Notes, as well as $ 1OMM in common stock and retained 
earnings of $2.5MM. The Sponsoring Companies invested $10MM to form OVEC in 1952 and 1953. The remainmg 
capitalization needs have been secured through debt. The cost reimbursement stmcture of the ICPA and the dividend 
distribution policy does not permit excess surplus earnings to accumulate in OVEC's retained earnings. 

Independent Auditors 

The consolidated financial statements of Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31,2008 
and 2007, and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,2008, included in this Official Statement 
have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing herein (which 
report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph conceming the adoption of new 
accounting pronouncements in 2007). 
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Annex 1 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Annual Report -- 2008 



ANNUAL REPORT — 2008 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

and subsidiary 

INDIANA-KENTUCKY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 



Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 
GENERAL OFFICES. 3932 U.S. Route 23, Piketon, Ohk) 45661 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporatioo (OVEC) and its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric 
Corporation (IKEC), collectively, the Companies, were 
organized on October 1, 1952. The Com^pames were 
f<tfmed by iavestor-owned utiiities fiimisfaing electric 
SCTvice in the Ohio River Valley area and their parcut 
heading companies for the puipose of providing the large 
electric power requirements projected for the uranium 
enrichment ^ilities then under constmctitm by tiie 
Atomic En^gy Commissi<m (AEC) near Portsmouth, 
Ohio. 

OVEC, AEC and OVEC*s owners OT tiieir utility-
ccmipany af&liates (called Sponsoring Companies) 
entCT̂ ed into power agre^neats to ensure the availability 
of die AEC's substantial power requtremeats. <^ 
October 15, 1952, OVEC and AEC executed a 25-year 
agreement, which was later extended tiirough 
December 31, 2005 (IX>E Power Agreemeit). On 
September 29, 2000, the DOE gave OVEC notice of 
cancellation of (he DOE Pow^ Agreement. On April 30, 
2003, tiie DOE Power Agreement tenninated in 
acccxrdaace with die notice of cancellation. 

OVEC and tiie Sponsoring Companies signed an 
Inter-Company Power Agreement (ICPA) on July 10, 
1953, to support the DOE Power Agreement and provide 
ft>r excess energy sales to the Sponsoring Companies of 
power not utiHzed by the DOE or its predecessors. Since 
the t^mination of the DOE Power Agreement on 
April 30, 2003, OVEC's entire generating capacity has 
been available to the Sponsoring Companies under the 
temis of the ICPA. In 2004, the Sponsoring Companies 
and OVEC altered into an Amended and Restated ICPA, 
which extends its t^m from March 13, 2006 to 
March 13,2026. 

Hie curroit Shareholders ^id Aeir re^ective 
p^xentages of equity in OVEC are: 

Allegheny Energy, Inc 3.50 
American Electric Powier Company, Inc.*,... 39.17 
Buckeye Power Generating, LLC' 18.00 
Columbus Southem Power Company**^ 4.30 
The Dayton Power and tight Company^ 4.90 
Duke Energy Ohio, lac.**** 9,00 
Kentucky Utilities Company^ 2,50 
Louisville Gas and Electric Company^ 5.63 
Ohio Edison Cranpany* - 7.50 
Southem Dadiana Gas and Electric Company' 1.50 
The Toledo Edison Company^ 4 M 

100.00 

These investor-owned utilities comprise die 
Sponsoring Companies and currently share the OVBC 
power participation benefits and requirfflnents in the 
following percentages: 

Allegheny Energy Supply Company* 3.01 
Appalachian Power Company^ 15.69 
Buckeye Power Generating, LLC' 18.00 
Columbus Southern Power Company^ 4.44 
The Dayton Power and Light Company^ 4,90 
Duke EnergyOhio, Inc.* 9.00 
FirstEnergy Generation Corp.'* 11.50 
Indiana Michigan Power Company^ 7.85 
Kentucky Utilities Compan/ 2.50 
Louisville Gas and Electric Company^ 5.63 
Monongahela Power Company^ 0.49 
Ohio Power Compan/ 15.49 
Southem Indiana Gas and Electric Company^...... 1.50 

ll 

OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant at Cheshire, Oiio, and 
IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant at Madiscm, Indiana, have 
nameplate geneniting capacities of 1,086,300 and 
1,303»560 kilowatts, reflectively. These two generating 
stations, both of which began <q>eration in 1955, are 
connected by a networic of 776 circuit miles of 345,000-
volt tran^nission lines. These lines also interconnect 
with the major power transmission networks of several 
of the utilities serving the area. 

Some of the Common Stock issued in the name of 

•American Gas & Electric Ccmipany 
•*Columbus and Southem Ohio Electric Company 

***The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

Subsidiary ol: 

'Buckeye Power, Inc. 
^American Electric Power Company, hic. 
^DPL hic. 
^Dufce Energy COTporatioa 
^E.ON U.S. LLC 
^FirstEnergy Corp. 
'Vectren Corporation 
^Allegheny Energy, fac. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

A Message from the President 

hi 2008. Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) 
and its subsidiary, Indiana-Keatucky Electric 
Corporation (IKEC), continued to provide 
economical power to om: custom^^, the Sponsoring 
Compatiies. horn the baseload, coal-fired Kyger 
Creek and Clifty Creek gen^ating plants in a safe 
and envirottmentaily responsible manner. 

During 2008, we made significant progress 
on construction of the major components of the flue 
gas desulfurization (FGD) retrofit projects at the 
KygCT Creek and Clifty Creek plants. However, as 
a result of economic conditions and imcertainty in 
the financial markets during the last quarter of 
2008, the OVEC and IKEC Boaixls of Directors 
decided in December 2008 to delay construction of 
ttifi FGD at the Clifty Creek plant In addition, in 
March 2009, OVEC's Board of Directors decided to 
postpone the tie-in of the Kyger Creek FGD. 
Although these events have extended the FGD 
completion schedules, the Company has purchased 
additiot^al sulfur dioxide (SO2) emission aJlowances 
to comply with the cmrent environm^tal 
regulations. 

POWER COSTS 

In 2008, OVEC's average power cost to the 
Sponsoring Companies was $40.29 per MWh 
compai^d with $35.36 per MWh in 2007. The 
increase was primarily due to additional debt 
service costs to fimd the FGD constmction projects 
and the increased cost of coal purchased in 2008. 
OVEC's average power cost is projected to increase 
to $43,68 per MWh in 2009 as debt is added for the 
FGD construction projects. 

ENERGY SALES 

OVEC's use fector — the ratio of power 
scheduled by the Sponsoring Companies to the 
powear available — for the combined on- and off-
peak periods averaged 96.4 percent m 2008 
compared with 96.9 percent in 2007. The on-peak 

use hctxxt averaged 99.9 pa-cent in 2008 compared 
with 99.7 pacent in 2007. The off-peak use fector 
averaged 91,9 percent in 2008 and 93.3 percent in 
2007. 

In 2008. OVEC delivered 15.03 million MWh 
to the Sponsoring Compaiues compared with 
14.92 million MWh in 2007. in 2009. OVEC 
expects to generate and deliver 15.3 million MWh 
to the Sponsoring Companies. 

BUCKEYE POWER ACQUIRES AOCHTIONAL 
OVEC CAPACITY 

On May 1, 2009, Buckeye Power Generating, 
LLC, a subsidiary of Buckeye Power, Inc., 
purchased a 9 percwit equity int^est in OVEC and 
associated power entitlements firom FirstEnergy 
Generation Corp., a subsidiary of FirstEnCTgy Corp. 
This purchase increased Buckeye Power's total 
equity int&est In OVEC to 18 percent. 

MONONGAHELA POWER ASSIGNMENT TO 
ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 

As of February I, 2009, Monongahela Power 
Company assigned to Allegheny Energy Supply 
Company a 3,01 percent share of its 3.50 percent 
power participation ratio and all other rights, title, 
obligations and interests under the Inter-Company 
Power Agreement. Monongahela Power will retain 
0.49 percent of its shares of the power participation 
ratio. 

AVAILABIUTY 

In 2008, the combined availability of the five 
generating units at Kyga* Creek and die six units at 
Clifty Creek was 85.2 percent compared with 85.0 
percent m 2007 and 88.8 percrat in 2006. The 
availability decrease since 2006 has been primarily 
due to an increase in the scheduled outage fector 
fi-om 5.5 parent in 2006 to 10.2 paxjent in 2007 



and 9.2 p«*cent in 2008, refiecting an increase in 
both planned outages to maintain certain generators, 
boil^^ and Uirbines, and short-term maintenance 
outages fcM* boiler tube repairs and cleanings 
associated with buming Powda- River Basin coal. 

The combined equivalent availability of 
Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek was 80.5 percent in 
2008 compared with 79.7 percent in 2007. The 
improvement in equivalent availability was due to 
decreases in scheduled outage and unit derating 
fectors of both plants in 2008. 

DOE ARRANGEMENTS WITH OVEC 

In 2008, OVEC purchased 270,369 MWh of 
power and energy fixmi otber electricity suppli«*s 
for delivery and use by the Department of Energy 
(DOE) for its Portsmouth fecility. At the request of 
the DOE, OVEC makes these limited purchases of 
power and energy unda the terms and conditions of 
an Arranged Power Agreement with DOE, 

TRANSMISSION SYSTEM CHANGES 

The DOE load was previously served from 
two 345-kV substations owned, c^erated and 
maintained by the DOE. Each DOE substation was 
integrated with OVEC's transmission system by 
two double-circuit tower 34S-kV lines and with 
neighboring systems by one single-circuit 345-kV 
line. The DOE X533 substation and all connected 
transmission lines were removed fi-om service in 
November 2008 at the DOE's request- The DOE 
X533 substation shutdown is permanent. Removal 
of the associated 345-kV transmission lines fi-om 
Ihe substation has been completed as of May 2009. 
Reconfiguration of the intercormections between 
these circuits outside of the substation site is 
scheduled to be completed in late 2009, 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPUANCE 

OVEC and IKEC place great emphasis on 
complymg with federal, state and local 
r^uirements relating to the protection of the 
environment. During 2008, the Kyga: Creek and 
Clifty Creek plants opa^ted in compliance with 
their respective emission limits and environmental 
regulations, and the Companies received no nofices 

of violation fiom any of the ^vironraental 
agencies. 

OVEC-IKEC COMMITMENT TO SAFETY 

Safety is a top priority for OVEC and HCEC. 
The Companies continue to engage their empk>yees 
in taking an active role in assuring a safe work 
environment OVEC and IKEC employees were 
successful in reducing the numba of OSHA 
recordable accidents by over 40 percent in 2008. 
Only two accidents involved missed workdays. 
Even though this is a marked improvement over the 
pa^ year, not all employees went home without 
harm. Tho-efore, we will work harder to fiurther 
reduce injuries to improve the safety and health of 
all employees- We must continue to make progress 
in minimizing accidmts and maximizing safety and 
health. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICER CHANGES 

In January 2009, Curtis H. Davis, chief 
<^>erating officer - generation of Allegheny Energy, 
Inc., was elected a director of OVEC and IKEC and 
appointed to the Executive Committees of both 
compames. He succeeded Leo C, Rajta-, who had 
served in those o^cit ies since 2006. In May 2009, 
Stev€a\ K. Nelson, clairman of Buckeye Power, 
Inc., was elected to s«-ve as an OVEC director 
following the resignation of Charles D. Lasky. 
Mr- Lasky had served on the OVEC board since 
2004. In June 2009, Anthony J. Ahern, president 
and chief executive officer of Buckeye Power 
Generating, LLC, was appointed to the Executive 
Committee of OVEC, replacing Curtis Davis. 

In June 2009, Holly K. Koeppel, executive 
vice president and chief financial office- for 
American Electric Powa- Service Corporation, was 
elected assistant secretary and assistant treasurer of 
OVEC and IKEC-

On behalf of my fellow directors and offico^ 
I congratulate the employees of both Companies for 
substantially improving safety performance during 
2008. Tlie 2009 year-to-date safety performance 
shows furtho- improvement and, no doubt, reflects 
the employees' concraitrated efforts to ensure that 
each and every employee approaches all aspects of 
the job with safety in mind 



The year 2008 brought many otho-
challenges, not the least of which was the rapid 
detmoration in the general state of the economy. 
Although we found it necessary to either defer or 
reduce certain capital and operating expenditures, I 
commend the employees for adapting to the 
dmnges and for their renewed focus on in^roving 
our overall c )̂erations, including the effective 
availability of the generating units. We have much 
furth«̂  to go, but I am confident that with our 
^nployees' dedicated efforts, we will continue to 
make OVEC and IKEC competitive si^pliers of 
electricity for many years to come. 

Michael G. Morris 
President 

July 13,2009 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31.2008 AND 2007 

ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT: 
At original cost 
Less — acciraiulated ptovisions for dej^eciation 

Construction in progress 

Total electric plant 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in storage — at average cost 
Materials and supplies — at averse cost 
Property taxes applicable to future years 
Emission allowances 
Refundable state income taxes 
Deferred tax assets 
Regulatory assets 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

REGULATORY ASSETS: 
Asset retirement costs 
Uiu-ecognized postemployment benefits 
Deferred depreciation 
Pulsion benefits 

Total regulatory assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER: 
Unamortized debt expense 
Deferred tax assets 
Pension asset 
Long-term investments 
Odier 

Total deferred charges and other 

TOTAL 

2008 2007 

$1,237,629,673 
907,307,285 

330,322,388 

767,848,855 

1,098,171,243 

45,176,266 
35,586,985 
52,220,614 
19,223,210 
2,348,400 
2,244,126 

10,982,423 
1,034,148 
1,937,142 

170,753,314 

14,642,782 
7,736,997 

27,047,875 
27,261,510 

71,189,164 

9,549,916 
37,524,839 

53,609,545 
141,090 

100,825,390 

$1,440,939,111 

$1,212,196,875 
865,927,293 

346,269,582 

316,560,056 

662,829,638 

107,694,495 
28,979,038 
63,913,331 
16,863,327 
2,227,920 

11,787,964 
849,123 

1,705,135 

234,020,333 

16,102,473 
2,222,600 

38,643,429 

56,968,502 

6,831,081 
50,635,428 
16,050,249 

9,601 

73,526,359 

$1,027,344,832 

(Continued) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER SI, 2008 AND 2007 

CAPITALrZATION AND LIABIUTIES 

CAPITALIZATION: 
Common stock, $100 par value — authorized, 300,000 shares; 
outstanding, 100,000 shares in 2008 and 2007 

Long-term debt 
Line of credit borrowings 
Retained earnings 

Total capitalization 

CURRENT LLVBELiriES: 
Current portion of long-teim debt 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue — advances for construction 
Accrued odier taxes 
Regulatory liabilities 
Accrued interest and other 

Total current liabilities 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13) 

REGULATORY LIABILITIES: 
Postretircment baiefits 
Pension benefits 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust settlemoit 
Income taxes refundable to customers 

Total regulatory liabilities 

OTHER LIABILITIES: 
Pension liability 
Asset retirement obligations 
Postretircment benefits obligation 
Postemployment benefits obligation 

Total other liabilities 

2008 

$ 10,000,000 
1,009,864,781 

50,000,000 
2,506,811 

1,072,371,592 

35,453,528 
99,405,252 
26,670,003 
9,822,786 
4,230,400 

20,837.485 

196,419,454 

2007 

$ 10,000,000 
700,151,995 

2,915,642 

713,067,637 

22,809,408 
77,031,015 
24,589,022 
7,679,638 
5,114,333 

16,783,248 

154,006,664 

TOTAL 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

13,670,062 

3,393,146 
1,823,929 

47,070,877 

65,958,014 

27,261,510 
34,162,393 
42,529,151 
2,236,997 

106,190,051 

$1,440,939,111 

18,947,629 
16,050,249 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

48,834.534 

89,049,487 

32,223,528 
36,774,916 
2,222,600 

71,221,044 

$1,027,344,832 

(Concluded) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

2008 2007 

OPERATING REVENUES — Sales of electric energy to: 
Department of energy 
Sponsoring compatdes 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Fuel and emission allowances consumed in operation 
Purchased power 
Other operation 
Maintenance 
Dqireciation 
Taxes — oth«" than income taxes 
hicome taxes 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

OTHER INCOME 

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST CHARGES 

INTEREST CHARGES: 
Amortization of debt expense 
Interest expense 

Total interest charges 

NET INCOME 

RETAINED EARNINGS — Beginning of year 

CASH DIVIDENDS ON COMMON STOCK 

RETAINED EARNINGS — End of year 

$ 18,539,153 $ 14,605,075 
603,273.999 516.757,146 

621.813,152 

340.212,739 
17.903,608 
69,414.118 
71.513.450 
56.946.744 
9,784,455 
1,023,381 

566.798,495 

55,014.657 

4.714,761 

59,729,418 

532,119 
54,106,130 

54,638,249 

5,091,169 

2,915,642 

(5,500,000) 

$ 2,506.811 

531,362.221 

300.666.274 
14,106,371 
68,471,855 
69,945.403 
31,720.198 
8,990,186 

907,416 

494,807,703 

36,554,518 

5,252,583 

41,807,101 

404,083 
36,261,637 

36,665,720 

5,141,381 

2,274,261 

(4,500,000) 

$ 2,915,642 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2008 AND 2007 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
NetincofiK 
Aj^usbnente to rtceyaciie net income la net cash |vovided 1^ (used in) c^xr^iog activities: 
Depred^on 
Amortizatifm of d ^ expense 
Defen«d taxes 
Gain cmt dis{iosal ofassf^ 
Gaiaoaravikgltahk secniiities 
Qianges in assets and liainlities: 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in stcKage 
Mateiiols and siq^Ues 
Piopofy taxes tqq^caUe to stUsequent years 

Retiinilable fbdraal nuxune taxes 
R^umjMile state incxHne taxes 
Prepaid eq]ense$ and otiier 
Otber assets 
Regvlali»y assets 
Accxwntspay^le 
Defened revouie 
Accrued taxes 
Accnied interest and other 
RegulatCHy li^jfiities 
Oflia- liabiUties 

Net c a ^ pnavicted l)y operatii^ activities 

INVESTING ACTIVmES: 
Electiic plant addUiois 
iVoceeds ficnn sale of niafksable securities 
Pitfdiases of raaricetabte securities 
PnxxKds fiom sale of tran^Hmas 

Net oish used in investing activities 

FINANCWG ACTIVITIES: 
Issuance of Senior 2007 Ni^es 
Issuance of Seniw 2008 Notes 
LffiBt origfnation costs 
Repayment of Semor 2006 Notes 
R^jrmfflit of Senior 2007 Notes 
Repayment of Saiior 200S Notes 
Proceeds fiom line of credit 
Pa>in«its on line of a«dk 
Dividrads on common stock 

Net cash provided by financmg activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH ANP CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginnii^ of year 

CASH ANP CASH EQUIVALENTS — Bid of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES; 
Intere^paid 

Income taxes paid (rec^ved) — net 

Non-ca^ eledric fdant additiCHis included in acoomAs payable at Deoenrtmr 31 

See notes to ccmsol^ied financial sta^nems. 

2008 

5,091,169 

S6»946,744 
332.119 
364,509 

(300.000) 
(63S.007) 

(6.607,947) 
U,692,7!7 
(2.359.883) 

(120.480) 
9.543,838 

. 
849.123 

(232.007) 
15.532.270 

(27JS35,827) 
(22.535.520) 

2,080,981 
2.143.144 
4,054.237 

(2U26.286> 
34,969.007 

61^3,905 

(435.783,038) 
24.286,124 

(76.871,172) 
300,000 

(488,068.086) 

. 
350.000,000 

(3.250,954) 
(13,345.479) 
(9,463.928) 
(4,833.687) 

100,000,000 
(50.000/100) 
(5,500.000) 

2007 

$ 5,141,381 

31,720.198 
404.083 
783,148 

(300,000) 
-

(7,470.340) 
(29.24«.O30) 
(1,167.437) 

(255.120) 
22.275.022 

681 
107.851 
(52,036) 

(15.647.863) 
2,574,798 

10.700.986 
11,044.690 

652,983 
443.272 

23,772.209 
(1,433,900) 

54,046,576 

(232.025.190) 

' 
-

300,000 

(231.725,190) 

300.000,000 

-
(2,763;i37) 

-
(12,603.856) 

(3,397.953) 
160^)00,000 

(210,000,000) 
(4,500,000) 

363,605.952 

(62,518.229) 

107,694,495 

226,734.954 

49,056340 

58,638,153 

S 45.176.266 S 107.694,495 

$ 49379.338 $ 35392,737 

S (710.829) S 79.671 

$ 63;225,Q54 $ 20.261,593 



OHfO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEN^NTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

1, ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Consolulateil Financiai Statements — The consolidated fmancial statements include the accounts of 
Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Indiana-Koitucky Electric 
Corporation (IKEC), collectively, ^ ''Companies." All intercompany transactions have been eliminated 
in consolidation. 

Oi^anization — The Companies own two genaiating stations located in Ohio and Indiana with a 
combined electric production capability of approximately 2,256 megawatts. OVEC Is owned by seva:al 
investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and an affiliate of a generation and transmission rural 
electric cooperative. These entities and their afiiliates comprise the Sponsoring Con^>anies. The 
Spcmsoring Compames purchase power fix»m OVEC according to the terms of the fnt^-Company Power 
Agreement (ICPA), wMch in 2004 was extended for an additional 20 years from March 13, 2006 to 
March 13, 2026. Approximately 30% of tiie Coni|>ames' employees are covered by a collective bargaimi^ 
agreement that expires August 31, 2011. 

Rate Regulation — The proceeds horn the sale of pow^ to the Sponsoring Con^nies are designed to be 
sufficient for OVEC to meet its opaating expenses and fixed costs, as well as earn a return on equity 
before federal income taxes. In addition, the proceeds from powa* sales are designed to cover dd>t 
amortization and interest expense associated with financings. The Companies have continued and expect 
to continue to operate pursuant to the cost plus rate of retum recovery provisions at least to March 13, 
2026, the date of termination of ihe ICPA. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation, provide that rate-regulated utiltties account for and report assets and liabiliti^ consistent 
with the economic effect of the way in which rates are established, if ttie rates established are design^ to 
recova: the costs of providing the regulated service and it is probable that such rates can be charged and 
collected. The Companies follow the accounting and rq>orting requirem©ats of SF^^ No. 71. C^tain 
expenses and credits subject to utihty regulation or rate detennination normally reflected in income are 
deferred on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are recognized in income as the related 
amounts are included in service rates and recovered from or refunded to customers. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

The Companies' regulatory assets, liabilities, and amounts authorized for recovo-y through Sponsor 
billings at December 31,2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

2008 2007 

R^;ulatory assets: 
Currait assets — income taxes billable to customors 

Other assets: 
Asset redrranent costs 
Unrecognized post^nploym^t benefits 
Deferred dq>reciation 
Pension benefits 

Total 

Total r^;ulatory assets 

Regulatory liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Deferred credit — EPA emission allowance proceeds 
Advance collectbn of interest 
Fuel related s^lement 

Total 

Other habilities: 
Postretirement benefits 
Pension benefits 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust setdem^ 
Income taxes refundable to custoniia*s 

Total 

Total regulatory liabilities 

$ 1,034,148 $ 

14,642,782 
2,236,997 

27,047,875 
27,261,510 

71,189,164 

$72,223,312 

$ 1,577,431 
2,652,969 

4,230,400 

13,670,062 

3,393,146 
1,823,929 

47,070,877 

65,958,014 

16,102.473 
2,222,600 

38,643,429 

56,968,502 

$56,968,502 

$ 893,770 
1,884,902 
2,335,661 

5,114,333 

18,947,629 
16,050,249 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

48,834,534 

89,049,487 

$70,188,414 $94,163,820 

Regulatory Assets — Regulatory assets consist primarily of deferred depreciation, asset retirement cost, 
and pension baiefits. Deferred depreciation is recovered over the Ufe of the debt that was used to fund the 
related plant additions. The Compames follow the sinking fund depreciation method for ratemaking 
purposes, and the difference between straight-line d^reciation and the debt principal payments billed to 
custoroa-s is recorded as deferred de^eciation. With the exception of income taxes billable to custom^s, 
which will be recovered during 2009, other r^ulatory assets are being recovered on a long-tam basis. 

Regulatory Liabilities— The regulatory liabiUties classified as curroit in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets r^resent emission allowance auction proceeds, a gain on a fiiel related 

10 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

s^lement, and interest expense collected from customers in advance of expense recognition. These 
amounts outstanding will be credited to customs bills during 2009. Other r^ulatory liabilities consist 
primarily of income taxes refundable to customers, postretirement benefits, and pensi(»i benefits. Income 
taxes refimdable to customers are credited to customer bilb m the period when the related deferred tax 
assets are realized. The Companies^ current rat^naking policy recovers pension expense in an amoimt 
equal to plan contributions and postrrtirement benefits in an amount equal to service cost. As a result, 
related regulatory liabilities are being credited to customer bills on a long-term basis. The remaining 
regulatory liabilities are awaiting c r ^ t to customer bills in a future p ^ o d that is yet to be determined. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of these statements, the Companies consid^ temporary 
cash investments to be cash equivalesnts since they are readily convertible into cash and have original 
maturities of less than three months. 

Electric Plant — Prop^ty additiotis and replacements are charged to utility plant accounts- Dq>reciation 
expense is recorded at the time property additions and rq)lacements are billed to customa:^ or at the date 
the property is placed in service if the in-service date occurs subsequent to the customer billing. Customer 
billings for construction in progress are recorded as deferred revenue-advances for construction. These 
amounts are closed to revenue at the time the related property is placed in service. Deferred d^jreciation, 
dqweciation expense, and accumulated depreciation are recorded when financed property additions and 
rq)lacements are recovered over a period of years through customer debt retkemeat billing. All 
^reciable property will be fiilly billed and dq)reciated prior to the expiration of the ICPA. Repairs of 
property are charged to maintenance expense. 

Fuel in Storage, Emission Allowances, and Materials and Supplies — The Companies maintain coal, 
reagent, and oil inventories for use in tbe gen^ation of electricity and emission allowance inventories for 
regulatory compliance purposes due to the generation of electricity. These inventories are valued at 
average cost. Materials and supplies consist primarily of rq)lacement parts necessary to maintam the 
geao^ting facilities and are valued at average cost. 

Long-T^ra Investoients — Long-term investments consist of marketable securities that are held for die 
purpose of fiinding postretirement benefits. These securities have been classified as trading securities- Due 
to tax limitations, the amounts held in this portfolio have not yet beem transforred to the Voluntary 
Employee Benefidaiy Association trusts (see Note 9). Long-term investments primarily consist of 
municipal bonds and money market mutual fund investments. Net unrealized gains recognized during 
2008 on securities still held at the balance sheet date were $638,007. 

Unamortized Debt Expense — Unamortized debt expense relates to loan origination costs incurred to 
secure financing. These costs are being amortized over the life of the related loans. 

Asset Retirement Obl^ations and Asset Retirement Costs — The Companies recognize the i^ir value 
of legal obligations associated with the retiiemmt or removal of long-lived assets at die time the 
obhgations are incurred and can be reasonably estimated. The initial recognition of this Uability is 
accompanied by a corresponding increase in depreciable electric plant. Subsequent to the initial 
recognition, the liability is adjusted for any revisions to the expected value of the rettrem:ient obligation 
(with corresponding adjustmeits to electric plant) and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of 
time. 

11 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2008 AND 2007 

These asset retirement obUgations are primarily related to obligations associated with fiiture asbestc^ 
abatement at obtain generating stations and certain plant closure costs. As of December 31, 2008 and 
2007, the Conqmnies had a regulatory asset of $14.6 million and $16.1 million, respectively, related to 
asset retirement obligatioiK. 

Balance — December 31, 2006 

Accreticm 

Balance ™ Decemba- 31, 2007 

Accretion 

Balance — December 31, 2008 

$30,399,555 

1,823,973 

32,223,528 

1,938,865 

$34,162,393 

The Companies do not recognize liabilities for ass^ retirement obligations for which the fiur value cannot 
be reasonably estimated. The Companies have ass^ retirement obligations associated with transmission 
assets aiKi river striictures at c^ain geoerathxg stations. However, the retirement date for these a s s ^ 
cannot be determined; thwefore, the Mr value of the associated liability curraitly cannot be estimated and 
no amounts are recognized in the consolidated financial statements hereiiL 

Use of Estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiUties and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabiUties at the date of the consoUdated financial statements and the rq>orted amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the tepotting pmod. Actual results could diffa" from those estimates. 

1 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions with the Sponsoring Companies during 2008 and 2007 Included the sale of ail gei^:ated 
powa* to them, the purchase of Arranged Power fix}m them and <rtha* utility system in order to meet the 
Department of Energy's power requirements, contract barging services, railcar services, and minor 
transactions for services and materials. The Companies have Power Agreements with Louisville Gas and 
Electric Company, Duke Ena-gy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Powo* and Light Con^any, Kentucky Utilities 
Con^any, Ohio Edison Company, and American Electric Power Service Corporation as agent for the 
AmOTcan Electric POWCT System Compames; and Transmission Service Agreements with Louisville Gas 
and Electric Company, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Power and Light Company, The Toledo 
Edison Company, Ohio Edison Company, Kentucky Utilities Company, and Am^ican Electric Power 
Service Corporation as ag^t for the Amo-ican Electric Powa* System Companies, 

In September 2006, the Companies sold two transformers and assocmted equipmait to Duke Energy 
Ohio, Inc. for a total maximum purchase price of $3 million, which subject to the tatns of the asset 
purchase agreement, is payable in equal annual installments ova: ten yeai^. The purchase price is 
contingait on the po-formance of the transformers, and as such, no receivable has been recognized in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In 2008, the Companies were informed that one of the 
transformos &iled, and as such, no fiirtho* payments from Duke En^gy Ohio, Inc. are anticipated. 

12 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

At December 31,2008 and 2007, balance due horn or to tbe Sponsoring Companies are as follows: 

2008 2007 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 

$31,668,608 $23,136,138 
1,352,250 

American Electric Power Company, Inc. and a subsidiary company owned 43.47% of the common stock 
of OVEC as of December 31, 2008. The foUowing is a summary of the principal services received ftom 
the American Electric Powa- Service Corporation as audiorized by the Compaiues' Boards of Directors: 

2008 2007 

General services 
Specific projects 

Total 

$ 2,198,238 $ 2,473,834 
21,274.966 10,623,656 

$23,473,204 $13,097,490 

Genaal services consist of regular recumng <^>eration and maintenance services. Specific projects 
primarily represent nonrecurring plant construction projects and engineering studies, which are approved 
by the Companies' Boards of Directors. The services are provided in accordance with the service 
agreement dated December 15, 1956, b^ween the Companies and the Ama-ican Electric Power Service 
Corporation. 

3, COAL SUPPLY 

The Companies have coal supply agreements with certain nonafUliated companies that expire at various 
dates from the year 2009 duough 2017. Pricing for coal under these contracts is subject to contract 
provisions and adjustments. The Companies curraitly have approximately 100% of their 2009 coal 
requirements under long-term agreements of one year or greater. 

4, INVENTORIES 

Inventories, net of reserves, at Decemba- 31, 2008 and 2007, consist of the following: 

2008 

Fuel in storage — at average cost 
Materials and supplies — at averse cost 
Emission allowances 

Total inventories 

$52,220,614 
19,223,210 
2,244,126 

2007 

$63,913,331 
16,863,327 
11,787,964 

$ 73,687,950 $ 92,564,622 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

5. ELECTRIC PLANT 

Electric plant at December 31. 2008 and 2007, consists of the following: 

2008 

Intangible 
Steam imiduction plant 
Transmission plant 
Genaal plant 

$ 26,564 
1,152,457,582 

60,191,487 
24,954,040 

1,237,629,673 

907,307,285 

330,322,388 

767,848,855 

2007 

$ 26,564 
1,130,722,161 

72,211,888 
9,236,262 

1,212,196,875 

865,927,293 

346,269,582 

316,560,056 

$1,098,171,243 $ 662,829,638 
s:: 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Construction in progress 

Total electric plant 

6- BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS AND NOTES 

OVEC has an unsecured bank revolving Une of credit agreement with a borrowing limit of $200 milUon 
as of December 31, 2008. The $200 milli<Ki line of credit has an expiration date of August 4, 2010. At 
December 31, 2008 and 2007. OVEC had borrowed $50 and $0 million, respectively, undo* this Une of 
credit, hiterest expense related to line of credit borrowings was $255,699 in 2008 and $3,051,247 in 2007. 
During 2008 and 2007, OVEC incurred annual commitment fees of $343,729 and $288,736, respectively, 
based on the borrowing limits of the line of credit 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR T l ^ YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The foUowii^ amounts were outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 

Senior 2006 Notes due February 15,2026 
Senior 2007 Notes: 
Trwiche A due Febniaiy 15,2026 
Tranche B due February 15. 2026 
Tranche C due February 15, 2026 

Senior 2008 Notes: 
Tranche A due February 15,2026 
Tranche B due February 15,2026 
Tranche C due February 15, 2026 

Total debt 

Current portion of long-tam debt 

Total long-term debt 

Rate 

5.80 % 

5.90 
5.90 
5.90 

5.92 
6.71 
6,71 

2008 

$ 413,013,876 

190,703,342 
48,027,572 
48,407,206 

48,780,045 
147,157.899 
149,228,369 

1,045,318,309 

35,453,528 

$1,009,864,781 

2007 

$426,359,355 

196,990,760 
49.611,288 
50,000.000 

-

722,961,403 

22,809,408 

$700,151,995 

During 2007, OVEC issued $300 miUion unsecured senior notes (Senior 2007 Notes) in private 
placements in three tranches. The $200 miUion Tranche A notes were issued in June 2007, the $50 million 
Tranche B notes were issued in Septanb«r 2007, and the $50 million Tranche C notes were issued in 
December 2007. 

During 2008, OVEC issued $350 million unsecured senior notes (Senior 2008 Notes) in private 
placements in three tranches. The $50 mUlion Tranche A notes wa-e issued in March 2008, the 
$150 million Tranche B notes ware issued in June 2008, and the $150 million Tranche C not^ were 
issued in August 2008. 

The armual maturities of long-tam debt as of December 31, 2008, are as follows: 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014-2026 

Total 

$ 35,453,528 
37.642,055 
39.966,243 
42.404,535 
45,055,902 

844,796,046 

$1,045,318,309 
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8- INCOME TAXES 

OVEC and IKEC file a consoUdated federal income tax retunt The effective tax rate varied fix)m the 
statutory fedaal income tax rate due to differences between the book and tax treatment of various 
transactions as follows: 

htcmne tax expense at 35% statutory rate 
State income taxes net of federal benefit 
Ten^iorary differences flowed throu^ to customa bills 
Permaneait dififeraices 

Income tax provision 

Efifective tax rate 

20(W 

$ 2,140.093 
66,042 

(1,218,762) 
36,008 

$ 1,023,381 

16.7 % 

2007 

$ 2,117.079 
53,707 

(1,274,392) 
11,022 

$ 907,416 

15.0 % 

Components of the income tax provision were as foUows: 

Current income tax expense 
Defared inccune tax expense 

Total income tax provision 

2xm 

$ 977,761 
45,620 

2007 

$125,036 
782,380 

$1,023,381 $907,416 

OVEC and EtCEC record deferred tax ass^s and liabiUties based on differaices between book and tax 
basis of assets and liabilities measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that wiU be in effect when the 
diffa^nces are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for changes in tax rates. 
The deferred tax assets recordal in the accompanying consoli<kted balance sheets consist primarily of the 
net deferred taxes on dq>reciation, postietirement benefits d)ligation. net opa^ting loss carryforwards, 
asset retirement obUgations, r^;uIatory a s s ^ and regulatory Uabiltties. 

To the extent that the Compani^ have not reflected credits in customer billings for deferred tax a s s^ , 
they have recorded a regulatory UabiUty rq>resenting income taxes refimdable to customers under the 
applicable agreements among (he parties. The liability was $47,070,877 at December 31, 2008, and 
$48,834,534 at Decemba 31, 2007. 
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Deferred income tax assete (liabilities) consisted of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007; 

2008 2007 

Defared tax assets: 
Defared revenue — advances for construction 
Federal net operating loss carryforwards 
State net opaating loss carryforwards 
AMT credit carryforwards 
Postretirement benefit obUgation 
Paision liabiUty 
Postanpbyment benefit obligation 
Asset retirement obligations 
Miscellaneous accruals 
R^ulatory liability — posfretirement baiefits 
Regulatory Uability — investment tax credits 
Regulatory liability — net antitrust settlanent 
Regulatory liabiUty — income taxes refundable to customas 

Total denned tax ass^s 

Deferred tax liabiUties: 
R^ulatory asset — income taxes billable to customars 
Prq>aid expenses 
Electric plant 
Regulatory asset 
Regulatory asset 
Regulatory asse* 

paision benefits 
unrecognized postemployment benefits 
asset retiranait costs 

$ 9,619,159 
4,456.189 

39,212 
2,532,919 

20.445,933 
9,832,499 

806,825 
12,321,464 
2,649,351 
4,930,427 
1,223,817 

657.843 
16,977,211 

86,492,849 

(361,952) 
(582,702) 

(21,120,348) 
(9,832,499) 

(806,825) 
(5,281,261) 

(37,985,587) 

$ 48,507,262 

$ 8,942,781 
22,341,256 

273,971 
1.505,920 

13,374.669 
10,113.109 

808,337 
11,719,375 
2,834,718 
6,891,063 
1,234,053 

663,345 
17,621,791 

98.324,388 

(576,140) 
(34,610,360) 
(5,837.815) 

(808.337) 
(5,856,308) 

(47,688,960) 

$ 50,635,428 

Total defenred tax liabilities 

Deferred income tax assets (liabiUties) 

The Companies had federal income tax net iterating loss carryforwards (NOLs) of SI2.7 million as of 
Decemba: 31, 2008. These federal income tax NOLs result m part from accelaated dq)reciation methods 
for propaty, plant and equipment for income tax rqxnrtii^ purposes. The Companies also have altanative 
minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforwards of approximately $2.5 milUon, which are not limited by 
expiration dates. Management periodicaUy assesses the need for a valuation aUowance on deferred tax 
assets. As of Decemba: 31, 2008 and 2007, management believes that reaUzation of the Companies' 
deferred tax assets is more likely than not. 

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Intapretation No. 48 to clarify the 
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in 
accordance with Statement No. 109. Intapretation No. 48 a<Mresses the determuiation of whether the tax 
benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax retum should be recorded in the financial statements. 
Voikr Intapretation No. 48, the Companies may recognize the tax benefit Srom an uncertain tax position 
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only if it is more likely than not that the tax position wiU be sustained on examination by the taxing 
authorities, based on the technical merits of the positioiL The tax benefits recognized in the financial 
statements &om such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty 
percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settiement. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Companies 
have not identified any uncertain tax positions. 

The Companies file income tax rdums with the Internal Revenue Service and the states of Ohio, Indiana 
and the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The Companies are no longer subject to federal tax examinations 
for tax years 2(K)4 and earlia-. The Companies are no l<mger subject to states of Ohio and Indiana tax 
examinations for tax years 2004 and earUer. The Companies are no longer subject to the Commonwealth 
of Kentiwky examinations for tax years 2003 and earUer. 

9. PENSION PLAN, OTHER POSTRETIREMENT AND POSTEMHLOYMENT BENEFITS 

The Conqjanies have a noncontributoty qualified defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) covering 
substantiaUy aU of their employees. The benefits arc based on years of service and each anployee's 
highest consecutive 36-month compensation period. Employees are vested in the Pension Plan after five 
years of service with the Companies. 

Funding for the Pension Plan is based on actuariaUy d^amined contributions, the maximum of which is 
generally the amount deductible for income tax purposes and the minimum being that required by the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), as amended. The fidl cost of the pension 
benefits and related obligations has been allocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. The allocated amounts represent approximately a 54% and 46% spUt for OVEC and 
nCEC, respectively, as of Decemba* 31, 2008 and 2007. The Pension Plan's assets consist of an insi«rance 
contract and investments in equity and debt securities. In the following disclosures, the insiu'ance contract 
is treated as a dd)t security because its long-term yield is tied to the debt markets. 

In addition to the Pension Plan, the Companies provide certain health care and Ufe insurance benefits 
(Other Postretirement Benefits) for retired employees. SubstantiaUy all of the Companies' anployees 
become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement Bge while working fcwr the Con^)anies. These 
and similar benefits for active employees are provided through employer fimding and insurance policies. 
In December 2004, the Companies estabUshed Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VESA) 
hrusts. The main objectives of the VEBA trusts are to maintain the purchasing power of the current ass^s 
and all future contributions, to have the abiUty to pay all benefits and expense obligations whai due and to 
achieve a "fonding cushion" to maximize return within |»iident levels of risk. The investment horizon for 
the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts is greata than five years and the strat^c asset allocation is based on a 
long-term perspective. 
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Projected Pension Plan and Other 
Decemba- 31,2008 and 2007: 

Postretirement Benefits obUgations and funded status as of 

C h a i ^ in pn^ected besiefit aUKgati<Hi: 
Projected benefit obligation—beginning of year 

Plan pacticqiaiits' cootrftjutions 
Beneibpaid 
Met actoiirial (gain) loss 
Medicare subsidy 

Projei^ed boiefil oUigation — end of year 

Changs in fyk vahie of plan assets: 
Fair value ofptan ass^—begionine of year 
Acmal retum on [ ^ assets 
Expenses paid fiom assets 
&n{̂ Oirer (XHitrilHtticKis 
Plan paiticipanfs' eontribodons 
Me(&:aie st4]si(fy 
Baiefitspaid 

Fair value of plan a s s ^ — end of year 

Funded (undirfuji^ed) status — end of year 

Paiwlon 
man 

20M 

$ 153,972.014 
3,899,052 
9,799.772 

-
(7.755,609) 
9^56,558 

. 
W5^00» 

168.926.S87 

170,022^63 
(26,056,377) 

(45^00) 
5,500,000 

-
-

<7,755JS09) 

I41g665,077 

Sa7.26USlO) 

2007 

$ 161.065,647 
4.221,650 
9.243,320 

-
(7,499,086) 

(13,018.717) 
-

(40,800) 

153,972.014 

169,811,906 
1.750,243 

(40,800) 
6,000,000 

-
, 

(7,499.086) 

170.022^63 

S 16.050,249 

other Postretirement 
Benefits 

3008 

$ 97,431,448 
2.781,098 
6,173,680 

613,383 
(3^286,320) 
1,242,881 

-
-

104,956,170 

60,656.532 
(728,513) 

-
5,171,937 

613.383 
-

<3,2«6,32P? 

62,427,019 

$(42,529,151^ 

2007 

S 102.541,624 
3,219,492 
5,855,237 

585,570 
(3.279^79) 

(11,761.744) 
270.548 

-

97,431.448 

55395.876 
2,760,656 

-
4.923,161 

585,570 
270.548 

(3,279^79) 

60.656,532 

$(36,774,916^ 

On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States of America signed into law the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemization Act of 2003 (the Act). The Act introduced a 
prescription drug benefit to retirees as well as a federal subsidy to sponsws of retiree health care braiefit 
plans that provide a prescription drug benefit that is actuarially ecjuivalent to the benefit provided by 
Medicare. The Conq)anies believe that the coverage for prescription drugs is at least actuanally equivalent 
to the benefits provided by Medicare for most current r^ire^ because the beiefits for that group 
substantially exceed the benefits provided by Medicare, thereby allowing the Companies to qualify for the 
subsidy. The Companies* employer contributions for Other Postretirement Benefits ia the above tabic are 
net of subsidies received of $0 and $270,548 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Companies have 
accounted for the subsidy as a reduction of the benefit obligation detailed in the above table. The benefit 
obUgation was reduced by approximately $14.2 and $11.3 million as of Decemba* 31,2008 and 2007. 

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Pension Plan was $144,698,788 and $131,992,635 at 
December 31.2008 and 2007, respectively. 

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost — The Conqjanies record the expected cost of Other 
Postretirement Benefits over the s^'vice pa"iod during which such benefits are earned. 

Pension expense is recognized as amounts are contributed to the Pension Plan and billed to customers. 
The accumulated difference between recorded pension expense and the yearly net periodic pension 
expense as calculated under SFAS No. 87, Employers' Accounting for Pensions ̂  is billable as a cost of 
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operations und^ the ICPA when contributed to the pension fund This accumulated difference has been 
recorded as a regulatory asset in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected retum on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service cost 
Recognized actuaried loss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

Pension 
Plan 

2008 

$ 3,899,052 
9,799,772 

(11.049,029) 
531,437 

$ 3,181,232 

3007 

$ 4,221,650 
9,243,320 

(11,665,332) 
531.437 

$ 2328,075 

Ouwf PostretiFsmMit 
Ben^ts 

2008 

$ 2,781,098 
6,173.680 

(2,SS0.7I2) 
(379,000) 
(263,945) 

$ 5.431.121 

2007 

$ 3,219,492 
5,855,237 

(2,631.976) 
(379.000) 

126,175 

$ 6.189,928 

Pension and other postxetirement benefits 
expense recognized in the consoUdated 
statement of income and retained earnings 
and billed to sponsoring companies under 
the ICPA $ 5300.000 $ 6,000.000 $ 3,260,000 $ 3,219,492 

Pension Plan and Other PdstreriremeDt Benefit Assumptions— Actuarial assumptions used to 
deto-mme benefit obligations at December 31,2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

Pension 
Plan 

Other 
Postratirament 

Benefits 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

2008 

6.10 % 
4.00 

2007 

6.50 % 
4.00 

2008 

5.90 % 
4,00 

2007 

6,50 % 
4.00 

Actuarial assumptions used to detCTmine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended Decemba" 31, 2008 
and 2007, w&:e as follows: 

Pension 
Plan 

Discount rate 
Expected long4enn return on plsm assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

2008 

6,50 
4.00 

2007 

5.90 % 
7.00 
4.00 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 
2008 

6.50 % 
4.70 
4.00 

2007 

5.90% 
4.70 
4.00 

In selecting the expected long-tam rate of rdmn on assets, the Companies considered the average rate of 
earnings expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for plan benefits. Tbis included 
consido-ing the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts' asset allocation, as well as the target asset allocations for 
the future. Mid the expected r^ums hkely to be earned ova- the life of the Pension Plan and the VEBAs. 
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Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31,2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

2008 2007 

Health care tread rate assumed for next year—participants u n d ^ 65 
Health care trend rate assumed for iwxt year—psyticipants ova* 65 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the uhimate trend mte)—participants under 65 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend mte)—participants over 65 
Year that die rate reaches the uttnnate trend mte 

S.00 % 9.00 % 
9.50 1129 
5.00 5.00 
5.(M) 5.00 
2015 2012 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts rep<M-ted for die heaUh care 
plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following 
effects: 

One-Percentage One-Percentage 
Point Increase Point Decrease 

Effect on total service and interest cost 
Effect on postretirement benefit obUgation 

$ 1,553,985 
16,334.303 

$ (1,222,418) 
(13,014,742) 

Pension Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit Assets — The asset allocation for the Pension Plan and 
VEBA trusts at DecembCT 31, 2008 and 2007, by asset category was as follows: 

Asset category: 
Equity securities 
Debt securities 

Pension Plan 
2008 2007 

24 % 31 % 
76 69 

VEBA Trusts 
2008 2007 

2 4 % - % 
76 100 

The target asset allocation for the Peaision Plan is 30% equity securities and 70% ddrt securities and for 
the VEBA trust is 40% equity securities and 60% debt securities. 

Pension Plan and Other Fostretlrement Benefit Contributions — The Cotapames expect to contribute 
$5,700,000 to their Pension Plan and $6,227,701 to tiieir Oth^ Postr^irement Benefits plan m 2009, 
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Estimated Future Benetit Payments ~ The following baiefit payments, which reflect expected future 
service, as apprc^riate, are expected to be paid: 

Other Postretirement Benefits 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Five years thereafter 

Pension 
Plan 

8,190,118 
8,563,310 
8,860,448 
9,258,537 
9,646,383 
7,038,752 

Wtth 
Medicare 
Sui>stdy 

$ 4,042,701 
4,454,986 
4,797,783 
5,136,259 
5,403,058 

32,929,845 

Wtthout 
Medicare 
SuK>sldy 

$ 4,388,179 
4,833,964 
5,211,111 
5,587,667 
5,892,674 

35,939,277 

Postemployment Benefits— The Companies follow SFAS No. 112, Employers* Accounting for 
Postemployment Benefits, and accrue the estimated cost of b^iefits provided to formear or iiactive 
employees after employment but before retirem^it. Such benefits include, but are not limited to, salary 
continuations, supplemental unemployment, severance, disability (including workers' compensation), job 
training, counseling, and continuation of benefits, such as health care and life insurance coverage. The 
cost of such benefits and related obligations has been allocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. The allocated amounts represwit approximately a 42% and 58% split 
between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of Dec^nber 31, 2008, and approximately a 40% and 60% 
split between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, 2007. The Habihty is offeet with a 
corresponding regulatory asset and r^wesents unrecognized postemployment benefits bUlable in the future 
to customers. The accrued cost of such benefits was $2,236,997 and $2,222,600 at Decemba- 31, 2008 
and 2007, respectively. 

Defined Contribution Plan — Tlie Companies have a trustee-defined contribution supplemental pension 
and savings plan that includes 401(k) features and is available to employees who have ras^ eligibility 
requirements. In 2007, the Con:̂ )anies* contributioDs to the savings phm w&e made in amounts equal to 
50% of the employee-participants' contributions up to 6% of total compensation. In January 2008, the 
Companies' contributions to the savings plan were changed to amounts equal to 100% of the first 1% and 
50% of the next 5% of employee-participants' contributions based upon total compensation. Benefits to 
participating employees are based solely upon amounts con^butcd to the participants' accounts and 
investment earnings. By its nature, the plan is fully funded at all times. The employer contributions for 
2008 and 2007 were $1,634,334 and $1,278,249, respectively. 

Adoption of SFAS No. 158 — Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits — Tbe Companies adopted 
SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, 
effective December 31, 2007. SFAS No. 158 requires employers to fidly recognize the obligations 
associated with defined benefit pension plans and other postr^ement plans, which include retiree 
healthcare, in their balance sheets. Previous standards required an enq}loyer to disclose the complete 
fimded status of its plan only in the notes to the financial statements and provided that an ̂ nployer delay 
recognition of certain changes in plan assete and obhgations that affected the costs of providing benefits 
resulting in an asset or liability that often differed from the plan's funded status. SFAS No. 158 requires a 
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defined benefit pension or postretirement plan sponsor to recognize in its statement of financial position 
an asset fta- a plan's overfunded status or a liability for the plan's underfimded status. The effects of the 
Companies' adoption of SFAS No. 158 were as foUows: 

Pension asset 
Postretirem^t benefits obligation 

Before 
AppHcation of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 3,671.925 
(40,299,341) 

Adjustments 

$12,378,324 
3,524,425 

After 
Application of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 16,050,249 
(36,774,916) 

Tbe adjustments cbtailed in the above table represent the unrecognized actuarial gains and unrecognised 
prior service cost fw the plans as of December 31, 2007. These amounts wa*e receded as additions to 
regulatory liabilities (see Note 1). 

10, ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Am^idments required the Companies to reduce sulfur dioxide (S02) 
emissions in two phases: Phase I in 1995 and Phase II in 2000. The Companies selected a fiiel switching 
strategy to comply with the emission reduction requirements. Ihe Companies also purchased additional 
S02 allowances. Hie cost of these purchased allowances was inventoried and included on an avearage c<^t 
basis in the cost of fiiel consumed when used. The cost of unused allowances at December 31, 2008 and 
2007, was $2,244,126 and $11,787,964, respectively. 

Title IV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments also required the Companies to comply with a mtrogen 
oxides (NOx) emission rate lunit of 0,84 Ib/mmBtu in 2000, The Companies installed overfire air systems 
on all eleven units at die plants to comply with this limit. The total capital cost of the eleven overfire air 
systems was approximately $8.2 Trdllion. 

During 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NOx State Implementation Plan (SIP) Call 
regulatiocts that required further significant NOx emission reductions for coal-buming powCT plants during 
the ozone control period (May through September). The Companies installed selective catalytic reduction 
(SCR) systems on ten of its eleven units to comply with these rules. The total capital cost of the ten SCR 
systems was approxhnately $355 million. 

On March 10, 2005, the U.S. EPA signed the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) that will require 
s^ificant further reductions of S02 and NOx emissions from coal-buming powa: plants. On March 15, 
2005, the U.S. EPA also signed the Clean Air Mm^ry Rule (CAMR) that wili require significant mercury 
emission reductions for coaUbuming power plants. These emission reductions will be required in two 
phases: 2009 and 2015 for NOx; 2010 and 2015 for S02,* and 2010 and 2018 for ma*cury. Ohio and 
Indiana also subsequently finalized their respective vo-sions of CAIR and CAMR, In response, the 
Companies d^o-mincd that it would be necessary to install flue gas desulfurization (FGD) systems at both 
plants to comply with these new rules and have since be^i conducting the necessary engineering, 
p^mithiigy and constniction to install these new FGD systems. 

In Fdiniary 2008, die D.C. Circuit Court of >\ppeals issued a decision which vacated the federal CAMR 
and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a determimition that the rule be rewritt^i under the maximum 
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achievable control technologies (MACT) provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act. A groi^ of 
electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requested a rehearing of the decision, which was denied by the court. 
Following those denials, both the group of electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requested that the 
U.S. Supreme Court hear the case. However, in February 2009, the U.S. EPA withdrew its request and the 
group of utihties' request was denied These actions left die original court decision in place, which 
vacated the federal CAMR and remanded the mle to the U.S. EPA with a drtermmation that the rule be 
rewritten undo- the MACT provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act. 

in July 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision that vacated the fedra:al CAIR and 
remanded the mle to the U.S. EPA. In September 2008, the U.S. S'A, a group of electric utiiities and 
other parties filed petitions for rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted 
the U.S. EPA's petition and remanded the mle to the U.S. EPA without vacatur, allowing the fed&al 
CAIR to remain in effect while a new mle is developed and promulgated. 

In December 2008, the Companies Boards of Directors authorized a delay in constmction of the FGD at 
the Chfty Creek Plant of at least 18 mounts due to economic imcertainty in the capital markets. 

In March 2009, the Board of Dhectors of OVEC authorized a delay in the anticipated tie-in of the first 
three generating units to the Kygor Creek Plant's FGD system pending an mvestig^tion into the stmctural 
integrity of the two newly constructed j ^ bubbling react<H^ which are major components of the FGD 
s>«tem. Additional S02 allowances will be purchased to operate the Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek 
generating units to con^ly with the current environmental emission mles during the delays. The currrart 
cost to coii^lete the new Kyger Creek and Clifly Credc FGD systems and the associated landfills is 
estimated not to exceed $1.33 billion. 

11, DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCLVL INSTRUMENTS 

SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the feir 
value of certam financial instruments. The estimates of feir value under SFAS No. 107 require the 
application of broad assumptions and estimates. Accordingly, any actual exchange of such fioancizd 
instmments could occur at values significantly different firom the amounts disclosed. As cash and cash 
equivalents, current receivables, current payables, and line of credit borrowings are all short term in 
nature, their carrying amounts approximate fek value. The fair values of the Senior Notes wo-e estimated 
using discounted cash flow analyses based on current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of 
borrowing arrangements. 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS €NDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

The fiiir values and recorded values of the Seaiar Notes as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, are as 
follows: 

2008 2007 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Senior 2006 Notes 
Senior 2007 Notes 
Senior 2008 Notes 

Total 

OPERATING LEASES 

Fair Value 

$365,930,295 
256,988,617 
324,385,533 

Recorded Value 

$ 413.013,876 
287,138,120 
345,166,313 

Fair Value Recorded Value 

$420,070,000 
288,450,000 

$426,359,355 
296,602,048 

$947,304,445 $1,045,318,309 $708,520,000 $722,961,403 

OVEC has entered into operating leases to secure railcars fbr the transportation of coal m cormection with 
the fuel switching modifications at the OVEC and the IKEC gen^ating stations. OVEC has railcar lease 
agreements that extrad to as long as December 31, 2025, with options to exit the leases undo- cotain 
conditions. 

Future minimum lease payments for operating leases at December 31,2008, are as follows: 

Years Ending 
Decemtker 31 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Thereafter 

Total iiiture minimum lease payments 

$ 4,726,988 
4,758,188 
3,356,810 
3,266,568 
3,254,088 

25,886,781 

$45,249,423 

The annual lease cost mcurred was $4,761,224 and $4,767,379 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Companies are party in or may be affected by various matters under litigation. Management beheves 
that the ultimate outcome of these matters will not have a significant adverse effect on either the 
Companies' fixture results of operation or financial position. 

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157), clarifies 
ttie defauhoa of fidr value, establishes a fi^amework for measuring feir value, and ^pands the disclosures 
on fiiir value measurements. The Companies have adopted SFAS 157 and FASB Staff Position FAS 
No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, effective January 1, 2008. The adoption of 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCI/O. STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

SFAS 157 for financial instruments as required at January 1, 2008 did not have a matiaial effect on the 
Companies' consolidated financial statements; however, the Con^)ames are required to provide additional 
disclosure as part of the Companies' consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2008, the 
Companies have not adopted SFAS 157 fen* non-fmancial assets and non-financial liabilities. However, 
the provisions associated with non-financial assets and non-financial habilities will be included in the 
disclosures in the Companies' 2009 consoUdated fmancial statem^ts, as required, and will not have a 
material effect on the Companies'* consolidated financial statements. 

On October 10, 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position FAS No. 157-3, Fair Value Measurements (FSP 
FAS 157-3X which clarifies the apphcation of SFAS 157 in an inactive market and provide an example 
to demonstrate how the l^ir value of a financial asset is d^ermined when the nmrket for that financial 
asset is inactive. FSP FAS 157-3 was effective upon issuance, including prior periods for which financial 
statements had not been issued. The adoption of this standard as of December 31, 2008 did not have a 
matmal impact on the Companies' consoUdated financial statem^its. 

SFAS 157 establishes a three-tier fiur value hierarchy, which prioritizes the hqjuts used in measuring feir 
value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices m active markets; 
Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are eitha- directly or indirectly 
observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable iiq}uts in which little or no market data exists, therefore 
requirir^ an entity to develop its own assumptions. 

As of Decemba* 31,2008, the Compaikies held obtain assets that arc required to be measured at feir value 
on a recurrii^ basis. These consist of investments recorded within cash and cash equivalents. The 
investments consist of money market mutual fimds and debt securities. Changes in the obs«:^ed trading 
prices and liquidity of money market funds are monitored as additional support for d^ermining feir value, 
and losses are recorded in earnings if feir value fells below recorded cost. 

Assets measured at feh value on a recurring basis subject to the disclosure requirements of SFAS 157 at 
December 31,2008, were as follows: 

Fair Value Measurements at 
R<^x>rtlng Date Using 

Cash equivalents 

Marketable securities 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

for Market 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

$ 

$ 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$45,118,305 

$53,609,545 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3} 

$ 

$ 

15. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

hi February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. This statement permits ortities 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

to choose to measure many financial instrumoits and certain otber items at feir value. The election is 
made on an mstrum^t-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable. If the feir value option is elected for an 
instrument, SFAS 159 specifies that all subsequ^t changes in fiiir value for dmt instrum^it shaU be 
reported in earnings. The objective of the pronouncCTaent is to in^rove fmancial reporting by providing 
entities with the oppcMtunity to mitigate volatihty m reported earnings caused by measuring related assets 
and liabilities diffaently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. Ttns statement is 
effective as of the begirming of an «itity*s first fiscal year that b^ins after November 15, 2007, and was 
adopted by the Ompanies on January 1, 2008. Tho-e was no hnpact on the Companies' financkl position 
and results of operations, because the Conq}anies made no feir value elections vapon adoption. 

On December 30, 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 132(R)-1, which amends Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 132(R), Employers' Disclosures About Pensions and Other Postretirement 
Benefits — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, and 106, to require more detailed disclosures 
about employers' plan assets, mcluding en^loyers* mvestment strategies, major categories of plan assets, 
concentrations of risk within plan assets, and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan 
assets. Tlie disclosure requirements of FSP FAS 132(R)-1 will be effective for the Companies for the year 
ended December 31,2009. 

4t « * 4t * « 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Dhectoxs of 
Ohio Valley Electric Cwporation: 

We have audited the accompanying consoUdated balance sheets of Ohio VaUey Electric Corporation and 
subsidiary company (the Companies), as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated 
statements of income and retained eamiotgs and cash fiows for the years then ended These consolidated 
fmancial stat^nents are the responsibility of the Companies* management. Our responsibiUty is to express an 
opinion on these consolidated financial statonents based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perfona the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
wh^her the consoUdated financial statements are fiee of matoial misstatement. An audit includes considenttion 
of internal control aver financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate m the 
drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an <^inion on the effectiveness of the Companies* internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinio©. An audit also hteludes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consoUdated financial statem^its, assessii^ 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as weU as evaluating the ovarii 
financial statement presentation. We beUeve that mir audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements preset &irly, in all material respects, ^ e financial 
position of the Companies as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash 
fiows for the years then ^ded in conformity with accounting principles generaUy accepted in the United Stat^ 
of America. 

As discussed in Note 9 to the ccmsoUdated financial statements, the Companies changed their method of 
accounting for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans in 2007. 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 

T^<£)6^ix^ ^ /oMdku L U P 

Cincinnati, Ohio 
March 27,2009 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

OVEC PERFORMANCE—A 5-YEAR COMPARISON 

Net Ckaieration (MWh) 

Energy Sales (MWh) to: 
DOE 
Sp(msoTS 

Maximum DemaQd(MW) by: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Weighuxl AvMage 
Demand (MW); 
DOE C^»erating Level 

Power Costs to: 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Average Price (MWh): 
DOE 
Sponsors 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of Fuel Consumed 

Taxes (federal, state, and local) 

Payroll 

Fuel Bumed (tons) 

Heat Rate (Btu pa- fcWh, 
net generation) 

Unit Cost of Fuel Bumed 
(permmBtu) 

Unit Availability (percent) 

Power Use Factor (percent) 

Employees (year-end) 

2008 

15,260,029 

270369 
15,026,497 

42 
2,216 

31 

$18^9,154 
$605,354,979 

$68570 
$40,286 

$62M13,000 

$566,798,000 

$340,213,000 

$10,808,000 

$53,694,000 

7,891,440 

10,236 

$2.18 

85.2 

9639 

817 

2007 

15,109,836 

256.613 
14.918,727 

41 
2.233 

29 

$14,605,(M)0 
$527,516,000 

$56-915 
$35,359 

$531,362,000 

$494,808,000 

$300,666,000 

$9,898,000 

$49,977,000 

7,647397 

10.180 

$1.95 

85.0 

%-92 

747 

2006 

16,468.342 

246371 
16,226,777 

37 
2300 

28 

$15,445,000 
$509,024,000 

$62,689 
$31,369 

$523,927,000 

$494,893,000 

$318,762,000 

$9,457,000 

$47361,000 

7,820316 

10,053 

$1.95 

88.8 

98.06 

748 

2005 

16,638,497 

251375 
16,254,716 

45 
2,291 

29 

$14320,000 
$458345,000 

$57,764 
$28,198 

$468346,000 

$442,420,000 

$287,093,000 

$7,735,000 

$46,447,000 

7,632,857 

9.978 

$1.73 

88.0 

99.54 

749 

2004 

15,810,465 

262,944 
15.455,340 

46 
7.,257 

30 

$9,696,000 
$377,392,000 

$36,876 
$24,418 

$406,283,000 

$380,972,000 

$218,917,000 

$9,699,000 

$45396,000 

7310373 

10,076 

$1.37 

87.6 

97.19 

742 
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Annex 2 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Consolidating Balance Sheets-March 31,2009-Unaudited-and December 31, 2008 
Consolidating Statements of Income and Retained Earnings Year 

to Date-March 31,2009 and 2008-Unaudited 
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows Year to Date-March 31, 2009 and 2008—Unaudited 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS -MARCH 31,2009-UNAUDrrED AND DECEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AM) RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 3 L 2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORAHON 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - MARCH 31,2009-UNAi;Drrm> AND DECBMBER 31.2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDrrED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - MARCH 31,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDnH> 

gPFICER^S CERTIFICATION 

A review of the affairs and activities of Ohio Valley Electric Coiporation and its wholly-owned 

subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation (the Companies), during the quarters ended 

March 31,2009 and 2008, and December 31»2008 has been made under my supervision, and in my opinion, 

the unaudited fi nancial statements for these periods present fairly the financial conditions of the Companies 

as of March 31,2009 and 2008, and December 31,2008, and the results of the operations, thereof, 

in accordance with gen^^ly accepted accounting principles consistently applied throu^iout the period. To the 

best of my knowledge and belief, there has been no Potential Default, D e ^ H , or Event of Default 

by the Companies and the Companies are in conqiHance with the covenents of the 

current debt agieematts. 

X Secretary and Treasurer 
OmO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION and 

INDIANA-KENTUCKY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
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Annex 3 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Consolidating Balance Sheets-June 30,2009-Unaudited-and December 31,2008 
Consolidating Statements of Income and Retained Earnings Year 

to Date-June 30,2009 and 2008-Unaudited 
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows Year to Date-June 30, 2009 and 2008—Unaudited 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS - JUNE 30.2009-UNAUDrrED AND DECEMBER 31, 2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30.2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDITED 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHIFTS - JUNE 30,2009-UNAUDrrED AND DECEMBER 31,2008 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30,2009 AND 2008-UNAUDrrED 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR TO DATE - JUNE 30.2009 AND 2008-UNAUDrrED 

OFHCER'S CERTIFICATION 

A review of tbe affairs and activities of Ohio Valley Electric Coiporation and its wholly-owned 

subsidiaiy, Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation (die Conipanies), during the quarters ended 

June 30,2009 and 2008, and December 31,2008 has been made tinder my supervision, and in my opinion, 

the unaudited financial statenraits fbr these periods present &irly the financial conditions of the Companies 

as of June 30^ 2009 and 2008, and December31,200S, and the results of the operations, thereof, 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently f^lied throughout the period. To the 

best of my knowledge and belief, there has been no Potential Default. Default, or Event of Defeult 

by the 0>rr^anies and the Ck^R^anies are in compliance with tfie covenents of the 

current dcA>t agrvemoils. 

X Secretary and Treasurer 
O H I O ^ L L E Y ELECTRIC CORPORATION and 

INDIANA-KENTUCKY E I B : T R I C CORPORATION 
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APPENDIX B 

DESCRIPTION OF THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA 

The Bank of Nova Scotia ("Scotiabank" or the "Bank"), founded in 1832, is a Canadian 
chartered bank with its principal office located in Toronto, Ontario. Scotiabank is one of North 
America's premier financial institutions and Canada's most intemational bank. With over 67,000 
employees, Scotiabank and its affiliates serve over 12 million customers throughout the world. 

Scotiabank provides a full range of personal, commercial, corporate and investment-
banking services through its network of branches located in all Canadian provinces and 
territories. Outside Canada, Scotiabank has branches and offices in over 50 countries and 
provides a wide range of banking and related financial services, both directly and through 
subsidiary and associated banks, trust companies and other financial firms. 

For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008, Scotiabank recorded total assets of 
CDN$507.6 biUion (US$417.3 billion) and total deposits of CDN$346.6 billion (US$284.9 
billion). Net income for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008 equaled CDN$3.14 billion 
(US$2.58 billion), compared to CDN$4.05 billion (US$3.3 billion) for the prior fiscal year. 
Amounts above are shown in Canadian dollars and also reflect the United States dollar 
equivalent as of October 31, 2008 (1.0000 United States dollar equals 1.2164 Canadian dollars). 

For the quarter ended April 30, 2009, Scotiabank recorded total assets of CDN$513.6 
billion (US$430.1 billion) and total deposits of CDN$346.9 billion (US$290.5 billion). Net 
income for the six months ended April 30, 2009 equaled CDN$821 million (US$688 million), 
compared to CDN$958 million (US$802 million) for the same period the prior year. Amounts 
above are shown in Canadian dollars and also reflect the United States dollar equivalent as of 
April 30,2009 (1.0000 United States dollar equals 1.1940 Canadian dollars). 

Scotiabank will provide to anyone, upon written request, a copy of its most recent annual 
report, as well as a copy of its most recent quarterly financial report. Requests should be 
directed to: The Bank of Nova Scotia, New York Agency, One Liberty Plaza, 26̂ "̂  Floor, New 
York, NY, 10006. Attention: Isabel Abella, U.S. Power & Utilities. 

The information conceming the Bank contained herein is fiimished solely to provide 
limited introductory information regarding the Bank and does not purport to be comprehensive. 
Such information is qualified in its entirety by the detailed information appearing in the 
documents and financial statements referenced above. 

The delivery of this disclosure information by the Bank shall not create any implication 
that there has been no change in the affairs of the Bank since the date hereof, or that the 
information contained or referred to in this disclosure information is correct as of any time 
subsequent to its date. 
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APPENDIX C 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

We have examined the transcript of proceedings (the "Transcript") relating to the 
issuance by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority (the "Issuer") of $25,000,000 
aggregate principal amount of State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric 
Corporation Project), Series 2009A (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued for the purpose 
of making a loan to assist Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (the "Company") in the financing of 
a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing and installing certain solid waste disposal 
facilities comprising "air quality facilities" as defined in Section 3706.01 of the Ohio Revised 
Code, as more particularly described in the Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2009 (the 
"Indenture") between the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as trustee (the "Trustee"), 
and in the Loan Agreement dated as of August 1, 2009 (the "Agreement") between the Issuer 
and the Company. We have also examined executed counterparts of the Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement and a conformed copy of an executed Bond. 

Based on such examination, we are of the opinion that, under the law existing on the date 
of this opinion: 

1. The Bonds, the Indenture and the Agreement are legal, valid, binding and 
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except that the binding effect and 
enforceability thereof are subject to bankruptcy laws and other laws affecting creditors' rights 
and to the exercise of judicial discretion. 

2. The Bonds constitute special obligations of the State of Ohio, and the principal of 
and interest and any premium on the Bonds and the purchase price thereof (collectively, "debt 
charges") are payable solely fi'om the revenues and other moneys assigned by the Indenture to 
secure those payments. Those revenues and other moneys include the payments required to be 
made by the Company under its promissory note (the "Note") delivered to the Issuer, and 
irrevocably assigned by the Issuer to the Trustee, all pursuant to the Agreement. The Bonds do 
not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the Issuer or the State of Ohio or any 
political subdivision thereof, and the holders or owners thereof have no right to have taxes levied 
by the General Assembly of the State of Ohio or any political subdivision of the State of Ohio for 
the payment of debt charges. 

3. The interest on the Bonds is excluded firom gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), 
except interest on any Bond for any period during which it is held by a "substantial user" or a 
"related person" as those terms are used in Section 147(a) of the Code. Interest on the Bonds is 
not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for purposes of the altemative 
minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations. The interest on the Bonds, and any 
profit made on their sale, exchange or other disposition, are exempt fi*om the Ohio personal 
income tax, the Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income base of the Ohio corporate 
franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic development district income 
taxes in Ohio. We express no opinion as to any other tax consequences regarding the Bonds. 

C-1 



Under the Code, interest on the Bonds is excluded fi-om the calculation of a corporation's 
adjusted current earnings for piuposes of the corporate alternative minimum tax, but interest on 
the Bonds may be subject to a branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing 
business in the United States and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S 
corporations. 

In giving the foregoing opinion, we have assumed and relied upon compliance with the 
covenants of the Issuer and the Company and the accuracy, which we have not independently 
verified, of the representations and certifications of the Issuer and of the Company contained in 
the Transcript. The accuracy of certain of those representations and certifications, and 
comphance by the Issuer and the Company with certain of those covenants, may be necessary for 
the interest on the Bonds to be and to remain excluded fi'om gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. Failure to comply with certain requirements with respect to the Bonds (or with similar 
requirements with respect to certain other bonds issued by the Issuer substantially at the same 
time as the issuance of the Bonds) subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds could cause the 
interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes 
retroactively to their date of issuance. We have also assumed for purposes of this opinion (i) the 
due authorization, execution and delivery by, and the binding effect upon and enforceability 
against, the Trustee of the Indenture and (ii) the due authorization, execution and delivery by, 
and the binding effect upon and enforceability against, the Company of the Agreement and the 
Note. 

We express no opinion concerning the letter of credit issued by The Bank of Nova Scotia, 
acting through its New York Agency, and delivered in connection with the issuance of the 
Bonds. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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NEW ISSUI>—BOOK-ENTRY ONLY 

In the opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, under existing law (i) assuming continuing compliance with certain 
covenants and the accuracy of certain representations, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, except 
interest on any Bond for any period during which it is held by a "substantial user" or a "related person," as those terms are used in Section 147(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (ii) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for 
purposes of the federal altemative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations and (iii) interest on, and any profit made on the sale, 
exchange or other disposition of, the Bonds are exempt from the Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income base of 
the Ohio corporate franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic development district income taxes in CMiio. See TAX 
EXEMPTION. 

$25,000,000 
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

State of Ohio 
Air Quality Revenue Bonds 

(Ohio VaUey Electric Corporation Project), 
Series 2009B 

Interest to accrue from date of issuance Due: February 1,2026 

The Series 2009B Bonds (the "Bonds") are special obligations of the State of Ohio and issued by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authwity 
(the "Issuer"). The Bonds will not constitute a debt, or a pledge of the faith and credit, of the Issuer, the State of Ohio or any political subdivision 
thereof, and the holders or owners of the Bonds will have no right to have taxes levied by the General Assembly of Ohio or any political subdivision of 
Ohio for the payment of the principal of, interest on or purchase price of the Bonds. The Bonds are payable solely from, and secured by a pledge of, the 
loan repayments under a note issued under the terms of a Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") between the Issuer and 

OfflO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
(the "Company") and to the extent provided herein from funds drawn under an irrevocable transferable direct pay letter of credit (the "Letter of 
Credit") issued by 

THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA 
acting through its New York Agency. 

The Letter of Credit will permit the Trustee, The Huntington National Bank, to draw up to (a) an amount sufficient to pay (i) the principal of tbe 
Bonds when due at maturity or upon redemption or acceleration and (ii) the portion of the purchase price of the Bonds tendered to the Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to the principal amount of such Bonds, plus (b) an amount equal to 35 days' interest on the Bonds at a maximum rate of 
12% per annum to pay (i) interest on the Bonds when due and (ii) the portion of the purchase price of the Bonds tendered to the Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to the accrued interest on such Bonds. The Letter of Credit will expire on August 12, 2010 or on the earliest occurrence of 
one or more of the events described herein, unless extended by The Bank of Nova Scotia acting through its New York Agency (the "Letter of Credit 
Bank") (see THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT~The Letter of Credit herein). Unless the Utter of Credit is 
replaced or extended as described herein, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase prior to its expiration. 

The Bonds will initially bear interest at a Weekly Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent as described under THE BONDS—Form and 
Denomination of Bonds; Payments on the Bonds—Interest herein, payable on the first Business Day of each month commencing September I, 2009 
and the date on which the Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase. Upon satisfaction of the conditions specified in the Indenture, the 
Company may from time to tinne change the interest rate determination method for the Bonds to a Daily Rate, a Weekly Rate, a Commercial Paper 
Rate, a Long-Term Interest Rate or an Auction Mode Rate. 

The Bonds are subject to mandatory tender and redemption as described under THE BONDS - Mandatory Tender for Purchase and THE 
BONDS—Redemption of Bonds herein. When a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate is in effect for the Bonds, holders of the Bonds will have the option to 
tender their Bonds for purchase as described under THE BONDS—Optional Tender. 

While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate they will be issued as fully registered bonds in denominations of $100,000 and any 
larger denominations constituting an integral multiple of $5,(XK). The Bonds will be issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust (the "Indenture"), between 
the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as trustee (the 'Trustee"). TTie Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds and will be registered 
initially in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee for The Depository Tru.st Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC acts 
as a securities depository for the Bonds. Except under the limited circumstances described herein. Beneficial Ownws of book-end'y interests in the 
Bonds will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests. Payments of principal or purchase price of, and premium, if any, and interest 
on the Bonds will be made through DTC and disbursements of such payments to Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of DTC and its 
Participants. See THE BONDS—Book-Entry Only System herein. KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated (the 
"Underwriters") will act as underwriters for the Bonds. Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will act as remarketing agent (the "Remarketing Agent") 
for the Bonds. 

PRICE: 100% 

This cover page contains limited information for quick reference only and is not a summary of this Official Statement. Investors should read the 
entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed invesmient decision. 

The Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriters, subject to the approval of their validity by 
Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Cleveland, Ohio, Bond Counsel, as described herein, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be 
passed on for the Underwriters by their counsel. Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, for the Letter of Credit Bank by its U.S. counsel. King & 
Spalding LLP, and by its internal Canadian counsel, and for the Company by its internal counsel and Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P., New York, New 
York. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Issuer by its counsel, Forbes, Fields & Associates Co., L.P.A. Delivery of the Bonds in book-
entry-only form is expected on or about August 12, 2009, through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York, against payment therefor. 

Morgan Stanley 
Dated: August 5, 2009 

KeyBanc Capital Markets 
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No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those 
contained in this Official Statement in connection with the offer made hereby and, if given or made, such 
information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer, the Company, the 
Letter of Credit Bank or the Undenvriters. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale hereunder 
shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer, tbe 
Letter of Credit Bank or the Company since the date hereof. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer or 
solicitation in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or in which the person making 
such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or 
solicitation. The Issuer neither has nor assumes any responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness of the 
information in this Official Statement, all of which has been furnished by others, other than information under THE 
ISSUER. 

This Official Statement contains statements which, to the extent they are not recitations of historical fact, 
constitute "forward-looking statements." Jn this respect, the words "estimate,'' "project," "anticipate,*' "expect," 
"intent," "believe," and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. A number of 
important factors affecting Ohio Valley Electric Corporation's business and fmancial results and those of tts 
contractual counterparties could cause actual results to differ from those stated in the forward-looking statements. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The 
Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a part of, their 
respective responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of 
this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such infonnation. 

CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING MAY ENGAGE IN TRANSACTIONS 
THAT STABILIZE, MAINTAIN OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE BONDS, INCLUDING BY 
ENTERING STABILIZING BIDS. FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THESE ACTIVITIES, SEE VNDERWRITING 
HEREIN. 



$25,000,000 
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

State of Ohio 
Air Quality Revenue Bonds 

(Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), 
Series 2009B 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

This Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, is provided to fumish certain 
information in connection with the issuance by the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, a 
body politic and corporate of the State of Ohio ("Issuer") of State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue 
Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009B, in the aggregate principal 
amount of $25,000,000 (the "Bonds")- The Issuer neither has nor assumes any responsibility as 
to the accuracy or completeness of the information in this Official Statement, all of which has 
been furnished by others, other than the information pertaining to the Issuer under THE ISSUER. 

The Bonds will be issued under and pursuant to a resolution of the Issuer adopted on 
October 14, 2008 ("Resolution") and an Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2009 
("Indenture"), between the Issuer and The Huntington National Bank, as trustee (in such 
capacity, the "Trustee"). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the 
meanings given to them in the Indenture. 

Pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2009 C*Loan Agreement"), between 
the Issuer and the Company, the Issuer will loan to the Company the proceeds of the Bonds to 
assist the Company in financing a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing and installing 
certain solid waste disposal facilities comprising "air quality facilities", as defmed in Chapter 
3706, Ohio Revised Code, as amended (the "Act"), for Units 1-5 of the Kyger Creek Generating 
Station owned by the Company located in the County of Gallia, Ohio (the "Project"). The term 
"Plant" as used herein means the Kyger Creek Generating Station. 

In order to evidence the loan from the Issuer (the "Loan") and to provide for its 
repayment, the Company will issue a nonnegotiable promissory note (the "Note") pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement. Payments required under the Note will be sufficient, together with any other 
funds on deposit in the Bond Fund (hereinafter described) under the Indenture, to pay the 
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and to make or provide for payments 
to the Trustee, equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest, if any, 
upon tender thereof ("Purchase Price"). The Bonds will not otherwise be secured by a mortgage 
on̂  or security interest in, any of the Project or any other property of the Company. 

The Bonds will initially bear interest at a Weekly Rate until converted to another 
permitted interest rate mode as described herein. While accruing interest at the Daily Rate or 
Weekly Rate, the Bonds are subject to optional tender and mandatory tender for purchase, as 
described herein. Bonds converted to a different interest rate mode will be subject to mandatory 
tender upon conversion. When a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate is in effect for the Bonds, holders of 
the Bonds will have the option to tender their Bonds for purchase as described herein. Each 
Interest Rate for an Interest Rate Period for the Bonds will be determined by the Remarketing 
Agent as set forth in the Indenture. 



While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate they will be issued in 
denominations of $100,000 and any larger denominations constituting an integral multiple of 
$5,000. The Bonds will be held by The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), or its nominee, as 
securities depository with respect to the Bonds. See THE BONDS ~ Book-Entry Only System. 

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Company will cause to be delivered to the 
Trustee an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit (the "Letter of Credit") issued by The Bank of Nova 
Scotia, acting through its New York Agency ("Letter of Credit Bank"), in the initial aggregate stated 
amount of $25,287,671.23. Under the Letter of Credit, the Trustee will be penmtted to draw up to 
(a) an amount sufficient to pay (i) the principal of the Bonds when due at maturity, redemption or 
acceleration and (ii) the portion of the Purchase Price of the Bonds tendered to the Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to the principal amount of such Bonds, plus (b) an amount equal to 35 
days' interest on the Bonds at a maximum rate of 12% per annum to pay (i) interest on the Bonds 
when due and (ii) the portion of the Purchase Price of the Bonds tendered to the Trustee and not 
remarketed corresponding to the accrued interest on such Bonds. The expiration date of the Letter of 
Credit is August 12,2010 unless earlier terminated or extended as described under THE LETTER 
OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT—The Letter of Credit. The Letter of Credit 
may be replaced by an Altemate Letter of Credit (as defined herein) prior to its expiration date as 
described under THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT— 
Replacement of Letter of Credit herein. If the Letter of Credit expires, is replaced by an Altemate 
Letter of Credit or is surrendered, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase, as 
described under THE BONDS— Mandatory Tender for Purchase herein. The Letter of Credit will 
be issued pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of the date of issuance of the Bonds 
(the "Reimbursement Agreement"), among the Letter of Credit Bank, the lenders named therein, the 
Company and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as administrative agent (the "Administrative Agent"). 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer, and are to be paid solely from, and 
will be secured by a pledge of, payments to be made to the Issuer under the terms of the 
Loan Agreement and the Note and funds drawn under the Letter of Credit. The Bonds wiU 
not be secured by a mortgage or security interest in the Project or any other property of the 
Company, See THE BONDS - Security for the Bonds, 

Brief descriptions of the Issuer, the Project, the Company, the Letter of Credit Bank and 
certain provisions of the Bonds, the Loan Agreement, the Note, the Indenture, the Letter of 
Credit and the Reimbursement Agreement are included in this Official Statement. The 
descriptions and summaries contained herein do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. 
Certain information with respect to the Company is set forth in Appendix A hereto. Certain 
information with respect to the Letter of Credit Bank is set forth m Appendix B hereto. 
Appendix C to this Official Statement sets forth the form of opinion Bond Counsel proposes to 
deliver relating to the Bonds. The descriptions herein of provisions of the Loan Agreement, the 
Indenture, the Letter of Credit and the Reimbursement Agreement are qualified in their entirety 
by reference to such documents, and the description herein of provisions of the Bonds is 
qualified in its entirety by reference to the form thereof and the information with respect thereto 
included in the aforesaid documents. All such descriptions are further qualified in their entirety 
by reference to laws and principles of equity relating to or affecting generally the enforcement of 
creditor's rights. Copies of such documents may be obtained from the office of the Company 
and are available for inspection at the office of tiie Tmstee. Words and terms not defined herein 
shall have the meanings set forth in the respective documents. 



The Bonds may not be suitable for all investors. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds 
should read this entire Official Statement for details of the Bonds, the fmancial condition of the 
Company and certain other factors that could adversely affect the utility industry, including 
specifically the information under the caption RISK FACTORS in Appendix A 

THE ISSUER 

The Issuer was organized pursuant to the Act. Under the Act, the Issuer is a body 
corporate and politic, with full power and authority to issue the Bonds and to enter into and 
perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture. The Issuer has no taxing 
power. 

THE BONDS ARE SPECL\L OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE OF OHIO AND 
SHALL NOT REPRESENT OR CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH 
AND CREDTF OR TAXING POWER OF THE ISSUER, THE STATE OF OHIO OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF OHIO, AND THE HOLDERS AND OWNERS THEREOF 
SHALL HAVE NO RIGHT TO HAVE TAXES LEVIED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
OF OHIO OR THE TAXING AUTHORITY OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF OHIO 
FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, INTEREST ON OR PURCHASE PRICE OF 
THE BONDS, BUT THE BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES 
AND FUNDS PLEDGED FOR THEIR PAYMENT AS AUTHORIZED BY THE ACT. 

THE PROJECT 

The Project consists of various systems which are designed for the disposal of solid 
wastes resuhing from the operation of Units 1-5 at the Plant. The solid waste disposal facilities, 
which comprise "air quality facilities" as defined in Section 3706.01 of the Act, are comprised of 
the portion ofeach flue gas desulfurization system ("FGD System") to be constmcted with 
respect to Units 1-5 at the Plant, rated at 217 megawatts each, that relates to the disposal of solid 
waste generated as part of the FGD System. 

The Issuer also expects to issue $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of 
Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009A (the 
"Series 2009A Bonds"), $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality 
Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009C (the "Series 2009C 
Bonds") and $25,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue 
Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009D (the "Series 2009D Bonds") 
either at the same time as the Bonds or shortly thereafter for the purpose of financing a portion of 
the cost of the Project. The Series 2009A Bonds, Series 2009C Bonds and Series 2009D Bonds 
will be payable from payments to be made by the Company pursuant to separate loan agreements 
with the Issuer and also will be secured by separate letters of credit. 

In addition, the Company anticipates requesting the Issuer to issue an additional 
$100,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its State of Ohio Air Quality Revenue Bonds (Ohio 
Valley Electric Corporation Project), Series 2009E (the "Series 2009E Bonds") for the purpose 
of financing a portion of the cost of the Project. The Series 2009E Bonds will be payable from 
payments made by the Company pursuant to a separate loan agreement with the Issuer. 



USE OF PROCEEDS 

The proceeds received by the Issuer from the sale of the Bonds will be deposited in the 
Constmction Fund created under the Indenture to be used to reimburse the Company for costs of 
the Project and certain costs incident to the sale and issuance of the Bonds. 

THE BONDS 

This OfHclal Statement does not provide any information regarding the Bonds after 
the date, if any, on which the Bonds convert to bear interest, as permitted by the Indenture, 
at interest rates other than a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate. The Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender in the event of any conversion to a different rate, including any 
conversion between a Weekly Rate and a Daily Rate. See - Mandatory Tender for Purchase 
below. The Bonds may be tendered for purchase at the option of the owners while bearing 
interest at a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate. See THE BONDS - Optional Tender below. 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer and will be payable solely fi'om the 
revenues and receipts arising out of or in connection with the Loan Agreement, the Note and, as 
long as the Letter of Credit is in effect, funds drawn under the Letter of Credit. 

General 

The Bonds will be dated as of the date of the initial authentication and delivery thereof 
and will mature on Febmary 1, 2026. The Bonds initially will bear interest at a Weekly Rate 
commencing on the date of the issuance of the Bonds, subject to conversion to other interest rate 
modes as described herein. 

Beneficial interests in the Bonds will initially be issued pursuant to a Book-Entry Only 
System ("Book-Entry Only System") maintained by DTC, as described below under the caption 
Book-Entry Onfy System. Under the Indenture, the Tmstee and the Issuer may appoint a 
successor securities depository to DTC. (DTC, together with any such successor securities 
depository, is hereinafter referred to as the "Securities Depository"). The following information 
is subject in its entirety to the provisions described below under the caption Book-Entry Onty 
System while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry Only System. 

Upon surrender of the Bonds, principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds are payable 
at maturity or upon redemption at the principal office of the Tmstee, or at the option of the 
owner at the principal office of any paying agent designated as provided in the Indenture. As 
long as the Bonds are held by DTC, interest will be paid to DTC on each payment date. If the 
book-entry system is discontinued, interest on the Bonds will be payable by check or draft 
mailed by the Tmstee to the registered owners. 

Form and Denomination of Bonds; Payments on the Bonds 

General 

While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate they will be issued only 
as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in denominations of $100,000 and any larger 



denomination constituting an integral multiple of $5,000 (an "Authorized Denomination"). The 
Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee of DTC. 
DTC acts as securities depository for the Bonds and individual purchases of Bonds may be made 
in book-entry form only. So long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, purchasers of Bonds 
will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. So long as Cede 
& Co. is the registered owner of such Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the 
Bondholders or registered owners or holder shall mean Cede & Co., and shall not mean the 
Beneficial Owners (as defined below) of the Bonds. 

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and interest on 
the Bonds are payable to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, which will, in tum, remit such 
amounts to the DTC Participants (as defined below) for subsequent disbursement to the 
Beneficial Owners. See - Book-Entry Only System below. 

The Huntington National Bank has been appointed as Tmstee and Paying Agent under 
the Indenture. The designated corporate tmst office of the Tmstee and Paying Agent is located, 
initially, in Columbus, Ohio. 

Except in connection with the purchase of Bonds tendered for purchase, the Tmstee will 
not be required to make any transfer or exchange of any Bond during the ten days prior to the 
mailing of a notice of Bonds selected for redemption or, with respect to a Bond, after such Bond 
or any portion thereof has been selected for redemption. Registration of transfers and exchanges 
shall be made without charge to the Bondholders, except that any required taxes or other 
govemmental charges shall be paid by the Bondholder requesting registration of transfer or 
exchange. 

Interest 

Interest on the Bonds will be payable as described below. Interest on the Bonds will 
initially be payable at a Weekly Rate on the first Business Day ofeach month, commencing 
September 1, 2009. The interest rate determination method for the Bonds may be changed by the 
Company as described under Change in Interest Rate Determination Method helovi. See 
Summary below for a table summarizing certain provisions of the Bonds while bearing interest at 
a Weekly Rate or Daily Rate. 

'̂ Business Da / ' means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, (ii) a day on which 
commercial banks in New York, New York or the city in which the payment office of the Letter 
of Credit Bank is located (currently. New York, New York) are required or authorized by law to 
close, (iii) a day which the Tmstee shall advise the Letter of Credit Bank in writing from time to 
time is a day on which the designated corporate tmst office of the Tmstee is required or 
authorized by law to close, (iv) a day which the Tmstee shall advise the Letter of Credit Bank in 
writing from time to time is a day on which the principal office of the Remarketing Agent that is 
administering the Bonds is required or authorized by law to close, or (v) a day on which the New 
York Stock Exchange is closed. 

Interest will accme on the unpaid portion of the principal of the Bonds from the last date 
to which interest was paid, or ifno interest has been paid, from the date of the original issuance 
of the Bonds until the entire principal amount of the Bonds is paid. When interest is payable at a 



Daily Rate or Weekly Rate, interest will be computed on the basis of the actual number of days 
elapsed over a year of 365 days (366 days in leap years). 

Daily Rate. When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Daily Rate, the Remarketing 
Agent will set a Daily Rate on or before 10:00 A.M., New York City time, on each Business Day 
for that Business Day. Each Daily Rate will be the minimum rate necessary (as detennined by 
the Remarketing Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparable to the 
Bonds known by the Remarketing Agent to have been priced or traded imder then-prevailing 
market conditions) for the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the day the Daily Rate is set 
at their principal amount (without regard to accmed interest). The Daily Rate for any non-
Business Day will be the rate for the last day for which a rate was set. 

Weeklv Rate. When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Weekly Rate, the Remarketing 
Agent will set a Weekly Rate on or before 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the last Business 
Day before the commencement of a period during which the Bonds are to bear interest at a 
Weekly Rate and on each Wednesday thereafter so long as interest on the Bonds is to be payable 
at a Weekly Rate or, if any Wednesday is not a Business Day, on the next preceding Business 
Day. Each Weekly Rate will be the minimum rate necessary (as determined by the Remarketing 
Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparable to the Bonds known by 
the Remarketing Agent lo have been priced or traded under then-prevailing market conditions) 
for the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the date the Weekly Rate is set at then* principal 
amount (without regard to accmed interest). The first Weekly Rate after the delivery of the 
Letter of Credit by the Letter of Credit Bank will apply to the period begirming on the date of 
issuance of the Bonds and ending on the next Wednesday. Thereafter, each Weekly Rate shall 
apply to (i) the period beginning on the Thursday after the Weekly Rate is set and ending on the 
following Wednesday or, if earlier, ending on the day before the effective date of a new method 
of determining the interest rate on the Bonds or (ii) the period beginning on the effective date of 
the change to a Weekly Rate and ending on the next Wednesday. 

Fallback Interest Period and Rate. If the appropriate Daily Rate or Weekly Rate is not or 
cannot be determined for any reason, the method of determining interest on the Bonds will be 
payable at the Altemate Rate. 

"Altemate Rate" means, as of any date, the rate per annum equal to the Securities 
Industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index of Municipal Market Data 
most recently available as of the date of determinafion or, if such index is no longer available, or 
if the rate is no longer published, a comparable index as described in the Indenture. 

Calculation and Notice of Interest. The Remarketing Agent will provide the Tmstee and 
the Company with notice in writing or by other written electronic means or by telephone 
promptly confirmed by facsimile transmission by 1:00 P.M., New York City time, (i) on the last 
Business Day of a month in which interest on the Bonds was payable at a Daily Rate, of the 
Daily Rate for each day in such month, (ii) on each day on which a Weekly Rate becomes 
effective, of the Weekly Rate and (iii) on any Business Day preceding any redemption or 
purchase date, any interest rate requested by the Tmstee in order to enable it to calculate the 
accmed interest, if any, due on such redemption or purchase date. Using the rates supplied by 
such notice, the Tmstee will calculate the interest payable on the Bonds, The Remarketing 
Agent will infonn the Tmstee and the Company orally at the oral request of either of them of any 



interest rate so set. The Tmstee will confirm the effective interest rate in writing to any 
Bondholder who requests it. 

The setting of the rates by the Remarketing Agent and the calculation of interest payable 
on the Bonds by the Tmstee as provided in the Indenture will be conclusive and binding on the 
Issuer, the Company, the Tmstee and the owners of the Bonds. 

Change in Interest Rate Determination Method. The Company may change the method 
of determining the interest rate on all but not part of the Bonds, from time to time by notifying 
the Issuer, the Tmstee, the Letter of Credit Bank and the Remarketing Agent. The Company's 
notice will specify (i) the effective date of the proposed change in interest rate determination 
method and (ii) a statement as to whether the Letter of Credit shall be terminated in cormection 
with such change. The interest rate on the Bonds will be determined on the basis of the new 
interest rate determination method on the effective date specified in the Company's notice, 
provided that: (i) the Company's notice complies with the provisions of the Indenture and the 
change to the proposed interest rate determination method complies with certain limitations set 
forth in the Indenture; and (ii) except when the change is to a Daily Rate from a Weekly Rate or 
to a Weekly Rate from a Daily Rate, a Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel required under the 
Indenture has been delivered with the notice and also confirmed on that effective date (see 
Cancellation of Change in Interest Rate Determination Method if Opinion of Tax Counsel is Not 
Confirmed below). It is cunently anticipated that, should any of the Bonds be converted to bear 
interest at any rate other than a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate, a new reoffering memorandum or 
reoffering circular will be distributed describing the Bonds while they bear interest at any such 
interest rate. 

Notice of Change in Interest Rate Determination Method. The Tmstee, upon receiving 
notice from the Company pursuant to the Indenture, is required to give at least 15 days written 
notice by first-class mail to the Bondholders before the effective date of a change in the interest 
rate determination method. Each notice will be effective when sent and will state: (i) that the 
interest rate determination method will change; (ii) the proposed effective date of the new 
interest rate determination method; and (iii) that the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender 
on the effective date of the change and the information required to be included in a notice of 
tender pursuant to the Indenture. See Mandatory Tender for Purchase-Notice of Tender below. 

Cancellation of Change in Interest Rate Determination Method if Opinion of Tax Counsel 
is Not Confirmed. No change will be made in the interest rate detennination method at the 
direction of the Company as described under Change in Interest Rate Determination Method 
above if the Company shall fail to deliver any required Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel and 
confirmadon thereof described under Change in Interest Rate Determination Method above. If 
notice of a change in the interest rate determination method has been mailed and, subsequently, a 
Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel is not confirmed, then the Tmstee shall so notify the 
bondholders and the Bonds shall still be subject to a mandatory tender on the proposed date of 
change in the interest rate determination method and the Remarketing Agent shall remarket the 
Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Indenture. 



Special Considerations Relating to the Bonds 

The Remarketing Agent is Paid by the Company 

The Remarketing Agent's responsibilities include determining the interest rate from time 
to time and remarketing Bonds that are optionally or mandatorily tendered by the owners thereof 
(subject, in each case, to the terms of the Remarketing Agreement (as defined herein)), all as 
further described in this Official Statement. The Remarketing Agent is appointed by the 
Company and is paid by the Company for its services. As a result, the interests of the 
Remarketing Agent may differ from those of existing holders and potential purchasers of Bonds. 

The Remarketing Agent Routinely Purchases Bonds for its Own Account 

The Remarketing Agent acts as remarketing agent for a variety of variable rate demand 
obligations and, in its sole discretion, routinely purchases such obligations for its own account in 
order to achieve a successful remarketing of the obligations (i.e., because there are otherwise not 
enough buyers to purchase the obligations) or for other reasons. The Remarketing Agent is 
permitted, but not obligated, to purchase tendered Bonds for its own account and, if it does so, it 
may cease doing so at any time without notice. The Remarketing Agent may also make a market 
in the Bonds by routinely purchasing and selling Bonds other than in connection with an optional 
or mandatory tender and remarketing. Such purchases and sales may be at or below par. 
However, the Remarketing Agent is not required to make a market in the Bonds. The 
Remarketing Agent may also sell any Bonds it has purchased to one or more affiliated 
investment vehicles for collective ownership or enter into derivative anangements with affiliates 
or others in order to reduce its exposiu^e to the Bonds. The purchase of Bonds by the 
Remarketing Agent may create the appearance that there is greater third party demand for the 
Bonds in the market than is actually the case. The practices described above also may resuh in 
fewer Bonds being tendered in a remarketing. 

Bonds mav be Offered at Different Prices on Anv Date 

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Remarketing Agent is required to determine the applicable 
rate of interest that, in its judgment, is the minimum rate necessary (as determined by the 
Remarketing Agent based on the examination of tax-exempt obligations comparable to the 
Bonds known by the Remarketing Agent to have been priced or traded under then-prevailing 
market conditions) for the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds on the day the rate is set at their 
principal amount (without regard to accmed interest). The interest rate will reflect, among other 
factors, the level of market demand for the Bonds (including whether the Remarketing Agent is 
willing to purchase Bonds for its own accoimt). There may or may not be Bonds tendered and 
remarketed on a day that the rate on the Bonds are set, the Remarketing Agent may or may not 
be able to remarket any Bonds tendered for purchase on such date at par and the Remarketing 
Agent may sell Bonds at varying prices to different investors on such date or any other date. The 
Remarketmg Agent is not obligated to advise purchasers in a remarketing if it does not have third 
party buyers for all of the Bonds at the remarketing price. In the event the Remarketing Agent 
owns any Bonds for its own account, it may, in its sole discretion in a secondary market 
transaction outside the tender process, offer such Bonds on any date, including the day that the 
rate on the Bonds are set, at a discount to par to some investors. 



The Ability to Sell the Bonds other than through Tender Process May be Limited 

The Remarketing Agent may buy and sell Bonds other than through the tender process. 
However, it is not obligated to do so and may cease doing so at any time without notice and may 
require holders that wish to tender their Bonds to do so through the Tmstee with appropriate 
notice. Thus, investors who purchase the Bonds, whether in a remarketing or otherwise, should 
not assume that they will be able to sell their Bonds other than by tendering the Bonds in 
accordance with the tender process. 

Under Certain Circumstances, the Remarketing Agent May Be Removed, Resign or Cease 
Remarketing the Bonds, Without a Successor Being Named 

Under certain circumstances, the Remarketmg Agent may be removed or have the ability 
to resign or cease its remarketing efforts, without a successor having been named, subject to the 
terms of the Remarketing Agreement. 

Optional Tender 

While the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate, the holder of any Bond 
may elect to have its Bond (or any portion of its Bond equal to the lowest Authorized 
Denomination or whole multiples thereof) purchased by the Tmstee at the Purchase Price. 

Daily Rate Tender. When interest on a Bond is payable at a Daily Rate and a book-entry 
system is in effect, a Beneficial Owner of such Bond (through its Direct Participant (as defined 
in Book-Entry Only System below) in the Securities Depository) may tender its interest in a Bond 
(or portion of Bond) by delivering an irrevocable written notice by telecopy, facsimile 
transmission or e-mail transmission to the Trustee and an inevocable notice to the Remarketing 
Agent by telephone, telegraph or facsimile transmission, in each case prior to 11:00 A.M., New 
York City time, on a Business Day, stafing the principal amount of the Bond (or portion of 
Bond) being tendered, payment instmctions for the Purchase Price and the Business Day (which 
may be the date the notice is delivered) the Bond (or portion of Bond) is to be purchased. The 
Beneficial Owner will effect delivery of such Bond by causmg such Direct Participant to transfer 
its interest in the Bond equal to such Beneficial Owner's interest on the records of the Securities 
Depository to the participant account of the Tmstee or its agent with the Securifies Depository. 
Any nofice received by the Tmstee after 11:00 A.M., New York City time, will be deemed to 
have been given on the next Business Day. 

When interest on a Bond is payable at a Daily Rate and a book-entry system is not in 
effect, a holder of a Bond may tender the Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering (i) the notices 
described above (which must include the certificate number of the Bond) and (ii) the Bond, to 
the Tmstee by 1:00 P.M., New York City time, on the date of purchase. 

Weeklv Rate Tender. When interest on a Bond is payable at a Weekly Rate and a book-
entry system is in effect, a Beneficial Owner of such Bond (through its Direct Participant in the 
Securities Depository) may tender its interest in a Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering an 
hrevocable written notice by telecopy, facsimile transmission or e-mail transmission to the 
Tmstee and an inevocable notice to the Remarketing Agent by telephone, telegraph or facsimile 
transmission, in each case prior to 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on a Business Day stating the 



principal amount of the Bond (or portion of Bond) being tendered, payment instmctions for the 
Purchase Price and the date, which must be a Business Day at least seven days after the notice is 
delivered, on which the Bond (or portion of Bond) is to be purchased. The Beneficial Owner 
shall effect delivery of such Bond by causing such Direct Participant to transfer its interest in the 
Bond equal to such Beneficial Ovmer's interest on the records of the Securities Depository to the 
participant account of the Tmstee or its agent with the Securities Depository. 

When interest on a Bond is payable at a Weekly Rate and a book-entry system is not in 
effect, a holder of a Bond may tender the Bond (or portion of Bond) by delivering (i) the notices 
as described above (which must include the certificate number of the Bond) and (ii) the Bond, to 
the Tmstee by 1:00 P.M., New York City time, on the date of purchase. 

Payment of Purchase Price. Payment of the Purchase Price of Bonds to be purchased 
upon optional tender as described above will be made by the Tmstee in immediately available 
funds by 3:00 P.M., New York City time, on the date of purchase. No purchase of Bonds by the 
Tmstee will be deemed to be a payment or redemption of the Bonds or of any portion thereof and 
such purchase will not operate to extinguish or discharge the indebtedness evidenced by such 
Bonds. So long as the Letter of Credit is in effect, all payments of Purchase Price for the Bonds 
shall be made in accordance with the Indenture. See Summary below. 

Provisions Applicable to All Tenders. Bonds for which the owners have given notice of 
tender for purchase but which are not delivered on the tender date shall be deemed tendered. 
Bonds tendered for purchase on a date after a call for redemption but before the redemption date 
will be purchased pursuant to the tender. 

Notice in respect of tenders and Bonds tendered must be delivered as follows: 

Tmstee 
The Huntington National Bank 
The Huntington National Bank 
7 Easton Oval-EA4E63 
Columbus, OH 43219 
Attn: James Schultz 
Telephone: 614-331-8698 

1 Fax: 614-331-5862 

Remarketing Agent 
Morgan Stanley 
1221 Avenue of the Americas, 30th Floor 
New York, NY 10020 
Attn: Municipal Short Term Products 
Tel: 212-762-8263 
Fax:212-507-1937 
E-mail: muni-short-term@morganstanley.com 

Irrevocability 

Each notice of tender constitutes an inevocable tender for purchase of the Bond (or 
portion thereof) to which the notice relates on the purchase date at a price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount of such Bond (or portion thereof) plus any interest thereon accmed and unpaid 
as of the purchase date. The determination of the Tmstee as to whether a notice of tender has 
been properly sent will be conclusive and binding upon the Bondholders. 

The Tmstee may refiise to accept delivery of any Bond for which a proper instmment of 
transfer has not been provided. If any ovmer of a Bond who gave notice of optional tender or 
which is subject to mandatory tender fails to deliver its Bond to the Tmstee at the place and on 
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the applicable date and time specified, or fails to deliver its Bond properly endorsed, and moneys 
for the payment of such Bond are on deposit with the Tmstee, its Bond shall constitute an 
undelivered Bond and interest shall cease to accme on its Bonds as of the tender date and such 
owner shall have no right under the Indenture other than the right to receive payment of the 
Purchase Price thereof 

Remarketing and Purchase 

Except to the extent the Company directs the Remarketing Agent not to remarket Bonds 
and except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the Remarketing Agent for the Bonds will 
offer for sale and use reasonable efforts to sell all Bonds tendered for purchase (as described 
below) at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accmed interest, if any, to 
the purchase date. The Tmstee will pay the Purchase Price of the Bonds tendered for purchase 
first from the proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds to persons other than the Company, the 
affiliates of the Company and the Issuer and, if such proceeds are insufficient, second from the 
proceeds of a draw upon the Letter of Credit and, third, from money provided by the Company 
or otherwise available. See THE BONDS - Special Considerations above and THE 
REMARKETING AGREEMENT below. 

Redemption of Bonds 

The Bonds are subject to redemption as described below: 

Optional Redemption. When interest on the Bonds is payable at a Daily Rate or Weekly 
Rate, the Bonds may be redeemed in whole or in part at the option of the Company, on any 
Business Day. 

Extraordinary Optional Redemption. The Bonds are subject to redemption by the Issuer 
in whole or in part on any date if the Company, upon the occunence of any of the following 
events, exercises its option to direct that redemption from moneys available therefor at a 
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accmed and unpaid interest to 
the redemption date: 

(a) The Project or the Plant shall have been damaged or destroyed to such an extent 
that the Company deems it not practical or desirable to rebuild, repair or restore 
the Project or the Plant, as the case may be. 

(b) Title to, or the temporary use of, all or a significant part of the Project or the Plant 
shall have been taken under the exercise of the power of eminent domain so as to 
render the Project unsatisfactory to the Company for its intended purpose. 

(c) As a result of any changes in the Constitution of the State of Ohio, the 
Constitution of the United States of America or any state or federal laws or as a 
result of legislative or administrative action (whether state or federal) or by final 
decree, judgment or order of any court or administrative body (whether state or 
federal) entered after any contest thereof by the Issuer or the Company in good 
faith, the Loan Agreement shall have become void or unenforceable or impossible 
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of performance in accordance with the intent and purpose of the parties as 
described therein. 

(d) Unreasonable burdens or excessive liabilities shall have been imposed upon the 
Issuer or the Company with respect to the Project or the Plant or the operation 
thereof, including, without limitation, the imposition of federal, state or other ad 
valorem, property, income or other taxes not being imposed on the date of the 
Loan Agreement. 

(e) Changes in the economic availability of raw materials, operating supplies, energy 
sources or supplies or facilities (including, but not limited to, facilities in 
cormection with the disposal of industrial wastes) necessary for the operation of 
the Project or the Plant occur or technological or other changes occur which in the 
Company's reasonable judgment render the Project or the Plant uneconomic or 
obsolete. 

(i) Any court or administrative body shall enter a judgment, order or decree, or shall 
take administrative action, requiring the Company to cease all or any substantial 
part of its operations served by the Project or the Plant to such extent that the 
Company is or will be prevented from carrying on its normal operations at the 
Project or the Plant for a period of six consecutive months. 

(g) The termination by the Company of operations at the Plant. 

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption 
at any time in whole, or in part if such partial redemption will preserve the exemption from 
federal income taxation of interest on the remaining outstanding Bonds, at a redemption price 
equal to the principal amount thereof together with unpaid interest accmed to the date fixed for 
redemption, and without premium, if (a) a final decree or judgment of any federal court, in which 
the Company participates to the extent it deems sufficient, or (b) a final action by the Internal 
Revenue Service, in proceedings in which the Company participates to the extent it deems 
sufficient, determines that the interest paid or payable on Bonds to a person, other than, as 
provided in Section 147(a) of the Code, a "substantial user" of the Project or a "related person", 
is or was includable in the gross income of the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes 
under the Code, as a result of the failure by the Company to observe or perform any covenant, 
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under the Loan Agreement or the 
inaccuracy of any representation by the Company under the Loan Agreement or receipt by the 
Company of an Opinion of Tax Counsel to such effect obtained by the Company and rendered at 
the request of the Company; provided, however, that no decree or judgment by any court or 
action by the Internal Revenue Service shall be considered final unless the registered owner or 
Beneficial Owner involved in such proceeding or action (i) gives the Company and the Tmstee 
prompt written notice of the commencement thereof and (ii) if the Company agrees to pay all 
expenses in connection therewith and to indemnify such registered owner or Beneficial Owner 
against all liabilities in connection therewith, offers the Company the opportunity to control the 
defense thereof Any such redemption shall be made on a date determined by the Tmstee not 
more than 180 days after the date of such final decree, judgment or action. The Tmstee shall 
give the Issuer and the Company not less than 45 days written notice of such date. 
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Notice of Redemption. Whenever Bonds are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall give 
notice of redemption by mailing such notice to the registered owner ofeach Bond to be 
redeemed, at least 30 days prior to the redemption date, as provided in the Indenture. 

With respect to an optional redemption of Bonds as described under Optional Redemption 
or Extraordinary Optional Redemption above, unless moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Trustee 
prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such notice may state that said redemption shall be 
conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Tmstee on or prior to the date fixed for 
redemption. If such moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the Issuer 
shall not redeem such Bonds, the redemption price shall not be due and payable and the Trustee 
shall give notice, in the same manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such 
moneys were not so received and that such Bonds will not be redeemed. 

During the period that DTC or the DTC nominee is the registered holder of the 
Bonds, the Trustee will not be responsible for mailing notices of redemption, or other 
notices described herein, to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See Book-Entry Only 
System below. 

Mandatory Tender for Purchase 

The Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase under certain circumstances. By 
acceptance ofeach Bond, the holder agrees to sell and sunender its Bond, properly endorsed, 
under the conditions described below. All purchases will be made in funds immediately 
available on the purchase date and will be at the Purchase Price. Bonds tendered for purchase on 
a date after a call for redemption but before the redemption date will be purchased pursuant to 
the tender. No purchase of Bonds shall be deemed to be a payment or redemption of the Bonds 
or of any portion thereof and such purchase will not operate to extinguish or discharge the 
indebtedness evidenced by such Bonds. 

For so long as the Bonds are held in book-entry form, the requirement for physical 
delivery of the Bonds in connection with any purchase pursuant to the provisions described 
below are deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transfened by DTC on 
the records of DTC. See — Book-Entry Only System below. 

Mandatory Tender Upon a Change in the Method of Determining the Interest Rate on the 
Bonds. On the effective date of the change in the method of determining the interest rate on the 
Bonds, the Bonds will be purchased on the effective date of such change at the Purchase Price. 

At least 15 days before each mandatory tender occasioned by such change, the Tmstee 
will mail a notice of tender by first-class mail to each Bondholder at the holder's registered 
address. Each notice of tender will identify the Bonds to be purchased and will state, among 
other things, (i) the purchase date; (ii) the Purchase Price; (iii) that the Bonds to be tendered must 
be sunendered to collect the Purchase Price; (iv) the address at which the Bonds must be 
sunendered; and (v) that interest on the Bonds to be tendered ceases to accme to such holder on 
the purchase date and such holder will be entitied to the Purchase Price on the purchase date. 
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Mandatory Tender Upon Substitution of Alternate Letter of Credit. The Bonds shall be 
subject to mandatory tender at the Purchase Price on the date five Business Days prior to the date 
on which an Altemate Letter of Credit is to be substituted for the Letter of Credit (the 
'̂ Substitution Tender Date"). Bonds purchased pursuant to this provision shall be delivered by 
the holders at or before 12:00 noon, New York City time, on such Substitution Tender Date, and, 
subject to the Indenture, payment of the Purchase Price of such Bonds shall be made by wire 
transfer in immediately available funds by the Tmstee on such Substitution Tender Date. The 
Tmstee shall give notice of such mandatory tender by mail to the holders of the Bonds no less 
than twenty (20) days prior to the Substitution Tender Date. The notice shall state (i) that the 
Bonds are subject to mandatory tender; (ii) the Substitution Tender Date; (iii) the Purchase Price; 
(iv) that Bonds must be sunendered to collect the Purchase Price; (v) the address at which the 
Bonds must be sunendered; and (vi) that interest on Bonds subject to mandatory tender will 
cease to accme to such holder from and after the Substitution Tender Date and such holder will 
be entitled only to the Purchase Price on the Substitution Tender Date. The failure to mail such 
notice with respect to any Bond shall not affect the validity of the mandatory tender of any other 
Bond with respect to which notice was so mailed. Any notice mailed will be conclusively 
presumed to have been given, whether or not actually received by any holder. 

"Altemate Letter of Credit" means, with respect to the Bonds, a letter of credit or otiier 
security or liquidity device issued in accordance with tiie requirements of the Indenture which 
will have a term of not less than one year and will have substantially the same material terms as 
the Letter of Credit; provided that such letter of credit or other security or liquidity device may 
(and shall if the Bonds shall provide for redemption premium while it is in effect) provide for 
coverage of premium payable upon redemption of the Bonds. 

Mandatory Tender Due to an Event of Default Under Reimbursement Agreement. 
Whenever the Letter of Credit is in effect, the Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender if the 
Tmstee receives a written notice from the Administrative Agent that an event of default, as 
defined in the Reimbursement Agreement, has occuned and is continuing, and the 
Administrative Agent directs the Tmstee to effect such mandatory tender. See THE LETTER OF 
CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT—The Reimbursement Agreement herein. Such 
Bonds subject to mandatory tender will be purchased at the Purchase Price on the default tender 
date specified by the Letter of Credit Bank in such written notice (the "Default Tender Date"). 
Such Default Tender Date shall be a Business Day not more than nine (9) nor less than five (5) 
days after the day such notice is received. The Tmstee shall immediately notify the paying agent 
of receipt of such notice and of the Default Tender Date. Bonds purchased pursuant to this 
provision will be delivered by the holders (with all necessary endorsements) to the designated 
corporate tmst office of tiie Tmstee, at or before 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the Default 
Tender Date, and, subject to the Indenture, payment of the Purchase Price shall be made by wire 
transfer in immediately available funds by the Tmstee on the Default Tender Date; provided, 
however, that payment of the Purchase Price shall be made pursuant to this provision only if the 
Bond is so delivered to the Tmstee. 

The Tmstee will give notice to the Issuer, the Remarketing Agent, the Company and the 
Administrative Agent (the "Notice Parties") and all holders prior to the close of business on the 
Business Day after receipt of the notice described in the preceding paragraph stating (i) that the 
Bonds are subject to mandatory tender; (ii) the Default Tender Date; (iii) the Purchase Price; (iv) 
that Bonds must be sunendered to collect the Purchase Price; (v) the address at which the Bonds 
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must be sunendered; (vi) that interest on such Bonds will cease to accme to such holder from 
and after the Default Tender Date and such holder will be entitied only to the Purchase Price on 
the Default Tender Date; and (vii) if the Bonds are then rated by Moody's Investor Service, Inc. 
("Moody's"), Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("Standard & 
Poor's") or Fitch, Inc. ("Fitch"), that such rating or ratings will terminate on the Default Tender 
Date. The failure to mail such notice with respect to any Bond will not affect the validity of the 
mandatory tender of any other Bond with respect to which notice was so mailed. Any notice 
mailed will be conclusively presumed to have been given, whether or not actually received by a 
holder. 

Mandatory Tender Upon Expiration or Termination of Letter of Credit. If (i) the Letter 
of Credit is scheduled to expire on tiie Expiration Date (as defmed below) and by the Renewal 
Date (as defined below) no extension of such Letter of Credit or Altemate Letter of Credit has 
been delivered to the Tmstee or (ii) on or before the Renewal Date, the Company has delivered 
notice stating that the Letter of Credit will be terminated with respect to all the Bonds on the 
Expiration Date, then the Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender on the date five Business 
Days prior to the Expiration Date (the "Expiration Tender Date") at the Purchase Price. Bonds 
purchased pursuant to this provision will be delivered by the holders at or before 12:00 noon. 
New York City time, on the Expiration Tender Date, and subject to the Indenture, payment of the 
Purchase Price shall be made by wire transfer in immediately available funds by the Tmstee on 
such Expiration Tender Date; provided, however, that pajnnent of the Purchase Price will be 
made pursuant to this provision only if the Bond is so deUvered to the Tmstee. 

The Tmstee will give notice to all holders and the Notice Parties no less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the Expiration Tender Date. The notice will state (i) that the Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender; (ii) the Expiration Tender Date; (iii) the Purchase Price; (iv) that Bonds must 
be sunendered to collect the Purchase Price; (v) the address at which the Bonds must be 
sunendered; (vi) that the Letter of Credit will terminate on the date specified in such notice; (vii) 
that interest on such Bonds will cease to accme to such holder from and after the Expiration 
Tender Date and such holder will be entitled only to tiie Purchase Price on the Expiration Tender 
Date; and (viii) if the Bonds are then rated by Moody's, Standard & Poor's or Fitch, that such 
rating or ratings will terminate on the Expiration Tender Date. The failure to mail such notice 
with respect to any Bond shall not affect the validity of the mandatory tender of any other Bond 
with respect to which notice was so mailed. Any notice mailed will be conclusively presumed to 
have been given, whether or not actually received by a holder. 

"Expiration Date" means the stated expiration date of the Letter of Credit, or such stated 
expiration date as it may be extended from time to time as provided in the Letter of Credit, or 
any earlier date on which the Letter of Credit shall expire or be terminated or cancelled. 

"Renewal Date" means the thuty-fiflh (35th) day prior to the Expiration Date. 

Notice of Tender. Failure to give any required notice of tender as to any particular Bonds 
or any defect therein will not affect the validify of the tender of any Bonds in respect of which no 
such failure or defect occurs. Any notice mailed as described above shall be effective when sent 
and will be conclusively presumed to have been given whether or not actually received by the 
addressee. 
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Effect of Notice of Tender, When notice is required and given, and when Bonds are to be 
tendered without notice. Bonds tendered become due and payable on the purchase date; in such 
case when funds are deposited with the Tmstee sufficient for purchase, interest on the Bonds to 
be purchased ceases to accme as of the date of purchase. 

Summary 

Certain provisions of the Bonds and the Indenture (other than when the Bonds bear 
interest at a rate other than a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate) are summarized in the foUowing table 
(all times are New York City time): 

OPTIONAL TENDER; 
• NOTICE 

INTEREST PERIODS 
FOR EACH 
INIERESTRATE 

INTEREST RATE 
DETERMINED 

INTEREST ACCRUAL 
PERIOD 

INTEREST PAYMENT 
DATE 

RECORD DATE 

OPTIONAL 
REDEMPTION BY 
COMPANY 

MANDATORY 
lENDER 

DAILY RATE 
On any Business Day; notice no 
later than 11:00 A.M. same 
Business Day 

Each day 

Each Business Day by 10:00 A.M. 

Interest Payment Date to Interest 
Payment Date 

First Business Day of the next 
month and on the date on which 
the Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase 

Last Business Day before Interest 
Payment Date 

On any Business Day 

(i) On effective date of change in 
interest rate determination 
metiiod, (ii) substitution of 
Alternate Letter of Credit, (iii) 
event of default under 
Reimbursement Agreement, and 
(iv) expiration or temiination of 
Letter of Credit 

WEEKLY RATE 
On any Business Day; notice no 
later than 5:00 P.M., seven days 
in advance 

Thursday through Wednesday 
(with limited exceptions) 

Each Wednesday (or next 
preceding Business Day) by 5:00 
PM. 

Interest Payment Date to Interest 
Payment Date 

First Business Day of the next 
month and on the date on which 
the Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase 

Last Business Day before Interest 
Payment Date 

On any Business Day 

(i) On effective date of change in 
interest rate determination 
method, (ii) substitution of 
Altemate Letter of Credit, (iii) 
event of default under 
Reimbursement Agreement, and 
(iv) expiration or termination of 
Letter of Credit 
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Book-Entry Only System 

DTC will act as Securities Depository for the Bonds, The Bonds will be issued as fiilly-
registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., DTC's partnership nominee, or such 
other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One or more fully-
registered bond certificates will be issued for the Bonds, representing in the aggregate the total 
principal amount of the Bonds, and will be deposited with the Tmstee on behalf of DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose tmst company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of 
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" 
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a "clearing agency" 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the "1934 Act"). DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 milUon issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S. equify issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money market 
instmments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with 
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other 
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry 
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for 
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, tmst companies, clearing corporations, and certain other 
organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Tmst & Clearing 
Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing 
agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system 
is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, 
tmst companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (the "Indirect Participants"). DTC has 
Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc., highest rating: AAA. The 
DTC mles applicable to Direct and Indirect Participants are on file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and 
www.dtc.org. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest 
ofeach actual purchaser ofeach Bond (the "Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded on the 
Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation 
from DTC of their purchases. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written 
confirmations providing details of the transactions, as well as periodic statements of their 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial Owner entered 
into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by 
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 
Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC 
are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee. Cede & Co., or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and 

17 

http://www.dtcc.com
http://www.dtc.org


their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any 
changes in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 
Bonds. DTC's records reflect only the identify of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such 
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect 
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 
customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by 
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be govemed by anangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission 
to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, 
defaults and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to 
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the altemative. Beneficial Owners may wish 
to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be 
provided directiy to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds are being 
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of tiie interest ofeach Direct 
Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Although voting with respect to the Bonds is limited, in those cases where a vote is 
required, neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI 
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as 
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting 
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date 
(identified in a Usting attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of fiinds and conesponding detail information fh)m 
the Company or the Trustee on the relevant payment date in accordance witii their respective 
holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Direct or Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be govemed by standing instmctions and customary practices, as is the case with 
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and 
will be the responsibility of such Direct or Indirect Participant and not of DTC, the Company, the 
Tmstee or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 
time to time. Payment to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Tmstee, disbursement of such 
payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursements of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibilify of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased or tendered, 
through its Direct or Indirect Participant, to the Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of 

18 



such Bonds by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Direct or Indirect Participant's 
interest in the Bonds, on DTC's records, to the Remarketing Agent. The requirement for physical 
delivery of the Bonds in cormection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be 
deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transfened by Direct Participants 
on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Bonds to the Remarketing 
Agent's DTC account. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as Securities Depository with respect to the 
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or the Tmstee. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor Securities Depository is not obtained, certificated 
Bonds are required to be printed and delivered to the holders of record. Additionally, the 
Company may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a 
successor Securities Depository) with respect to the Bonds. In that event, certificates for the 
Bonds will be printed and delivered. 

The information in this section conceming DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been 
obtained from sources that the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters, the Remarketing Agent 
and the Tmstee believe to be reliable, but none of the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters, the 
Remarketing Agent or the Tmstee takes any responsibilify for the accuracy of such statements. 
None of the Issuer, the Company, the Underwriters, the Remarketing Agent or the Tmstee has 
any responsibility for the performance by DTC or its Direct or Indirect Participants of their 
respective obligations as described herein or under the mles and procedures governing their 
respective operations. 

In the event that the book-entry system is discontinued, a bondholder may transfer or 
exchange the Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. The Tmstee will require a bondholder, 
among other things, to fumish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and to pay any 
taxes and fees required by law or permitted by the Indenture. In addition, in case of such 
discontinuance, an additional or co-paying agent may be designated. 

None of the Issuer, the Underwriters, the Company, the Letter of Credit Bank, the 
Trustee or any agent for payment on or registration of transfer or exchange of any Bond 
will have any responsibilify or obligation to Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or 
the persons for whom they act as nominees with respect to the accuracy of the records of 
DTC, its nominee or any Direct Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the 
Bonds, or payments to, or the providing of notice for, Direct Participants, Indirect 
Participants, or beneficial owners or other action taken by DTC, or its nominee. Cede & 
Co., as the sole owners of the Bonds. 

Securify for the Bonds 

The Bonds will be special obligations of the Issuer, the principal of and premium, if any, 
and interest on which will be payable solely from (i) the payments to be made by the Company 
under the Loan Agreement and the Note, which are pledged to the Tmstee, and (ii) so long as the 
Letter of Credit is in effect, the funds drawn under the Letter of Credit. The pledge does not 
extend to funds to which the Tmstee is entitled in its own right such as fees, reimbursement, 
indemnify or otherwise. The Bonds will not be secured by a mortgage or securify interest in the 
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Project or any other property of the Company. The Loan Agreement provides that Loan 
Payments will be paid to the Tmstee by the Company for the account of the Issuer. 

THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Letter of Credit and the 
Reimbursement Agreement. Any future reimbursement agreement pursuant to which an 
Altemate Letter of Credit is issued may have terms substantially different from those described 
below. This summary is not a complete recital of the terms thereof and reference should be 
made to such documents. 

The Letter of Credit 

Concunentiy with the issuance of the Bonds, the Company will cause to be delivered to 
the Tmstee the Letter of Credit issued by the Letter of Credit Bank, in the initial aggregate stated 
amount of $25,287,671.23. Under the Letter of Credit, the Tmstee will be permitted to draw up 
to (a) an amount sufficient to pay (i) the principal of the Bonds when due at maturify, redemption 
or acceleration and (ii) the portion of the Purchase Price of the Bonds tendered to the Tmstee and 
not remarketed conesponding to the principal amount of such Bonds, plus (b) an amount equal to 
35 days' interest on the Bonds at a maximum rate of 12% per annum calculated on the basis of a 
365-day year to pay (i) interest on the Bonds when due and (ii) the portion of tiie Purchase Price 
of the Bonds tendered to the Tmstee and not remarketed conesponding to the accmed interest on 
such Bonds. The Letter of Credit wi 11 expire on August 12, 2010 or on the earliest occunence of 
one or more events described below. The Letter of Credit may be extended from year to year by 
the Letter of Credit Bank in its discretion, unless terminated earlier pursuant to its terms. 

The Letter of Credit is subject to termination at the Letter of Credit Bank's close of 
business on the earliest to occur of (i) August 12, 2010 (unless extended from time to time), or if 
such date is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day (as defined in the Letter of 
Credit), (ii) ten days foUowing the Tmstee's receipt of written notice from tiie Letter of Credit 
Bank of the occunence and continuance of an Event of Default (as defined in the 
Reimbursement Agreement) and directing a mandatory purchase or acceleration of the Bonds, 
(iii) the date on which the Letter of Credit Bank receives notice from the Tmstee stating that the 
conditions to termination of the Letter of Credit set forth in the Indenture have been satisfied, 
(iv) the date that is 15 days following the date of conversion of all the Bonds outstanding to a 
rate other than a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate and (v) the date on which the Letter of Credit Bank 
honors a dmwing under the Letter of Credit accompanied by a certificate of the Tmstee that 
states that such drawing is the final drawing under the Letter of Credit (such earliest date being 
the "LC Cancellation Date"). 

The stated amount of the Letter of Credit is subject to adjustment for payments made by 
the Letter of Credit Bank to die Tmstee pursuant to drawings under the Letter of Credit. A 
drawing honored under the Letter of Credit to pay regularly scheduled mterest or principal of and 
interest on the Bonds upon scheduled or accelerated maturity will reduce immediately the 
respective principal and interest components of the Letter of Credh by an amount equal to the 
respective component of the amount honored; provided, however, that, unless a LC Cancellation 
Date has occuned, the interest component of the Letter Credit conesponding to such drawing 
wiU be automatically reinstated. 
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A drawing honored under the Letter of Credit to pay principal of and interest upon the 
redemption of the Bonds in whole or in part will reduce immediately (i) the principal component 
of the Letter of Credit in an amount equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed 
by such drawing and (ii) tiie interest component of the Letter of Credit by an amount equal to 35 
days' interest on such principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed computed at a maximum 
rate of \2%per annum calculated on the basis of a 365-day year. 

A drawing honored under the Letter of Credit to pay the Purchase Price conesponding to 
principal of and interest on the Bonds will reduce immediately the respective principal and 
interest components of the Letter of Credit by an amount equal to the respective component of 
the amount so drawn. Unless a LC Cancellation Date has occuned, the principal and interest 
components, respectively, of the Letter of Credit will be reinstated when and to the extent the 
Letter of Credit Bank is reimbursed for such drawing and for interest, if any, owing tiiereon 
pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement. 

Replacement of Letter of Credit 

The Company may sunender the Letter of Credit or replace the Letter of Credit with an 
Altemate Letter of Credit or other facilify meeting the requirements of the Indenture. The Bonds 
will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the date five Business Days prior to the date 
of such sunender or replacement. 

The Reimbursement Agreement 

The Letter of Credit will be issued pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement. The 
Reimbursement Agreement contains, among other matters, representations, wananties and 
covenants on the part of the Company, the breach of which or material inaccuracy of which 
could entitle the Administrative Agent to notify the Tmstee of an "event of default" (as defined 
in the Reimbursement Agreement) under the Reimbursement Agreement and directing the 
Tmstee either to accelerate the Bonds or to effect a mandatory tender of the Bonds. The 
following events constitute "events of defauh" under the Reimbursement Agreement: 

(a) The Company shall default in (i) the repayment when due and payable of any 
principal of any reimbursement obligation under the Reimbursement Agreement; or (ii) the 
payment of the interest, fees or any other obligation payable by the Company under the 
Reimbursement Agreement when the same becomes due and payable and such default shall 
continue unremedied for five or more business days; or 

(b) Any representation or wananfy made or deemed made by the Company in respect 
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company in the Reimbursement Agreement, any related 
document, the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Remarketing Agreement, the 
custodian agreement relating to Bonds purchased with the proceeds of the Letter of Credit to be 
held for the account of the Administrative Agent (the "Custodian Agreement"), or any 
certificate, document or financial or other written statement furnished at any time in compUance 
with the Reimbursement Agreement shall prove to have been false or inconect in any material 
respect when made or deemed made; or 
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(c) Failure by the Company (in respect of the Company or any subsidiary of the 
Company) to perform, keep or observe any other term, provision, condition or covenant 
contained in the Reimbursement Agreement (other than those provisions, terms or conditions 
referenced in subparagraph (a) and (b) above and subparagraph (d) below) or any other related 
document that is required to be kept or observed by the Company (in respect of the Company or 
any subsidiary of the Company) and such failure shall continue witiiout remedy for a period of 
30 business days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Company by the 
Administrative Agent; or 

(d) Failure by the Company (in respect of the Company or any subsidiary of the 
Company) to perform, keep, or observe any other term, provision, condition or covenant 
contained in the Reimbursement Agreement with respect to the Company's existence or with 
respect to any negative covenant under the Reimbursement Agreement that is required to be 
performed, kept, or observed by the Company (in respect of the Company or any subsidiary of 
the Company); or 

(e) Default by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company in respect of the 
payment when due of any principal or interest on debt (other than under the Reimbursement 
Agreement) of the Company or its subsidiaries having an aggregate outstanding principal amount 
of at least $10,000,000, or any other event or condition shall occur with respect such debt, which 
defauh or other event or condition results in the acceleration of the maturify of such amount of 
debt or enables the holder of such debt to accelerate the maturify thereof, or 

(0 The termination of the Inter-Company Power Agreement or the IKEC Power 
Agreement (as defined in the Reimbursement Agreement) (other than, in the case of the IKEC 
Power Agreement, in connection with the merger or consoUdation by Indiana-Kentucky Power 
Electric Company ("IKEC") with, or disposal by IKEC of all or substantially all of its assets to, 
the Company as otherwise permitted under the Reimbursement Agreement); or 

(g) 
business; or 

Certain change in control events or discontinuation by the Company of its 

(h) Invalidity or assertion of invalidify of the Reimbursement Agreement, any other 
related document, the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Remarketing Agreement, 
the Custodian Agreement; or 

(i) Certain events related to employee benefit matters shall have occurred and the 
liability of the Company and certain of its affiliates related to such employee benefit related 
event exceeds $10,000,000; or 

(j) Any money judgment in excess of $10,000,000, to the extent not paid or insured 
by an insurance carrier is entered against the Company or any of its subsidiaries or their 
respective assets and is not released, discharged, vacated, fully bonded or stayed within 30 days; 
or 

(k) At any time prior to ten days after the Administrative Agent receives satisfactory 
evidence that FirstEnergy Generation Corp.'s has obtained investment grade ratings from 
Moody's and S&P, (i) tiie guaranty by FirstEnergy Corp. of certain obligations of FirstEnergy 
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Generation Corp. shall cease to be in full force and effect or (ii) FirstEnergy Corp. shall deny or 
disaffirm its obligations under such guaranfy; or 

(1) Certain bankmptcy and insolvency event shall occur with respect to the Company 
or IKEC or any entify to which either the Company or IKEC have been merged or consolidated 
with or into as permitted by the Reimbursement Agreement or any entify to which all or any 
substantial part of the assets of either of Company or IKEC have been disposed of as permitted 
by the Reimbursement Agreement; or 

(m) An "Event of Default" under and as defined in the Indenture shall have occuned 
and be continuing. 

THE LOAN AGREEMENT 

In addition to the description of certain provisions of the Loan Agreement contained 
elsewhere herein, the following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Loan Agreement 
and the Note and does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All references herein to the 
Loan Agreement and the Note are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Loan Agreement 
and the Note (the form of which is attached to the Loan Agreement) for the detailed provisions 
thereof 

Use of Bond Proceeds; Construction of the Project 

The Issuer will issue tiie Bonds and loan proceeds of the sale thereof to the Company, 
which proceeds wUl be apphed as described under USE OF PROCEEDS herein. The Company 
agrees to cause the Project to be acquired, constmcted, installed and improved substantially in 
accordance with the plans and specifications as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

In the Indenture, the Issuer directs the Tmstee to make payments from the Constmction 
Fund to pay the cost of the Project and issuance expenses, and to reimburse the Company for any 
cost of the Project and issuance expenses paid or incuned by the Company. 

Term of Loan Agreement 

The term of the Loan Agreement will continue until such time as all of the outstanding 
Bonds are fully paid (or provision has been made for such payment) pursuant to the Indenture 
and all other money payable by the Company under the Loan Agreement shall have been paid. 

Payments 

The Company will make payments on the Loan Agreement which will be sufficient to 
pay, when due, the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds. To evidence 
the obligations of the Company to make the Loan Payments and repay the Loan, the Company 
will, concunentiy with the issuance of the Bonds, execute and deliver the Note, which the Issuer 
will assign to the Tmstee, under the Indenture, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds. The Company will receive as a credit against its 
obligations to make payments under the Loan Agreement with respect to the Bonds all payments 
made by the Letter of Credit Bank under the Letter of Credit. 
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The Agreement contains no restrictions on the abilify of the Company to incur debt or, 
except as described under ~ Corporate Existence, to transfer its assets. 

Obligations Unconditional 

The obligations of the Company to make Loan Payments and other payments required to 
be made pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Note are absolute and unconditional, and the 
Company will make such payments without abatement, diminution or deduction regardless of 
any cause or circumstances whatsoever including, without limitation, any defense, set-off, 
recoupment or counterclaim which tiie Company may have or assert against the Issuer, the 
Tmstee, the Remarketing Agent, the Letter of Credit Bank or any other Person. 

Maintenance and Modification 

During the term of the Loan Agreement, the Company will use its best efforts to keep and 
maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, the Project, including all appurtenances thereto and 
any personal properfy therein or thereon, in satisfactory operating order, repair, condition and 
appearance, subject to reasonable wear and tear, so that the Project will continue to constitute a 
facility that can be fmanced by the Issuer under the Act. Subject to certain conditions, the 
Company has the right, from time to time, to remodel the Project or make additions, 
modifications and improvements thereto, the cost of which must be paid by the Company. The 
Company also has the right, subject to certain conditions, to substitute or remove any portion of 
the Project. 

Corporate Existence 

During the term of tiie Loan Agreement the Company will maintain its legal existence 
and will not sell its properties as an entirety or substantially as an entirety or consolidate with or 
merge into another entity or permit one or more other entities to consolidate with or merge into 
it, unless the successor corporation or transferee resulting from any such consolidation, merger, 
sale or transfer shall assume all obligations of the Company arising under or contemplated by the 
Agreement, the Note and the Indenture. No further consolidation, merger or sale or other 
transfer shall be made except in compliance with these provisions. 

Environmental Compliance 

In the Loan Agreement, the Company will represent that the Project will be constmcted 
in compliance with all permits, variances and orders issued or granted by the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect to the Project, including any permits to install for 
the Project, and any such permhs, variances and orders have not been withdrawn or otherwise 
suspended. The Company will represent that it is in material compliance with all terms and 
provisions of all permits, variances and orders heretofore issued or granted by the Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency witii respect to the Plant and its other facilities within the State 
of Ohio, including any permits-to-install and permits-to-operate issued with respect thereto. 
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Tax Exemption 

The Company will covenant and represent in the Loan Agreement that it has taken and 
caused or required to be taken and will take and cause or require to be taken all actions that may 
be required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excluded from the gross income 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, and that it has not taken or permitted to be 
taken on its behalf, and it will not take or permit to be taken on its behalf, any action which, if 
taken, would adversely affect tiiat exclusion under the provisions of the Code. 

Assignment of the Loan Agreement 

The Loan Agreement may be assigned in whole or in part by the Company only with the 
consent of the Issuer, subject to the following conditions: (a) no assignment will relieve the 
Company from primary UabiUfy for any of its obligations under the Loan Agreement or the Note; 
(b) any assignment by the Company must retain for the Company such rights and interests to 
permit h to perform its remaining obligations under the Loan Agreement, and any assignee from 
the Company shall assume the obligations of the Company hereunder to the extent of the interest 
assigned; (c) the Company will, within 30 days after the execution thereof, furnish or cause to be 
furnished to the Issuer, the Letter of Credit Bank and the Tmstee a tme and complete copy of 
each assignment together with any instmment of assumption; and (d) any assignment from the 
Company will not materially impair fulfillment of the purposes of the Project to be accomplished 
by operation of the Project as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

The Loan Agreement provides that the occunence of one or more of the following events 
will constitute an "Event of Default:" 

(a) The failure to pay any Loan Payment, or pay any payment required to be made to pay 
the Purchase Price, when due; 

(b) The occunence of an event of default described in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) under 
THE INDENTURE—Events of Defaults and Remedies; 

(c) Failure by the Conipany to observe and perform any other agreement, term or 
condition under the Loan Agreement, other than such failure which will result in an 
event of default described in (a) or (b) above, which continues for a period of 90 days 
after notice to the Company by the Issuer or the Tmstee or such longer period as the 
Issuer and the Tmstee may agree to in writing; provided that the failure shall not 
constitute an Event of Defauh if the Company institutes curative action within the 
applicable period and diligentiy pursues that action to completion; 

(d) Any representation or wananfy under the Loan Agreement shall not have been tme in 
all material respects when made; and 

(e) Certain events relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of the Company. 
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A failure by the Company described in subparagraph (c) above is not a default under that 
subparagraph if it occurs by reason of certain causes, circumstances and events of force majeure 
specified in the Loan Agreement that are not reasonably within the control of the Company. 

Whenever any Event of Defauh under the Loan Agreement has happened and is 
subsisting, the Issuer or the Tmstee may take either or both of the following remedial steps: 

(a) Inspect, examine and make copies of the books, records, accounts and financial 
data of the Company, only, however, insofar as they pertain to the Project; and 

(b) Pursue all remedies to recover all amounts then due and thereafter to become due 
under the Loan Agreement and the Note, or to enforce the performance and 
observance of any other obligation or agreement of the Company under those 
instmments. 

(c) So long as the Letter of Credit is in full force and effect and the Letter of Credit 
Bank has not wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit or 
wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit, the exercise of remedies under the 
Loan Agreement with respect to Events of Default (other than with respect to 
defaults resulting from failures of the Company relating to certain rights of the 
Issuer not assigned under the Indenture), and any waivers of Events of Defauh 
shall be at the direction or with the written consent of the Letter of Credit Bank. 

(d) Any amounts collected pursuant to action taken upon the happening of an Event 
of Defauh will be paid into the Bond Fund and applied in accordance with the 
provisions of the Indenture or, if the outstanding Bonds have been paid and 
discharged in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, will be paid as 
provided in the Indenture for transfers of remaining amounts in the Bond Fund. 

Certain Covenants Regarding Arbitrage and Tax Exemption 

The Issuer and the Company have agreed not to take any action or omit to take any 
action, which would result in a loss of the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on 
the Bonds by virtue of the Bonds being considered "arbittage bonds" within the meaning of 
Section 148 of the Code. 

The Issuer and the Company have agreed that they will not take any action, cause any 
action to be taken, omit to take any action or cause any omission to occur which would cause the 
interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross income of the recipients thereof for purposes 
of federal income taxation. 

Amendments to the Loan Agreement 

The Indenture provides that the Loan Agreement may be amended without the consent of 
or notice to the owners of the Bonds only as may be required or permitted (i) by the provisions of 
the Loan Agreement or the Indenture or for the purposes for which the Indenture may be 
amended or supplemented without the consent of the owners, (ii) for the purpose of curing any 
ambiguify or formal defect or omission in the Loan Agreement or (iii) in connection with any 
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other change therem which, in the judgment of the Tmstee, is not to the prejudice of the Tmstee 
or the owners of the Bonds. Any other amendments to the Loan Agreement may be made only 
with the written approval or consent of (i) the owners of not less than a majorify in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding and (ii) the Letter of Credit Bank, so long as the 
Letter of Credit is in effect and the Letter of Credit Bank has not wrongfully dishonored a 
drawmg thereunder or wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit. An opinion of Bond Counsel 
to the effect that such action is permitted under the Act and the Indenture and will not adversely 
affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes 
(a "Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel") is required for any amendment to the Loan Agreement. 

THE INDENTURE 

Additional information summarizing certain provisions of the Indenture is contained 
under the heading THE BONDS. So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the 
Bonds, all references to owners or holders shall mean DTC. See THE BONDS - Book-Entry 
Only System herein. 

Pledge and Securify 

Pursuant to the Indenture, the payments to be made by the Company under the Loan 
Agreement and the Note will be assigned by the Issuer to the Tmstee to secure the payment, 
when due, of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds. The Issuer wiU 
also absolutely and inevocably assign to the Tmstee all right, title and interest in and to the 
Letter of Credit Account in the Bond Fund and all moneys therein, and will mortgage, pledge 
and grant a security mterest to the Tmstee all right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to (i) the 
Revenues (other than the Letter of Credit Account in the Bond Fund, and the moneys therein, 
assigned above), including without limitation, all Loan Payments and all other amounts 
receivable by the Issuer under the Loan Agreement in respect of repayment of the loan and (ii) 
the Note and the Loan Agreement (except certain rights to the payment of its costs and 
expenses, to indemnification and to enforce certain covenants of the Company); provided, that 
the Tmstee, in case of an acceleration of the Bonds, will have a prior claim on the Bond Fund, 
other than money in the Letter of Credit Account, for the payment of its compensation and 
expenses. 

Construction Fund 

The Indenture creates and establishes with the Tmstee a separate fund designated the 
"State of Ohio Air Qualify Revenue Bonds (Ohio Valley Electric Corporation Project) Series 
2009B Constmction Fund" (the "Constmction Fund"). The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 
will be deposited in the Constmction Fund. Such proceeds and any other moneys deposited in 
the Constmction Fund shaU be applied to the payment of tiie cost of financmg the acquisition, 
constmction, installation and equipping of the Project, including issuance expenses. See THE 
LOAN AGREEMENT-Use of Bond Proceeds; Construction of the Project above. 

When the Project shall have been completed and the Tmstee shall have received a 
certificate of a Company Representative, any moneys remaining in the Constmction Fund in 
excess of the amount to be reserved for payment of unpaid items of the cost of the Project, shall 
be used by the Tmstee at the direction of the Company (i) if the Bonds are then subject to 
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redemption or will be subject to redemption within 90 days of the date the Project was placed in 
service, to redeem outstanding Bonds at the earliest possible redemption date within such 90-day 
period in accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.142-2(c), (ii) if such Bonds are not 
subject to redemption within such 90-day period, to establish a defeasance escrow in accordance 
with Treasury Regulation Section I. i42-2(c) or (iii) for any other purposes which, in the opinion 
of nationally recognized counsel experienced on the subject of municipal bonds and acceptable 
to the Tmstee, is permissible under then applicable Ohio law and will not under the Code cause 
the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes; 
provided that amounts approved by the Company shall be retained by the Tmstee in the 
Constmction Fund for payment of any cost of the Project not then due and payable or which is in 
dispute, and any balance remaining of such retained funds after ftill payment of the cost of the 
Project shall be held and applied, or used as directed by the Company, in the manner specified in 
this paragraph. 

Purchase Fund 

The Tmstee will apply money contained in the accounts described below maintained 
within the Purchase Fund as follows: 

Remarketing Proceeds Account. Upon receipt of the proceeds of a remarketing of Bonds 
on a purchase date, the Tmstee wUl directly deposit such proceeds, and will deposit only such 
proceeds, in the Remarketing Proceeds Account for application to the Purchase Price of the 
Bonds; provided that, at any time when the Letter of Credit is m effect, proceeds of any 
remarketing of Bonds to the Issuer, the Company or any affiliate of either of them and proceeds 
of the remarketing of any other Company-Held Bonds and any Bank-Owned Bonds which have 
been remarketed will be held and maintained m a subaccount for the benefit of the Letter of 
Credit Bank, separated and segregated from all other money in the Remarketing Proceeds 
Account. Upon instmction from the Letter of Credit Bank, any amoimt held by the Tmstee in 
the subaccount described in the preceding sentence will be paid to the Letter of Credit Bank. 
Neither the Issuer nor the Company will have any interest in the Remarketing Proceeds Account. 

Letter of Credit Purchase Account. Upon receipt of the immediately available fimds 
provided to the Tmstee pursuant to the Indenture, the Tmstee will directly deposit such money, 
and will deposit only such money, in the Letter of Credit Purchase Account for application to the 
Purchase Price of the Bonds. Any amounts deposited in the Letter of Credit Purchase Account 
and determined by the Tmstee to be not needed with respect to any purchase date for the 
payment of the Purchase Price for any Bonds will be promptly retumed following such 
determination to the Letter of Credit Bank with written notice to the Company. Neither the 
Issuer nor the Company will have any interest in the Letter of Credit Purchase Account. 

Company Purchase Account. Upon receipt of immediately available funds provided to 
the Tmstee by the Company pursuant to the Indenture, the Tmstee shall directly deposit such 
money, and shall deposit only such money, in the Company Purchase Account for application to 
the Purchase Price of the Bonds. Any amounts deposited in the Company Purchase Account and 
determined by the Tmstee to be not needed with respect to any purchase date for the payment of 
the Purchase Price for any Bonds shall be promptly retumed following such determination to the 
Company. 
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Bond Fund 

Payments made by the Company under the Loan Agreement and the Note with respect to 
the Bonds and certain other amounts specified in the Indenture will be deposited in the Bond 
Fund. The Tmstee will apply money contained in the accounts described below maintained 
within the Bond Fund as follows: 

(a) Interest Account. The Tmstee, on each Interest Payment Date, will withdraw and 
apply from moneys on deposit in the Interest Account an amount sufficient to pay interest on the 
outstanding Bonds on such Interest Payment Date; provided, however, when the Letter of 
Credit or an Altemate Letter of Credit is in effect, the Tmstee, on each Interest Payment Date, 
shall withdraw and apply moneys in the Interest Account, if any, to reimburse the Letter of 
Credit Bank for draws on the Letter of Credit or the Altemate Letter of Credit pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

(b) Principal Account. The Tmstee, on each Principal Payment Date, will withdraw 
and apply from moneys on deposit in the Principal Account, an amount equal to the principal 
becoming due on the Bonds on such Principal Payment Date (other than a redemption date). 
Money in such Principal Account will be used and withdrawn by the Tmstee on each Principal 
Payment Date solely for the payment of the principal of outstanding Bonds; provided, however, 
when the Letter of Credit or an Altemate Letter of Credit is in effect, the Tmstee will apply such 
amounts, if any, to reimburse the Letter of Credit Bank for draws on the Letter of Credit or the 
Altemate Letter of Credit pursuant to the Indenture. 

(c) Redemption Account. The Tmstee, on or before each redemption date, will 
withdraw and apply from moneys on deposit in the Redemption Account amounts required to 
pay the principal of and premium, if any, and accmed interest on Bonds to be redeemed prior to 
their stated maturity. Money in such Redemption Accoimt will be used and withdrawn by the 
Trustee on each redemption date solely for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, 
and accmed interest on outstanding Bonds upon the redemption thereof prior to their stated 
maturity; provided, however, when the Letter of Credit or an Altemate Letter of Credit is in 
effect, the Tmstee shall apply such amounts, if any, to reimburse the Letter of Credit Bank for 
draws on the Letter of Credit or the Altemate Letter of Credit pursuant to the Indenture. 

(d) Letter of Credit Account. The Tmstee will directiy deposit, or cause to be directly 
deposited, the proceeds of draws on the Letter of Credit or an Altemate Letter of Credit to pay 
interest on and principal of the Bonds in such Letter of Credit Account, and shall deposit only 
those proceeds therein. Money in such Letter of Credit Account will be used and withdrawn by 
the Tmstee on each Interest Payment Date and each Principal Payment Date first, before any 
other source of fimds, to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; provided, however, that 
in no event shall moneys in such Letter of Credit Account be used to pay interest and premium 
on or principal of Bonds that are Bank-Owned Bonds or Company-Held Bonds if the Letter of 
Credit or AUemate Letter of Credit does not permit drawings thereunder with respect to Bank-
Owned Bonds or Company-Held Bonds. Amounts in the Letter of Credit Account shall be held 
uninvested. Neither the Issuer nor the Company shall have any interest in the Letter of Credit 
Account. 
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(e) Payments by Company. If during any period that a Letter of Credit is in effect 
there is not sufficient money in the Letter of Credit Account to make the payments on an Interest 
Payment Date or Principal Payment Date, the Tmstee will make such payments from money 
provided by the Company and deposited into the other accounts of the Bond Fund. 

Investment of Moneys Held by the Trustee 

Moneys deposited in the Constmction Fund and in the accounts maintained within the 
Bond Fund (except the Letter of Credit Account) will be invested at the direction of tiie 
Company in Permitted Investments (as defined in tiie Indenture). Moneys held in the Purchase 
Fund will be held uninvested. 

In the Loan Agreement the Company and the Issuer have covenanted not to cause or 
direct any moneys on deposit in any fund to be used m a manner which would cause the Bonds 
to be '̂arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

The following events are Events of Defautt under the Indenture: 

(a) Defauh in the due and punctual payment of interest on any Bond; 

(b) Default in tiie due and punctual payment of the principal of, or premium, if any, 
on any Bond, whether at the stated maturify thereof, or upon unconditional 
proceedings for redemption thereof; 

(c) Defauh in the due and punctual payment of the Purchase Price of any Bond 
required to be purchased in accordance with its terms; 

(d) Default in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants, 
agreements or conditions on the part of the Issuer in the Indenture or in the Bonds, 
continuing 30 days after delivery of notice thereof; 

(e) The occunence and continuance of an event of default under the Loan Agreement 
as described under THE LOAN A GREEMENT - Events of Default and Remedies; 
or 

(0 Receipt by the Tmstee of a written notice from the Letter of Credit Bank stating 
that an event of default has occurred under the Reimbursement Agreement and 
directing the Tmstee to declare the principal of the outstanding Bonds 
immediately due and payable. 

Upon the occunence and continuance of an Event of Default under (a), (b) or (c) above 
the Tmstee may, and upon the written request of the owners of at least 25% in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding shall, declare the principal of and accmed 
interest on the outstanding Bonds to be due and payable immediately. If an Event of Default 
under paragraph (d) or (e) above occurs and is continuing, the Tmstee may, and upon tiie request 
of the owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, shall, 
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declare the principal of and accmed interest on the outstanding Bonds to be due and payable 
immediately, provided, however, when the Letter of Credit is in effect and so long as the Letter 
of Credit Bank has not wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit (or otherwise 
repudiated the Letter of Credit), the Tmstee will make such a declaration only with the written 
consent of the Letter of Credit Bank. If an Event of Defauh under paragraph (f) above occurs 
and is continuing, the Tmstee shall declare the principal of and accmed interest on the 
outstanding Bonds to be due and payable immediately. 

Upon any such declaration, the principal of and accmed interest on the outstanding Bonds 
shall be due and payable immediately. Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, 
interest on the outstanding Bonds will cease to accme immediately upon a declaration of 
acceleration for an Event of Default under (f) above. When the Letter of Credit is in effect, the 
Tmstee shall, immediately upon a declaration of acceleration, draw upon the Letter of Credit to 
pay the principal of and interest on the outstanding Bonds; provided, that in no event shall a 
drawing be made with respect to Bank-Owned Bonds or Company-Held Bonds, if the Letter of 
Credit by its terms does not permit such a drawing. In the event the Letter of Credit Bank fails to 
honor a draw on the Letter of Credit (or otherwise repudiates the Letter of Credit) in accordance 
with the immediately preceding sentence, the Tmstee shall immediately notify the Company of 
such failure and shall request that the Company transfer sufficient amounts to pay the principal 
of and interest on the Bonds. 

The Tmstee may rescind an acceleration of the Bonds and its consequences if (I) aU 
payment defaults with respect to the Bonds have been cured and all reasonable fees and charges 
of the Tmstee, including reasonable attorneys' fees, have been paid, and (2) the Bondholders 
have not been notified of the acceleration, and (3) while the Letter of Credit is in effect, the 
Letter of Credit Bank has notified the Tmstee in writing (i) that the amount available to be drawn 
under the Letter of Credit has been reinstated so as to be available in any amount equal to the 
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding less the principal amount of any Bank-Owned Bonds, 
plus the applicable Letter of Credit Interest Amount and any required premium coverage and (ii) 
that the Letter of Credit Bank has rescinded in writing any event of default under the 
Reimbursement Agreement. Except as provided m this section, the Tmstee will not declare the 
Bonds to be due and payable. 

If an Event of Default occurs and is contmuing, the Tmstee may pursue any available 
remedy by proceeding at law or in equify to coUect the principal of and premium, if any, or 
interest on the Bonds or to enforce the performance of any provision of the Bonds or the 
Indenture. So long as the Letter of Credit is in effect and the Letter of Credit Bank has not 
wrongfuUy dishonored a drawing thereunder or wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit, the 
Tmstee will pursue any remedy only at the direction of or with the consent of the Letter of Credit 
Bank. 

A majorify in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds by notice to the 
Tmstee may waive an existing Event of Default and its consequences; provided, however, that, 
when the Letter of Credit is in effect and so long as the Letter of Credit Bank has not wrongfully 
dishonored a drawing under such Letter of Credit or otherwise repudiated the Letter of Credit, no 
such waiver shall be effective with respect to the Bonds unless and until tiie Letter of Credit 
Bank has notified the Tmstee in writing (i) that the amount available to be drawn under tiie 
Letter of Credit has been reinstated so as to be available in an amount equal to the principal 
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amount of the Bonds outstanding less the principal amount of any Bank-Owned Bonds, plus the 
applicable Letter of Credit Interest Amount and any required premium coverage, (ii) that the 
Letter of Credit Bank has rescinded in writing the notice of default, and (iii) the Letter of Credit 
Bank has waived in writing any event of default under the Reimbursement Agreement. When an 
Event of Default is waived, it is cured and stops continuing, but no such waiver will extend to 
any subsequent or other Event of Default or impair any right consequent to it. 

When there is a Letter of Credit in effect and so long as the Letter of Credit Bank has not 
wrongfiilly dishonored a drawing under such Letter of Credit or otherwise repudiated the Letter 
of Credit, the Letter of Credit Bank may direct the time, method and place of conducting any 
proceeding for any remedy available to the Tmstee or of exercising any tmst or power conferred 
on it with respect to the Bonds. When there is no Letter of Credit in effect or when the Letter of 
Credit Bank has wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit or otherwise 
repudiated the Letter of Credit, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds 
outstanding may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Tmstee or of exercising any tmst or power conferred on it. 

An owner of a Bond may not pursue any remedy with respect to the Indenture or the 
Bonds unless (a) the owner gives the Tmstee notice slating that an Event of Default is 
continuing, (b) the owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding 
Bonds make a written request to the Tmstee to pursue the remedy, (c) such owner or owners 
offer to the Tmstee indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee against any loss, Uability or expense, 
(d) the Tmstee does not comply with the request within 60 days after receipt of tiie request and 
the offer of indemnify, and (e) with respect to the Bonds, the Letter of Credit is either not in 
effect or the Letter of Credit Bank has wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of 
Credit or wrongfully repudiated the Letter of Credit. 

Except as described below, funds drawn under the Letter of Credit will be used only for 
the payment of principal of and interest on, premium, if any (to the extent that the Letter of 
Credit covers premium) and the Purchase Price of, the Bonds, as provided in the Letter of Credit. 
If the Tmstee collects any money pursuant to the Indenture or if any moneys shall be on deposit 
in the Bond Fund at the time of acceleration of the Bonds or shall be deposited into the Bond 
Fund as a result of such an acceleration, it will pay out such monies in the following order: first 
to the Tmstee for amounts to which it is entitied under such Indenture (provided, that if such 
money constitutes proceeds of a draw under the Letter of Credit, the Tmstee shall only use such 
proceeds to pay the owners of the Bonds); second to owners for amounts due and unpaid on the 
Bonds for principal, premium and interest, ratably, without preference or priorify of any kind, 
according to the amounts due and payable on the Bonds for principal, premium and interest, 
respectively, third to the Letter of Credit Bank to the extent it certifies that the Company is 
indebted to it on account of draws Letter of Credit or otherwise under the Reimbursement 
Agreement; and fourth to the Company (provided, that if such money constitutes proceeds of a 
draw under the Letter of Credit, the Tmstee shall pay the Letter of Credit Bank rather than the 
Company). Any Uen of the Tmstee provided for in the Indenture will in no event apply to any 
funds drawn under the Letter of Credit or to other fiinds held for the benefit of the Bondholders. 
The Tmstee may fix a payment date for any payment to the Bondholders. 

32 



Supplemental Indentures 

The Issuer and the Tmstee may, without the consent of, or notice to, any of the 
Bondholders, enter into such indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture as shall not 
be inconsistent with the terms and provisions thereof: 

(a) to cure any ambiguify, defect or omission in the Indenture, or otherwise amend 
the Indenture, in such manner as shall not in the opinion of the Tmstee impair the 
security under the Indenture; 

(b) to grant to or confer upon the Tmstee for the benefit of the Bondholders any 
additional rights, remedies, powers or authorities that may lawfully be granted to 
or confened upon the Bondholders or the Tmstee; 

(c) to evidence any succession to the Issuer and the assumption by its successor of the 
covenants, agreements and obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture, the Loan 
Agreement and the Bonds, to add additional covenants of the Issuer or to 
sunender any right or power therein confened upon the Issuer; 

(d) to subject to the pledge of the Indenture additional revenues, properties, or 
collateral, which may be accomplished by, among other things, entering into 
instmments with the Company and/or other persons providing for further securify, 
covenants, limitations or restrictions for tiie benefit of the Bonds; 

(e) to modify, amend or supplement the Indenture to permit qualification under the 
Tmst Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar statute at the time in 
effect; 

(f) to amend any provision pertaining to matters under federal income tax laws, 
including Section 148(f) of the Code; 

(g) to authorize different Authorized Denominations of the Bonds and to make 
conelative amendments and modifications to the Indenture regarding 
exchangeability of Bonds of different Authorized Denominations, redemptions of 
portions of Bonds of particular Authorized Denominations and similar 
amendments and modifications of a technical nature; 

(h) to increase or decrease the number of days specified for the giving of notices of 
tender and to make conesponding changes to the period for notice of redemption 
of the Bonds; provided, that no decreases in any such number of days will become 
effective except while the Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or a Weekly Rate 
and until 30 days after the Tmstee has given notice to the owners of the Bonds; 

(i) to provide for an uncertificated system of registering the Bonds or to provide for 
the change to or from a Book-Entry System for the Bonds; 

(j) to evidence the succession of a new trustee or the appointment by the Trustee or 
the Issuer of a co-tmstee; 
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(k) to make any change related to the Bonds that does not materially adversely affect 
the rights of any Bondholder; 

(I) prior to, or concunentiy with, the conversion of the Bonds to an Auction Rate 
Period, to make any change appropriate or necessary with respect to the 
procedures, definitions or provisions in the Indenture or in Exhibit B attached to 
the Indenture related to the Auction Mode Rate m order to provide for or facilitate 
the marketabilify of Bonds in the Auction Mode Rate; and 

(m) to make any other changes to the Indenture that take effect as to any or all 
remarketed Bonds following a mandatory tender. 

The Indenture also provides tiiat the owners of not less than a majorify in aggregate 
principal amount of tiie Bonds outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, to consent to 
and approve the execution by the Issuer and the Tmstee of such other indenture or supplemerital 
indentures as shall be deemed necessary and desirable by the Issuer and the Tmstee for the 
purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescuiding, in any particular, any of the 
terms or provisions contained in the Indenture or in any supplemental indenture; provided, 
however, that nothing shall permit (a) without the consent of the holder of the affected Bond, an 
extension of the maturify date of the principal of or the interest on any Bond; (b) without the 
consent of the holder of the affected Bond, a reduction m the principal amount of any Bond, the 
rate of interest thereon or any redemption premium; or (c) without the consent of the holders of 
all Bonds outstanding, a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds requfred for 
consent to such supplemental indenture or for actions related to amendments to the Loan 
Agreement. A Favorable Opinion of Tax Counsel is required for any supplement to the 
Indenture. 

When the Letter of Credit is in effect and so long as the Letter of Credit Bank has not 
wrongfully dishonored a drawing under the Letter of Credit or wrongfully repudiated the Letter 
of Credit, no waiver of or amendment or supplement to the Indenture other than certain of those 
enumerated in the Indenture shall be made without the prior written consent of the Letter of 
Credit Bank to such amendment or supplement. 

Discharge of the Indenture 

If the whole amount of principal, redemption price and interest due and payable on the 
Bonds has been paid, or provision has been made for the payment of the same in accordance with 
the Indenture, and if, at the time of such payment, the Issuer shall have kept, performed and 
observed all the covenants and promises in such Bonds and in the Indenture required or 
contemplated to be kept, performed and observed by the Issuer or on its part on or prior to that 
time, then the Indenture shall be considered to have been discharged in respect of such Bonds 
and such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to the lien of the Indenture and such lien and all 
covenants, agreements and other obUgations of the Issuer thereunder shall cease, terminate, 
become void and be completely discharged as to such Bonds. 
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No Personal Liability of Issuer's Officials 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of the Issuer contained in the Indenture 
will be or be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any present or 
future member, officer, agent or employee of the Issuer in other than his or her official capacify. 
No member of the Issuer or official executing the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement or 
any amendment or supplement to the Indenture or the Loan Agreement will be liable personally 
on the Bonds or be subject to any personal liabiUfy or accountabilify by reason of the issuance or 
execution thereof 

Removal of Trustee 

The Tmstee may be removed by the owners of not less than a majorify in principal 
amount of Bonds at the time outstanding or by the Issuer and the Company so long as no Event 
of Default has occuned and is continuing. The Tmstee shall continue to serve as such until a 
successor Tmstee shall be appointed under the Indenture and has accepted such appointment. 

THE REMARKETING AGREEMENT 

Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated has been appointed as the Remarketing Agent for the 
Bonds. If and to the extent the Company directs the Remarketing Agents to remarket the Bonds 
delivered for purchase pursuant to the Indenture, the Remarketing Agent, pursuant to and subject 
to the provisions of a remarketing agreement with the Company (the "Remarketing Agreement"), 
will offer for sale and use reasonable efforts to sell such Bonds at a price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount thereof plus accmed interest, if any, to the purchase date. The Remarketing 
Agent may resign by giving notice to the Issuer, the Company and the Tmstee (such resignation 
will be effective upon the earlier of the day a successor remarketing agent appointed pursuant to 
the Indenture has accepted that appointment or 30 days after such notice has been sent) and may 
suspend remarketing upon the occunence of certain events. The Company may remove the 
Remarketing Agent at any time upon 30 days' notice. In either case, the Company has agreed to 
use its best efforts to appomt a successor remarketing agent. See THE BONDS — Special 
Considerations. 

THE TRUSTEE 

The Company and certain of its affihates maintain banking relationships with affiliates of 
The Huntington National Bank, and bonow from such affiliates from time to time. The 
Huntington National Bank, and its affiliates, serve as tmstee under other indentures with, or for 
the benefit of, affiliates of the Company. 
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UNDERWRITING 

Subject to the terms and condhions set forth in a Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered 
into between the Issuer and the Underwriters, the Underwriters have agreed to purchase the 
Bonds at a purchase price of 100% of the principal amount thereof Under the terms and 
conditions of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters are committed to take and pay for 
all of the Bonds if any are taken. The Company has agreed to pay the Underwriters $87,500 
as compensation and to reimburse the Underwriters for their reasonable expenses. 

The Issuer has been advised by the Underwriters that the Bonds may be offered and sold 
to certain dealers (including dealers depositing Bonds into investment trusts) and others at prices 
lower than the pubhc offermg price set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement. After 
the Bonds are released for sale to the public, the public offering price and other selling terms 
may from time to time be varied by the Underwriters. 

In connection with this offering and in compliance with applicable law and industry 
practice, the Underwriters may overallot or effect transactions which stabilize, maintain or 
otherwise affect the market price of the Bonds at levels above those which might otherwise 
prevail in the open market, including by entering stabilizing bids. A stabilizing bid means the 
placing of a bid, or the effecting of any purchase, for the purpose of pegging, fixing or 
maintaining the price of a securify. In general, purchases of a securify for the puipose of 
stabilization could cause the price of the security to be higher than it might be in the absence of 
such purchases. 

Neither the Issuer, the Company nor the Underwriters make any representation or 
prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above 
may have on the price of the Bonds. In addition, neither the Issuer, the Company nor the 
Underwriters make any representation that the Underwriters will engage in such transactions or 
that such ttansactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice. 

Pursuant to an Inducement Letter, the Company has agreed to indemnify the 
Underwriters and the Issuer against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the federal 
securities laws, or contribute to payments that the Underwriters or the Issuer may be required to 
make in respect thereof 

The Underwriters and/or certain of their affiliates may engage in transactions with, and 
from time to time have performed services for, the Company and/or certain of its affiliates in the 
ordinary course of business. 

Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, an underwriter 
of the Bonds, has entered into a retail brokerage joint venture with Citigroup Inc. As part of the 
joint venture, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will distribute municipal securities to retail 
investors through the financial advisor network of a new broker-dealer, Morgan Stanley Smith 
Barney LLC. This distribution anangement became effective on June I, 2009. As part of this 
anangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will compensate Morgan Stanley Smith 
Bamey LLC for its selling efforts with respect to the Bonds. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

The Bonds are exempt from the contmuing disclosure requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of 
Rule 15c2-12 (the "Rule") adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Act of 1934 while they bear interest at a Daily Rate or Weekly Rate. The Company 
will covenant in the Loan Agreement that in the event the Bonds are converted to an interest rate 
that would make the Bonds subject to the requirements of the Rule, the Company will comply 
with the requirements of the Rule and execute a continuing disclosure undertaking for the benefit 
of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, and to provide continuing information as required by the 
Rule. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Bond Counsel, under existing law: 
(i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 
Section 103(a) of the Code, except for interest on any Bond for any period during which it is 
held by a "substantial user" or a "related person" as those terms are used in Section 147(a) of the 
Code; (ii) interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for 
purposes of the federal altemative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; and 
(iii) interest on, and any profit made on the sale, exchange or other disposition of, the Bonds are 
exempt from the Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio commercial activify tax, the net income 
base of the Ohio corporate franchise tax, and municipal, school district and joint economic 
development district income taxes in Ohio. Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any 
other tax consequences regarding the Bonds. 

The opinion on tax matters will be based on and will assume the accuracy of certain 
representations and certifications, and continuing compliance with certain covenants, of the 
Issuer and the Company contained in the transcript of proceedings and that are intended to 
evidence and assure the foregoing, including that the Bonds are and will remain obligations the 
interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel 
will not independently verify the accuracy of the Issuer's and the Company's certifications and 
representations or the continuing compliance with the Issuer's and the Company's covenants. 

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on cunent legal authorify and covers certain 
matters not directly addressed by such authority. It represents Bond Counsel's legal judgment as 
to exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes but is 
not a guaranfy of that conclusion. The opinion is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service 
("IRS") or any court. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion about (i) the effect of future changes 
in the Code and the applicable regulations under the Code or (ii) the interpretation and the 
enforcement of the Code or those regulations by the IRS. 

The Code prescribes a number of qualifications and conditions for the interest on state 
and local government obligations to be and to remain excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, some of which require future or continued compliance after issuance of the 
obligations. Noncompliance with these requirements by the Issuer or the Company with respect 
to the Bonds (or with similar requirements with respect to certain other bonds issued by the 
Issuer substantially at the same time as the issuance of the Bonds) may cause loss of such status 
and result in the interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax 
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purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Company and the Issuer have 
each covenanted to take the actions requh-ed of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and to 
remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and not to take any actions 
that would adversely affect that exclusion. After the date of issuance of the Bonds, Bond 
Counsel will not undertake to determine (or to so inform any person) whether any actions taken 
or not taken, or any events occurring or not occurring, or any other matters coming to Bond 
Counsel's attention, may adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes of interest on the Bonds or the market value of the Bonds. 

Although a portion of the interest on certain tax-exempt obligations eamed by certain 
corporations may be included in the calculation of adjusted cunent eamings for purposes of the 
federal corporate altemative minimum tax, interest on certain tax-exempt obligations issued in 
2009 and 2010, including the Bonds, is excluded from that calculation. Interest on the Bonds 
may be subject to a branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in 
the United States and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations. 

Under the Code, the exclusion of interest from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes may have certain adverse federal income tax consequences on items of income, 
deduction or credit for certain taxpayers, including financial institutions, certain insurance 
companies, recipients of Social Securify and Railroad Retirement benefits, those that are deemed 
to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations, and individuals 
otherwise eligible for the eamed income tax credit. The applicabilify and extent of these and 
other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status or other tax items of the owner 
of the Bonds. Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding those consequences. 

Payments of interest on tax-exempt obligations, including the Bonds, are generally 
subject to IRS Form 1099-INT information reporting requirements. If a Bondovmer is subject to 
backup withholding under those requirements, then payments of interest will also be subject to 
backup withholding. Those requirements do not affect the excludabilify of such interest from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

Legislation affecting tax-exempt obligations is regularly considered by the United States 
Congress and may also be considered by the Ohio legislature. Court proceedings may also be 
filed the outcome of which could modify the tax treatment of obligations such as the Bonds. 
There can be no assurance that legislation enacted or proposed, or actions by a court, after the 
date of issuance of the Bonds will not have an adverse effect on the tax status of interest or other 
income on the Bonds or the market value of the Bonds. 

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding 
pending or proposed federal and Ohio tax legislation and court proceedings, and prospective 
purchasers of the Bonds at other than their original issuance at tiie price indicated on the cover of 
this Official Statement should also consult their own tax advisers regarding other tax 
considerations such as the consequences of market discount, as to aU of which Bond Counsel 
expresses no opinion. 

Bond Counsel's engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the 
Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Issuer, the 
Company or the beneficial owners regarding the tax status of interest on the Bonds in the event 
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of an audit examination by the IRS. The IRS has a program to audit tax-exempt obligations to 
determine whether the interest thereon is includible in gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. If the IRS does audit the Bonds, under cunent IRS procedures, the IRS will treat the 
Issuer as the taxpayer and the beneficial owners of the Bonds will have only limited rights, if 
any, to obtain and participate injudicial review of such audit. Any action of the IRS, including 
but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audh, or an 
audh of other obligations presenting similar tax issues, may affect the market value for the 
Bonds. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters relating to the authorization and validify of the Bonds will be 
subject to the approving opinion of Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P., Cleveland, Ohio, Bond 
Counsel, which will be furnished at the expense of the Company upon delivery of the Bonds, in 
substantially the form set forth as Appendix C (the "Bond Opinion"). The Bond Opinion will be 
limited to matters relating to authorization and vaUdify of the Bonds and to the tax-exempt status 
of interest thereon as described in the section TAX EXEMPTION. Bond Counsel has not been 
engaged to investigate the financial resources of the Company or the Letter of Credit Bank or the 
abilify of either the Company or the Letter of Credit Bank to provide for payment of the Bonds, 
and the Bond Opinion will make no statement as to such matters or as to the accuracy or 
completeness of this Official Statement or any other information that may have been relied on by 
anyone in making the decision to purchase Bonds, 

Certain legal matters will be passed upon by Jeffrey D. Cross or Thomas G. Berkemeyer 
and Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P., counsel for the Company. Jeffiey D. Cross and Thomas G. 
Berkemeyer are Depufy General Counsel and Associate General Counsel, respectively, of 
American Electric Power Service Corporation, an affiliate of the Company. Certain legal 
matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, 
counsel for the Underwriters. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Issuer by its 
counsel, Forbes, Fields & Associates Co., L.P.A. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for 
the Letter of Credit Bank by its U.S. counsel. King & Spalding LLP, and by its intemal 
Canadian counsel. Squire, Sanders & Dempsey L.L.P. acts as counsel to certain affiliates of the 
Company for some matters. 

The various legal opinions to be delivered concunentiy with the delivery of the Bonds 
express the professional judgment of the attomeys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues 
explicitly addressed therein. In rendering a legal opinion, the attomey does not become an 
insurer or guarantor of the expression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, 
or of the future performance of the parties to the transaction, nor does tiie rendering of an opinion 
guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The attached Appendices (including documents contained therein) are an integral part of 
the Official Statement and must be read together with all of the balance of this Official 
Statement. 
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The Issuer does not assume any responsibility for the matters contained in this Official 
Statement other than information under THE ISSUER. All findings and determinations by the 
Issuer relating to the issuance and sale of the Bonds are, and have been, made by the Issuer for 
its own intemal uses and purposes in performing its duties under Ohio law. 
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APPENDIX A 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

As more fully detailed below, Ohio Valley Electric Corporation ("OVEC"), together with its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation ("IKEC" and together with OVEC, the "Company") is engaged in the business 
of generating, transmitting and selling electricity from its facilities located in Ohio, Indiana and Kentucky. The 
Company's principal office is located at 3932 U.S. Route 23, Piketon, Ohio 45661 and the telephone number is (740) 
289-7200. 

This summary may not contain all of the information that may he important to purchasers of the Bonds and should be 
read together with the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Official Statement. Capitalized terms 
used in this Appendix and not otherwise defmed shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the body of this Official 
Statement. 

Coinpany Overview 

The Company owns and operates two coal-fired electric power generating plants with a combined nameplate capacity of 
approximately 2,390 megawatts ("MW"). OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant (the "Kyger Creek Plant" or "Kyger"), located in 
Gallia County, Ohio, has a total nameplate capacity of 1,086 MW. IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant (the "Clifty Creek Plant" 
or "Clifty") has a total nameplate capacity of 1,304 MW and is located in Jefferson County, Indiana. Both of these 
facilities commenced operations in 1955. A 776 circuit-mile network of 345 kilovolt ("kV") transmission lines owned 
by the Company connect these two generation stations. These lines also interconnect with the major power transmission 
networks of several of the utilities serving the area. OVEC has senior unsecured debt ratings of Baa3 (negative outlook) 
by Moody's and BBB- by S&P. Additional information regarding the Company can be found at www.ovec.com, but the 
information at such website is not incorporated into this Official Statement by reference. 

The Inter-Company Power Agreement 

OVEC sells power to thirteen purchasers under the Inter-Company Power Agreement ("ICPA"), which stipulates the 
terms by which all of the electric capacity and energy of the Kyger Creek Plant and the Clifty Creek Plant is sold. The 
thirteen power purchasers under the ICPA (collectively, the "Sponsoring Companies") are currently investor-owned 
utilities and one affiliate of a generation and transmission rural electric cooperative each of which own or are affiliated 
with entities that own equity in OVEC. OVEC is owned by eleven entities (collectively, the "Shareholders"), consisting 
often investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and one affiliate of the generation and transmission rural 
electric cooperative. 

In 2004, an Amended and Restated ICPA was unanimously approved by the Sponsoring Companies and OVEC, 
extending the term of the then-current ICPA, effective March 13, 2006, for an additional 20 years until March 13,2026. 
Under the ICPA, the Sponsoring Companies have the right to receive 100% of OVEC's available capacity and energy. 
Each Sponsoring Company can reserve a percentage, called the power participation ratio ("PPR"), of available power 
and energy, and each Sponsoring Company that reserves available power is entided to a commensurate amount of 
available energy. The PPR ofeach Sponsoring Company is based on the ownership interest of such Sponsoring 
Company and its affiliates in OVEC. The payments required to be made by the Sponsoring Companies under the ICPA 
include monthly demand and energy charges and transmission charges. The demand and transmission charges are 
designed to cover all of OVEC's non-fuel related costs of owning, operating and maintaining OVEC's generation and 
transmission facilities - including debt repayment - and to provide a remm on equity to its Shareholders. The 
Sponsoring Companies' obligations under the ICPA are several, but not joint and several. This means that each 
Sponsoring Company is only liable for its obligations, and not the obligations of the other Sponsoring Compames under 
the ICPA. 

The energy charge permits OVEC to recover all of its fuel-related costs, with each Sponsoring Company paying its 
share of those costs based on the amount of energy taken by that Sponsoring Company. The Sponsoring Companies are 
obligated under the iCPA to pay the demand and transmission charges even if OVEC fails to deliver power and 
regardless of the amount of the available capacity of OVEC's generation facilities. In addition, the Sponsoring 
Companies must reimburse OVEC for all costs of replacements and additional facilities (defined in the ICPA). 

The ICPA allows OVEC to incur debt for capital improvements to maintain compliance with applicable laws. In the 
event that OVEC finances the cost of any additional facility or replacement, the Sponsoring Companies are required to 
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pay, as part of the demand charge for available power, 100% of all interest costs and debt amortization relating to such 
financing. The cost is allocated among the Sponsoring Companies based on their respective PPRs (representing their 
and their affiliates' approximate ownership of the Company). Consequently, the Sponsoring Companies are obligated to 
reimburse OVEC for 100% of its financing costs for any environmental spending. 

The current Shareholders and their respective percentages of equity in OVEC are; 

Shareholder Equity Percentage 

Allegheny Energy, Inc. 

American Electric Power Company, Inc.* 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC ' 

Columbus Southem Power Company**" 

The Dayton Power and Light Company ^ 

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.***^ 

Kentucky Utilities Company'' 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company ^ 

Ohio Edison Company *' 

Southem Indiana Gas and Electric Company ^ 

The Toledo Edison Company ** 

Total 

3.50% 

39.17% 

18.00% 

4.30% 

4.90% 

9.00% 

2.50% 

5.63% 

7.50% 

1.50% 

4.00% 

1 M M % 

These entities comprise the Sponsoring Companies and currently share the OVEC power participation benefits and 
requirements in the following percentages: 

Sponsoring Company Power Participation Ratios 

Allegheny Energy Supply Company ** 

Appalachian Power Company ^ 

Buckeye Power Generating, LLC ' 
Columbus Southem Power Company ^ 
The Dayton Power and Light Company ^ 

Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. '̂  
FirstEnergy Generation Corp. ^ 

Indiana Michigan Power Company ^ 

Kentucky Utilities Company ^ 

Louisville Gas and Electric Company ^ 
Monongahela Power Company ** 
Ohio Power Company ^ 

Southem Indiana Gas and Electric Company ^ 
Total 

Some of the Common Slock issued in the name oF: 
* American Gas & Electric Company 
** Columbus and Southem Ohio Electric Company 

3.01% 
15.69% 
18.00% 
4.44% 

4.90% 
9.00% 

11.50% 

7.85% 
2.50% 
5.63% 

0.49% 
15.49% 

1.50% 

««« The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

Subsidiary or affiliate of: 
' Buckeye Power, Inc. 
^ American Electric Power Company, Inc. 
^ DPL Inc. 
^ Duke Energy Corporation 
^ E.ON U.S. LLC 
^ FirstEnergy Corp. 
^ Vectren Corporation 
^ Allegheny Energy, Inc. 
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OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement 

The principal contractual arrangements between OVEC and IKEC are contained in the OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement. OVEC is obligated under the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement to purchase all power, and the energy 
associated therewith, generated at IKEC's CHfty Creek Plant. OVEC's payments for such power are determined 
such that, when added to revenues received by IKEC from any other source, they are sufficient to enable IKEC to 
pay all of its operating and other expenses, including all income and other taxes, and any interest and regular 
amortization requirements applicable to any indebtedness for borrowed funds incurred by IKEC. IKEC currently has 
no long-term indebtedness. IKEC is obligated to transmit to OVEC any and all power, and the energy associated 
therewith, generated at the Clifty Creek Plant. IKEC is further obligated to transmit and deliver to OVEC all power, 
and the energy associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by the Sponsoring Companies and to deliver to the 
Sponsoring Companies designated by OVEC, all power, and the energy associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by 
OVEC. The term of the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement is coterminous with the term of the ICPA. 

Available Information 

OVEC is not subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
"1934 Act") and does not file reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
"SEC"). Other than Buckeye Power Generating, LLC, all of the Shareholders of OVEC (or their parent corporation) 
are subject to the information requirements of the 1934 Act, and in accordance therewith file reports, proxy 
statements and other information with the SEC. Such reports, proxy statements and other information can be 
inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at its principal offices at 100 F Street, 
N.E., Washington, D.C. or at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. Additional information regarding Buckeye Power 
Generating, LLC, an affiliate of Buckeye Power, Inc., can be found at www. http://www.buckeyepower.com. 

None of the above-mentioned additional information regarding the Shareholders and their operating subsidiaries is 
part of this Official Statement, nor is any such information incorporated into this Official Statement, and neither the 
Company nor the Underwriters take any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof. 

Financial Statements 

Annex I to this Appendix A contains the Company's Annual Report for 2008 which includes the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and for each of the two years in the period 
ended December 31, 2008, audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors. Annex 2 to this Appendix A 
contains the unaudited consolidating financial statements of the Company as of March 31,2009. Annex 3 to this 
Appendix A contains the unaudited consolidating financial statements of the Company as of June 30, 2009. 

Risk Factors 

Investing in the Bonds involves risk. Please see the risk factors described below. Before making an investment 
decision, prospective Bondholders should carefiilly consider these risks as well as other infonnation contained in 
this Official Statement and the Appendices. The risks and uncertainties described are those presently known to the 
Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that the Company currently 
deems immaterial may also impair the Company's business operations, financial results and the value of the Bonds. 

Risks Associated with OVEC 

OVEC relies exclusively on the payments made to it by the Sponsoring Companies pursuant to the ICPA for 
revenue to pay OVEC's operating expenses, and OVEC may be unable to pay those expenses (Including 
payments of principal, interest, and premium, if any, on, the Bonds) if any of the Sponsoring Companies fails 
to fulfill its payment obligations to OVEC. 

The Sponsoring Companies are obligated under the ICPA to pay demand, transmission and energy charges that, 
collectively, are contractually designed to cover all of OVEC's fixed charges of owning, operating and maintaining 
OVEC's generation and transmission facilities, provide a retum on equity to OVEC's shareholders, and compensate 
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OVEC for costs of all fuel used to supply power under the ICPA, This obligation is several and not joint and several. 
As a consequence, because OVEC's only material source of revenue is under the ICPA, a failure by a Sponsoring 
Company to fulfill a payment obligation to OVEC for any reason could cause OVEC to be unable to pay its 
operating expenses (including payments with respect to principal, interest, and premium, if any, on, the Bonds). 
Moreover, the ability of the Sponsoring Companies to generate cash flow and make their obligated payments under 
the ICPA depends on their financial performance, which will be affected by a range of economic, competitive, 
legislative, regulatory and business factors, many of which are outside of the control of the Company and the 
Sponsoring Companies. 

The Sponsoring Companies' utility operations involve many risks, including the breakdown or failure of power 
generation equipment, pipelines, transmission lines, distribution lines or other equipment or processes, fuel 
interruption, and performance below expected levels of output or efficiency. Sales and revenues of a utility may also 
be adversely affected by general economic and business conditions and weather conditions in its service territory. 

In addition, the Sponsoring Companies are subject to a number of environmental and other laws and regulations 
affecting many aspects of their present and future operations, including the disposal of various forms of waste, the 
constmction or permitting of new facilities and air and water quality. Those laws and regulations generally require 
the Sponsoring Companies to obtain and comply with a wide variety of licenses, permits and other approvals. 
Existing regulations may be revised or new regulations may be adopted or become applicable to the Sponsoring 
Companies that could have an adverse impact on their respective operations, including potential regulatory 
developments related to emissions of greenhouse gases, sulfur dioxide and nitrous oxides. The implementation of 
regulatory changes imposing more comprehensive or stringent requirements on the Sponsoring Companies, to the 
extent such changes would result in increased compliance costs or additional operating restrictions, could have a 
material adverse effect on the results of operations of the Sponsoring Companies. See Environmental Matters herein. 

This Official Statement does not contain historical financial information regarding any of the Sponsoring 
Companies. In making an investment decision regarding the Bonds, there is no assurance, based upon the 
information contained herein, that any of the Sponsoring Companies will be capable of meeting its financial or other 
responsibilities under the ICPA. 

The operation of the Company's electric generation plants and transmission facilities involves risks that could 
adversely affect the Company's cost of operations. 

The Company is subject to various risks associated with operating its electric generation plants and transmission 
facihties, any of which could adversely affect its cost of operations. These risks include: 

failure of equipment or processes, operator or maintenance errors or other events resulting in power 
outages or reduced output; 

availability of fuel and fuel transportation; 

disruptions in the transmission or distribution of power; 

- changes in applicable laws and regulations, including environmental laws and regulations; and 

catastrophic events such as fires, hurricanes, explosions, floods, terrorist attacks or other similar 
occurrences to its facilities or to facilities upon which the Company depends. 

Unplanned outages of generating units and transmission facilities due to mechanical failures or other problems occur 
from time to time and are an inherent risk of the Company's business. Unplanned outages typically increase the 
Company's operation and maintenance expenses. All of the units of the Company's generation plants, and a 
significant portion of the Company's transmission facilities, were originally constmcted many years ago. Older 
generation and transmission equipment, even if maintained in accordance with good engineering practices, may 
require significant capital expenditures to keep it operating at high efficiency and to meet regulatory and 
environmental requirements. This equipment is also likely to require periodic upgrading and improvement. 
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The cost of repairing damage to the Company's generation plants and transmission facilities due to stomis, natural 
disasters, wars, terrorist acts and other catastrophic events may adversely afTect the Company's costs of operations 
or cash flows. These actions could also result in adverse changes in the insurance markets and dismptions of power 
and fuel markets. In addition, the Company's generation plants and transmission facilities are directly or indirectly 
connected to electric transmission infrastructure which the Company does not own and over which it does not 
exercise control of operations or maintenance. The Company's operations could be directiy or indirectly harmed by 
failures associated with either its own or third parties' generation and transmission facilities, including explosions, 
fires, inclement weather, natural disasters, mechanical failure, unscheduled downtime, equipment interruptions, 
remediation, chemical spills, discharges or releases of toxic or hazardous substances or gases and other 
environmental risks. Severe damage to or destmction of property and equipment and environmental damage may 
result in suspension of operations and the imposition of civil or criminal penaUies. Moreover, the occurrence or risk 
of occurrence of future terrorist attacks, related acts of war or failures in generation and transmission infrastructure 
could also adversely affect the U.S. economy or otherwise impact the Company's results of operations and financial 
condition in unpredictable ways. 

Should one or more of the events described above occur, the Company's cost of operations may significantly 
increase. The Company has insurance covering certain of its plants, including property damage insurance, 
commercial general liability insurance, and boiler and machinery coverage, each in amounts that the Company 
considers appropriate. However, the Company's insurance policies are subject to certain limits and deductibles as 
well as policy exclusions, the Company cannot assure purchasers of the Bonds that insurance coverage will be 
available in the future at current costs or on commercially reasonable terms or that the insurance proceeds received 
for any loss or damage, including any loss or damage to the Company's generation plants and transmission facilities 
or losses caused by outages, will be sufficient to restore the loss or damage without negative impact on the 
Company's costs of operations. 

The Interests of the Sponsoring Companies may connict with the Interests of the bondholders or OVEC. 

All of OVEC's capital stock is owned either by the Sponsoring Companies or by subsidiaries or other affiliates of 
the Sponsoring Companies. Therefore, the Sponsoring Companies direct OVEC*s activhies and have the ability to 
control the Company's management, policies, and financing decisions. In addition, the Sponsoring Companies may 
have interests that conflict with those of the bondholders or the Company's interests and, except as required by law 
or contractual obligations, the Sponsoring Companies have no duties to other parties with respect to the conduct of 
the Company's business. 

Risks Associated with the Bonds 

An investment in the Bonds involves certain risks, including the risk of nonpayment of interest, principal or 
premium, if any, due to the owners. The principal risk that may affect payment of the Bonds is the inability or 
refusal of the Letter of Credit Bank to perform its duties under the Letter of Credit. In such an event, the Tmstee 
would exercise its available remedies against the Letter of Credit Bank. The risk of nonpayment also depends upon 
the financial condition of the Company and is afrected by a number of factors that should be considered by 
prospective purcha.sers, along with the other infomiation presented in this Official Statement and the Appendices 
hereto, in judging the suitability of an investment in the Bonds. 

Risks Associated with the Letter of Credit and the Reimbursement Agreement 

Concurrently with, and as a condition to the offering of the Bonds in the Weekly Rate, the Company will cause to be 
delivered to the Trustee the Letter of Credit issued by the Letter of Credit Bank for the timely payment of principal 
of and interest (calculated for 35 days at the maximum rate of 12% per annum) on, and purchase price of, the Bonds. 
OVEC will be required to reimburse the Letter of Credit Bank for all amounts drawn by the Tmstee under the Letter 
of Credit pursuant to the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement. The Letter of Credit will expire on August 12, 
2010, subject to extension or earlier termination. The Letter of Credit may be extended or replaced by a letter of 
credit issued by a national banking association, a bank, a trust company or other financial institution satisfying the 
requirements of the Indenture. Certain information with respect to the Letter of Credit Bank is included in Appendix 
B to this Official Statement. 
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If the Letter of Credit expires or is terminated, and even if an Alternate Letter of Credit is obtained by OVEC, the 
Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase at the principal amount, without premium, plus accmed 
interest to the purchase date. See THE BONDS—Mandatory Tender for Purchase—Mandatory Tender Upon 
Substitution of Alternate Letter of Credit in this Official Statement. There can be no assurance that OVEC will be 
able to obtain an extension of the Letter of Credit or any future Altemate Letter of Credit. The Letter of Credit Bank 
is under no obligation to extend the Letter of Credit beyond the scheduled expiration thereof See THE LETTER OF 
CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT \n this Official Statement. From and after the receipt of an Altemate Letter 
of Credit in substitution for the Letter of Credit, if ever, the Bonds will be secured by the Altemate Letter of Credit. 

The ratings on the Bonds are dependent on the joint ratings of the Letter of Credit Bank and OVEC. The Letter of 
Credit Bank's current ratings are predicated upon among other things, a level of reserves required by banking 
institutions. The level of reserves maintained by the Letter of Credit Bank could change over time and this could 
result in a downgrading of the rating on the Bonds. The Letter of Credit Bank is not contractually bound to maintain 
its present level of reserves in the fiiture nor is it contractually bound to maintain its current credit rating. No 
provision has been made for replacement of or substitution for the Letter of Credit in the event of any deterioration 
in the financial condition of the Letter of Credit Bank. The ratings assigned to OVEC's senior unsecured debt by the 
rating agencies reflect such agencies* assessment of the likelihood that the holders of the Bonds will receive the 
payments of principal, purchase price and interest on each applicable payment date if the Letter of Credit were not in 
effect. The ratings are not a recommendation to purchase, hold or sell the Bonds, and such ratings do not comment 
as to the marketability of the Bonds, any market price, or suitability for a particular investor. There is no assurance 
that any rating will remain for any given period of time or that any rating will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely 
by a rating agency if, in such rating agency's judgment, circumstances so warrant. None of the Issuer, OVEC, the 
Underwriters or the Remarketing Agent has undertaken any responsibility to bring to tiie attention of the owners of 
the Bonds any proposed change in or withdrawal of such ratings or to oppose any such revision or withdrawal. 

The obligations of the Letter of Credit Bank under the Letter of Credit are general, unsecured obligations of the 
Letter of Credit Bank and will not rank higher in priority of payment or in any other respect with other unsecured 
obligations of the Letter of Credit Bank. In the event of a bankruptcy or insolvency or if for any other reason the 
Letter of Credit Bank fails or is unable to fulfill its obligations under the Letter of Credit, each owner of the Bonds 
would have to depend entirely on the ability of OVEC to pay the principal of, interest on and purchase price of 
Bonds tendered for purchase unless an Altemate Letter of Credit is obtained by OVEC. 

The Letter of Credit Bank is subject to regulation and supervision by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, the State of New York Banking Department and other regulatory bodies. New regulations could impose 
restrictions upon the Letter of Credit Bank that would restrict its ability to respond to competitive pressures. In the 
recent past increased regulatory efforts have imposed new capital requirements upon the Letter of Credit Bank. 
Various other legislative or regulatory changes could dramatically impact the banking industry as a whole and the 
Letter of Credit Bank specifically. The banking industry is highly competitive in many of the markets in which the 
Letter of Credit Bank operates. Such competition directly impacts the financial performance of the Letter of Credit 
Bank. Any significant increase in such competition could adversely impact the Letter of Credit Bank. 

Limited Obligations 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer, and are to be paid solely from, and will be secured by a pledge of, 
payments to be made by OVEC to the Issuer under the terms of the Loan Agreement and the Note. The Loan 
Agreement and the Note are unsecured obligations of OVEC. The Bonds will not be secured by a mortgage or 
security interest in the Project or any other property of the Company. The Bonds do not now and will never 
constitute a charge against the general credit of the Issuer, the State of Ohio, or any political subdivision thereof. 

Risk of Taxability 

The failure of the Issuer or OVEC to comply with their covenants to meet certain requirements of the Code (see TAX 
EXEMPTION in this Official Statement) could cause the interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross income 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. Under the 
circumstances described in this Official Statement under the caption THE BONDS—Redemption of Bonds — 
Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption of Bonds, the Bonds may be redeemed on any date in whole (or in part in 
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certain circumstances) without premium following the occurrence of certain events as described therein. The 
Indenture does not provide for the payment of any additional interest or penalty in the event that the interest on the 
Bonds becomes includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

Matters Relating to Enforcement 

Enforcement of the remedies under the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Reimbursement Agreement may be 
limited or restricted by federal and state laws relating to bankmptcy, fraudulent conveyances, and rights of creditors, 
by application of general principles of equity affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights and liens securing such 
rights, by zoning, subdivision or other municipal codes and ordinances and by the exercise of judicial authority by 
state or federal courts, and may be subject to discretion in the event of litigation or statutory remedy procedures, and 
may be substantially delayed in the event of litigation or statutory remedy procedures. The various legal opinions to 
be delivered concunentiy with the issuance and delivery of the Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the 
various legal instmments by limitations imposed by local, state and federal laws, mlings and decisions affecting 
remedies, and by general principles of equity and by bankmptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other 
similar laws affecting the rights of creditors. 

Suitability of Investment 

An investment in the Bonds involves a certain degree of risk. The interest rate borne by the Bonds is intended to 
compensate the investor for assuming this element of risk. Prospective investors should carefully examine this 
Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, and their ability to bear the economic risk of such an 
investment, and then determine whether or not the Bonds are an appropriate investment for them. 

Early Redemption or Mandatory Tender 

Pursuant to the terms of the Indenture, the Bonds are subject to redemption and mandatory tender for purchase prior 
to maturity (see THE BONDS^Redemption of Bonds and —Mandatory Tender for Purchase in this Official 
Statement). Under those circumstances, a Bondholder may not have the opportunity to hold those Bonds for a time 
period consistent with such Bondholder's original investment intentions. 

Secondary Markets and Prices 

No assurance can be given that any secondary market will develop following the completion of the offering of the 
Bonds. Except with respect to the mandatory or optional tender of the Bonds (see THE BONDS—Optional Tender and 
—Mandatory Tender for Purchase), OVEC will not be obligated to repurchase any of the Bonds, and no assurance 
can be given that a secondary market for the Bonds will develop following the completion of the offering of the 
Bonds. Other than with respect to a tender of the Bonds, the Bonds are not readily liquid, and no person should 
invest in the Bonds with funds such person may need to convert readily into cash. Bondholders should be prepared 
to hold their Bonds to the stated maturity date. 
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Financial Summary 

Capitalization 

The table below outlines OVEC's capitalization at year-end 2007 and at funding of the Bonds, the Series 
2009A Bonds, the Series 2009C Bonds and the Series 2009D Bonds assuming a June 30, 2009 issue date: 

(in thousands) 
Debt 
Senior Notes 
2009A-D Bonds 
Line of Credit Borrowings - Long 
Term 

Total Debt 
Equity 

12/31/2007 

$722,961 
-
-

$722,961 98% 

12/3I/2C 

$1,045,318 
-

50,000 

$1,095,318 

108 

99% 

Pro Forma 6/30/2009 

$1,127,857 
100,000 

-

$1,227,857 99% 

$10,000 $10,000 Common Stock $100 par value— $10,000 
Authorized, 300,000 shares; 
Outstanding, 100,000 shares 
Retained Earnings 2,916 2,507 5,086 

Total Equity $12,916 2% $12,507 \% $15,086 \% 
Total Capitalization $735,877 100% $1,107,825 100% $1,242,943 100% 

Summary of Financials 

The table below summarizes certain historical financial information of OVEC through 2008. 
(in thousands unless otherwise noted) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Net Generation (MWh) 

Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Average Price $/MWh to Sponsors 

15,810 16,638 16,468 15,110 15,260 

$406,283 $468,546 $523,927 $531,362 $621,813 

$380,972 $442,420 $494,893 $494,808 $566,798 

$24 $28 $31 $35 $41 

Power Sales Agreements 

OVEC, on formation, entered into two principal power sales agreements: 

- the DOE Power Agreement between OVEC and the United States of America, currently acting by and 
through the Atomic Energy Commission's successor, the Secretary of Energy, the statutory head of the 
U.S. Department of Energy; and 

- the ICPA. 

The term of the ICPA (as amended and restated, effective March 13, 2006) continues until the first to occur of the 
foUowing: (i) the sale or other disposition of OVEC's and IKEC's electric generation faciUties, (ii) the permanent 
cessation ofthe operation ofthose generation facilities, or(ni) March 13, 2026. 

OVEC also entered into a power sales agreement with OVEC's wholly owned subsidiary, IKEC, which OVEC 
refers to as the "OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement." 
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The DOE Power Agreement 

Under the DOE Power Agreement, OVEC was obligated to sell to tiie DOE essentially all of its electric generating 
capacity for use at the DOE's Pike County, Ohio uranium enrichment facilities in retum for an agreement by the 
DOE to pay the costs ofthe ownership, operation and maintenance of OVEC's generation and transmission 
facilities, as well as to provide a retum on equity to OVEC's shareholders. 

In September 2000, the DOE notified OVEC of its election to terminate the DOE Power Agreement in connection 
with the cessation of uranium enriching operations at its Pike County plant, which became effective on April 30, 
2003. 

Upon the termination ofthe DOE Power Agreement, OVEC entered into an arranged power agreement witii the 
DOE under which OVEC purchases power from third parties for delivery to the DOE. The DOE reimburses OVEC 
for the costs of all power purchases under this agreement and pays OVEC an administrative charge. The current 
arranged power agreement may be terminated by either party on 30 days' prior notice. 

The ICPA 

OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies signed the original ICPA on July 10, 1953, to support the DOE Power 
Agreement and provide for excess energy sales to the Sponsoring Companies of power not utilized by the DOE or 
its predecessors. Since the tennination ofthe DOE Power Agreement on April 30,2003, the Sponsoring Companies 
have, under the terms ofthe ICPA, the right to OVEC's entire generating capacity and the right to purchase all ofthe 
energy it generates. OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies entered into an amended and restated ICPA, effective 
March 13,2006, extending the ICPA's term for an additional 20 years. 

Each Sponsoring Company can reserve a percentage, called a power participation ratio ("PPR") of available power 
and energy, and a Sponsoring Company that reserves power is entitled to a commensurate amount of available 
energy. The PPR ofeach Sponsoring Company is based on the ownership interest of such Sponsoring Company and 
its affiliates in OVEC. 

The payments required to be made by the Sponsoring Companies include monthly demand and energy charges and 
transmission charges. The demand and transmission charges are designed to cover all of OVEC's non-fuel related 
costs of ovming, operating and maintaining its generation and transmission facilities - including debt service costs -
and to provide a retum on equity to its Shareholders. The energy charges paid by the Sponsoring Companies 
reimburse OVEC for all of its fuel-related costs, with each Sponsoring Company paying its share ofthose costs 
based on the amount of energy taken by such Sponsoring Company. The Sponsoring Companies are obligated under 
the ICPA to pay the demand and transmission charges even if OVEC fails to deliver power and regardless ofthe 
amount ofthe available capacity of OVEC's generation facilities. In addition, the Sponsoring Companies must 
reimburse OVEC for all costs of replacements and additional facilities. 

The share ofthe total demand and transmission charges payable for any month by each Sponsoring Company is 
based on the Sponsoring Company's entitlement to power for such month. The share ofthe total energy charge 
payable for any month by each Sponsoring Company is based on the amount of energy taken by the Sponsoring 
Company for such month. 

Under the ICPA, OVEC is entitied to bill the Sponsoring Companies on a semi-monthly basis for payment of its 
estimated demand and energy costs in the applicable semi-monthly period. OVEC generally bills the Sponsoring 
Companies on a monthly basis to adjust for its actual demand and energy costs for the entire month. Under the terms 
ofthe ICPA, payments are required to be made promptiy and are generally paid within 15 days. Throughout 
OVEC's 56-year history, no Sponsoring Company has ever defaulted on a payment. 

Each ofthe Sponsoring Companies either owns, or is a subsidiary or affiliate of a company that own, OVEC's 
capital stock. The Sponsoring Companies are not liable for OVEC's indebtedness, including OVEC's obligations 
under the Loan Agreement. 
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OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement 

The principal contractual arrangements between OVEC and IKEC are contained in tiie OVEC-IKEC Power 
Agreement. OVEC is obligated under the OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement to purchase all power, and tiie energy 
associated therewith, generated at IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant. OVEC's payments for such power are determined 
such that, when added to revenues received by IKEC from any other source, they are sufficient to enable IKEC to 
pay all of its operating and other expenses, including all income and other taxes, and any interest and regular 
amortization requirements applicable to any indebtedness for borrowed funds incurred by IKEC. IKEC currently has 
no long-term indebtedness. IKEC is obligated to transmit to OVEC any and all power, and the energy associated 
therewith, generated at the Clifty Creek Plant, IKEC is fiirther obligated to transmit and deliver to OVEC all power, 
and the energy associated therewith, supplied to IKEC by the Sponsoring Companies and to deliver to tiie 
Sponsoring Companies designated by OVEC, all power, and tiie energy associated tiierewith, supplied to IKEC by 
OVEC. The term of tiie OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement is coterminous witii the term ofthe ICPA. 

OVEC/IKEC Plant Description 

OVEC and IKEC, own and operate two coal-fired electric power generating plants. OVEC's Kyger Creek Plant and 
IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant. 

Operating Statistics 
Kyger Creek Clifty Creek Combined 

Nameplate Capacity (MW) 
Number of generating units 
Commissioning year 
Net heat rate (BTU/kWh) - 2008 
Availability factor (%) - 2004-2008 avg. 
Fuel cost ($/MWh)-2008 
Total production costs ($/MWh) - 2008 

1,086 
5 

1955 
10,171 

88.89% 
$21.69 
$28.03 

1,304 
6 

1955 
10,289 
85.4% 
$21.77 
$29.66 

2,390 
11 

1955 
10,236 
86.9% 
$21.25 
$28.93 

Each of Clifty's six units and Kyger's five units has a capacity of 217.26 MW. The Clifty units and Kyger Unit 1 are 
equipped with General Electric steam turbines and hydrogen-cooled generators, while Kyger Units 2 through 5 are 
equipped with Westinghouse steam turbines and hydrogen-cooled generators. Each unit is also equipped with a 
once-through turbine condenser utilizmg water from the Ohio River. The generators produce electricity at 15.5 kV 
which is then stepped up to 345 kV by three main transformers (one for each of tiiree phases). 

The steam powering each ofthe eleven unhs is generated by Babcock & Wilcox ("B&W") open-pass reheat boilers 
(one for each unit). The primary fuel for these front-wall fired, wet bottom, subcritical drum units is pulverized coal. 
Each unit has seven B&W type EL-70 pulverizers and 14 fishtail shaped burner nozzles (2 per pulverizer). The 
boilers are also equipped with oil lighters which are used primarily for start-ups and flame stabilization at low loads. 
The primary furnaces are operated at balance draft or slightiy negative ftimace pressure. Each unit is equipped with 
two forced-draft fans and one induced-draft fan. During the period of 1995 through 1999, overfire air modifications 
were completed on all eleven units, at a cost of $8.2MM ($4.2MM Kyger and $4MM Clifty), to meet Federal Clean 
Air Act nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions requirements. Another modification to Kyger's boilers was the addition of 
iron ore injection directly into the primary fumace to aid fumace slag tapping. The iron ore injection system which 
includes storage silos, blowers, piping and nozzles was completed in 2000 at a cost of $2.6MM. 

New flue gas stacks were buiU and electrostatic precipitators ("ESP") installed during the period of 1977-1980. 
Clifty has two 983-foot stacks each serving three units, and Kyger has a single 1000-foot stack. Cold-side ESPs 
were installed on all Kyger units and CHfty Units 1 through 5. CHfty Unit 6 has a hot-side ESP manufactured by 
Western Precipitation Division of Joy Manufacturing Company. Kyger's ESPs were manufactured by Flakt, Inc. 
Clifty's cold-side ESPs were manufactured by Lodge-Cottrell Division of Dresser Industries, Inc. The ESP's and 
stacks cost was approximately $184MM (S79MM Kyger and $105MM Clifty). 
In recent years, the use of lower sulfur coals at both plants has necessitated the installation of SO^ flue gas 
conditioning systems to improve fly ash collection by decreasing the resistivity ofthe ash. The systems. 
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manufactured by WALHCO, were installed on Clifty Units 1 through 5 in 1998 and on all Kyger units in 2001 at a 
total cost of $9.5MM ($4.0MM Kyger and $5.5MM Clifty). 

Once collected, the fly ash at Clifly is conveyed dry to silos where the ash is loaded to tmcks either to be sold as a 
concrete ingredient or hauled to the plant's landfill. The Clifty dry fly ash conversion project was completed in 1993 
at a cost of approximately $I7.8MM. 

The fly ash at Kyger is sluiced to the plant's fly ash pond for disposal. In 2001, Kyger closed the north fly ash pond 
with a clay cap and dredging material from the South fly ash and bottom ash pond. The project cost was 
approximately $4.3MM. 

Other ash storage facilities include one bottom ash pond at Kyger and one bottom ash pond at Clifty. Both plants 
also sell bottom ash for use as blasting grit, roofing granules, and snow and ice control. 

Coal is delivered by barge to both plants. Each plant has two barge unloading tower cranes from which the coal may 
be directed to the unit coal bunkers for consumption or to storage. Revisions made during Clifty's coal switch 
project (completed in 1994 at a cost of $79.5MM) accommodate the storage and blending of bituminous and low-
sulftir subbituminous coal supplies. Clifty presently bums a blend of 75%i subbituminous coal from the Powder 
River Basin ("PRB") in Wyoming and 25% eastem bituminous coal. In 2006, Kyger Creek completed modifications 
to the boilers and coal handling systems to allow the plant to store and bum a coal blend of up to 80% PRB coal. 
The Kyger Creek PRB project cost was approximately $53MM. Presently, Kyger bums a blend of roughly 70% 
PRB coal and 30% eastem bituminous coal. Prior to these modifications, the PRB portion of Kyger's fuel blend was 
limited to approximately 35%. 

In 2002 and 2003, selective catalytic reduction ("SCR") systems were retrofitted to ten ofthe eleven Kyger and 
Clifty units at an approximate cost of $355MM ($191 MM Kyger and $I64MM Clifty). SCR systems convert NOx 
in the flue gas exiting the boilers into elemental nitrogen and water by mixing ammonia into the flue gas stream and 
passing the mixture through layers of catalyst. The required amounts of ammonia are supplied by each plant's 
Ammonia On Demand ("AOD") system which use a feedstock of pelletized urea. This equipment has been operated 
during the five-month ozone season (May through September) each year beginning May 31, 2004 and is expected to 
be operated year-round beginning January 1, 2009 to comply with state and federal NOx emission reduction 
requirements. 

OVEC/IKEC Transmission System 

The OVEC/IKEC transmission system was constructed in the early 1950's, The system is operated at 345 kV with 
interconnections to other utilities at 345 kV and 138 kV. It is comprised of 776 circuit miles of 345 kV lines and 
four substations. 

The transmission lines include 1,561 steel lattice towers, approximately four towers per mile with an average span of 
1,310 feet. The phase conductors are 1,414 KCM aluminum, steel core, paper expanded and the neutral conductor is 
159KCM Aluminum Conductor Steel Reinforced. OVEC has approximately 7,036 acres of right-of-way in Ohio, 
Indiana and Kentucky. 

Ofthe four substations, one each is located adjacent to the Clifty Creek Plant and the Kyger Creek Plant, These 
substations allow for the connection ofthe generating units to the transmission system along with interconnections 
to other utilities, and are arranged in a breaker and a half scheme. The other large substation. Pierce, is located near 
Cincinnati, Ohio and is also a breaker and a half layout. The Dearbom substation located near Lawrenceburg, 
Indiana is a bus extension from the Tarmers Creek Plant owned by American Electric Power Company, Inc. ("AEP") 
and has a single breaker per line. In addition to the four aforementioned substations, OVEC also ties at 345 kV to a 
Duke Energy owned station near Florence, Kentucky. There are 345/138 kV transformers located at the Clifty, 
Pierce and Sargents substations to allow for 138 kV interconnections. Other interconnections at 345 kV exist at 
Clifty, Pierce, Dearbom, and Kyger along with indirect ties through the DOE substation. 

Although OVEC is currentiy not a member of any regional transmission organization, OVEC has contracted with 
the PJM Interconnection LLC ("PJM") to provide reliability coordination services. As OVEC's reliability 
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coordinator, PJM has operational authority to perform activities as govemed by the North American Reliability 
Corporation ("NERC") Interconnection Reliability Operations and Coordination Standards dealing with the 
reliability ofthe interconnected electrical system. The OVEC/IKEC transmission system is interconnected with 
members of PJM, and the Midwest Independent System Operator, Inc. ("MISO") and the transmission system ofthe 
electric utility subsidiaries of E.ON U.S. LLC, as well as transmission facilities owned by the DOE (OVEC's sole 
retail customer). 

Coal Supply 

The Company procures coal at an annual rate of approximately 8.0MM tons for use at the Clifty Creek and Kyger 
Creek plants. The Company has coal supply agreements with certain nonaffiliated companies that expire at various 
dates from the year 2009 through 2017. Pricing for coal under these contracts is subject to contract provisions and 
adjustments. The Company currently has approximately 100% of hs coal requirements under long-term (12 months 
or more) agreements. Through 2009, it is expected that both plants will continue to burn a high percentage (up to 
75%) of low-sulfur subbituminous coal. 

OVEC/IKEC Coal Supply 

Subbituminous Bituminous Combined 
Average remaining term 
of supply agreements 
% hedged in 2009 
% hedged in 2010 
% hedged in 20II 

0.7 years 
100% 
12% 
26% 

1.7 years 
100% 
94% 
99% 

1.3 years 
100% 
49% 
61% 

Transportation contracts Rail - Union Pacific - Expires 12/31/2009 
Barge (OVEC) - Ingram Barge - Expires 9/30/2009 (New Contract to 12/31 /2013) 
Barge (IKEC) - MEMCO - Expires 12/31/2013 
RaUcars~993 leased - Leases expire 12/31/2Q10to 12/31/2025 

Environmental Compliance Project 

Flue gas desulfurization ("FGD") systems are being constmcted for both Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek with imtial 
operation projected for 2010 and 2012, respectively. The FGD systems are designed to remove 98% ofthe sulfur 
dioxide ("SO2") from gases exhausted from tiie plants' boilers. Kyger Creek's FGD system is designed for coal witii 
SO2 content of up to 7.5 Ibs/MMBtu. The coal SO2 specification for Clifty Creek's FGD design is 5.0 Ibs/MMBtu. 
The FGD designs and the capability to blend subbituminous and bituminous coals at both plants provide significant 
ftiel flexibility and improve the Company's fuel procurement position. 

FGD Project Equipment 

Chiyoda CT-121 jet bubbling reactor absorbers (2 per plant) 

New flue gas discharge stack with two flue liners (I per plant) 

Flue booster fans (2 per absorber) 

Reagent (hmestone) handling systems and preparation systems 

By-product (gypsum) dewatering systems 

FGD wastewater treatment 

By-product handling systems and disposal landfill 

Auxiliary electrical system 

Various auxiliary systems including oxidation air, service water, reclaim water, flue gas quenching, and 
controls. 
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Properties 

In addition to two generation facilities and transmission facilities, OVEC also owns 21,896 square feet of office 
space in Piketon, Ohio, which it uses as its corporate headquarters. It also owns garage space and land, which it uses 
for the operation of a transmission maintenance crew. In addition, OVEC has constructed a command center, data 
center, training area, and office space in a single 8,500 square feet stmcture located at the Piketon, Ohio office. 

Employees 

As of July 1, 2009, OVEC and IKEC employed 818 full-time employees. As of that date, the Kyger Creek 
Plant employed 351 employees, of which 251 are represented by the Utility Workers Union of America (AFL-CIO). 
The Clifty Creek Plant employs 373 employees, all non-union. In addition, as of this date, OVEC has 94 system 
employees reporting to the corporate headquarters located in Piketon, Ohio. Management believes that its relations 
with employees and their representatives are excellent. 

Legal Matters 

OVEC is involved in a number of legal and administrative proceedings incident to the normal course of OVEC's 
business. In the opinion of OVEC's management, based on the advice of counsel, any liability to OVEC relative to 
these ordinary course proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on OVEC's operations and financial 
condition. 

Regulation 

OVEC is also affected by various federal and state laws and regulations pertaining to utilities, including the laws and 
regulations described below. 

Federal Energv Regulatorv Commission 

Under the Federal Power Act ("FPA"), the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") has exclusive 
jurisdiction over the rates, terms and conditions of wholesale sales and the transmission of electricity in interstate 
commerce by public utilities. The FPA requires all public utilities to file rate schedules with the FERC prior to 
commencement of wholesale sales or transmission of electricity. In addition, a pubtic utility is subject to financial 
and organizational regulation by FERC under the FPA, including approval requirements relating to dispositions of 
jurisdictional facilities, as well as a number of accounting, recordkeeping and reporting requirements. Each of 
OVEC and IKEC is a public utility and therefore subject to regulation by FERC under the FPA. The ICPA and the 
OVEC-IKEC Power Agreement have all been filed with, and accepted by, FERC under the FPA as rate schedules 
(including all modifications to the ICPA that have been entered into by OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies) and 
therefore the demand, energy and other charges payable under those agreements constitute FERC-authorized rates. 

As part ofthe repeal of Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, Congress has granted additional authority to 
the FERC over electric utilities and their affiliates. This authority relates primarily to increased access to books and 
records and affiliate cost allocation. 

State Utility Regulation 

Both OVEC and IKEC are subject to state utility regulation. OVEC, whose operations are principally in Ohio, is 
subject to regulation by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, while IKEC, whose operations are principally in 
Indiana, is subject to regulation by the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission. OVEC also owns electric power 
transmission facilities in Kentucky and therefore is subject to regulation by the Kentucky Public Service 
Commission. This state regulation covers financial and organizational matters (including the abandonment of 
facilities), as well as, in the case ofthe Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, OVEC's provision of electric service to 
the DOE under retail power sales agreements. Because of FERC's exclusive jurisdiction over wholesale sales of 
electricity in interstate commerce, however, none of these state utility commissions have jurisdiction over OVEC's 
sales of electricity to the Sponsoring Companies, including the rates payable under the ICPA. 
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Environmental Matters 

OVEC and IKEC are subject to a number of federal, state and local requirements relating to the protection ofthe 
environment, and the safety and health of OVEC and IKEC's personnel and the public. These requirements relate to 
a broad range of OVEC and IKEC's activities, including: the discharge of pollutants into the air and water; the 
identification, generation, storage, handling, transportation, disposal, record keeping, labeling, reporting of and 
emergency response in connection with hazardous and toxic materials and wastes associated with OVEC and 
IKEC's operations; and safety and healtii standards, practices and procedures that apply to the workplace and to 
operation of OVEC and IKEC's facilities. In order to comply witii these requirements, OVEC and IKEC may need 
to spend substantial sums of money and devote other resources from time to time to: constmct or acquire new 
equipmoit; acquire permits and/or marketable allowances or other emission credits for facility operations; modify or 
replace existing and proposed equipment; and clean up or decommission waste disposal areas, fiiel storage and 
management facilities and other locations and facilities. If OVEC and IKEC do not comply with environmental 
requirements that apply to OVEC and IKEC's operations, regulatory agencies could seek to impose on it civil, 
administrative and/or criminal penaUies as well as seek to curtail OVEC and IKEC's operations. Under some 
statutes and common law principles, private parties could also seek to impose civti fines or liabilities for property 
damage, personal injury and possibly other costs. 

Air Emissions 

OVEC and IKEC's facilities are subject to the Federal Clean Air Act and many state and local laws and regulations 
relating to air pollution. These laws and regulations currentiy cover, among other pollutants, NOx, ground-level 
ozone, carbon monoxide, SO? and particulate matter. 

Title IV of die 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments required the Company to reduce SO2 emissions in two phases: Phase 1 
in 1995 and Phase II in 2000. The Company selected a fuel switching strategy to comply with the emission reduction 
requirements. The Company also purchased additional SO2 allowances. The cost of these purchased allowances was 
inventoried and included on an average cost basis in the cost of iliel consumed when used. The cost of unused 
allowances at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $2.2MM and $ 11.8MM, respectively. 

Selective Catalytic Reduction Program 

Titie IV ofthe 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments also required the Company to comply with a NOx emission rate 
limit of 0.84 Ib/mmBtu in 2000. NO^ is formed in exhaust gases from the generators as a byproduct of coal 
combustion. The Company installed overfire air systems on all eleven units at the plants to comply with this limit. 
The total capital cost of tiie eleven overfire air systems was approximately $8.2MM. 

During 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NO^ State Implementation Plan Call regulations that 
required further significant NO^ emission reductions for coal buming power plants, to a maximum rate of 0.15 
pounds/MMBtu during the ozone control period (May through September). To accomplish this new level of 
emission reductions, the Company installed SCR systems on ten of its eleven units. The total capital cost of these 
SCR systems was approximately $355MM ($I91MM at Kyger Creek and $164MM at Cliffy Creek). Due to a 
different physical configuration of one ofthe generating units at Clifty Creek, OVEC did not retrofit an SCR system 
on the eleventh generating unit. However, by retrofitting the other ten generating units with SCR systems, OVEC's 
combined emission rate was reduced below the required level. 
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The table below describes projects that OVEC and IKEC have completed to comply with environmental regulations: 

Completed Projects 

Project Purpose Date 
Cost 

(SMM) 

Clifty Creek Coal Yard 
Modifications 

Chfty Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (all units) - boiler overfire 
air modifications 
Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (10 of 11 units) - installed 
SO3 flue gas conditioning systems 

Cliffy Creek and Kyger Creek 
Plants (10 of 11 units) - installed 
selective catalytic reduction 
equipment 
Kyger Creek Coal Yard 
modifications 

To allow use of low-sulfur coal blend to 
meet Clean Air Act requirements for 
SO2 emissions 
To meet Clean Air Act requirement for 
NOx emissions 

To improve particulate collection of 
lower sulfur coal fly ash in electrostatic 
precipitators 

To comply with ozone season NOx 
requirements 

To allow use of low-sulllir coal blend to 
meet Clean Air Act requirements for 

1994 

1995 - 1999 

1998 (Clifty 
Creek Plant), 
2001 (Kyger 
Creek Plant) 
2002-2003 

2006-2007 

79.5 

8.2 

9.5 

355,0 

53,0 

Flue Gas Desulfurization Project 

On March 10,2005, tiie United States Environmental Protection Agency (the "EPA") signed the Clean Air Interstate 
Rule ("CAIR") that will require significant further reductions of SO2 and NOx emissions from coal-buming power 
plants. On March 15,2005, the EPA also signed the Clean Air Mercury Rule ("CAMR") that will require significant 
mercury emission reductions for coal-buming power plants. These emission reductions will be required in two 
phases: 2009 and 2015 for NO^; 2010 and 2015 for SO2; and 2010 and 2018 for mercury. Ohio and Indiana also 
subsequently finalized their respective versions of CAIR and CAMR. In response, the Company determined that it 
would be necessary to install FGD systems at both plants to comply with tiiese new mles and have since been 
conducting the necessary engineering, permitting, and constmction to install these new FGD systems. The cost of 
the new FGD systems and the associated landfills is estimated not to exceed $1.3 billion. 

In February 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated the federal CAMR and 
remanded the mle to the EPA with a determination that the mle be rewritten under the maximum achievable control 
technologies ("MACT") provision of Section 112(d) ofthe Clean Air Act. A group of electric utilities and tiie EPA 
requested a rehearing ofthe decision, which was denied by the court. Following those denials, both the group of 
electric utilities and the EPA requested that the U.S. Supreme Court hear the case. However, in Febmary 2009, the 
EPA withdrew its request and the group of utilities' request was denied. These actions left the original court decision 
in place, which vacated the federal CAMR and remanded the mle to the EPA with a determination that the mle be 
rewritten under the MACT provision of Section 112(d) ofthe Clean Air Act. 

In July 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision tiiat vacated the federal CAIR and remanded the 
rule to the EPA. In September 2008, the EPA, a group of electric utilities and other parties filed petitions for 
rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted the EPA's petition and remanded the mle 
to the EPA without vacatur, allowing the federal CAIR to remain in effect while a new mle is developed and 
promulgated. 

The Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek improvements include: 

FGD with a landfill at Kyger Creek Plant for SO2 reductions and mercury control (currentiy projected 
at not to exceed amounts of $515MM for the FGD and $52MM for Phase I ofthe landfill). 
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- FGD with a landfill at Clifty Creek Plant for SO2 reductions and mercury control (currentiy projected 
at not to exceed amounts of $619MM for tiie FGD and $42MM for Phase I ofthe landfill). 

The components ofthe FGD system include two Chiyoda CT-121 jet bubbling reactor absorbers, a new stack at each 
plant, new FGD equipment buildings, booster fans and motors, tanks, electrical and mechanical equipment, river 
cells, limestone handling, gypsum handling and transportation, landfills, pond closure and wastewater treatment. 

In December 2008, the Company's Boards of Directors authorized a delay in constmction ofthe FGD at the Cliffy 
Creek Plant of at least 18 months due to economic uncertainfy in the capital markets. 

In March 2009, the Board of Directors of OVEC autiiorized a delay in the anticipated tie-in ofthe first three 
generating units to the Kyger Creek Plant's FGD system pending an investigation into the stmctural integrity ofthe 
two newly constructed jet bubbling reactors, which are major components ofthe FGD system. Additional SO2 
allowances have been and will be purchased to operate the Gifty Creek and Kyger Creek generating units in 
compliance with the current environmental emission mles during tiie delays. 

The Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek FGD systems are projected to be operational in 2010 and 2012, respectively. 

CERCLA 

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (*'CERCLA"), also known as the 
**Superfiind" law, requires payments for cleanup of certain sites, including abandoned waste disposal sites, even 
though such waste disposal activities were undertaken in compliance with regulations applicable at the time of 
disposal. Under the Superftind legislation, one party may, under certain circumstances, be required to bear more than 
its proportional share of cleanup costs at a site where it has responsibility pursuant to the legislation if payments 
cannot be obtained from other responsible parties. Other legislation, including the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, which largely addresses facilities that are currently being operated, can also require environmental 
remediation. States also have regulatory programs that can mandate cleanups. CERCLA authorizes the EPA and, in 
some cases^ third parties to take actions in response to tiireats to the public health or tiie environment and to seek to 
recover from the responsible classes of persons the costs they incur. The scope of financial liabilify under these laws 
involves inherent uncertainties. 

Environmental laws and regulations have changed substantially and rapidly in past years, and OVEC anticipates that 
there will be continuing changes. The clear trend in environmental regulation is to place more restrictions and 
limitations on activities that may impact the environment, such as emissions of pollutants, generation and disposal of 
wastes and use and handling of chemical substances. Increasingly strict environmental restrictions and limitations 
have resulted in increased operating costs for the Company and other businesses throughout the United States, and it 
is likely tiiat the costs of compliance with environmental laws and regulations will continue to increase. OVEC will 
attempt to anticipate fiiture regulatory requirements that might be imposed and to plan accordingly in order to 
remain in compliance with changing environmental laws and regulations and to minimize the costs of such 
compliance. 

Regulation of Greenhouse Gases 

On June 26, 2009, the United States House of Representatives passed H.R. 2454, the "American Clean Energy and 
Securify Act of 2009," which contains several energy provisions, one of which would create an economy-wide "cap 
and trade program" for greenhouse gases ("GHG") that would begin in 2012. The bill is currently before the U.S. 
Senate. The Company is unable to predict whether federal legislation that regulates GHGs will become law or what 
its final form or effect would be. At this time, there does not appear to be a consensus as to what the level of future 
regulation of GHGs will be, or the costs associated witii that regulation. However, any such costs would likely 
impact all coal fired generation and the energy market in general. 
On April 24,2009, EPA proposed to find that GHGs from new motor vehicles and motor vehicle engines endanger 
public health and welfare under Section 202 ofthe Clean Air Act. The proposed endangerment finding is limited to 
mobile sources and the Company is unable to predict whether the EPA will impose regulations of GHGs on coal 
fired generation facilities, and if so, what their form or effect would be. 
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Insurance 

OVEC maintains customary levels of insurance for a company of its size in its industry and believes that its 
insurance arrangements are adequate and satisfactory. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with the financial information and 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Official Statement The following 
information contains forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ from the results anticipated in these 
forward-looking statements as a result of factors including, but not limited to, those under "Risk Factors" and 
elsewhere in this Official Statement. 

Generation Availability 

In 2008, the combined availabilify ofthe five generating units at Kyger Creek and the six units at Cliffy Creek was 
85.2%, compared to 85%) in 2007. Availability is determined by totaling all hours each ofthe eleven units were 
available for operation as a ratio to total hours in the same time period. 

Heat Rate 

The combined heat rate ofthe Kyger Creek and Cliffy Creek generating units was 10,236 Btu/kWh for 2008 as 
compared to 10,180 Btu/kWh for 2007. 

Energy Sales 

OVEC's on-peak use factor — the percentage of power scheduled by the Sponsoring Companies versus the power 
available — averaged 99.87% in 2008 compared witii 99.70%. in 2007. The off-peak use factor averaged 91.92% in 
2008 and 93.31% in 2007, The average use factor for the combined on-peak and off-peak periods were 96.39% in 
2008, conipared with 96.92% in 2007. 

In 2008, OVEC delivered I5.0MM MWh to the Sponsoring Companies, compared to 14.9MM MWh in 2007. 
Generation sales were impacted in 2008 by lower generation availability and lower off-peak sales to tiie Sponsoring 
Companies. 

Power Costs 

In 2008, the Sponsoring Companies' average cost of power from OVEC was $40.29/MWh, compared to 
$35.36/MWh in 2007. The increase was primarily due to additional debt service and fuel costs in 2008, 

Units of Power Sales information 

The average cost per MWh unit of sale was $40.29 in 2008 as compared to $35.36 in 2007. The increased debt 
service costs related to the $300MM Senior Notes issued in 2007 and the $350MM Senior Notes issued in 2008 
account for the majorify ofthe increase in cost per unit sold. The Company did not add or remove major lacilities 
from its transmission system during the past two years. The Company maintains its eleven generating units, which 
average 217.26 MW, in a manner to be most efficiently available during the peak period of need associated with its 
Sponsoring Company customers. 

Operating Revenue Compared for 2008 and 2007 

Total revenue for 2008 was $622MM, compared to $53 IMM in 2007. The primary increase in revenue is due to the 
billing of increased debt service charges and fuel cost. In 2008, 7.9MM tons of coal was bumed, compared to 
7.6MM in 2007. The average cost of coal bumed for 2008 was $40/ton compared to $34/ton in 2007. The debt 
service payments increased due to the refinancing ofthe $305MM Senior Notes due in 2006 with the $445MM 
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amortizing Senior Notes due in 2026, tiie 2007 issuance of $300MM of Senior Notes due in 2026 and the 2008 
issuance of $350MM Senior Notes also due in 2026. 

Operating Expense and Other Items Compared for 2008 and 2007 

Total operating expenses for 2008 were $567MM, compared to $495MM in 2007. In 2008, OVEC sold 15MM 
MWh of power to its Sponsoring Companies, compared to 14.9MM MWh in 2007. The tons of coal bumed to 
generate this power were 7.9MM in 2008, compared to 7.6MM in 2007, In addition, the cost per ton of coal 
consumed and fuel related charges during these two periods was $43.11/ton in 2008 and $39.32/ton in 2007. 

OVEC purchases power from other utilities to resell to the DOE Portsmouth facilify. During 2008, the DOE 
purchased 270,369 MWbs for $18.5MM, compared to 256,613 MWhs purchased in 2007 at a cost of $14.6MM. 
Since OVEC purchases this power for the DOE, tiie cost is recorded on OVEC's financials as an additional 
operating expense. 

Balance Sheet Comparisons for 2008 versus 2007 

At December 31, 2007 and 2008, the Plant-In-Service assets were $1.2bn. after depreciation, net properfy assets 
were $330MM at year end 2008, compared to $346MM at year end 2007. Current assets decreased from $234MM 
to $171MM at year end 2008, primarily as a result of decreased cash reserved for constmction and decreased fuel 
inventories and emission allowances. 

The total capitalization was $1.07bn at year end 2008, compared to $713MM at year end 2007. This increase can 
primarily be attributed to the $350MM Senior Notes issued in 2008. 

Cash Flow Analysis for 2008 

Cash from net income for both 2007 and 2008 was $5.1 MM. This source of funds is a relatively steady number from 
year to year due to the cost-plus nature ofthe power agreement OVEC has with the Sponsoring Companies. 
Depreciation and amortization provided a source of funds of $57MM. The depreciation is closely related to the 
assets closed to Plant-ln-Service during the year. The ftiel (coal) inventory decreased during 2008, resulting in a 
$12MM Source of funds. On December 31, 2008, OVEC had 1.5MM tons of coal in inventory as compared to 
1.8MM tons on December 31, 2007. Additionally, the price per ton decreased from $36.10/ton to $34.37/ton during 
the same period. Since 2005, OVEC had been purchasing SO2 allowances in an effort to build inventory. During 
2008, OVEC continued using the allowances purchased in previous years, resulting in a $9.5MM source of funds. 
Electric plant additions increased during 2008, which resulted in a $436MM use of funds. These funds were used to 
fund the construction of tiie FGD projects. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

OVEC had a $100MM, 364-day bank revolving credit facility agreement as of December 31,2004. In 2005, this 
facility was replaced with a $200MM, 5-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility that expires August 4,2010. 
The facility contains an accordion feature permitting a $100MM increase to the facility under certain conditions, and 
is used primarily for general corporate purposes including capital expenditures. At December 31,2008, OVEC had 
$50MM in outstanding debt under tiiis facility. Interest expense related to line of credit borrowings was $256,000 in 
2008, while commitment fees totaled $343,729. The lending banks for the facility are KeyBank National 
Association, LaSalle Bank National Association, WestLB AG - New York Branch, The Huntington National Bank, 
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation - New York Branch, National City Bank of Indiana, and The Bank of 
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 

In 2006, OVEC issued $445MM in Senior Notes ("2006 Notes") in a private placement. The 2006 Notes bear an 
annual fixed interest rate of 5.80%> payable semi-annually on Febmary 15 and August 15 ofeach year beginning 
August 15, 2006 until maturity on February 15,2026. Proceeds from this issuance were used to repay $305MM of 
senior secured notes issued in 2001, repay a $60MM term loan, and fimd $80MM in capital expenditures. 
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In 2007, OVEC issued $300MM in Senior Notes ("2007 Notes") in a private placement m tiiree tranches. The 
$200MM Tranche A notes were issued in June 2007, the $50MM Tranche B notes were issued in September 2007, 
and the $50MM Tranche C notes were issued in December 2007. The 2007 Notes bear an annual fixed interest rate 
of 5.90%) payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 ofeach year, until maturity on February 15,2026. 
Proceeds from this issuance were used to fund capital expenditures. 

In 2008, OVEC issued $50MM in Senior Notes ("2008-A Notes") in a private placement. The 2008-A Notes were 
issued in March 2008 and bear an annual fixed interest rate of 5.92% payable semi-annually on June 15 and 
December 15 of each year, until maturity or Febmary 15, 2026. Proceeds fi^m this issuance were used to fund 
capital expenditures. Also in 2008, OVEC issued $300MM in Senior Notes ("2008-B & 2008-C Notes") in a private 
placement. The Notes were issued in two tranches of $150MM each in June and August of 2008. The 2008-B & 
2008-C Notes bear an annual fixed interest rate of 6.71% payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 ofeach 
year until maturity on Febmary 15,2026. 

In 2009, OVEC issued $100MM in Senior Notes ("2009-A Notes") in a private placement. The 2009-A Notes bear a 
floating rate. Interest payments are due in one month, three month, or six month periods as selected by OVEC. 
Principal payment is due on Febmary 15,2014. Proceeds from this issuance were used to fund capital expenditures. 

Debt maturities on OVEC's long-term senior notes are as follows: 

December 31. 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

2014-2026 
Total 

Senior Notes 
$ 35,453,528 

37,642,055 
39,966,243 
42,404,535 
45,055,902 

944.796.046 
$1,145,318,309 

Total capitalization at December 31, 2008 was $1.072bn, compared to $713.IMM at December 31, 2007. The 
capitalization was composed ofthe aforementioned Senior Notes, as well as $10MM in common stock and retained 
eamings of $2.5MM. The Sponsoring Companies invested $I0MM to form OVEC in 1952 and 1953. The remaining 
capitalization needs have been secured through debt. The cost reimbursement stmcture ofthe ICPA and the dividend 
distribution policy does not permit excess surplus eamings to accumulate in OVEC's retained eamings. 

Independent Auditors 

The consolidated financial statements of Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2008 
and 2007, and for each ofthe two years in the period ended December 31,2008, included in tiiis Official Statement 
have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing herein (which 
report expresses an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph conceming the adoption of new 
accounting pronouncements in 2007). 
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Annex 1 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 

And Subsidiary 

Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation 

Annual Report -- 2008 



ANNUAL REPORT — 2008 

OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

and subsidiary 

INDIANA-KENTUCIOr ELECTRIC CORPORATION 



Ohio Valley Electric Corporation 
GENERAL OFFICES. 3932 U.S. Route 23. Piketon, Ohio 45661 

Ohio VaUey Electric Corporaticm (OVEC) and its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Indiana-Kentucky Electric 
Ccwporation (DCEC), collectively, the Companies, w^re 
organized on October 1, 1952. Tlie Conipanies were 
formed by investor-owned utilities &nu^ing electric 
service in the Ohio River VaUey area and &eir parent 
holding companies ^ the puipose of providing the large 
electnc power requirements projected for the uranium 
ouidiment &citities then under construction by the 
Atomic Energy Commission (AEC) near Portsmoutti, 
Cftio. 

OVEC, AEC and OVEC's owners or their utility-
company affiliates (called Sponsoring Companies) 
entered into power agreements to ensure the availability 
of the AEC^s substantial pow^ requirements. On 
October 15, 1952, OVEC and AEC executed a 25-year 
agreenent, which was later extended through 
December 31, 2005 (DOE Power Agreement). On 
Sq>tember 29, 2000, Ae DOE gave OVEC notice of 
canceUation ofthe DOE Power Agreement. On April 30, 
2003, the DOE Power A^eement terminated in 
accordance with the notice of cancellation. 

OVEC and the Sponsoring Companies signed an 
Inter-Company Power Agreemait (ICPA) <MI July 10, 
1953, to support the EK>E Power Agreement and provide 
for excess energy sales to the Sponsoring Ccnnpanies of 
power not utilized by the DOE or its iw^edecessors. Since 
the traminaticHi of liie DOE Power Agreement on 
April 30, 2003, OVEC's entire gen^-attng capacity has 
been available to ^ e Sponsoring Companies und^ the 
terms ofthe ICPA. In 2004, the Sponsoring Companies 
and OVEC entered into an Amended and Restated ICPA, 
which extends its term fi-om Mardi 13, 2006 to 
March 13,2026. 

The current Shareholders and dieir respective 
percentages of equity in OVEC are: 

Allegheny Energy, Inc 3.50 
American Electric Power Company, Inc.* 39.17 
Buckeye Power Generating, LLC' 18.00 
Columbus South^n Power Company**^ 4 J 0 
The Dayton Power and light Company^ 4.90 
Duke Biergy Ohio, Inc.**** 9,00 
Kentucky Utilities Company^ 2.50 
LouisviUe Gas and Electric Compan/ 5.63 
Ohio Ediscoi Company 7,50 
Southem Bidiana Gas and Electnc Company^ 1.50 
The Toledo Edison Company* 4.00 

MM 
These investor-owned utilittes comprise the 

Sponsoring Compaiues and currently ^are the OVEC 
power participation benefits and requirements in the 
foUowing p^c^itages: 

AUegheny Energy Supply Company* 3.0! 
Appalachian Power Company^ 15.69 
Buckeye Power G«ierating, LLC' 18.00 
Columbus Southem Power Company^ 4.44 
The Daytcm Power and Light Company' 4.90 
Duke Energy Ohio. Inc.* 9.00 
FirstEnergy GeneratiMi Corp. - .,...,., , 11.50 
Indiana Michigan Power Company^ 7.85 
Kentucky Utilities Company^ 2,50 
Louisville Gas and Electric Company^ 5.63 
Monongahela Power Compaay^ 0.49 
Ohio Power Company^ 15.49 
Southem Indiana Gas and Electric Company^ 1.50 

100.00 

OVEC's Kj^er Cre^ Plant at Cheshire, Ohio, and 
IKEC's Clifty Creek Plant at Madison, Indiana, have 
nameplate g^ierating capacities of 1,086,300 and 
1,303,560 kilowatts, re^ectively. These two generating 
stations, both of v*iiich began operation in 1955, are 
connected by a network of 776 circuit miles of 345,000-
volt transmission lines. These lines also interconnect 
with the major power transmission networks of several 
ofthe utilities serving tiie area. 

Some ofthe Common Stock issued ia the name ot 

•American Gas & Electric Company 
**CoIumbus and Southern CHiio Electric Company 

***The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company 

Subsidiary o t 

^Buckeye Power, Inc. 
^American Electric Power Company, Inc. 
'DPL Inc. 
*Duke Energy Corporation 
*E.ON U.S. LLC 
^FirstEnergy Corp. 
'Vectren Corporation 
*AUegJieny Eawgy, tic. 



OHiO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

A Message from ttie President 

In 2008, Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) 
and its subsidiary, Indiana-Keutucky Electric 
Corporatioti (QCEC), continued to provide 
economical power to our customers, the SjKHisoring 
Companies, from the baseload, coal-foed Kyger 
Credc and CUfty Creek generating plants in a safe 
and environmentally responsible manner. 

During 2008, we made significant progress 
on construction ofthe major coii:q)onents ofthe flue 
gas desulfimzation (FGD) retrofit projects at the 
Kyger Creek and Clifty Credc plants. However, as 
a result of economic conditions and uncertainty in 
the financial mailEî s during the last quarts of 
2008, the OVEC and IKEC Boards of Directors 
decided in December 2008 to delay construction of 
the FGD at the Clifty Creek plant. In addition, in 
March 2009,0 VEC*s Board of Directors decided to 
postpone the tie-in of the Kyger Creek FGD. 
Although these events have extended the FGD 
completion schedules, the Company has purchased 
additional sulfur dioxide (SO2) emission allowances 
to comply with the current environmental 
regulations. 

POWER COSTS 

In 2008, OVEC's average power cost to the 
Sponsoring Companies was $40.29 per MWh 
compared with $35.36 per MWh in 2007. The 
increase was primarily due to additional debt 
service costs to fimd the FGD construction projects 
and the increased cost of coal purchased in 2008. 
OVEC's average power cost is projected to increase 
to $43.68 per MWh in 2009 as debt is added for the 
FGD construction projects. 

ENERGY SALES 

OVEC's use fector — the ratio of power 
scheduled by the Sponsoring Companies to the 
power available — for the combined on- and off-
peak periods averaged 96.4 percent in 2008 
compared with 96.9 percent in 2007. The on-peak 

use fector averaged 99.9 percent in 2008 con^iared 
with 99.7 p€a:cent in 2007. The off-peak use fector 
averaged 91.9 percent in 2008 and 93.3 percent in 
2007. 

In 2008, OVEC deUvered 15.03 million MWh 
to the Sponsoring Companies compared with 
14.92 miUion MWh in 2007. In 2009, OVEC 
expects to generate and deliver 15.3 miUion MWh 
to the Sponsoring Ck)mpam€s. 

BUCKEYE POWER ACQUIRES ADDITIONAL 
OVEC CAPACITY 

On May 1, 2009, Buckeye Power Generating, 
LLC, a subsidiary of Buckeye Power, Inc., 
purchased a 9 percent equity intoest in OVEC and 
associated power entitlements fiom FirstEnergy 
Generation Corp., a subsidiary of FirstEnergy Corp. 
This purchase increased Buckeye Power's total 
equity interest in OVEC to 18 percent. 

MONONGAHELA POWER ASSIGNMENT TO 
ALLEGHENY ENERGY SUPPLY 

As of February 1, 2009, Monoi^ahela Power 
Company assigned to AUegheny En^-gy Supply 
Company a 3,01 percent share of its 3.50 percent 
power participation ratio and all other rights, title, 
obligations and interests under the Inter-Company 
Power Agreement. Monongahela Power will retain 
0.49 percent of its shares of the power participation 
ratio. 

AVAILABIUTY 

In 2008, the combined availability ofthe five 
generating imits at Kyger Creek and the six units at 
Clifty Creek was 85.2 percent compared with 85,0 
percent in 2007 and 88.8 percent in 2006. The 
avaUability decrease since 2006 has been primarily 
due to an increase in the scheduled outage fiictor 
fix>m 5.5 percent in 2006 to 10.2 p^cent in 2007 



and 9.2 perceaat in 2008, reflecting an increase in 
both plaimed outages to maintain certain gen^ators, 
boUers and turbines, and shcHt-term maintenance 
outages for boila- tube rqmirs and cleanings 
associated with buming Powd^ Riv^ Basin coal 

The combined equivalent availabihty of 
Kyga: Creek and CUfty Creek was 80.5 percent in 
2008 compared with 79.7 percent in 2007. The 
improvement in equivalent availability was due to 
decreases in scheduled outage and unit d^ating 
&ctors of both plants in 2008. 

DOE ARRANGEMENTS WITH OVEC 

In 2008, OVEC purchased 270,369 MWh of 
power and energy from other electricity suppliers 
for delivery and use by the D^artment of Energy 
(DOE) for its Portsmouth fiiciUty. At the request of 
the DOE, OVEC makes these limited purchases of 
powCT and energy und^ the terms and conditions of 
an Arranged Power Agreement with DOE, 

TRANSMISSION SYSTEM CHANGES 

The DOE load was previously served fiom 
two 345-kV substations owned, operated and 
maintamed by the DOE. Each DOE substation was 
integrated with OVEC's transmission system by 
two double-circuit tower 345-kV lines and with 
neighborii^ systems by one single-circuit 345-kV 
Une. The DOE X533 substation and all connected 
transmission lines were removed from service in 
November 2008 at the DOE's request. The DOE 
X533 substation shutdown is permanent. Removal 
of the associated 345-kV transmission lines from 
the substation has been completed as of May 2009. 
Reconfiguration of the interconnections b^ween 
these circuits outside of the substation site is 
scheduled to be completed in late 2009. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPUANCE 

OVEC and IKEC place great emphasis on 
complying with fed^al, state and local 
requirements relating to the protection of the 
environment. During 2008, the Kyger Creek and 
Clifty Creek plants opiated in compliance with 
their respective emission limits and enviromnental 
regulations, and the Companies received no notices 

of violation ftom any of the ^vironm^tal 
agencies. 

OVEC-IKEC COMMITMENT TO SAFETY 

Saf€^ is a top priority for OVEC and IKEC. 
The Companies continue to engage their employees 
in taking an active role in assuring a safe work 
environment. OVEC and IKEC employees were 
successftil in reducing the number of OSHA 
recordable accidents by over 40 perc^t in 2008. 
Oniy two accidents involved missed workdays. 
Even though this b a marked improv«nent over the 
past year, not all employees went home virithout 
harm Thaefore, we will work harder to fiirther 
reduce injuries to improve the safety and health of 
aU employees. We must continue to make progress 
in minimizii^ accidents and maximizing safety and 
health. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFRCER CHANGES 

In January 2009, Curtis H. Davis, chief 
opOBting officer - gena^tion of Allegheny Energy, 
Lie., was elected a director of OVEC and IKEC and 
appointed to the Executive Committees of both 
companies. He succeeded Leo C. Rajter, who had 
served in those capacities since 2006, In May 2009, 
Steven K. Nelson, chairman of Buckeye Power, 
Inc., was elected to serve as an OVEC director 
following the resignation of Charles D, Lasky. 
Mr. Lasky had served on the OVEC board since 
2004. hi June 2009, Anthony J. Ahern, president 
and chief executive offico- of Buckeye Powo-
Generating, LLC, was appointed to the Executive 
Committee of OVEC, replacing Curtis Davis. 

hi June 2009, Holly K. Koeppel, executive 
vice president and chief financial officer for 
American Electric Power Service Corporation, was 
elected assistant secretary and assistant treasurer of 
OVEC and IKEC. 

On behalf of my feUow directors and officers, 
I congratulate the employees of both Companies for 
substantiaUy improving safety performance during 
2008. The 2009 year-to-date safety performance 
shows further improvement and, no doubt, reflects 
the employees' concentrated efforts to ensure that 
each and every employee approaches all aspects of 
the job with safety in mind 



The year 2008 brought many other 
chaUenges, not die least of which was the rapid 
deteri<tfation in the general state of the economy. 
Although we found it necessary to either def^ or 
reduce obtain capital and operating expenditures, I 
commend the employees for adapting to the 
changes and for their renewed focus on improving 
our ovearaU operations, including the effective 
availabiiityof the generating units. We have much 
fiutha* to go, but I am confident that with our 
employees' dedicated efFwts, we will continue to 
make OVEC and IKEC competitive suppUo's of 
electricity for many years to come. 

Michael G, Morris 
Presid^t 

July 13, 2009 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

2008 2007 
ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT: 
At original cost 
Less — accumulated provisions for depreciation 

Construction ia progress 

Total electric plant 

CURRENT ASSETS; 
Cash and cash eqiuvaients 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in storage — at average cost 
Materials and supplies — at average cost 
Property taxes applicable to future years 
Emission allowances 
Refundable state income taxes 
Deferred tax assets 
Regulatory a s s ^ 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

REGULATORY ASSETS: 
Asset retirement costs 
Unrecognized postemployment benefits 
Deferred depreciation 
Pension benefits 

Total regulatory assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER 
Unamortized debt expense 
Deferred tax assets 
Pension asset 
Long-term investments 
Other 

Total deferred chaises and other 

TOTAL 

$1,237,629,673 
907,307,285 

330,322,388 

767,848,855 

1,098,171,243 

45,176,266 
35,586,985 
52,220,614 
19,223,210 
2,348,400 
2,244,126 

10,982,423 
1,034,148 
1,937,142 

170,753,314 

14,642,782 
2,236,997 

27,047,875 
27,261,510 

71,189,164 

9,549,916 
37,524,839 

53,609,545 
141,090 

100,825,390 

$1,440,939,111 

$1,212,196,875 
865,927,293 

346,269,582 

316,560,056 

662,829,638 

107,694,495 
28,979,038 
63,913,331 
16,863,327 
2,227,920 

11,787,964 
849,123 

1,705,135 

234,020,333 

16,102,473 
2,222,600 

38,643,429 

56,968,502 

6,831,081 
50,635,428 
16,050,249 

9,601 

73,526,359 

$1,027,344,832 

(Continued) 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILlTiES 

CAPITALIZATION: 
Common stock, $ 100 par value — authorized, 300,000 shares; 
outstandii^, 100,000 shares in 2008 and 2007 

Long-tenn debt 
Line of credit bonowii^s 
Retained eamings 

Total capitalization 

CURRENT LIABELrriES: 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue — advances for construction 
Accrued other taxes 
Regulatory liabilities 
Accriied interest and other 

Total current liabilities 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13) 

REGULATORY LIABILITfES: 
Posfcr̂ irement benefits 
Pension benefits 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust settlement 
Income taxes refimdable to customers 

Total regulatory liabilities 

OTHER LL\BILmES: 
Pension liability 
Asset retirem^it obUgations 
Postretirem^it benefits obligation 
Postemployment benefits obligation 

Total other liabilities 

TOTAL 

2008 

$ 10,000,000 
1,009.864,781 

50,000,000 
2,506,811 

1,072,371,592 

35,453,528 
99,405,252 
26,670,003 
9.822,786 
4,230,400 

20,837,485 

196,419,454 

2007 

$ 10,000,000 
700,151,995 

2,915,642 

713,067,637 

22,809,408 
77,031,015 
24,589,022 

7,679,638 
5,114,333 

16,783,248 

154,006,664 

13.670,062 

3,393,146 
1,823,929 

47.070.877 

65.958,014 

27,261,510 
34,162,393 
42.529,151 
2.236,997 

106.190,051 

$1,440,939,111 

18,947,629 
16,050,249 
3,393,146 
1,823,929 

48,834434 

89,049,487 

32,223,528 
36,774,916 
2,222,600 

71,221,044 

$1,027,344,832 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. (CoiK l̂uded) 
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OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Department of energy 
Sponsoring comqmnies 

Sales of electric eneigy to: 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Fuel and emission allowaiK ês consumed in operation 
Purchased power 
Other operation 
Maintenance 
Depreciation 
Taxes — other than income taxes 
Income taxes 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

OTHER INCOME 

INCOME BEFORE INTEREST CHARGES 

INTEREST CHARGES: 
Amortization of debt expense 
Interest expense 

Total interest charges 

NET INCOME 

RETAINED EARNINGS — Spinning of year 

CASH DIVIDENDS ON COMMON STOCK 

RETAINED EARNINGS — End of year 

2008 

$ 18.539,153 
603,273,999 

621,813,152 

340,212,739 
17,903,608 
69,414,118 
71,513,450 
56,946,744 
9,784,455 
1.023,381 

566,798.495 

55,014.657 

4,714,761 

59.729,418 

532,119 
54,106,130 

54,638,249 

5,091,169 

2,915,642 

(5,500,000) 

$ 2.506,811 

2007 

$ 14,605,075 
516,757,146 

531,362.221 

300,666,274 
14,106.371 
68,471,855 
69,945,403 
31,720.198 
8,990,186 

907,416 

494,807,703 

36.554,518 

5,252,583 

41,807,101 

404,083 
36,261,637 

36,665,720 

5,141,381 

2,274,261 

(4.500,000) 

$ 2.915,642 

See notes to consolidated fmancial statements. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

2008 

OPERATING ACTIVinES: 
Net income 
A^ttstenenls to recMKfle net iooorae Co net c a * provided by ( i ^ 
Dqjreciation 
AmortizattOQ of debt expense 
DefetTEd taxes 
Gain <HI dt^x»al of assets 
Gain oamafketable Becurities 
Cbai^es in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel in storage 
Materials and suiifriies 
PropCfty taxes applicable to suhBequent yeais 
Emission allowaoces 
Refundable federal ttunme <axes 
ReftuKbble state inoome (ajtes 
Prepaid expenses and other 
O&er assets 
Regulatory assets 
Accounts payable 
Det^redrevetme 
Accnied taxes 
Aojnied intoest andoflio-
Regulatory liabiUties 
Other liabilities 

Nee cash provided by op^ratir^ activities 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Bectric plant additions 
Proceeds from sale of maricetaWe securities 
Purcteraes of markeiaWe securities 
PkDceeds fiom sale of trnisfbtmers 

Net cash used in iovesttng activities 

FINANCING ACTnATTIES: 
Issuance of Senior 2007 Notes 
Issuance of Senior ZOOS Notes 
Loan <»igina4ion costs 
Rqayment of Senior 2006 Notes 
Repayment of Senior 2007 Notes 
Repaymem of Senior 2008 Notes 
Proceeds from line of credit 
Payment on line of credit 
Dividends on common stodc 

Net cadi provided by tinaocing activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASe) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALIENTS — Beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALeNTS — End of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES: 
Interest paid 

Income ̂ axs& paid (rec^ved) — net 

Noncash electric plant additions mcluded in accoiHrts payable ae December 31 

See notes to coosolklated financial statements. 

$ 5J)91.169 

56,946.744 
532.119 
364.509 

POO.000) 
(63«.0O7) 

(6^7.947) 
11,692,717 
(2;JS9.883) 

(120.480) 
9.543.838 

_ 
849.123 

(232,007) 
15,532.270 

(27,835,827) 
(22,535,520) 

2,080,981 
2.!43,I4S 
4,054^37 

(21^26,286) 
34,969.007 

61.943,905 

(435,783,038) 
24,286,124 

(76,871,172) 
300,000 

(488,068,086) 

350,000,000 
(3^50.954) 

(13,345,479) 
(9,463,928) 
(4.833,687) 

100.000,000 
(50,000,000) 
(5300,000) 

363.605.952 

(62.518.229) 

107.694.495 

S 45.176.266 

S 49.379;J38 

S (710,829) 

S 63;!25,054 

S 5,14M8l 

31.720.198 
40ijm 
783.148 

(300,000) 
-

(7,47OJ40) 
(29.248,030) 
(M67,437) 

<255.!20) 
22,275,022 

681 
107,851 
(52.036) 

(15,647,863) 
2,574.798 

10.700.986 
11,044,690 

652,983 
443.272 

23,772;i09 
. (M33,?00) 

54.046.576 

(232.025,190) 
-
-

300.000 

(231,725,190) 

300J)0O.OO0 
-

(2.763^37) 
-

(12,603.856) 
(3397.953) 

160.000.000 
(210,000.000) 

(4400.000) 

226,734.954 

49,056340 

58,638.155 

S 107^94,495 

5 35392,737 

S 79.671 

S 20,261.593 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FU4ANCIM. STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIONraiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Consolidated Fiaaacial Statements — The consolidated fmancial statements include the accounts of 
Ohio Valley Electric Corporation (OVEC) and its v^olly owned subsidiary, Indiana-K.Mitucky Electnc 
Corporation (IKEC), collectively, the "Companies." All intercompany transactions have been eliminated 
in consolidation. 

Organizatioa — The Companies own two generating stations located in Ohio and Indiana with a 
comb'med electric production capability of approximately 2,256 megawatts. OVEC is owned by sevK^l 
investor-owned utilities or utility holding companies and an affiliate of a generation and transmission rural 
electric cooperative. These entities and their afiiliates con^»rise the Sponsoring Coa4)anies. The 
Sponsoring Companies purchase power fix)m OVEC according to tbe tenns of the Inter-Company Power 
Agreement (ICPA), wMch in 2004 was extended for an additional 20 years from March 13, 2006 to 
March 13, 2026. Approximately 30% ofthe Companies' employees are cova-ed by a collective bargaining 
agreement diat expires August 31, 2011. 

Rate Regulatioa — The proceeds from the sale of power to the Sponsoring Companies are designed to be 
sufficient for OVEC to meet its opiating expenses and fixed costs, as well as earn a retum on equity 
before federal income taxes. In addition, the proceeds from power sales are designed to cover debt 
amortization and interest expense associated widi financings. The Companies have continued and expect 
to continue to oparate pursuant to the cost plus rate of return recovay provisions at least to March 13, 
2026, the date of termination ofthe ICPA. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation., provides that rate-regulated utilities account for and report assets and liabilities consistent 
with the economic effect ofthe way in which rates are established, if die rates established are designed to 
recover the costs of providing the regulated s^^dce and it is probable that such rates can be charged and 
collected The Companies follow the accounting and reporting requirements of SFAS No. 71. Certain 
expenses and credits subject to utility regulation or rate determination normally reflected in inc<Mne are 
deferred on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are recognized in mcome as the related 
amounts are included in service rates and recovCTed from or refunded to customers. 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

The Companies' regulatory assets, liabilities, and amounts authorized for recovay through Sponsor 
billings at December 31,2008 and 2007, woe as follows: 

Regulatory assets: 
Current a s s ^ — income taxes billable to customars 

2008 

$ 1,034,148 

2007 

Odier assets: 
Asset retiremoit costs 
Unrecognized postemployment benefits 
Defared depreciaticm 
Pensicai baielits 

Total 

Total regulatory a s s ^ 

14,642,782 
2,236,997 

27,047,875 
27,261,510 

71,189,164 

$72,223,312 

16,102,473 
2,222,600 

38.643,429 

56,968,502 

$56,968,502 

R^utatory liabdities: 
Curroit liabilities: 

I>eferred credit — EPA emission allowance proceeds 
Advance collection of interest 
Fuel related s^kment 

Total 

$ 1,577,431 
2,652,969 

4,230,400 

$ 893,770 
1,884,902 
2,335,661 

5,114,333 

Other liabilities: 
Postretirement benefits 
Pension benefits 
Investment tax credits 
Net antitrust setdemait 
Income taxes refundable to customers 

Total 

13,670,062 

3,393,146 
1.823,929 

47.070,877 

65,958.014 

18,947,629 
16,050,249 
3,393,146 
1.823,929 

48,834,534 

89.049.487 

Total regulatory liabilities $70,188,414 $94,163,820 

Regulatory Assets — Regulatory assets consist primarily of deferred dqn-eciation, asset retiranent cost, 
and pension benefits. Deferred dq)reciation is recovered over the life ofthe debt that was used to fimd the 
related plant additions. The Cotapandes follow the sinking fimd dq>reciation method for ratemaking 
purposes, and the difference between straight-line depreciation and the debt principal payments billed to 
customers is recorded as deferred dq>reciation. With the exception of income taxes billable to customas, 
which will be recovered during 2009, other regulatory assets are being recovered on a long-term basis. 

Regulatory Liabilities — The regulatory liabilities classified as current in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets represent anission allowance auction proceeds, a gain on a fuel related 

10 



OHIO VALLEY ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

settiement, and interest expense collected from customers in advance of expense recognition. These 
amounts outstanding will be credited to customer bills during 2009. Other regulatory liabilities consist 
primarily of income taxes refundable to customers, postretirement benefits, and pension baiefits. Income 
taxes refundable to customers are credited to customer bills in the p^od when the related deferred tax 
assets are realized The Companies' current ratemaking policy recovers pension exp^ise in an amount 
equal to plan contributions and postrd:irement benefits in an amount equal to sovice cost. As a result, 
rdated regulatory liabilities are being credited to customa* bills on a long-term basis. The remaming 
r^^ulatory liabilities are awaiting credit to customs bills in a future period that is yet to be determined 

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of these statemaits, the Companies consider temporary 
cash investments to be cash equivalents since they are readily convertible into cash and have original 
maturities of l^s than three months. 

Etectric Plant — Prop«1y additions and replacements are clarged to utility plant accounts. Dq)reciation 
expense is recorded at the time property additions and replacements are billed to customers or at the date 
the propatj? is placed in sa-vice if the in-sa:vice date occurs subsequent to the customa- billing. Customs* 
billings for construction in progress are recorded as deferred revenue-advances for construction. These 
amounts are closed to revenue at the time the related property is placed in ser'wce. Deferred depreciation, 
depreciation expense, and accumulated depreciation are recorded when financed property additions and 
replacements are recovered over a period of years through customer debt retirem^it billing. All 
depreciable property will be fiilly billed and dq>reciatcd prior to the expiration of die ICPA. Repairs of 
property are charged to maintenance expaise. 

Fuel in Storage, Emission Allowances, and Materials and Supplies — The Companies maintain coal, 
reagent, and oil inventories for use in the generation of electricity and emission allowance inventories for 
regulatory compliance purposes due to the generation of electricity. These inventories are valued at 
average cost. Materials and supplies consist primarily of replacement parts necessary to maintain the 
generating facilities and are valued at ava^ge cost. 

Long-Term Investments — Long-term investments consist of marketable securities diat are held for the 
purpose of funding postretirement benefits. These securities have been classified as trading securities. Due 
to tax limitations, the amounts held in this portfolio have not yet been transferred to the Voluntary 
Employee Beneficiary Association trusts (see Note 9). Long-term investments primarily consist of 
municipal bonds and money market mutual fimd investments. Net unrealized gains recognized during 
2008 on securities still held at the balance sheet date were $638,007. 

Unamortized Debt Expense — Unamortized debt expense relates to loan origination costs incurred to 
secure financing. These costs are being amortized over the life ofthe related loans. 

Asset Retirement Obl^ations and Asset Retirement Costs — The Companies recognize the feir value 
of legal obligations associated widi the retirement or removal of long-lived assets at die time the 
obligations are incurred and can be reasonably estimated The initial recognition of this liability is 
accompanied by a corresponding increase in depreciable elecdic plant. Subsequ^it to the initial 
recognition, the liabiUty is adjust^ for any revisions to the expected value of the retirement obligation 
(with corresponding adjustments to electric plant) and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of 
time. 
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AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2008 AND 2007 

Hiese asset retirement obligations are primarily related to obligations associated with future asbestos 
abatement at cetain generating stations and certain plant closure costs. As of Decembe* 31, 2008 and 
2007. the Companies had a regulatory asset of $14.6 million and $16.1 million, respectively, related to 
asset retirement obligations. 

Balance — Deoember 31, 2006 

Accretion 

Balance — DecanbO" 31, 2007 

Accretion 

Balance — December 31, 2008 

$30,399,555 

1,823,973 

32,223.528 

1,938,865 

$34,162,393 

The Companies do not recognize liabilities for asset retirement obligations for which the &ir value cannot 
be reasonably estimated. The Companies have ass^ retirement obligations associated with transmission 
assets and river structures at certain genoatii^ stations. However, the retirement date for these assets 
cannot be determined; therefore, the fair value ofthe associated liability cun^itly canned be estimated and 
no amounts are recognized in the consolidated financial statements herein. 

Use of Estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statem^ts in conformity with accounting 
principles gene^Uy accepted in the United States of America requires managesnent to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the rq>orted amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions with die Sponsoring Compantes during 2008 and 2007 included the sale of all generated 
power to them, the purchase of Arranged Power from them and othe- utility systems in ordar to me^ the 
Department of Energy's power requirements, contrmit barging services, railcar services, and minor 
transactions for services and mateials. The Conqianies have Power Agreements with Louisville Gas and 
Electric Company, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Power and Light Company, Kentucky Utilities 
Company, Ohio Edison Company, and American Electric Power Service Corporation as agent for the 
American Electric Power System Con^mnies; and Transmission Service Agreenents with Louisville Gas 
and Electiic Company, Duke Eno-gy Ohio, Inc., The Dayton Power and Light Comfmny, The Toledo 
Edison Company, Ohio Edison Company, Kentucky Utilities Company, and American Electric Power 
Service Corporation as agait SM- the American Electric Power Syston Companies. 

In September 2006, the Companies sold two transformers and associated equipment to Duke Energy 
Ohio, Inc. for a total maximum purchase price of $3 million, which subject to the tems of the asset 
purchase agreement, is payable iu e< îal annual instalhnents over ten years. The purchase price is 
contingent on the performance of the transformers, and as such, no receivable has been recognized in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In 2008, the Companies wa*e informed that one of the 
transformers ^led, and as such, no further pajonents from Duke En^gy Ohio, Inc. are anticipated. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007 

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, balances due from or to the Sponsoring Companies are as follows 

2008 2007 

$31,668,608 Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 

$23,136,138 
1,352,250 

American Electric Power Company, Inc, and a subsidiary company owned 43.47% ofthe common stock 
of OVEC as of December 31, 2008, The following is a summary ofthe principal services received from 
the American Electric Power Service Corporation as authorized by the Companies' Boards of Directors: 

General services 
Specific projects 

Total 

2008 

$ 2,198,238 
21,274,966 

2007 

$ 2.473,834 
10,623,656 

$23,473,204 $ 13,097,490 

General services consist of regular recurring operation and maintenance services. Specific projects 
primarily represent nonrecurring plant construction projects and eigineering studies, which are approved 
by the Companies' Boards of Directors. The se*vices are provided in accordance with the service 
agreement dated December 15, 1956, between the Companies and the American Electric Power Service 
Corporation. 

3, COAL SUPPLY 

The Con^nies have coal supply agreements with certain nonaffiliated companies that expire at various 
dates from the year 2009 through 2017. Pricii^ for coal under these contracts is subject to contract 
provisions and adjustments. The Companies cunrentiy have approximately 100% of dieir 2009 coal 
requirements unde* long-term agreements of one year or greater. 

4. INVENTORIES 

InventtMies, net of reserves, at Decembe" 31, 2008 and 2007, consist ofthe following: 

Fuel in storage — at avera^ cost 
Materials and supplies — at average cost 
Bmission allowances 

Total inventories 

2008 

$52,220,614 
19,223,210 
2,244,126 

2007 

$63,913,331 
16,863,327 
11.787,964 

$73,687,950 $92,564,622 
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5. ELECTRIC PLANT 

Electric plant at December 31, 2008 and 2007, ccmsists ofthe following: 

2008 

$ 26,564 
1,152,457,582 

60,191,487 
24,954,040 

1.237,629,673 

907,307,285 

330,322,388 

767.848,855 

Intangible 
Steam production plant 
Transmission plant 
General plant 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Construction in progress 

Total electric plant 

2007 

$ 26,564 
1,130,722,161 

72,211.888 
9^36,262 

1,212,196,875 

865,927,293 

346,269,582 

316.560,056 

$1,098,171,243 $ 662,829,638 

6. BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS AND NOTES 

OVEC has an unsecured bank revolving line of credit agreement with a borrowing limit of $200 million 
as of Decembea- 31, 2008. The $200 million line of credit has an expiration date of August 4, 2010. At 
Decembe- 31, 2008 and 2007. OVEC had borrowed $50 and $0 million, respectively, under diis line of 
credit. Interest expense related to line of credit borrowings was $255,699 m 2008 and $3,051,247 in 2007. 
During 2008 and 2007, OVEC incurred annual commitment fees of $343,729 and $288,736, respectively, 
based on the borrowing limits ofthe line of credit. 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Hie following amounts we-e outstanding at Decembe- 31, 2008 and 2007: 

Senior 2006 Notes due Febmary 15,2026 
Senior 2007 Notes: 
Tranche A due February 15, 2026 
Tranche B due February 15,2026 
Tranche C due February 15, 2026 

Senior 2008 Notes: 
Tranche A due February 15, 2026 
Tranche B due February 15,2026 
Tranche C due February 15, 2026 

Total debt 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total long-term debt 

Interest 
Rate 

5.80 % 

5.90 
5.90 
5,90 

5.92 
6.71 
6.71 

2008 

$ 413.013,876 

190,703,342 
48,027,572 
48,407.206 

48,780.045 
147,157,899 
149.228,369 

1,045,318,309 

35.453,528 

$1,009,864,781 

2007 

$426,359,355 

196.990.760 
49,611.288 
50,000.000 

-

722,961,403 

22.809,408 

$700,151,995 

During 2007. OVEC issued $300 million unsecured senior notes (Senior 2007N(rtes) in pri^te 
placements in three tranches. The $200 million Tranche A notes were issued in June 2007, the $50 million 
Tranche B notes were issued in Septenber 2007. and the $50 million Tranche C notes were issued in 
December 2007. 

During 2008, OVEC issued $350 million unsecured seniOT notes (Senior 2008 Notes) in private 
placements in three tranches. The $50 million Tranche A notes we-e issued in March 2008, the 
$150 million Tranche B notes were issued in June 2008, and the $150 million Tranche C notes were 
issued in August 2008. 

The annual maturities of long-term dd>t as of December 31, 2008, are as follows: 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014^2026 

Total 

$ 35.453,528 
37,642,055 
39,966,243 
42,404,535 
45.055,902 

844,796,046 

$1,045,318,309 
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8. INCOME TAXES 

OVEC and IKEC file a consolidated federal income tax return. The effective tax rate varied from the 
statutory federal income tax rate due to differences between the book and tax treatment of various 
transactions as follows: 

Licome tax expense at 35% statutory rate 
State inoome taxes net of fo(kral benefit 
TempcMury differences flowed through to customer bills 
Pemaneit diflbreices 

Income tax provisicm 

Effective tax rate 

Conqjonents ofthe income tax provision we*e as follows: 

Current income tax expense 
Defered income tax expense 

Total income tax provision 

2008 

$ 2,140,093 
66,042 

(1,218,762) 
36,008 

$ 1,023,381 

16.7 % 

2008 

$ 977,761 
45,620 

2007 

$ 2,117.079 
53,707 

(U74.392) 
11,022 

$ 907,416 
— ^ M I •! !• I I I r ' II 

15.0% 

2007 

$125,036 
782,380 

$1,023,381 $907,416 

OVEC and IKEC record deferred tax assets and liabilities based on differences bd:ween book and tax 
basis of assets and liabilities measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the 
differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax ass^s and liabilities are adjusted for changes in tax rates. 
The deferred tax assets recorded in the accon^nying consolidated balance sheets consist primarily of the 
net deferred taxes on dqireciation, postretirement benefits d^ligation, net operating loss carryforwards, 
asse^ retirement obligations, r^^latory assets and regulatory liabilities. 

To the extent that the Companies have not reflected credits in customer billings for defered tax as^ts. 
they have recorded a regulatory liability representing income taxes refundable to customers under the 
applicable agreements among the parties. The liability was $47,070,877 at Decembe* 31, 2008, and 
$48,834,534 at December 31,2007. 
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Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) consisted ofthe following at December 31, 2008 and 2007: 

2008 2007 

De^red tax assets: 
Defered revenue — advances for construction 
Fede:al net operating loss carryforwards 
State n^ operating toss carryforwards 
AMT credit carryforwards 
Postretirement benefit obligation 
Pension liability 
Postemployment beiefit obligation 
Asset retirement obligations 
Miscellaneous accruals 
R^ulatory liability — postretirenent benefits 
R^ulatory liability — investment tax credits 
R^ulatory liability — net antitrust s^lement 
Regulatory liability — income taxes refimdable to customers 

Total defered tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Regulatory asset — income taxes billable to customers 
Prepaid expenses 
Electric plant 
R^ulatory asset — pension beiefits 
Regulatory asset — unrecognized postemploymeit benefits 
Regulatory asset — asset retirenent costs 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) 

The Companies had federal income tax net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) of $12.7 million as of 
December 31, 2008, These federal income tax NOLs result in part from accelerated depreciation m^hods 
for property, plant and equipment for income tax reporting purposes. The Companies also have altemative 
minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforwards of approximately $2.5 million, which are not limited by 
expiration dates. Management periodically assesses the need for a valuation allowance on deferred tax 
assets. As of Decembe- 31, 2008 and 2007, management believes that realization of the Companies' 
deferred tax assets is more likely than not. 

In July 2006, die Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48 to clarify die 
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in 
accordance with Statement No. 109. Interpretation No. 48 addresses the d^emination of whethe- tbe tax 
benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax r^um should be recorded in the financial statements. 
Under Interpretation No. 48, the Companies may recognize the tax beiefit from an uncertain tax position 

$ 9,619,159 
4,456.189 

39.212 
2,532,919 

20.445,933 
9.832,499 

806,825 
12.321,464 
2.649,351 
4.930,427 
1,223,817 

657,843 
16,977,211 

86.492,849 

(361,952) 
(582,702) 

(21,120,348) 
(9,832,499) 

(806,825) 
(5,281,261) 

(37,985,587) 

$ 48,507,262 

$ 8,942,781 
22,341,256 

273,971 
1,505,920 

13,374.669 
10,113,109 

808,337 
11,719,375 
2,834.718 
6,891,063 
1,234,053 

663,345 
17,621,791 

98,324,388 

(576,140) 
(34,610,360) 
(5,837,815) 

(808,337) 
(5,856,308) 

(47,688,960) 

$ 50,635,428 
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only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on ^camination by the taxing 
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial 
statemeits from such a position are measured based on the largest beiefit that has a greater tlmn fifty 
percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the Companies 
have not identified any uncertain tax positions. 

The Companies file income tax returns with the Intemal Revenue Service and the states of Ohio, Indiana 
and the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Hie Companies are no longer subject to federal tax examinations 
for tax years 2004 and earlier. The Companies are no longe- subject to states of Ohio and Indiana tax 
examinations for tax years 2004 and earlier. The Companies are no longer subject to the Commonwealth 
of Kentucky examinations for tax years 2003 and earlier. 

9. PENSION PLAN, OTHER POSTRETIREMENT AND POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFTFS 

The Companies have a noncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) coveing 
substantially all of their employees. Tl^ benefits arc based on years of service and each employee*s 
highest consecutive 36-month compeisation peiod Employees are vested in the Pension Plan after five 
years of service with the Companies. 

Fimding for the Pension Plan is based on actuarially dd:ermined contributions, the maximiun of which is 
generally the amount deductible for income tax purposes and the minimum being that required by the 
Enq)loyee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISAX as amended. The fidl c<Bt of the pension 
benefits and related obligations has been allocated to OVEC and IKEC in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. The allocated amounts r^resent approximately a 54% and 46% split for OVEC and 
flCEC, respectively, as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. The Pension Plan's assets consist of an insurance 
contract and investments in equity and debt securities. In the following disclosures, the insurance contract 
is treated as a debt security because its long-term yield is tied to the deiit mark^. 

In addition to the Pension Plan, the Compames provide ce-tain health care and life insurance beiefits 
(Other Postretirement Benefits) for retired employees. Substantially all of the Companies' employees 
become eligible for these benefits if they reach r^irement age while working for the Companies. These 
and similar benefits for active employees are provided through enploycr fiindmg and insurance policies. 
In December 2004, the Companies established Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VEBA) 
trusts. The main objectives of the VEBA trusts are to maintain the purchasing powe" of the current assets 
and all future contributions, to have the ability to pay all beiefits and expense obligations when due and to 
achieve a "funding cushion" to maximize retum within prudent levels of risk. The investment horizon for 
the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts is greater than five years and the strategic asset allocation is based on a 
long-term perspective. 
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Projected Pension Plan and Other 
December 31,2008 and 2007: 

Postretirement Benefits obligations and frinded status as of 

other Postretirenient 
Plaii 

ChaitgB is piKijecud benefit oUigatKMi: 
] V [ ^ e ( ^ faen^ obKgation — beginning of year 
Service cost 

Plffli pactictpants' coitlnbid(»is 
Ben^tspak) 
N ^ actuarial (^im) loss 
Medicare aibsidy 
Bxpoises paid fixwa ass«6 

Projected baie6to1^gati<m — end of year 

Chang)B in &ir value <^pltm assets: 
Fair vtdue of i^an assets — beginning of year 
Actual return on pbut assets 
E]^« i^s paid fixHn assets 
Em(^(^er (xmtrBHttions 
Plan paitidpams'' ccnttrilutions 
Medicare suhskfy 
BoEicfltspjud 

Fair value of fHan assets — end of year 

Fuiuted (uiul^funded) status — end of year 

2008 

$ 153,972,014 
3,899,052 
9,799,772 

-
(7.755,609) 
9,056,55S 

-
(45a00J 

168,926,587 

170,022^63 
(26,056,577) 

(45,200) 
5,500,000 

-
-

( 7 , 7 5 5 ^ ) 

i4\M5S>77 

S^2746U510J 

2007 

S 161,065,647 
4;221,650 
9^43320 

-
(7,499,086) 

03,018,717) 
-

(40,800) 

153.972,014 

169,811;906 
1.750,243 

(40,800) 
6,000.000 

-
-

(7.499.086) 

170,022^63 

$ 16^)50049 

2008 

$ 97,431,448 
2,781.098 
6,173,680 

613,383 
(3,286320) 
1,242,881 

-
-

104,956,170 

60^56,532 
(728,513) 

-
5,171,937 

613,383 
-

(3;!86320) 

62.427,019 

$ (42^29,151) 

2007 

S 102,541,624 
3,219.492 
5,855,237 

585,570 
(3,279,279) 

(11,761,744) 
270,548 

-

97,431,448 

55,395,876 
2,760,656 

-
4.923,161 

585,570 
270^18 

(3^79^79) 

60,656,532 

S (36,774,916) 

On Decembe- 8, 2003, the President of the United States of Ame-ica signed into law the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemization Act of 2003 (the Act). The Act introduced a 
prescription drug benefit to retirees as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of r^iree health care beiefit 
plans that provide a prescription drug benefit that is actuarially equivalent to the benefit provided by 
Medicare. The Con^nies believe that the coverage for prescription drugs is at least actuarially equivalent 
to the benefits pro^dded by Medicare for most current retirees because the benefits for that group 
substantially exceed the benefits provided by Medicare, thereby allowing the Companies to qualify for the 
subsidy. The Companies' employe^ contributions for Other Postr^irenent Benefits in the above table are 
net of subsidies received of $0 and $270,548 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Companies have 
accounted for the subsidy as a reduction ofthe benefit obligation detailed in the above table. The benefit 
obligation was reduced by approximately $14.2 and $11.3 million as of December 31,2008 and 2007. 

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Pension Plan was $144,698,788 and $131,992,635 at 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively 

Components of N ^ Per«MJk Beaefit Cost — The Companies record the expected cost of Other 
Postretirement Benefits ove- the se^vice period during which such benefits are eamed. 

Pension expense is recognized as amounts are contributed to the Pension Plan and billed to customers. 
The acctmiulated difference between recorded pension expense and the yearly net periodic pension 
expense as calculated under SFAS No. 87, Employers' Accounting for Pensions, is bilkble as a cost of 
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operations under the ICPA when contributed to the pension fund This accumulated differeice has been 
recorded as a regulatory asset in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Service cost 
Inteiest cost 
Expected n^um on plan assets 
Amortization of prior service cost 
Recognized actuarial toss 

Net periodic benefit cost 

Pension 
Plan 

2008 

$ 3.899,052 
9,799,772 

(11,049.029) 
531,437 

$ 3.181.232 

2007 

$ 4,221,650 
9,243,320 

(11,668332) 
531,437 

$ 2,328,075 

Other Postretlremerrt 
Benefits 

2008 

$ 2,781,098 
6,173,680 

(2,880,712) 
(379,000) 
(263,945) 

$ 5.431,121 

2007 

$ 3,219,492 
5,855,237 

(2,631,976) 
(379,000) 
126,175 

$ 6.189328 

Pension and other postietiiiement benefits 
expense recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income and retained eamings 
and billed to sponsoring companies under 
the ICPA $ 5,500,000 $ 6,000,000 $ 3,260,000 

FensioD Flan and Other Postretirement Benefit Assumptions— Actuarial assumptions used to 
determine benefit obligations at December 31,2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

Pension 
Flan 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 

Discount rate 
Rate of competisation increase 

2008 

6.10 % 
4.00 

2007 

6.50 % 
4.00 

2008 

5.90 % 
4.00 

2007 

6.50 % 
4.00 

Actuarial assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 200S 
and 2007, were as BDIIOWS: 

Pension 
Plan 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 

Discount rate 
Expected long-term return on plan assets 
Rate of compeisation increase 

2008 

6.50 % 
6.50 
4.00 

2007 

5.90 % 
7.00 
4.00 

2008 

6.50 % 
4.70 
4.00 

2007 

5.90 % 
4.70 
4.00 

In selecting the expected long-term rate of retum on assets, the Compames conside:ed the aveage rate of 
eamings expected on the fiinds invested or to be invested to provide for plan benefits. This included 
considering the Pension Plan and VEBA trusts* asset allocation, as well as the target asset allocations fc»: 
the fiiture, and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the Pension Plan and the VEBAs. 
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Assmned health care cost trend rates at Decenber 31, 2008 and 2007, wee as follows: 

2008 2007 

Health care trend rate assumed for next year — participants under 65 
Heahh care trend rate assumed for next year — participants over 65 
Rate to which tbe cost trend rate is assumed to decline (die ultimate trend rate)—participants under 65 
Rate to which die cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate)—participants over 65 
Year diat die rate reaches the ukimate trend rate 

8.00 % 9.00 % 
9.50 i U 9 
5.00 S.00 
5.<K) 5.00 
2015 2012 

Assumed health care cost treid rates have a significant effect on the amounts rq>orted for the health care 
plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following 
effects: 

One-Percentage One-Percentage 
Point Increase Point Decrease 

Effect on total service and interest cost 
Effect on postretirement benefit obUgation 

$ 1,553,985 
16,334,303 

$ (1,222,418) 
(13,014,742) 

Peasbn Plan and Other Postretirement Benefit A s s ^ — The asset allocation for the Pension Plan and 
VEBA trusts at December 31, 2008 and 2007, by asset category was as follows: 

Asset category: 
Equity securities 
Debt securities 

Pension Plan 
2008 

2 4 % 
76 

2007 

31 % 
69 

VEBA Trusts 
2008 

24 % 
76 

2007 

- % 
100 

The target asset allocation 6M- the Pension Plan is 30% equity securities and 70% debt securities and for 
the VEBA trvist is 40% equity securities and 60% debt securities. 

Pension Plan and Other Pdstr^irement Benefit Contributions — The Companies expect to contribute 
$5,700,000 to their Pension Plan and $6,227,701 to their Odier Postretirement Benefits plan in 2(K)9. 
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments — The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future 
service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid: 

Years Ending 
December 31 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Five years thereafter 

Other Postretirement Benefits 

Pension 
Plan 

8,190,118 
8,563,310 
8,860,448 
9,258,537 
9,646,383 
17,038,752 

With 
Medicare 
Subsidy 

$ 4,042,701 
4,454,986 
4.797,783 
5.136,259 
5,403,058 

32,929.845 

Without 
Medicare 
Subsidy 

$ 4,388,179 
4.833,964 
5,211.111 
5,587,667 
5,892,674 

35,939,277 

Ftkstemployment Benefits— The Companies follow SFAS No. 112, Employers' Accotmting for 
Postemployment Benefits, and accrae the estimated cost of benefits provided to forme* or inactive 
employees after employment but befwe retirement. Such benefits include, but are not limited to, salary 
continuations, supplemental unemployment, seveance, disability (including worke*s' compensation), job 
training, counseling, and continuation of beiefits, such as health care and life insurance cove:age. The 
cost of such benefits and related obligations has been allocated to OVEC and QCEC in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. The allocated amounts represent approximately a 42% and 58% split 
between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of Decenber 31, 2008. and approximately a 40% and 60% 
split between OVEC and IKEC, respectively, as of December 31, 2007. The liability is offset widi a 
corresponding regulatory ass^ and rqjresents unrecognized postemploymeit beiefits billable in the future 
to customers. Tbe accmed cost of such benefits was $2,236,997 and $2,222,600 at Decenber 31, 2008 
and 2007, respectively. 

Defined Contribution Plan — The Companies have a trustee-defined contribution supplemental peision 
and savings plan that includes 401(k) features and is available to employees who l^ve met eligibility 
requirements. In 2007, the Companies' contributions to the savings plan we-e made in amounts equal to 
50% of the employee-participants' contributions up to 6% of total compensation. In Jamuuy 2008, the 
Companies' contributions to the savings plan were changed to amounts equal to 100% ofthe first 1% artd 
50% of the next 5% of en^loyee-participants' contributions based upon total compensation. Benefits to 
participating employees are based solely upon amounts contributed to the participants' accounts and 
investmeit earnings. By its nature, the plan is fully fimded at all times. The employe: contributions for 
2008 and 2007 were $1,634,334 and $1,278,249, respectively. 

Adoption of SFAS No. 158 — Pcinsion and Other Postretu'ement Benefits — The Companies adopted 
SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, 
effective December 31, 2007. SFAS No. 158 requires employers to fiilly recognize the obligations 
associated with defined benefit pension plans and other postr^irement plans, which include retiree 
healthcare, in their balance sheets. Previous standards required an ei^>loyer to disclose the coin|)lete 
fimded status of its plan only in the notes to the financial statemeits and provided that an employer delay 
recognition of certain changes in plan assets and obligations that affected the costs of providir^ benefits 
resuhing in an asset or hability that often differed fiom the plan's fimded status. SFAS No. 158 requires a 
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defined benefit pension or pc^tretirement plan sponsor to recognize in its statement of financial position 
an asset for a plan's overfiinded status or a liabUity for the plan's unde-funded status. The effects of the 
Companies' adoption of SFAS No. 158 were as follows: 

Pension asset 
Postretirement benefits obligation 

B^dre 
Appli<^ion of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 3,671,925 
(40,299,341) 

Adjustments 

$12,378,324 
3,524,425 

After 
Application of 
SFAS No. 158 

$ 16,050,249 
(36,774.916) 

The adjustments detailed in the above table rq)resent the imrecogni^d actuarial gains and unrecognized 
prior service cost for the plans as of December 31, 2007. These amounts vtere recorded as additions to 
regulatory liabilities (see Note 1). 

10, ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

Titie rv ofthe 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments required the Companies to reduce sulfiir dioxide (S02) 
emissions in two phases; Phase I m 1995 and Phase II in 2000. The Companies selected a fiiel switching 
strategy to comply with the enission reduction requirements. The Companies also purchased additional 
S02 allowances. The cost of these purchased allowances was inventoried and included on an avenge cost 
basis in the cost of fiiel consumed when used. The cost of unused allowances at December 31, 2008 and 
2007, was $2,244,126 and $ 11,787,964, respectively 

Titie TV of the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments also required the Compames to comply with a nitrogen 
oxides (NOx) emission rate limit of 0.84 Ib/mmBtu in 2000. The Companies installed overfire air systems 
on all eleven units at the plants to comply with this limit. The total capital cost of the eleven overfire air 
systems was approximately $8.2 million. 

During 2002 and 2003, Ohio and Indiana finalized respective NOx State Implementation Plan (SIP) Call 
regulations that required fiirthe: significant NOx emission reductions for coal-buming power plants during 
the ozone control peiod (May through Sq>tembe-). The Companies installed selective catalytic reduction 
(SCR) systems on ten of its eleven units to comply with these rules. The total capital cost ofthe ten SCR 
systems was approximately $355 million. 

On March 10, 2005. die U.S. EPA signed the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) tirnt will require 
significant fiuther reductions of S02 and NOx emissions from coal-buming powe" plants. On March 15, 
2005, the U.S. EPA also signed the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) that will require significant mercury 
emission reductions for coal-buming power plants. These emission reductions will be requhied in two 
phases: 2009 and 2015 for NOx; 2010 and 2015 for S02; and 2010 and 2018 for mercury, Ohio and 
Indiana also subsequently finalized their respective versions of CAIR and CAMR, In response, the 
Companies dete-mined that it would be necessary to install flue gas desulfiorization (FGD) systems at both 
plants to comply with these new rules and have since been conducting the necessary engineering, 
permitting, and construction to install these new FGD systems. 

hi February 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision which vacated the federal CAMR 
and remanded the rale to the U.S. EPA with a detemination that the rule be rewritten under the maximum 
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achievable control technologies (MACT) provision of Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act. A group of 
electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requested a rehearing ofthe decision, which was denied by the court. 
Following those denials, both the group of electric utilities and the U.S. EPA requited that the 
U.S. Supreme Court hear the case. However, in February 2009, the U.S. EPA withdrew its request and the 
group of utilities' request was denied These actions left the original court decision in place, which 
vacated die federal CAMR and remanded the rule to the U.S. EPA with a detemination that the rule be 
rewritten under the MACT provision of Section 112(d) ofthe Clean Air Act. 

In July 2008, ihe D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision that vacated the fedeal CAIR and 
remanded the rale to the U.S. EPA In September 2008, the U.S. EPA, a group of electric utilities and 
othe- parties filed petitions for rehearing. In December 2008, the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals granted 
the U.S. EPA's p^ition and remanded the rale to the U.S. EPA without vacatur, allowing the fedeal 
CAIR to remain in effect while a new rale is developed and promulgated 

In December 2008, the Compaiues Boards of Directors autiiorized a delay in constmction ofthe FGD at 
the Clifty Creek Plant of at least 18 months due to economic uncertainty in the capital mark^. 

In March 2009, the Board of DirecttKS of OVEC authorized a delay in the anticipated tie-in of the first 
three generating units to the Kyger Creek Plant's FGD system pending an investigation into the stoictural 
integrity of the two newly constmcted j ^ bubbling reactors, which are major components of the FGD 
system. Additional S02 allowances will be purchased to operate the Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek 
generating units to comply with the current environmental emission mles during the delays. The cunreit 
cost to complete die new Kyger Creek and Clifty Creek FGD systems and the associated landfills is 
estimated not to exceed $1.33 billion. 

11. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments^ requires disclosure ofthe fair 
value of certain financial instruments. The estimates of fair value unde* SFAS No. 107 require the 
application of broad assumptions and estimates. Accordingly, any actual exchange of such financial 
instruments could occur at values significandy different fiom the amounts disclosed. As cash and cash 
equivalents, current receivables, current payables, and line of credit borrowings are all short term in 
nature, their carrying amounts approximate Mr value. The fair values of die Senior Notes we^e estimated 
using discounted cash flow analyses based on ciurent incremental borrowing rates for similar types of 
borrowing arrai^ements. 
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